
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
October 25, 2022 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, October 25, 2022 6:30 PM 
 

Kerri Howell, Mayor 

 

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, Councilmember 
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Effective July 7, 2022, the City of Folsom returned to all in-person City Council, Commission, and 

Committee meetings.  Remote participation for the public will no longer be offered.   

Everyone is invited and encouraged to attend and participate in City meetings in person. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Resolution of Commendation Honoring Kaiser Permanente on their 20th Anniversary in Folsom 

2. Resolution of Commendation Honoring Folsom Residents Aimee Johns and Paul Bandy for their 
Efforts Rescuing a Shark Attack Victim 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

3. City of Folsom ALERT Rain and Stream Gauges for Enhanced Storm Response  

4. Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report  

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

5. Approval of October 11, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

6. Ordinance No. 1334 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 5.20.070(A)(2) and 
Repealing Section 5.20.070(A)(13)(d) of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase the Number of 
Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting  (PN 22-157) (Second Reading and Adoption)  

7. Resolution No. 10929 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs for the Purchase of a Valve Truck Bed and 
Associated Equipment 

8. Resolution No. 10930 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of an eTransit Van 

9. Resolution No. 10931 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the Purchase of a Dump Truck 
and Appropriation of Funds 

10. Resolution No. 10932 - A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation of Funds for the Mangini 
Ranch Phase 1 Re-landscaping Project 

11. Resolution No. 10933 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 
2 to the Professional Services Agreement with Mintier Harnish to Increase the Not-to-Exceed 
Amount for the Zoning Code Update Project 

12. Resolution No. 10934 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase 
Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. for One Type 3 Fire Engine  

13. Resolution No. 10935 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Broadstone Estates 
Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision 

14. Objective Design and Development Standards and Green Means Go Grant Funding  

i. Resolution No. 10936 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional 
Services Agreement with Opticos for Development of Objective Design and Development 
Standards and Appropriation of Funds 

ii. Resolution No. 10937 - A Resolution Authorizing Applications for the SACOG 2022 Green 
Means Go Funding Program 

15. Resolution No. 10938 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village 
Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village 
Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision 

16. Resolution No. 10940 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the International Union of Operating Engineers, 
Local 39 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Page 3



4 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


City of Folsom
Resolution of Commendation

Honoring
Kaiser Permanente on their zotrAnniversary

WHEREAS, Kaiser Permanente is the nation's oldest and largest not-for-profit integrated health
care system founded 77 years ago in Oakland, Galifornia by Henry J. Kaiser, an industrialist
who believed in providing affordable, quality health care; and

WHEREAS, Kaiser Permanente began providing health care in the Sacramento area for the first
time in 1965, and is now serying more than 945,000 members locally, and is the largest health
care provider in the Greater Sacramento area; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Medical Offices were opened on October 28,2002, to better serve their
growing membership in the area; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Medical Offices will celebrate 20 years of service to the community on

October 28,2022; and

WHEREAS, Kaiser Permanente now provides health care for more than 80,000 Folsom
members at their Folsom Medical Offices; and

WHEREAS, medical services provided at the Folsom Medical Offices includes adult medicine,
pediatrics, women's health, mental health, laboratory, radiology, pharmacy, optometry, optical
sales, physicaltherapy, and health education; and

WHEREAS, approximately 80 physicians and approximately 370 staff and other providers care
for their members at the Folsom Medical Offices; and

WHEREAS, for nearly a decade, Kaiser Permanente Folsom has been a key partner with the
Folsom Gommunity Service Day and annualfood drive; and

WHEREAS, Kaiser Permanente Folsom is certified by the League of American Bicyclists as a
Gold Level Bicycle Friendly business with a bike share program and cycling club; and

WHEREAS, as a not-for-profit health care provider, Kaiser Permanente's mission is to improve
the health and well-being of their members and the communities they serve:

NOW, THEREFORE, l, KERRI M. HOWELL, Mayor of the City of Folsom, on behalf of the
Folsom City Council and the citizens of tne Folsom community, do hereby thank Kaiser
Permanente for providing quality healthcare to Folsom and congratulate them on their 20th

Anniversary.

PASSED AND APPROVED, this 25th day of Odober2Q22.

Attest:
Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR Lydia Konopka, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Page 5

10/25/2022 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally lefr blank.

Page 6

10/25/2022 Item No.1.



City of Folsom
Resolution of Commendation

Honofug
Folsom Residents Aimee Johns and Paul Bandy

For lheir Efforts Rescuing a SharkAttackVictim

WHEREAS, Folsom residents Aimee Johns, a Registered Nurse at Sutter Medical
Center in Sacramento, and her husband Paul Bandy, a Police Officer
with Sacramento Police Department, risked their lives to help save a

swimmer at Lovers Point Beach in the town of Pacific Grove on June 22,

2022, and

WHEREAS, the vacationing Folsom couple were celebrating their 12th wedding
anniversary with paddleboarding at the Monterey Bay cove when they
heard screams for help and noticed a man in distress, and

WHEREAS, along with another good Samaritan who was teaching a surf instruction
nearby, Aimee and Paul took immediate action and personal risk and
pulled the shark-bite victim onto a surfboard and brought him back to
shore to receive first aid, and

WHEREAS, the fast actions of Aimee and Paul allowed medics to get shark attack
survivor Steve Bruemmer to a trauma center in time to receive life-saving
care, and

WHEREAS, Aimee and Paul have since received multiple awards and

commendations for their selfless acts of bravery:

NOW, THEREFORE, l, KERRI M. HOWELL, Mayor of the City of Folsom, on behalf of
the Folsom City Council, do hereby thank Folsom residents Aimee Johns and Paul

Bandy for their efforts to rescue shark aftack victim Steve Bruemmer.

PASSED AND APPROVED, this 25th day of October 2022.

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

Aftest:
Lydia Konopka, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

,\, ,\'ll

'/i
.o\rliW

,$

'ri It
il,'

r ' 1-',

.v-"$'

Page 7

10/25/2022 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally trefr blank.

Page 8

10/25/2022 Item No.2.



i i-'l.i 'l:"{.}iylt. :tia;;;.rn r': : !t, jrj

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Department recently completed work to upgrade the City's rain and stream

gauge system as part of the City's overall efforts to enhance flood awareness and response

activities. Staff will be presenting a summary of the work completed to date, including physical

gauge installations, data collections, and the online platform for viewing the information
collected. The presentation will outline the initial benefits to our flood response efforts, as well
as identiff ongoing efforts and activities to further expand on the usefulness of the system for
our City-wide flood preparedness.

Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

MEETING DATE: 1012512022

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: City of Folsom ALERT Rain and Stream Gauges for Enhanced

Storm Response

FROM: Public Works Department

I

Page 9

10/25/2022 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 10

10/25/2022 Item No.3.



ff,rtil&iH',s_+F:l
$i *!i rs*r? a ir tttai;t3

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 10tzs12022

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report

F'ROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Community Development staff will provide an update on the planning, engineering and

building activity in the Folsom Plan Area south of Highway 50 during the six month period
from April l't through September 301h,2022.

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

1

Page 11

10/25/2022 Item No.4.



This page is intentionally trefr blank.

Page 12

10/25/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 314
Folsom City Council

October 11,2022

Gity Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, October 11,2022 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m. with Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember

Councilmembers Absent: Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO GLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel Anticipated Litigation, lnitiation of Litigation Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): One Potential Case

Motion by Councilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Councilmember YK Chalamcherla, to
adjourn to Closed Session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the following roll
callvote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Rodriguez, Aquino
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): Kozlowski, Howell
Councilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that the City Council authorized the City Attorney to initiate
litigation in one case.

Draft - Not Official Until Approved Page 13

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 315
Folsom Ci$ Council

October 11,2022

ADJOURNMENT

The special meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 6:43 p.m

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor

Draft- Not Officiol Until Approved
Page 14

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 316
Folsom City Council

October 11,2022

Gity Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, October 11,2022 6:30 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at6:44 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell presiding

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione
Recreation and Community Services Manager Tom Hellmann
Landscape Services Manager Zach Perras
Principal Planner Steve Banks
Public Works Director Mark Rackovan
Public Works Engineering Manager Brian Reed
Arborist Aimee Nunez

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that there were updates to item 12

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

1. Aaron Hadzess regarding supporting local workers

Droft - Not Official Until Approved

Page 15

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 317
Folsom City Council

October 11,2022

SGHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. Presentationof 2Q22 Community Service Day Results

Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione introduced the item and Recreation and
Community Services Manager Tom Hellmann made a presentation.

2. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming October 2022 as National Arts and
Humanities Month

Councilmember Sarah Aquino presented the proclamation.

3. Project Update of the Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3

Public Works Director Mark Rackovan introduced the item and Public Works Engineering Manager
Brian Reed made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

CONSENT GALENDAR:

4. Approval of September 27,2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

5. pulled for discussion

6. Ordinance No. 1333 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Removing Limitations on Frequency
of Garage Sales by Repealing Section 5.09.020 from the Folsom Municipal Code (Second
Reading and Adoption)

7. pulled for discussion

8. Resolution No. 10926 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction
Change Order with Central Valley Engineering and Asphalt, lnc. for the On-Call Concrete and
Asphalt Maintenance Services Project (Contract 174-21 21-073) and Appropriation of Funds

9. Resolution No. 10927 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Consultant and
Professional Services Agreement with West Coast Arborists, lnc. for On-Call Tree Trimming and
Removal Services

10. Resolution No. 10928 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with
Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of a Crane Truck

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Gonsent Galendar items 4, 6, 8-10.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

Droft - Not officiol Until Approved

Page 16

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 318
Folsom City Council

October 11,2022

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:

4. Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory
Committee to Represent the Prospect Ridge District

Applicant Benjamin Mattocks introduced himself and expressed his interest in working with the
Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember YK Ghalamcherla, to
appoint Benjamin Mattocks to the Folsom Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory
Gommittee to represent the Prospect Ridge District for the term ending in December 2024.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

7 . Resolution No. 10925- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design
Consulting Services Agreement with TAIT Environmental Services, lnc. for the Corporation Yard
Fuel Tank and Fuel Management System Replacement Project

Mayor Kerri Howell pulled this item to address a resident email asking for the reasons/justifications for
the tank replacement. She explained the replacement of the above-ground storage tank is needed to
address inadequate size and to address leakage into the secondary containment vessel (which she noted
does not result in contamination).

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember YK Chalamcherla to
approve Resolution No. 10925.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

PUBLIC HEARING:

1 1. Resolution No. 10924 - A Resolution Reducing the Annual Assessment in the Final Engineer's
Report for Fiscal Year 2022-23 for Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District

Landscape Services Manager Zach Perras made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council.

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the Public Hearing. Hearing no speakers, the Public Hearing was closed

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10924.

Droft - Not Official Until Approved

Page 17

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 319
Folsom City Council

October 11,2022

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

12. Ordinance No. 1334 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 5.20.070(A)(2) and
Repealing Section 5.20.070(AX13Xd) of the Folsom Municipal Code to lncrease the Number of
Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting (PN 22-157) (lntroduction and First Reading)

Principal Planner Steve Banks made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember YK Ghalamcherla to
introduce Ordinance No. 1334.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

13. Landmark Tree Considerations and Direction to Staff

Arborist Aimee Nunez made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

Following the presentation and discussions with staff, the City Council expressed conceptual support
for the designation of individual landmark trees with the cooperation and support of the relevant
landowners. The City Council supported continuing review and analysis of options related to tree
groves, noting the need for California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation cooperation relative
to the grove of trees on prison property. The City Council also suggested staff consider future updates
to the Tree Preservation Ordinance regarding the landmark tree designation process, definitions, grove
qualifications, and related matters, along with renewed outreach to the public regarding maintenance of
trees during drought conditions.

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen invited residents to the Friends of the Folsom Zoo Sanctuary Breakfast,
the Folsom Fire Department Open House and Pancake BreaKast, the Public Safety Trunk or Treat
event, the Diwali Festival of Lights event, and the Wildwood Performing Arts Foundation event.

GOUNGIL GOMMENTS:

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez congratulated Visconti's restaurant and Powerhouse Ministries on their
respective anniversaries. She spoke of the Livability Summit for the unhoused, congratulated Folsom
Police Foundation on their recent gala event, the Folsom Homecoming Parade, the non-profit

Draft - Not officiol Until Approved

Page 18

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 320
Folsom City Council

October 11,2022

community showcase, Spirit Brews, soapbox derby, and rotary events. She inquired about possible city
projects in the pipeline that need to be brought before the City Council, given recent light agendas.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla spoke of Future Folsom and the retention of PowerSchool,
solicitation of technology firms, Octoberfest, Pinebrook Village, Community Service Day, and election
season.

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski spoke of Public Works Projects that he would like to see come back to
Council for discussion including crosswalk pavement markings, pipe work in the Hinkle Creek area. He
also mentioned the Muslim Center Open House and SACOG's Youth Leadership Academy.

Mayor Kerri Howell spoke of Reginal Sanitation and Regional Transit meetings, Measure A
expenditures, Community Service Day, Visconti's restaurant and Powerhouse Ministries.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Kerri Howell adjourned
the meeting in memory of Shauna Ryan at 8:23 pm.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
ATTEST

Kerri Howell, Mayor

Draft - Not Officiol Until Approved

Page 19

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



This page is intentionally treft blank.

Page 20

10/25/2022 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 1012512022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1334 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Section 5.20.070(AX2) and Repealing Section
5.20.070(A)(13Xd) of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase

the Number of Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting
(PN 2z-lsTXSecond Reading and Adoption)

F'ROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Ordinance No. 1334 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Section 5.20.070(AX2) and Repealing Section 5.20.070(AX13Xd) of the Folsom
Municipal Code to Increase the Number of Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On June l, 2022, Delta C, LP submitted an application to the City requesting approval of a
Municipal Code Amendment to amend the City of Folsom Cardroom Ordinance with the
pu{poses of (l) increasing the number of permitted card tables in any cardroom from 9 to 1 1;

and (2) allowing the practice of Backline Betting to occur in any cardroom. Delta C, LP stated

in their application that these amendments to the City's Cardroom Ordinance are necessary for
the cardroom to be able to compete with cardrooms in other local jurisdictions in the

Sacramento area.

The following are the specific amendments to the Cardroom Ordinance that were originally
proposed by the applicant:

Amend Chapter 5.20, Section 5.20.070(AX2) of the Folsom Municipal Code to
increase the number of card tables in the City from 9 to 11, pursuant to the allowance
provided by Business and Professions Code $ 1996I.06(b), and add language to this
Section that would allow the City to take advantage of any future table increases

authorized by the Legislature without amending the Cardroom Ordinance as follows:

I

a

Page 21

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



a

5.20.07 0 Cardroom regulations.
A. No person shall operate a cardroom in violation of any of the following
regulations:

2. No more than *+ae eleven (l ll card tables shall be permitted in any cardroom.
However. should judicial or leqislative action alter the restrictions or limitations in
the Gamblins Control Act, Business and Pro fessions Code section 19800 et seo.. to
allow -for an increase in the curyent number of tables without voter approval, the

maximum number of tables permitted in any carlltoom may be increased, subiect to
cit.v council allocation by Resolution, up to the amount such iudicial or legislative

allows not to exceed a

Delete Section 5.20.070(AX13Xd) of the Folsom Municipal Code, which currently
prohibits the practice of "Backline Betting" within the City as follows

13. The following provisions shall govern wagering limits: It is unlawful for any
person to bet or wager at or against any card game held at a licensed gaming club
except as allowed by this chapter. In addition to any conditions that may be imposed
on a license, the following restrictions shall apply:

On September 13, 2022, City staff provided the City Council with an overview of the proposed
amendment to the Cardroom Ordinance for the purpose of soliciting feedback and receiving
direction from the Council. The Council discussed the proposed cardroom amendments and
indicated that they were supportive of the proposed amendments.

On October 11,2022, the City received a letter from the State Bureau of Gambling Control
(Bureau) regarding the proposed Cardroom Ordinance Amendment. In their letter, the Bureau
indicated that applicant's request to increase the number of card tables from 9 to 11 and the
request to repeal language prohibiting Backline Betting were consistent with the State
Gambling Control Act. However, the Bureau stated that the language in the Cardroom
Ordinance Amendment that provides for the 'oautomatic" increases to the number of cardrooms
was not consistent with the Gambling Control Act. As a result, the Bureau recommended that
the language in the Cardroom Ordinance Amendment that provides for "automatic" increases
in the number of card tables be eliminated. City staff consulted with the project applicant and
they were agreeable to modifuing the Cardroom Ordinance Amendment as follows:

2
Page 22

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 5.20.070(AX2) of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as

follows:

5.20.07 0 Cardroom regulations.
A. No person shall operate a cardroom in violation of any of the following
regulations:
2. No more than eleven (11) card tables shall be permitted in any cardroom.
HeweYerr should jrr ion"

inereesedr subjee

{abl€s'

On October 11,2022, the City Council reviewed the proposal from Delta C, LP for approval
of a Municipal Code Amendment to amend the City of Folsom Cardroom Ordinance with the
purpose of increasing the number of permiued card tables in any cardroom from 9 to 11 and

allowing the practice of Backline Betting to occur in any cardroom. The City Council
expressed their support for the proposed project as amended and voted (5-0-0-0) to introduce
and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 1334 (An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Section 5.20.070(AX2) and Repealing Section 5.20.070(AX13Xd) of the Folsom
Municipal Code to Increase the Number of Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting).

POLICY / RULE

Under Section 2.I2 of the City Charter, amendments to the Folsom Municipal Code require
review and approval by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

As referenced in the Background section of this report, the proposed Municipal Code
Amendment would amend the City of Folsom's Cardroom Ordinance with the goals of (1)
increasing the number of permitted card tables in any cardroom from 9 to I 1; and (2) allowing
the practice of Backline Betting to occur in any cardroom. The implications associated with
these two amendments are a minor increase in the number of customers (potentially 20
additional customers) and employees (potentially 5-10 additional employees) present in a
cardroom atany given point in time.

In evaluating the proposed Cardroom Ordinance, City staff consulted with the appropriate
internal staff including the Chief of Police, Fire Chief, Chief Building Offrcial, Code
Enforcement Supervisor, Community Development Director, and City Attorney. In addition,
City staffalso solicited feedback regarding general cardroom operations and concerns from

J
Page 23

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



code enforcement officers throughout the Sacramento region. The general consensus of the
outreach effort with the aforementioned individuals and groups was that there were no
concerns with the proposed Cardroom Ordinance due the limited nature of the proposed
modifications. As a result, City staff determined that the proposed Cardroom Ordinance will
not be likely to result in any direct impacts (traffic, parking, noise, aesthetics, safety, etc.) due
to the fact that the Ordinance is simply providing the opportunity for a cardroom to increase
the number of card tables within an establishment while also allowing for increased
participation at the card tables through the process of Backline Betting. Any cardroom seeking
to operate 11 tables arrdlor allow backline betting must receive individual approval from the
City Council pursuant to the Cardroom Ordinance.

The applicant for the proposed Cardroom Ordinance (Delta C, LP) indicated that it is their
intent to apply for a Conditional Use Permit and Cardroom License to own and operate a

cardroom within an existing 4,680-square-foot freestanding commercial building (formerly
Applebee's Restaurant and Casa Ramos Restaurant) located at 400 Iron Point Road. The
Conditional Use Permit, which will be subject to review and approval by the Planning
Commission, will include an extensive evaluation of potential direct impacts associated with
the cardroom including but not limited to site design, vehicle access and circulation, parking,
noise, safety, building design, signage, and dayslhours of operation. The Cardroom License
will be subject to separate review and approval by the City Council.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

A recent Economic Impact Analysis (Analysis) commissioned by the California Gaming
Commission in 2019 (https://californiagamineassociation.org/cardroomimpact/) found the
total annual economic impact of California's cardroom industry to be $5.6 billion dollars,
providing over 32,000 local jobs.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The project is categorically exempt under Section 15061(bX3) Review for Exemption of the
California Enyironmental Quality Act (CEQA). New cardroom applications (Conditional
Use Permit) in the City will be subject to CEQA review

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance No. 1334 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section
5.20. 070(A)(2) and Repealing Section 5.20. 070(AX I 3 Xd) of the Eolsom Municipal Code
to Increase the Number of Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting.

4
Page 24

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

5
Page 25

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



Attachment I

Ordinance No. 1334 - An Ordinance of the City of
Folsom Amending Section 5.20.070(A)(2) and

Repealing Section 5.20.070(AX13Xd) of the Folsom
Municipal Code to Increase the Number of Card

Tables and Allow Backline Betting

Page 26

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



ORDINANCE NO. 1334

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF'FOLSOM AMENDING SECTION 5.20.070(AX2)
AND REPEALING SECTION A)fl3(d) OF'THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE

TO INCREASE THE I\UMBER OF CARD TABLES AND ALLOW BACKLINE
BETTING

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Folsom Municipal Code to increase the
number of card tables in the City from 9 to 11 pursuant to the allowance provided by Business

and Professions Code $ 19961.06(b) and to allow the practice of "Backline Betting" within the

City.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 5.20.070(A)(2) of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as

follows

5.20.07 0 Cardroom regulations.
A. No person shall operate a cardroom in violation of any of the following regulations:
2. No more than eleven (11) card tables shall be permitted in any cardroom.

SECTION 3 REPEAL OF CODE

Section 5.20.070(AXl3Xd) is hereby deleted from the Folsom Municipal Code in its
entirety

SECTION 4 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affectthe validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each
section irrespective of the factthat any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase

be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

Ordinance No. 1334
Page I of2

Page 27

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



ABSENT:

ABSTAIN

SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirfy (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on October 11,2022, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on October 25,2022.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom, State of California, this 25th day of October , 2022 by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

NOES:

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1334
Page2 of2

Page 28

10/25/2022 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: r0t2s12022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No.10929- A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Illinois Tool Works Inc.

dba EH Wachs for the Purchase of a Valve Truck Bed and

Associated Equipment

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Departments recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Resolution No. 10929 - A Resolution Authorizrngthe City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs for the Purchase of a Valve Truck Bed

and Associated Equipment.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) recognizes the need to maintain
a fleet of vehicles that will be able to provide reliable, efficient and responsive service. In
coordination with Fleet staff, current department vehicles are reviewed to help identifu priority
vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and purpose. The current valve truck
used by the Water Qualrty Division has, based on this review, exceeded its' expected service

life in terms of age, mileage and ongoing maintenance costs. This agreement will facilitate
procurement of a new valve truck bed and associated equipment, to be installed on a replacement

truck to be purchased by the Water Quality Division.

This resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Illinois Tool Works

Inc. dba EH Wachs for the purchase of a valve truck bed and associated equipment for a total
amount of $17I,667.25.

1

POLICY / RULE

Page 29

10/25/2022 Item No.7.



Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,

equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $66,141 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements for
the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service, or construction with one or more public

procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the participants.

ANALYSIS

Review of EWR vehicles identified the Water Quality Division's valve truck as high priority
for replacement. The valve truck is an essential piece of equipment used for exercising valves

within the water distribution system, which is a requirement of the California code of
regulations. The truck and associated equipment currently in use was purchased in 2006 and

has already undergone various repairs, resulting in the vehicle and equipment being out of
service for a total of at least l0 weeks during the past year.

EWR staff coordinated with Fleet staff to obtain a quote for a replacement valve truck. At this

time, the City is unable to obtain a quote or submit a direct order for the actual vehicle until
later this year but has received a quote for the truck bed and associated equipment.

Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs submitted a quote through BuyBoard for the required

truck bed and equipment for a total of $171,667.25.8uy8oard is a national cooperative

purchasing entity of which the City of Folsom is a member. The City has purchased numerous

items through BuyBoard. Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs has a current contract with
BuyBoard for providing Construction, Road and Bridge, Ditching, Trenching and Other

Equipment at a price that has been assessed to be fair, reasonable, and competitive.

BuyBoard contract number #597-19 will be utilized for the purchase of the valve truck bed and

associated equipment, for a total of $171,667.25. This price includes taxes and delivery to a
facility for assembly on a vehicle (to be purchased by the City) at a future date. The vehicle on

which the equipment will be assembled is estimated to cost $70,000. EWR staff will retum to

City Council for approval for this purchase at a later date when relevant quotes are available.

Fleet staff recommended ordering the truck bed and equipment prior to purchasing the vehicle.

Waiting several months until the orders for the vehicle and associated equipment can be

combined into one order could result in an increased overall cost to the City. By placing the

order for the truck bed and equipment now, the current pricing is guaranteed, but the schedule

for production and assembly will still be coordinated with production of the associated vehicle,

which EWR plans to purchase as soon as orders are accepted by the vendor.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Sufficient funds are budgeted and available in FY 2022-23 in the Water Operating Fund (Fund

520) for the requested truck bed and equipment purchase for a total price of $171,667.25.

2 Page 30

10/25/2022 Item No.7.



The replaced vehicle and associated equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal
Code, section 2.36.220, Disposition of surplus personal property.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10929 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs for the Purchase of a Valve Truck Bed and

Associated Equipment

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 31

10/25/2022 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10929

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH ILLINOIS TOOL WORKS INC. DBA EH WACHS F'OR THE

PURCHASE OF A VALVE TRUCK BED AND ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT

WHEREAS, Environmental and Water Resources Department staff has validated the need
to purchase a replacement valve truck with associated equipment based on an approved
replacement schedule; and

WHEREAS, orders are not currently being accepted for the required vehicle for the valve
truck; and

WHEREAS, Fleet staff recommended that there will be a cost saving if the truck bed and
equipment is ordered separately to the vehicle; and

WHEREAS, Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs has provided a quote for the truck bed
and equipment and will coordinate assembly with the vehicle when purchased; and

WHEREAS, this purchase will be made through BuyBoard, r,vhich used its recognized
cooperative purchasing agreement to award a contract to Illinois Tool Works Inc. dbaEH Wachs in
an amount not to exceed $171,667.25; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) for this purchase; and

WHEREAS, replaced equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code
section 2.36.220, Disposition of surplus personal property; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with Illinois Tool Works Inc. dba EH Wachs
for the purchase of a Valve Truck Bed and Associated Equipment for a not-to-exceed amount of
$171,667.25.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October,2\22,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10929
Page I of2 Page 32

10/25/2022 Item No.7.



Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10929
Page2 of2 Page 33

10/25/2022 Item No.7.



This page is intentionally trefr blank.

Page 34

10/25/2022 Item No.7.



:'. .:; r !::.: r !: i .lr

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Departments recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Resolution No. 10930 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of an eTransit Van.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) recognizes the need to maintain

a fleet of vehicles that will be able to provide reliable, efficient and responsive service. In
coordination with the City of Folsom Fleet Manager, current department vehicles are reviewed

to help identiff priority vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and purpose.

This agreement will facilitate replacement of a vehicle used by the by the Utility Maintenance

Division that, based on this review, has exceeded its' expected service life in terms of age,

mileage and ongoing maintenance costs.

This resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Folsom Lake Ford

for the purchase of an eTransit van for a total amount of $66,362.28.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,

equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $66,141 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

I

MEETING DATE: 10t2512022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10930 - A Resolution Authorizing the Crty
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the

Purchase of an eTransit Van

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 35

10/25/2022 Item No.8.



Section 2.36.100(I) of the Folsom Municipal Code provides for a five percentprice differential to

local bidders in contracting. This preference is only applied when quallty, service and other factors

are equal.

ANALYSIS

Review of EWR vehicles identified a camera truck used by the Utility Maintenance Division
as high priorrty for replacement. This vehicle is used for CCTV inspection of sewer laterals

throughout Folsom and is therefore a critical piece of equipment for maintenance of the sewer

infrastructure.

EWR staff coordinated with the Fleet staff to obtain quotes for the required vehicle. A summary

of the bids received is shown in the table below. Folsom Lake Ford submitted the winning bid
by virtue of local preference. With the local preference, the proposal from Folsom Lake Ford

would have to be less than$67,178.51, which is within five percent of the lowest bid. Given

that the proposal from Folsom Lake Ford is 566,362.28, this meets the local preference criteria.

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council

authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the purchase

of an eTransit van for a not-to-exceed amount of $66,362.28.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Sufficient funds are budgeted and available in FY 2022-23 in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund

530) for the requested vehicle purchase for a total price of $66,362.28

The replaced vehicle witl be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code, section 2.36.220,

Disposition of surplus personal property.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10930 - A Resolution Authorinngthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of an eTransit Van

2

966,362.28Folsom Lake Ford
$67,212.43National Auto Fleet Group
$63,979.53Watsonville Fleet Group

Submitted,

Page 36

10/25/2022 Item No.8.



Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 37

10/25/2022 Item No.8.



RE,SOLUTION NO. 10930

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH FOLSOM LAKE F'ORD FOR THE PURCHASE OF'AN

ETRANSIT VAN

WHEREAS, Environmental and Water Resources Department staff has validated the need

to purchase an eTransit van based on an approved replacement schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase has been competitively bid by three different vendors with
Folsom Lake Ford submitting the winning bid by virtue of local preference identified under

Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.36.100(I); and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Sewer Operating Fund

(Fund 530); and

WHEREAS, replaced equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code

section 2.36.22},Disposition of surplus personal property; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the purchase of
an eTransit van for a not-to-exceed amount of $66,362.28;

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25ft day of October,2\22,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10930

Page 1 of I Page 38

10/25/2022 Item No.8.



tiir,!!if-!:;t t I !...J!,ii

Folsom Crty Council
Staff rt

RE,COMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Departments recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Resolution No. 10931 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the Purchase of a
Dump Truck and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (ESIR) recognizes the need to maintain
a fleet of vehicles that will be able to provide reliable, efficient and responsive service. In
coordination with Fleet staff, current department vehicles are reviewed to help identifu priority
vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and purpose. This agreement will
facilitate replacement of a dump truck used by the Utility Maintenance division that, based on

this review, has exceeded its' expected service life in terms of age, mileage and ongoing
maintenance costs.

This resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Dobbs Heavy Duty
Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the purchase of a dump truck in the amount of
$301,010.94 and appropriation of funds.

1

MEETING DATE: r0t2512022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10931 - A Resolution Authorizing the Crty
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Dobbs Heavy Duty
Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the Purchase of a Dump
Truck and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

POLICY / RULE

Page 39

10/25/2022 Item No.9.



Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,
equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $66,141 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements for
the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service, or construction with one or more public
procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the participants.

ANALYSIS

EWR staff coordinated with the Fleet staff to obtain a quote from Sourcewell, previously
known as the National Joint Powers Agency, for the required vehicle. Sourcewell is a national
cooperative purchasing entity of which the City of Folsom is a member. The City has purchased
numerous items through Sourcewell.

Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt has a current contract with Sourcewell
and provided a quote for the requested dump truck for a total of $301,010.94.

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council
authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC,
dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the purchase of a dump truck for a total amount of $301,010.94.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt has agreed to provide the dump truck
for $301,010.94. There is a total of $199,940 available to replace sewer vehicles in the FY
2022-23 budget. An additional appropriation in the amount of $101,100 is required to purchase
this vehicle. Staff proposes to transfer $101,100 from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund
602) to the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) as a transfer out from the Capital Replacement
Fund.

The replaced vehicle will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code, section 2.36.220,
Disposition of surplus personal property.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10931 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the Purchase of a Dump Truck
and Appropriation of Funds

2
Page 40

10/25/2022 Item No.9.



Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 41

10/25/2022 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10931

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH DOBBS HEAVY DUTY HOLDINGS LLC, DBA DOBBS PETERBILT

FOR THE PURCHASE OF A DUMP TRUCK AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, Environmental and Water Resources Department staff has validated the need to
purchase a dump truck based on an approved replacement schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase will be made through Sourcewell, which used its recognized
cooperative purchasing agreement to award a contract to Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs
Peterbilt in an amount not to exceed $301,010.94; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) and
Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602); and

WHEREAS, an appropriation will be required in the amount of $101,100 from the Capital
Replacement Fund (Fund 602); and

WHEREAS, replaced equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code
section 2.36.220, Disposition of surplus personal property; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba
Dobbs Peterbilt for the purchase of a dump truck in the amount of $301,010.94;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate
$ 1 01 ,1 00 in the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602) as a transfer to the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund
530) and to appropriate an expense and revenue in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) in the amount
of $101,100.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October,2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10931
Page I of I

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 42

10/25/2022 Item No.9.



,i. Ij,ilnJl:r:\.:r
!,r j:!irr--rr+t l,r ).r, fi: l:

Folsom Crty Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: t012512022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 10932 - A Resolution Authorizing an

Appropriation of Funds for The Mangini Ranch Phase I Re-

Landscaping Project

F''ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10932 - A Resolution Authorizing

an Appropriation of Funds for The Mangini Ranch Phase I Re-Landscaping Project.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On May 24fi, 2022, The State Water Board adopted new emergency water conservation

regulations that were approved and put into action by the Office of Administrative Law on

June 10, 2022. These new updated water restrictions enacted several new water conservation

measures across the state, including the ban on watering non-functional turf. Pursuant to this,

the City of Folsom stopped inigating turf that was deemed non-functional based on the State

Water Boards definition. Since that time the City has received several calls regarding the lack

of watering and dissatisfaction of the residents with the aesthetics of these areas. Historically,

the City of Folsom has undertaken similar retrofit or conversation projects in areas where

funding was available and intended for this use. The areas identified in Mangini Phase 1 are

prime candidates for this sort of projects and meet both aforementioned requirements.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.090 (A)(1) and 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code,

professional services are not subject to competitive sealed bidding requirements, and those

costing $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

1

Page 43

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



ANALYSIS

The City currently has an agreement with BrightView Landscape Services to provide

maintenance to the City's Landscaping and Lighting District, as well as to the Community

Facilities District. Built into the referenced agreement are funds allocated for unscheduled

services, the current years agreement (FY 2022-023) allows for $430,000 in unscheduled

services. Funds to remove turf and replace with water wise plantings in the Mangini Ranch

area was not anticipated atthe time of the agreement.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Funds are currently available in the affected district's fund balances and will require an

additional appropriation for the purpose of this project. The district breakdown is included

below. The additional appropriation would be in the amount of $l13,267.86 in CFD 18 (Fund

288) and $27,849.68 in CFD 19 (Fund 289).

ATTACHMENT

L Resolution No. 10932 - A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation of Funds for The

Mangini Ranch Phase I Re-Landscaping Project
2. Proposals and Maps

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks & Recreation Director

1.09 $94,953.86Area 1: CFD 18 (FUND 288)
0.18 $18,314.00288Area2: CFD 18 (FI-IND

$27.849.680.4rArea 3: CFD l9 28e)
1.68 $141,117.54Total

Page 44

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Attachment I
Resolution 10932

Page 45

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 10932

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPROPRIATION OT'F'UNDS FOR THE
MANGINI RANCH PHASE 1 RE.LANDSCAPING PROJECT

WHEREAS, staff has identified the need for re-landscaping of specific areas within
Mangini Ranch Phase 1; and

WHEREAS, there are currently sufficient funds available in Community Facilities

Districts CFD 18 and CFD 19 tund balances (FUNDS 288 &289); and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation will be required in the amount of $113,267.86 in

CFD 18 (Fund 288) and $27,849.68 in CFD 19 ( Fund 289); and

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom's existing agreement with BrightView Landscape

Services allows for the use of these funds consistent with FMC Section 2.36; and

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the Finance Director to appropriate $113,267.86, to CFD 18 (FLIND 288) and

827,849.68 to CFD 19 (FUND 289) in the Fiscal Year 2022-23 operating budgets for these two

funds to be used to re-landscape identified areas within Mangini Ranch Phase l.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 25ft day of October2022 by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10932
Page 1 of I Page 46

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Attachment 2

Page 47

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Brt4#g1;

Attachment 2
Proposals and Maps

Area l:

Prapolrl fsr Extrr Wort lt
cltl Ef Folrom

trptt6cr0C,fi2!
p+rdr

Ftqfarly
Frtpe.rty

ilarra
Adt€lt

nrydFoLq'l
Lighingt and Lendsd*e Csrtrsd
*EF glu gpllr6ct

FobonlCA S68S0

Ctrrtsd
To

Bfihglddt dB

J.it|llon Lei*tit

Cltf OtFolsaFraie wodE SltlE€l

O$iaon E0Hib{neSt
F&ncf. SsSd

Frqecittlone

tsoliFiBsiotdhn

Mmgtnl Fmpolsl l- Esst gldffill and Hsnglnl

nrrrr!6vr1 dn6i nE{tt Wrecn lha iltb End rldaiElk etd lqpl.ca rllth r$inzr{lii End

butriloFnn€t
SsPr alllrotll

Prs$Ef,lng rrtrgg[i rqleg tir hll utidir th. {Fhalil miln|r}lrr.tc conlr*t.

Ew. llEllbr

ITO EIEH

fryhdrpr!!4Nnrqt

rm,-El{n
Pbdr*

t.40o Frcl{

ad!:m EA{:ll

rlrlr lfdob

30?,f,t EACII

ta rilhr. F.tdt

hrldl0rsr'idon

E1t lfulrt ldnlhid d f drpdt

Rrnml url lLpd rath (El HD $ow

&rEdlialbedr rrb dt-gle I l00o Fi!rcr
Jt4turrfihrf,Frl l0O

i'frmhll \rioar crnprf t FL BhrubPwlnil
hdhtrddlr elislbiiodte
}'nlFruE Bslitb I gd- sfttuBFltdtill lrublhd dllr
4 ena.r rFrg

ls
*n*
.8in'*ruia

r${2AB
sfit00ma

130 T€ll.l fttdi
'rtts E nsr{il narolcE

nlt3mFaalr rotg llt lst om rilrs ffistl+pgcc tt corhidpr Erriartttir*tr*hn
.}lt06i; &lob,Ad& CIE&rir * drilrrr116.b tDrS llr.rflt

t$tl"llB;86

Page 48

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Page 49

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Itta

4FEflldi*
Fttfl.riyrtddtrr

Area2:

trnaie*fu AWrlforn il
ffAldFolmile

,fi@
!1
seitf,dilil

4rF.l!pf tflrf,t
oy u i+uqr,'fli riyriF erq3t

****ur,
6FF'"6'J{dEn,

,€t?Fq!"S-!et
!+1it

'F.rqPErfrtn

ftqtdFi4Fn;
rrryUir'g,qr"***ffOf re* "r'b*"tlr!t.
Rroord d @ nw tiilftqr fia qlb ald 1qa1 aU dlqE u.qt itrftb
fi*utr ihpCflrF

Fr.y*Fi. lbq'qF,{6,$[:r{d!fi *,Flt{d.tndt!hfir!9?,srySq,

r{$ i$4*r
tgifni+i'n&t.t'0

:+r**gqin&{tg$Eig'tir!&. ;

l@ H*orr- rer rriyfi , {Om Flq rf,l
fuoqh$tnafr

&Sri*{rtdqt sd$hreftia*dridbritril:'iFDf'Q*tttE:.'. :

-rp*r.r*qw*rw'

' '$9' :'$,- ',trffi

,sn*: ,*fri81

,Tor.s[
*f.gg, :'W{.

'f.rirgtt'-a;*
rit ?*r{$o$

d* $ridt@,
r!*dtarl,ln $q. S{rltth. lt8.gtd.ilo

..:trFF rlil',$! rt$Elr : 
.hribi ddrrrri gr*rt,rir rrgrlillar uye*riill-rlhfrit' rtrrror*rqlrqil*.3|nlllts+dHri|h.rt}#

Page 50

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Page 51

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



l
Area 3:

Fruryod|rfsnf$m**
E&dFqlmm

.rQrhrnb{|"'li!!.
xi.t**W

ruutrft!r0F
ftis*bAdd'lc?

.slltilotd.tu*r

fhrcxrw mr$f'q$Fdd' :SF,i!'!g

ryiq,q+qryt. AryrEft qry*goyu*f$tr$tmrflqfsr Mqo ntrra*6lanm

wd'lnns
ifiugtre,rugp ** b h'llcttds spnnrnl u;frdlrme {{t[h*.

qtutf FitFr
rt .ldreihO t*tOc{ori Grilrd
AtB-mrsra-ot
fidtrfi9fli86|00-i

cfi,tact sldLqsfi
Ta myoie,*;rtccrtwllsrr|[

'iniir .}ii*l;,

jlrfffil0[r ,Slllttii

$il,f.t$
f*nll: .*f;Sl:, i$ilr|(!,tbdiH.flf,!-o0F

;Fs{d bd 4*F{l ec! m ththil

,*tirH.hl lc{l * |.r* dl $|*l @[ftrll
i'faiitdltidiiff"lm "

tr{Wft*cr'{r'r TJ'M
i$ift{ Jtlf.si*ttrFtb','

,nrirrttilrird
,!.s.t 7sl{$tl
$f{ sJ1ffi*
.rtlntniUir fae tfrleH$ lar,er$-rg

. . 'd#-Ell0rl44.ilrrXg 
i

ri8 irhdr ufi bnl {iirirrr.utb ctr,.rf s|6tttirtbdtittrltiictidhil:-''--- - onttir*{iri S. [aritirrr* hnttrltt l- nt*[ru*

Page 52

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Page 53

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



This page is intentionally trefr blank.

Page 54

10/25/2022 Item No.10.



Folsom City Council
Staff Report

F()LSOl\[

MEETING DATE: 1012st2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10933 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute AmendmentNo. 2 to the Professional
Services Agreement with Mintier Hamish and to Increase the Not-
to-Exceed Amount for the Agreement for the Zoning Code Update
Proiect

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully requests that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10933 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services

Agreement with Mintier Harnish, which reallocates existing funds between existing tasks,

authorizes the use of the contingency, and increases the total contract amount from $376,355 to

$396,355 in order to allow the consultant to use the $20,000 contingency that was approved by
City Council in ResolutionNo. 10237 on February 12,2019.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

City staff and its consultant team (Mintier Harnish) are in the process of updating the City's
Zoning Code, which has not been comprehensively updated for decades. As a result of many
changes in State law since 2019, additional changes need to be made to the Zoning Code, which
were not originally anticipated. Due to this additional work the $20,000 contingency that was

established in Resolution No. 10237 on February 12,2019 is needed for the project. In addition,
some tasks have taken more time compared to others. As a result, funds need to be reallocated
among those tasks. When Council approved the use of State Local Early Action Planning
(LEAP) grant funds for the Zoning Code Update in Resolution No. 10523, staff failed to increase

the not-to-exceed amount to include the $20,000 contingency. As a result, the total not-to-
exceed amount for the agreement should be increased from $376,355 to $396,355.

Page 55

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



POLICY / RULE

They key 2035 General Plan policy that relates to the Zoning Code update is:

o LU 1.1.1 Ensure that the Folsom Zoning Ordinance is
consistent with the 2035 General Plan.

ANALYSIS

No analysis needed. Please refer to Background/Issue section.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No financial changes are proposed as part of staff report as the funding for the $20,000
contingency was identified as part of Resolution No. 10237, and was funded in the Community
Development Department budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Under Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Public Resources Code, this activity will not have a

significant effect on the environment and as such the project is exempt from environmental
review under CEQA. Environmental review for the Zoning Code update will be conducted prior
to the adoption hearings.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10933 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute
AmendmentNo. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with Mintier Harnish and to
Increase the Not-to-Exceed Amount for the Agreement for the Zoning Code Update
Project

2. Resolution No 10237 adopted February 12,2019
3. ResolutionNo. 10523 adopted September 8,2020

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Development Director

Page 56

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 57

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10933

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
AMENDMENT NO. 2TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
MINTIER HARNISH AND TO INCREASE THE NOT.TO.EXCEED AMOUNT FOR

THE AGREEMENT FOR THE ZONING CODE UPDATE PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the2035 General Plan on August 28,2018, which
set forth new goals and policies for future development and required in Policy LU 1.1.1 that the
City's Zoning Ordinance be consistent with the General Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved ResolutionNo. 10237 on February 12,2019
authorizing the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with Mintier Harnish
for the comprehensive update of the City's Zoning Code and to establish a $20,000 contingency
for the project; and

WHEREAS, the California State Legislature in its 2019-2020 session enacted a number
of new laws designed to increase affordable housing supply and, as a result, required additional
update to the Ctty's Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved ResolutionNo. 10424 on April 28,2020,which
authorized the City Manager to apply for $300,000 from the State's Local Early Action Planning
(LEAP) grant program to fund several efforts to improve the zoning and development review
process in Folsom including additional Zoning Code work; and

WHEREAS, on Augustl0,2020, the City received an award letter from the State

Housing and Community Development Department for $300,000 from the LEAP grant program;
and

WHEREAS, the extra zoning code work needed to address the additional State mandates

and provide for additional outreach and education was $47,000; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 10523 added the $47,000 and increased contract amount
from $329,355 to $376,355, but this amount did not include the $20,000 contingency originally
established in ResolutionNo. 10237; and

WHEREAS, additional State laws approved in 2021 and2022 require additional analysis

in the Zoning Code that was not anticipated; and

WHEREAS, this additional work requires the use of the $20,000 contingency that was

established in Resolution No. 10237 and as a result the new total not-to-exceed amount should be

increased to $396,355; and

WHEREAS, approval of the amendment and the allocation of funding is exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA):

ResolutionNo. 10933
Page I of2 Page 58

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Manager is hereby authorized
to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Consultant and Professional Services Agreement with
Mintier Harnish for the Zoning Code Update project and allow the use of the contingency for a

total not-to-exceed amount of $396,355, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

PASSED AND ADOPTED onthis 25ft day of October 2022,by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10933
Page2 of2

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 59

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMEI{T 2

Page 60

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10237

A RESOLUTION AUTTIORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PROFESSIONAI, SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MINTIER HARNISH FOR THE

ZONING CODE UPDATE; ACCEPT A SACOG COMMUNITY DESIGN GRANT
AWARD; AND APPROVE A F'Y 2018-19 MID-YEAR BUDGET UPDATE TO THE

COMMUNTTY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WI{EREAS, the City Council adopted the2035 General Plan on August 28,2018, which

set forth new goals and policies for future development and required in Policy LU 1.1.1 that the

City's Zoning Ordinance be consistent with the General Plan; and

WIIEREAS, the City's ZoningOrdinance has not been comprehensively updated in
many decades; utd

WHEREAS, the City issued a request for proposals on October 15, 2018 seeking

consultant assistance with the Zoning Ordinance update. Four proposals were received and

interviews were conducted. A team lead by Mintier Harnish recommended by staff given their

extensive experience with preparing Zoning Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the City has applied for and was awarded a Community Design Grant in the

amount of $i00,000 from the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), and requires

a match of at least $i0,000. The grant is to be used to update the portions of the City's Zoning
Ordinance that address mixed-use developrnent along the East Bidwell Corridor in accordance

with the 2035 General Plan; and

WIIEREAS, the total cost of the scope of work frorn Mintier Harnish is $329,355.

Given that the effort is expected to take one to two years, it is not usual for additional issues to

come up that may require additional research or additional outreach. Staff requests an additional

$20,000 be included in the budget for this project as contingency to address any unforeseen

issues, for a total not to exceed amount of $349,3 55 for this project.

WHEREAS, the total cost for the Zoning Ordinance update including the contingency is

$349,355 and the City has secured $100,000 from SACOG and the FY 2018-19 budget included

$100,000 for the for the zoning update an additional $i49,355 is needed to authorize the

agreement with Mintier Harnish.

WHEREAS, The Community Development Department has incurred other costs that

were not anticipated when the FY 2018-19 budget was developed, staffis requesting an

additional appropriation in the amount of $110,645 which would be offset by building permit

revenue.

W1IEREAS, approval of the agreements and the allocation of funding is exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)'

NOW, TIIEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Council of the City of Folsom:

Resolution No, 10237
Page I of3

Page 61

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



1. Authorizes the City Manager as part of the City's implementation of the 2035
General Plan, to execute a Consultant and Professional Services Agreement with
Mintier Harnish for the Zoning Code Update in the amount of $329,355, with the
budgeted amou:t to include a $20,000 contingency for a total not-to-exceed amount
of $349,355, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTIIER RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Folsom:

2. Approves the acceptance of a SACOG Community Design grant in the amount of
$100,000:

3. Authorizes the City Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between
the Sacramento Area Council of Governments and the City of Folsom in a form
acceptable to the City Attorney; and

4. Authorizes the Chief Financial Officer to increase revenue estimates and expenditure
appropriations by $360,0A0: $249,355 for the Zoning Code update and $1 10,645 tc
adjust cuffent year expense and revenues based on the following findings:

GENER,AL FINDINGS

GENERAL PLAN POLICY LU 1 .1.I STATES THAT THE CITY SHALL ENSURE
'THAT THE FOLSOM ZONING ORDINANCE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE
POLICIES AND PROGRAMS OF THE GENERAL PLAN.

A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE UPDATE IS REQUIRED TO ENSURE
CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, PROVIDE CLARITY, AND
DELIVER CLARITY TO RESIDENTS, BUSINESSES AND DEVELOPERS ALIKE.

TI{E CITY iSSUED A REQ1JEST F'OR PROPOSALS AND BASED ON ITS
EVALUATION, STAFF RECOMMENDS THE TEAM OF MINTIER HARNISH AS
THE MOST RESPONSIVE AND QUALIFIED CONSULTANT TO PREPARE THE
ZONING CODE UPDATE.

D IN ORDER TO FLIND PART OF THE ZONING CODE UPDATE CITY APPLIED
FOR AND RECEIVED A COMMTINITY DESIGN GRANT FROM SACOG.
COLINCIL APPROVAL iS REQUIRED TO ACCEPT AND RECEIVE THE GRANT
FUNDS.

g$Q$, nrFJprNGs

rN ACCORDANCE WrTH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTTON 1s061(b)(3), APPROVAL
OF A CONSULTANT CONTRACT, ACCEPTANCE OF THE GRANT FROM
SACOG AND APPROVAL OF THE AGREEMENT WITH SACOG IS NOT A
PROJECT TINDER CEQA AND IS EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.

Resolution No. i0237
Page 2 of3

A.

B.

C.

A.

Page 62

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 12d'day of February 2019, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

I\OES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Kozlowski, Sheldon, Aquino, Gaylord, Howell

None

None

None

Lydia DEPUTY

Resolution No. 10237
Page 3 of3

Page 63

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 64

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10523

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE

AMNI\DMENT NO. 1 TO TIM PROX'ESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
MINTIER IIARNISH FOR ADDITIONAL TASKS FOR THE ZONING CODE

UPDATE; AI\D APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the 2035 General Plan on August 28,2018,

which set forth new goals and policies for future development and required in Policy LU

1.1.1 that the City's ZonngOrdinance be consistent with the General Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved ResolutionNo.10237 onFebruary 12,2019,

authorizing the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with Mintier

Hamish for the comprehensive update of the Crty's Zorung Code; and

WHEREAS, the Califomia State Legislatt[e in its 2019-2020 session enacted a

number of new laws designed to increase affordable housing supply and, as a result, requires

additional update to the City's Zonng Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved Resolution N o. 10424 on April 28, 2020,

which authorized the City Manager to apply for $300,000 from the State's Local Early

Action Planning (LEAP) grant program to firnd several efforts to improve the zoning and

development rwiew process in Folsom including additional Zonng Code work; and

WHEREAS, on Augustl},Z}2},the City received an award letter from the State

Housing and Community Development Departnent for $300,000 from the LEAP grant

program; and

WHEREAS, the total cost of the original scope of work from Mintier Harnish was

$329,355. The additional tasks needed to address the additional State mandates and provide

for additional outreach and education is $47,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $376,355

for this project; and

WHEREAS, the additional grant amount of $253,000 will be utilized for additional

ZontngCode updates, equipment and technology for inspections, GIS work for the Zontng

Code and Housing Elenr-ent updates, and permitting and a nexus study for development fees;

and

WIIEREAS, approval of the amendment andthe allocation of funding is exempt

from the CalifomiaEnvironmental Quality Act (CEQA):

NOW, TIIEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby

authorized to execute Amendment No. I to the Consultant and Professional Services

Resolution No. 10523
Page I of2

Page 65

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



Agreement with Mintier Harnish for the ZonngCode Update in the amount of $47,000 for a

total notto-exceed amount of $376,355, in a fonn acceptable to the City Attomey'

BE IT X'URTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is hereby authorized to

appropriate an additional $300,000 to the General Fund (Fr:nd 010) in the Community

tievetopment Departnent, $47,000 for the additional tasks for the Zoning Code update and

the remainder for additional tasks as set forlh in ResolutionNo. 10424.

pASSED AliD ADOPTED this 8ft day of September2}2l,by the following roll-call

vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Aquino,

ATTEST:

Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10523
Page2 of?

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Howell, Kodowski, Morin, Aquino

None

Sheldon

None

Page 66

10/25/2022 Item No.11.



i i i 'r; l li
i: rr:.!i.!|i9 l.,.,li ,

Folsom City Council
Staff Re

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council move and adopt Resolution No. 10934

- A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with Golden
State Fire Apparatus Inc. for One Type 3 Fire Engine.

BACKGROI ]ND / ISSIIE

Fire engines are the front line vehicles used by the Fire Department to carry hose, water, tools,
and the pump to extinguish fires. The Fire Department requires an additional Type 3 fire
engine for Station 34. The Type 3 fire engine is specifically designed to respond to wildland
fires. This purchase was approved in the Folsom Capital Improvement Plan in the Fiscal Year
2022-23 Budget. This fire engine will take approximately thirteen months to build with an

estimated delivery date of November 2023.

Staff is recommending that the City of Folsom enter into a cooperative purchase agreement
with Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. of Sacramento, California using the Houston-Galveston
Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program (HGACBuy) to purchase one Type 3 fire
engine. The total price to purchase this fire engine is $482,4943.88.

I

MEETING DATE: t0/2512022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10934 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with Golden State

Fire Apparatus Inc. for One Type 3 Fire Engine

FROM: Fire Department

Page 67

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



POLICY / RULE

Folsom Municioal Code" Section 2.36.170, Cooperative Purchasing, describes the procedures

to *t"t itrto a cooperative purchase agreement with another public agency for the procurement

of supplies, equipment, or service.

Section 2.36.0g0, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that

contracts for supplies, equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of

$66,141 or greater shall be awarded by Crty Council'

ANALYSIS

The Fire Department currently operates two Type 3 fire engines daily, and J]r]s 
addition will

provide the Folsom plan Area with wildland fire protection. The current wildland fire engine

heet is assigned at fire stations outside the Folsom Plan Area and provide the city with wildland

fire protection.

The Fire Department has conducted extensive research and determined that cooperative

purchase through the Houston-Galveston Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program

iUCeCnny) wiuld provide the City of Folsom with the best product at the best price'

ifCACe"y has for i0 y..r assisted local government members nationally in reducing

competitive bid costs associated with procuring products and services. There are several

Caliiomia municipalities who participate in the HGACBuy program. They include the Cities

of Auburn, Roseriille, Rancho Cordova, Sacramento, Vacaville and Woodland. The County

of Sacramento and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District are also participants in the

program.

Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. has been awarded a contract through HGACBuy to supply

fire apparatus on behalf of BME Fire Trucks LLC. The City of Folsom will save an additional

5o/o over the lowest bid price that Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. can offer by utilizing

HGACBuy. The City Attorney's office has reviewed the HGACBuy process and determined

its use to be consistent with City Policy'

This purchase would add additional fire protection to the Folsom Plan Area. This engine would

be a tasic, Type 3, full size fire engin-. It would be equipped with seating for four, a five

hundred gallon water tank, a 500 gallon per minute pump, and all required loose equipment.

It wouldiespond as a front line apparatus on grass fires, wildland fires and state mutual aid

requests.

2 Page 68

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



F'INANCIAL IMPACT

The Fiscal Year 2022-23 budget includes $482,494.88 in the Folsom Plan Area Impact Fund

(Fund 472) for the purchase of the fire engines and the necessary standard equipment for Fire

Station 34.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the California

Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

1. ResolutionNo. 10934 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase

Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. for One Type 3 Fire Engine.

2. Product Proposal from Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc.

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

J

One BME F ire 4X4 International 3 Model34 $397,099.93

C contract number FSl2-17
Discount For 100% at Time of Order $8,013.73

Fire $48,573.66

Performance Bond $3,618.75

One 1 F $3,963.00

lDealer $2,800.00

Total Cost $448,041.61

Sales Tax @7.75%
California Tire Fee

s34,442.77
$10.s0

Total Enqine Cost to Cify of Folsom $482,494.88

Page 69

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10934 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Purchase

Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. for One Type 3 Fire Engine.

Page 70

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10934

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH GOLDEN STATE FIRE APPARATUS INC. F'OR

ONE TYPE 3 FIRE ENGINE.

WHEREAS, the Fire Department staff has completed extensive research and validated

the need to acquire an additional Type 3 fire engine; and

WHEREAS, one Type 3 fire engine was approved in the Capital Improvement Plan in

the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget; and,

WHEREAS, staff reviewed and recommended participation in a cooperative purchasing

agreement with the Houston-Galveston Area Council utilizing Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc.,

fJr purchase ofa new fire engine to ensure purchase ofthe best product at the best price; and,

WHEREAS, staff complied with the provisions of Folsom Municipal Code Section

2.36.170; and,

WHEREAS, Golden State Fire Apparatus will manufacture, supply, and deliver one Type

3 fire engine meeting the Fire Department's specifications for a total sum of $482,494.88; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Folsom Plan Area

Improvement Fund (Fund 472) for the Type 3 engine for Station 34 in the amount of $482,494.88;

and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the City Manager is authorized to execute a purchase agreement with Golden State Fire

Apparatus Inc., for one Type 3 fire engine, in the amount of $482,494.88.

pASSED AND ADOPTED on this 25ft day of October,2022, by the following roll-call

vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10934
Page 1 of I

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 71

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 2

Product Proposal from Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc.

Page 72

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FIRE TRUCKS

PRODUGT
PROPOSAL

Exhibit t'Att

Page 73

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR
CiW of Folsom Fire DePartment
BME Fire Trucks, LLC.

4X4 lnternational Type 3 Model 34
Engine, item # W3-M34D-1
October t0,2022

SALES CONSULTANT
Ryan Wright
Golden State Fire Apparatus, lnc.
7400 Reese Road
Sacramento, CA 95828
209.613.3809 Cell
rvan@goldenstatef ire.com

PARTS, SERVICE & SUPPORT
Golden State Emergency Vehicle Service, lnc.

7400 Reese Road
Sacramento, CA 95828
915.330.1638 Office
parts@soldenstatefire.com

Page 74

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



7400 Reese Road
Sacramento. CA 95828
Office 916.330.1638
Fax 916.330.1649

FIRE APPARATUS

PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR:

City of Folsom Fire DePartment
535 Glenn Drive
Folsom, CA 95630

We hereby propose and agree to furnish, after your acceptance of this proposal and the proper execution by the CITY OF

FoLSOM FiRE bEPARTMiNT, hereinafter called "Customer" and an officer of Golden State Fire Apparatus, lnc', hereinafter

call"d lGSFtrJh" f"llo*ing fir" apparatus and equipment, hereinafter called "Product":

October 70,2022Submitted Date:

97010-22Proposal Number:

Ryan WrightSales Consultant:

Expiration
Date:

October 31, 2022

397,099.93A
Type w3-#34Model itemneEnnte narnatio 3FireE LLC 4X4 greOn 1 M Trucks,B( )

1No. 1-22-23-2ContractStafe34D-M 1 FIRE
48,573.66B Fire Fi

3,963.00c One 1 F Final FFD
2,800.00D Delive / Dealer

(8,013.73)E t Discount for 100% at Time of Order
444,422.86F SUBTOTAL

34,442.77G 7.75o/o State Sales Tax
10.50H California Tire Fee

3,618.75100% Performance Bond

J 482,494.88GRAND TOTAL

Descr.iption# Unit Price

PROPOSAL SUMMARY

This proposal includes the following items in accordance with the specifications hereto attached:

. Fire apparatus and equipment

. Pre-delivery inspection/services by GSFA

PRODUCT COMPLETION

product shall be built in accordance with the specifications hereto attached, delays due to acts of God, strikes, war' or

intentional conflict, failures to obtain chassis, materials, unusual weather conditions or other causes beyond GSFA's control

not preventing, within approximately 5g5 to 775 CALENDAR DAYS after receipt of this order and the acceptance thereof at

ou, br.r.r"n-to, California orfce. wittrin *''my (go) calendar days after receipt of this order and acceptance thereof, GSFA

shall submit to Customer a production schedule including tentative pre-construction conference, final inspection and final

delivery dates.

DELIVERY LOCATION

product shall be shipped in accordance with the specifications hereto attached and be delivered to you at FOLSOM.

CALIFORNIA. proof of insurance must be demonstrated by the Customer to GSFA prior to transferring of the Product(s).

. Delivery to GSFA service center in Sacramento

. Final delivery from service center to Customer

Page 2 of 3
Page 75

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



ACCEPTI NG TH IS PROPOSAL

ln the event Customer wishes to purchase the Product described in this Proposal and the attached specifications, then, prior to the

expiration date listed on page Z oi this proposal, Customer shall sign and return this Proposal. Thereafter, GSFA and Customer will endeavor

to enter into a purchase agreement incorporating this Proposal and including additional terms (a "Purchase Agreement"). lf Customer returns

a signed copy of this proposal alone, GSFA will send Customer its form of Purchase Agreement for Customer's review and signature. lf
Cusiomer desires to use its standard form of purchase order as the Purchase Agreement, then Customer should return a signed copy of this
proposal along with a copy of such purchase order. All purchase orders shall be made out to GSFA. GSFA will review such purchase order

and contact the Customer regarding any required revisions. Only upon a full execution of a Purchase Agreement shall GSFA and Customer

be obligated to purchase and sell the Product set forth in this Proposal.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
The following Terms and Conditions are hereby made part of this Proposal:

1. Payment Terms (100% Pre-Payment at Time of Order) - Customer shall

pay the amount listed on page one of this Proposal, which includes: (i) the

total price for the Product (the "Purchase Price"), (ii) the estimated state

sales tax on the Product, and (iii) the California tire fee (together with the

Purchase Price and estimated state sales tax, the "Grand Total") within
fifteen (15) calendar days from the date on which the Purchase Agreement

is fully executed. The proposed delivery timeframe for the Product, which

is outlined on page one ofthis Proposal, shall not begin until full payment

of the Grand Total is received. ln the event Customer does not pay GSFA

the Grand Total in the timeframe set forth in this Section 1' GSFA may, in

its sole discretion, cancel the Purchase Agreement entered into between

the parties.

2. Commercial Chassis Price Volatllity - GSFA shall not be responsible for
any commercial chassis price increase or surcharge enacted by a

commercial chassis Original Equipment Manufacturer (oEM) after the
execution of contract or issuance of Purchase Order. Any commercial

chassis price increase or surcharge will be passed through to the customer

at cost and will be documented in writing on a Change Order. Customer
shall pay any commercial chassis price increase or surcharge prior to final

delivery or pick up to Customer location.

3. Stock / Demo Units - lf applicable, any stock/demo units, including
those identified by this Proposal, are available for sale on an as-is, first-
come and first serued-basis. Regardless of this Proposal, the first
Customer to enter into a Purchase Agreement identifying any such

stock/demo unites shall obtain said units'

Ryan Wright
Golden State Fire Apparatus, lnc.

7400 Reese Road, Sacramento, CA 95828 | Office 916.330.1638 | Fax

975.330.7649

5. Force Majeure - GSFA shall not be responsible nor deemed to be in

default on account of delays in performance due to causes which are

beyond GSFA's and manufacturer's control and which make GSFA's
performance impracticable, including but not limited to wars, insurrections,
strikes, riots, fires, storms, floods, other acts of nature, explosions,

earthquakes, accidents, any act of government, delays in transportation,
inability to obtain necessary labor supplies or manufacturing facilities,
allocation regulations or orders affecting materials, equipment, facilities or

completed products, failure to obtain any required license or certificates,
acts of God or the public enemy or terrorism, failure of transportation,
epidemics, quarantine restrictions, failure of vendors (due to causes similar

to those within the scope of this clause) to perform their contracts or labor
troubles causing cessation, slowdown, or interruption of work.

6. Cancellation/Termination - ln the event Customer and GSFA enter into

a Purchase Agreement and Customer thereafter cancels or terminates the
Purchase Agreement, GSFA will charge a cancellation fee as follows: (a)

10% of the Purchase Price after order is accepted and entered by GSFA;

(b) 20% of the Purchase Price after completion of the pre-construction
phase of the order process; and (c) 50% of the Purchase Price after the

requisition of any materials or commencement of any manufacturing or
assembly of the Product by either GSFA or the manufacturer of the
Product. The tier of cancellation fee applicable to any cancellation shall be

in the sole and absolute discretion of GSFA.

7. State Sales Tax - Customer shall be responsible for the cost of state
sales tax associated with, or attributable to the Product' The taxes owed
by Customer for the Product is subject to adjustment for the applicable

state sales tax rate in effect when the Product is delivered to the
Customer. Therefore, the sales tax will be increased or decreased at the
time of delivery if a change in the sales tax rate has occurred, in which
case Customer shall pay GSFA (or be refunded by GSFA) the applicable

change in sales tax.

8. Proposal Explration - After the Expiration Date shown on page one of
this Proposal, Customer shall require G5FA's written consent to accept
this Proposal.

9. Governing Law - This Proposal is to be governed by and under the laws

of the state of California.

4. Order Changes - The Customer may request that GSFA incorporate a

change to the Product or the Specifications for the Product by delivering a

written change order to GSFA, which shall include a description of the
proposed change sufficient to permit GSFA to evaluate the feasibility of
such change (a "Change Order"). GSFA will provide Customer a written
response (a "Response") stating (i) whether GSFA will accommodate such

Change Order (which GSFA may decide in its sole and absolute discretion)

and (ii) the terms of the modification to the order, including any increase

or decrease in the Purchase Price resulting from such Change order' and

any effect on production scheduling or Delivery resulting from such

Change Order. Customer shall have seven (7) days after receipt of the

Response to notify GSFA as to whether Customer desires to make the

changes GSFA has approved in the Response. ln the event Customer
counter-signs GSFA's Response, Customer shall pay the increase (or be

refunded the decrease) in the Purchase Price prior to final delivery to
Customer location.

Thank you for providing Golden State Fire Apparatus, lnc. with the opportunity to provide this proposal. lf you have any questions regarding

the options presented or need additional options, please contact me.

r authorized

i"pr"t*tr1i"".icrrY oFF-oGoMFrnE orpnnrvrNr asrees to purchase the

proposed Product(s) and agree to the terms and conditions of this proposal and the

specif ications hereto attached.

SIGNATURE:

Page 3 of 3
Page 76

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FIRE TRUCKS

PRODUGT
SPEGIFIGATIONS

Exhibit 33B"

Page 77

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

FIRE TRUCKS

FOLSOM FIRE
DEPARTMENT

''CAL-FIRE'' MODEL 34

1 0030-0002
Pagel o172

10t10t22

Page 78

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire ApParatus

*SPBCIFICATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE PENDING ENGINEERING*
DETERMINATION OF APPARATUS WEIGIIT

BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall submit estimated "in-service" weight analysis required by applicable NFPA

standards. This Excel computer weight analysis shall break down all major components of the apparatus and

shall show the impact on percentage-of-load on the front and rear axles, total weight, and weight on each tire

set.

The analysis shall evenly distribute the NFPA required minimum payload allowance or estimated equipment

payload as provided by the purchaser into the specified compartments. The allowance for personnel, hose loads,

water and foam fluids, and required NFPA equipment shall be outlined individually in the analysis and placed

on the apparatus in its specific intended position'

CENTER.OF-GRAVITY ANALYSIS

BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall perform an estimated center of gravity calculation as required by the applicable

section of NFpA standards. This calculation shall include tilt angles, the estimated right to left load distribution,

and load on each axle, including all specified major components.

LOW VOLTAGE TEST REOUIRMENTS

The fire apparatus low voltage electrical system shall be tested as required by this section and the test results

shall be 
"ittin.O 

by the apparatus manufacturer. The ceftification shall be delivered to the purchaser with the

documentation for the completed apparatus. The tests shall be performed when the air temperature is between 0

degrees Fahrenheit and I 10 degrees Fahrenheit.

TEST SEOUENCE

The three tests defined below shall be performed in the order in which they appear. Before each test, the chassis

batteries shall be fully charged until the voltage stabilizes at the voltage regulator set point and the lowest charge

current is maintained for 10 minutes. The failure of any of these tests shall require a repeat of the test sequence'

RESERVE CAPACITY TEST

The chassis engine shall be started and kept running until the chassis engine and engine compartment

temperatures are stabili zed atnormal operating temperatures and the chassis battery system is fully charged' The

chassis engine shall be shut off and the minimum continuous electrical load shall be applied for 10 minutes. All
electrical loads shall be turned off prior to attempting to restart the chassis engine. The chassis battery system

shall then be capable of restarting the chassis engine. The failure to restart the chassis engine shall be considered

a failure of this test.

1 0030-0002
Page2 of 72

10t10122

Page 79

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

ALTERNATOR PERFORMANCE TEST AT IDLE

The minimum continuous electrical load shall be applied with the chassis engine running at idle speed. The

chassis engine temperature shall be stabilized at normal operating temperature. The chassis battery system shall

be tested to detect the presence of a chassis battery cument discharge. The detection of chassis battery cument

discharge shall be considered a failure ofthis test.

ALTERNATOR PERFORMANCE TEST AT FULL LOAD

The total continuous electrical load shall be applied with the chassis engine running up to the engine

manufacturer's govemed speed. The test duration shall be a minimum of two hours. The activation of the

electrical system load management system shall be permitted during this test. The activation of an alarm due to

excessive chassis battery discharge, as detected by the system required by NFPA (current edition), or an

electrical system voltage of less than 11.8 volts direct current for a12 volt direct current nominal system, for

more than 120 seconds, shall be considered a failure of this test.

LOW VOLTAG AI,ARM TEST

Following the completion of the tests described above, the chassis engine shall be turned off. With the chassis

engine turned off, the total continuous electrical load shall be applied and shall continue to be applied until the

excessive battery discharge alarm activates. The chassis battery voltage shall be measured at the battery

terminals.

The test shall be considered to be a failure if the low voltage alarm has not yet sounded 140 seconds after the

voltage drops to 11.70 volts direct current for a 12 volt direct current nominal system. The chassis battery

system shall then be able to restart the chassis engine. The failure of the chassis battery system to restart the

chassis engine shall be considered a failure of this test.

The completed fire apparatus shall undergo a complete 12 volt electrical load and performance testing per

applicable sections of NFPA standards with inspection and test sheets included in delivery documentation.

DOCUMENTATION

The apparatus manufacturer shall provide the results of the low-voltage electrical system performance test,

certified in writing, with the documentation provided to the purchaser at the time of delivery of the completed

apparatus.

The test results shall consist of the following documents

(l) Documentation of the electrical system performance tests.

(2) A written electrical load analysis, including the following:
. (a) The nameplate rating of the altemator.

1 0030-0002
Page 3 of 72

10t10t22

Page 80

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

. (b) The alternator rating under the conditions specified in NFPA 1906 (cunent edition).

. (c) Each of the component loads specified that make up the minimum continuous electrical load.

. (d) Additional electrical loads that, when added to the minimum continuous electrical load, determine

the total continuous electrical load.
. (e) Each individual intermittent electrical load.

TEST RI,SULTS

BME Fire Trucks LLC. shall provide results of the apparatus testing and shall certify the following:

The weight of the completed apparatus, when loaded to it's estimated in service weight, does not exceed the

GVWR and GAWR of the chassis.

The complete unit, when loaded to its estimated in service weight, meets the weight distribution and vehicle

stability requirements, as defined in the curent NFPA guidelines.

The unit meets all required federal standards pertaining to the manufacturer and completion of the apparatus and

a label tag has been affixed to the apparatus by the manufacturer stating same.

BME Fire Trucks LLC. shall provide all testing results, including engine, speed, acceleration, road ability,

braking, and auxiliary braking to the Purchaser at the time of delivery'

DELIVERY REOUIREMENTS

The bidder shall not be responsible for delays in delivery due to strikes, acts of God, failure of suppliers to

deliver, chassis shortage and other reasons beyond the reasonable control of the builder. Should BME Fire

Trucks, LLC. be unable to comply with the proposed delivery date, we shall immediately contact the purchaser

regarding delay information and actions to be taken by the company.

This vehicle shall be F.O.B. the BME Fire Trucks facility in Boise Idaho. Dealer shall be responsible for

arrangement of delivery from factory.

GENERAL WARRANTY PROVISIONS

All materials and workmanship herein specified, including all equipment furnished, shall be guaranteed for a

period of one (l) year after the acceptance date of the apparatus, unless otherwise noted, with the exception of
any normal maintenance services or adjustments which shall be required. Under this warranty, BME Fire

Trucks, LLC. shall be responsible for the costs of repairs to the apparatus that have been caused by defective

workmanship or materials during this period.

This wananty shall not apply to the following:

. Any component parts or trade accessories such as chassis, engines, tires, pumps, valves, signaling

devices, batteries, electric lights, bulbs, alternators, and all other installed equipment and accessories, in

as much as they are usually warranted separately by their respective manufacturers, or are subject to

1 0030-0002
Page 4 of 72

10t10t22

Page 81

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



a

a

a

a

Golden State Fire APParatus

normal wear and tear.

Failures resulting from the apparatus being operated in a manner or for a purpose not recommended by

the apparatus manufacturer.

Loss of time or use of the apparatus, inconvenience or other incidental expenses.

Any apparatus which has been repaired or altered without written consent or outside of the apparatus

manufacturer's factory and or authorized service center in any way that affects its stability, or which has

been subject to misuse, negligence, or accident.

Delivery of the apparatus to repair site.

DISCLAIMER

NO WARRANTIES ARE GIVEN BEYOND THOSE DESCRIBED HEREIN. THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU

OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED. THE COMPANY SPECIFICALLY

DISCLAIMS WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,

ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS TO THE USER/PURCHASER AND ALL OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR

LIABILITIES. FURTHER, THE COMPANY EXCLUDES LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL AND

INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, ON THE PART OF THE COMPANY OR SELLER. NO PETSON iS AUthOTiZCd tO

give any other warranties or to assume any liabilities on the Company's behalf unless made or assumed in

writing by the seller; and no other person is authorized to give any warranties or to assume any liabilities on the

seller's behalf unless made or assumed in writing by the seller'

OBTAINING SERVICE

Return the vehicle to any BME Fire Trucks, LLC. dealerlauthorized service center; Return the vehicle to BME

Fire Trucks ,LLC. or contact BME Fire Trucks, LLC.. BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall be solely responsible for

determining the extent of repair under the terms of the warranty. Transpoftation costs shall be the responsibility

ofthe purchaser.

MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP

All equipment provided shall be guaranteed to be new and of current manufacture, and unless specified

otherwise, shall meet all requirements of these specifications and prevailing NFPA documents and be in

condition at time of delivery for use as specified for this type of apparatus.

All workmanship shall be of the highest quality and accomplished in a professionalmanner so as to insure a

functional apparatus with a high quality aesthetic appearance.

1 0030-0002
Page 5 of 72

10t10t22

Page 82

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The construction shall be rugged and ample safety factors shall be provided to catry the loads specified to meet

both on and off road requirements.

The apparatus shall be designed and the equipment mounted with due consideration to the distribution of load

between the front and rear axles, so all specified equipment, with a full complement of personnel, can be carried

without damage to the apparatus.

BODY AND STRU WARRANTY

BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall warrant each new apparatus body, if used in a normal and reasonable manner,

against structural defects caused by defects in material, design or workmanship for a period of ten (10) years,

covering parts & labor to the original purchaser which shall start on day of acceptance.

This warranty shall not apply to

Normal maintenance selices or adjustments

a

a

a

To any vehicle which will have been repaired or altered outside of our factory in any way so as, in the

judgment of BME Fire Trucks, LLC., to affect it's stability, nor which has been subject to misuse,

negligence, or accident, nor to any vehicle made by us which will have been operated to a speed

exceeding the factory rated speed, or loaded beyond the factory rated load capacity.

Commercial chassis and associated equipment fumished with chassis, signaling devices, generators,

batteries, or other trade accessories as they are usually warranted separately by their respective

manufacturers.

. Shipping costs of parts or apparatus for purposes of repair or replacement of parts. This warranty is in

lieu of all other warranties, expressed or implied. All other representations as to the original purchaser

and all other obligations or liabilities, including for incidental or consequential damage on the

company's behalf unless made in writing by the company.

DARLEY FIRE PUMP WARRANTY

A three (3)year warranty on the Darley fire pump shall be provided. The provisions of this warranty shall be

described in the completed apparatus documentation'

PLUMBING WARRANTY

The stainless steel fire pump plumbing shall carry a ten (10) year parts and labor wananty against defects in

workmanship and perforation corrosion.
AKRON VALVE WARRANTY

The Akron valves shall carry a ten (10) year parts and labor manufacturer's warranty. Provisions of this

warranty shall be provided with the completed apparatus documentation.

WATER TANK WARRANTY

1 0030-0002
Page 6 of 72

10t10122

Page 83

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

The polypropylene water tank that is specified to be supplied with this apparatus shall be warranted by the water

tank manufacturer for a "lifetime" period from the date that the apparatus is put into service. The tank

manufacturer shall repair, at no cost to the purchaser, any problems caused by defective materials and/or

workmanship. The warranty shall cover the reasonable costs of removing the water tank from the apparatus and

reinstalling it after the completion of the covered warranty repairs, but shall not cover any liability for the loss of

service or downtime costs of the apparatus.

F'OAM TANKWARRANTY

The foam tank shall carry a"lifetime" warranty against defects in workmanship and perforation corrosion. The

provisions of this wananty shall be provided in the delivery documentation. The tank manufacturer shall tepait,

at no cost to the purchasei, any problems caused by defective materials andlor workmanship. The warranty shall

cover the reasonable costs of iemoving the water tank from the apparatus and reinstalling it after the completion

of the covered warranty repairs, but shall not cover any liability for the loss of service or downtime costs of the

apparatus.

PAINT WARRANTY

BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall provide a seven (7)year paint wamanty which shall cover peeling andlot

de-lamination of the top coat and other layers of paint, cracking or checking, loss of gloss caused by cracking'

checking or chalking, and any paint failure caused by defective paint materials covered by the paint

manufacturer' s material warranty.

CHASSIS WARRANTY

The specified chassis shall be provided with the chassis manufacturer's warranfr. The exact provisions of this

warranty shall be supplied with the completed apparatus documentation.

APPARATUS OPERATION MANUAL(S)

BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall provide (2) electronic apparatus operational manual(s) on a USB thumb drive'

APPARATUS OPERATION MANUAL(S)

BME Fire Trucks, LLC. shall provide (2) printed apparatus operational manual(s).

APPARATUS DIMENSIONS

Wheelbase: 183 inches

Cab to center of rear axle:64.10 inches

Overall length: 323 inches (with rear fold up step stowed)

Overall main body and cab height: Not to exceed I 18 inches (unloaded).

Hose bed height, floor to ground: Not to exceed 92 inches (Fully Loaded)

Crosslay height, floor to ground: Not to exceed 78 inches (Fully loaded)

Minimum pump module/running board/under cab compartment ground clearance to be 20 inches

Angle of approach: 30' (Fully loaded)

1 0030-0002
PageT of72

10t10122

Page 84

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

Angle of departure: 20o (Fully loaded)

CHASSIS SPECIFICATIONS

Base Chassis, Model HV507 SFA with 183.00 Wheelbase, 64.10 CA, and 65.00 Axle to Frame.

TOW HOOK, FRONT (2) Frame Mounted

AXLE CONFIGURATION {Navistar} 4x4

FRAME RAILS Heat Treated Alloy Steel (120,000 PSI Yield); 10.125" x 3.580" x 0.312" (257.2mm x 90.9mm

x 8.0mm);480.0" (12192) Maximum OAL

FRAME REINFORCEMENT Full Outer C-Channel, Heat Treated Alloy Steel (120,000 PSI Yield), 10.813" x

3.892" x 0.312" (274.6mmx 98.8mm x 7.9mm), 480.0" (l2l92mm) OAL

BUMPER, FRONT Swept Back l5-Degrees, Steel, for use with Front Frame Extensions, Heavy Duty

FRAME, SPECIAL EFFECTS Dimple on Left and Right Top Flange of Frame Rail to Reference Rear Axle

Centerline

FRAME EXTENSION, FRONT Integral; 20" \n Front of Grille

WHEELBASE RANGE 181" (460cm) Through and Including2}S" (520cm)

AXLE, FRONT DRTVING {Meritor MX-12-120 EVO} Single Reduction, 12,000-lb Capacity, with Hub

Piloted Wheel Mounting

AXLE, FRONT DRIVING, LUBE {EmGard FE-75W-90} Synthetic Oil; I thru 29.99 Pints

SUSPENSION, FRONT, SPRING Parabolic Taper Leaf, Shackle Type, 12,000-lb Capacity, with Shock

Absorbers

BRAKE SYSTEM, AIR Dual System for Straight Truck Applications

BRAKE LINES Color and Size Coded Nylon

DRAIN VALVE Twist-Type

GAUGE, AIR PRESSURE (2) Air I and Air 2 Gauges; Located in lnstrument Cluster

PARKING BRAKE CONTROL YCIIOW KNOb, LOCAICd ON INSITMENt PANCI

1 0030-0002
Page 8 of 72

10t10t22

Page 85

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

PARKING BRAKE VALVE FOT TruCK

eUICK RELEASE VALVE On Rear Axle for Spring Brake Release: 1 for 4x2,2 fot 6x4

SpRING BRAKE MODULATOR VALVE R-7 for 4x2, SR-7 with relay valve for 6x4l8x6

AIR BRAKE ABS {Bendix Antilock Brake System} 4-Channel (4 Sensor/4 Modulator) Full Vehicle Wheel

Control System

AIR DRYER {Bendix AD-IP} with Heater

BRAKE CHAMBERS, POSITION Rotated Forward and Up For Maximum Ground Clearance with 4x4

BRAKE CHAMBERS, FRONT AXLE {MGM} 20 SqIn

BRAKE CHAMBERS, REAR AXLE {Bendix EverSure} 30136 SqIn Spring Brake

SLACK ADJUSTERS, FRONT {Haldex} Automatic

SLACK ADJUSTERS, REAR {Gunite} Automatic

AIR COMPRESSOR {Cummins} 18.7 CFM

AIR DRYER LOCATION Mounted Inside Left Rail, Behind Transfer Case Mounting

AIR TANK LOCATION (2) Mounted Under Battery Box, Outside Left Rail, Back of Cab, Perpendicular to Rail

DUST SHIELDS, FRONT BRAKE for Air Cam Brakes

DRAIN VALVE (3) Petcocks, for Air Tanks

DUST SHIELDS, REAR BRAKE for Air Cam Brakes

BRAKES, REAR {Meritor 16.5X7 P} Air S-Cam Type, Cast Spider, Cast Shoe, Double Anchor Pin, Includes

Greaseable and Zinc Coated Anchor Pins, Size 16.5" X 7", 38,000-lb Capacity per Axle

BRAKES, FRONT {Meritor 16.5X5 Q-PLUS CAST} Air S-Cam Type, Cast Spider, Fabricated Shoe, Double

Anchor Pin, Size 16.5" X 5",14,700-lb Capacity

STEERING COLUMN Tilting

STEERING WHEEL 4-Spoke; 18" Dia., Black

1 0030-0002
Page I of 72

10t10122

Page 86

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

STEERING GEAR {Sheppard M100} Power

DRIVELINE SYSTEM {Dana Spicer} SPL170 Main Driveline, 1710 Driveline to Transfer Case, SPL140

Driveline to Front Axle, for 4x4

AFTERTREATMENT COVER Polished Aluminum

EXHAUST SYSTEM Horizontal Aftertreatment System, Frame Mounted Right Side Under Cab, for Single

Short Horizontal Tail Pipe, Frame Mounted Right Side Back of Cab, for All-Wheel Drive

ENGINE COMPRESSION BRAKE {Jacobs} for Cummins ISL/L9 Engines;with Selector Switch and On/Off
Switch

SWITCH, FOR EXHAUST 3 Position, Momentary Lighted Momentary, ON/CANCEL, Center Stable,

INHIBIT REGEN, Mounted in IP Inhibits Diesel Particulate Filter Regeneration When Switch is Moved to ON
While Engine is Running, Resets When Ignition is Tumed OFF

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM l2-Volt, Standard Equipment

DATA LINK CONNECTOR For Vehicle Programming and Diagnostics In Cab

HAZARD SWITCH Push On/Push Off, Located on Instrument Panel to Right of Steering Wheel

HEADLIGHT DIMMER SWITCH fntegral with Turn Signal Lever

PARKING LIGHT Integral with Front Turn Signaland Rear Tail Light

STARTER SWITCH Electric, Key Operated

STOP, TURN, TAIL & Bru LIGHTS Dual, Rear, Combination with Reflector

TURN SIGNAL SWITCH Self-Cancelling for Trucks, Manual Cancelling for Tractors, with Lane Change

Feature

WINDSHIELD WIPER SWITCH 2-Speed with Wash and Intermittent Feature (5 Pre-Set Delays),Integral with
Turn Signal Lever

WINDSHIELD WIPERS Single Motor, Electric, CowlMounted

WIRING, CHASSIS Color Coded and ContinuouslyNumbered

1 0030-0002
Page 10 of 72

10t10t22

Page 87

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

CIGAR LIGHTER Includes Ash CuP

HORN, ELECTRIC (2) Disc Style

FOG LIGHTS Prewire; Includes Auxiliary Switch and Wiring to Front Bumper, for Driving Lights or Fog

Lights Mounted by Customer

POWER SOURCE Cigar Type Receptacle without Plug and Cord

ALTERNATOR {Leece-Neville BLP4006HN} Brushless,l2Yolt,325 Amp Capacity, Pad Mount, with

Remote Sense

BODY BUILDER WIRING Rear of Frame; Includes Sealed Connectors for Tail/Amber Tum/\4atketlBackup/

Accessory Power/Ground and Sealed Connector for Stop/Turn

BATTERY SYSTEM {Fleetrite} Maintenance-Free, (3) l2-Volt 2850CCA Total, Top Threaded Stud

SPEAKERS (2) 6.5" Dual Cone Mounted in Both Doors, (2) 5.25" Dual Cone Mounted in Both B-Pillars

ANTENNA for Increased Roof Clearance Applications

RADIO AM/FM/WB/Clock/BluetoothAJSB Input/Auxiliary Input

BATTERY CABLES with 36" of Extra Length Coiled and Strapped Near Battery Box

DATA RECORDER Includes Display Mounted in Overhead Console

STOP-LIGHT WIRING MODIFIED Stop-Lights Turned on When Engine Compression Brake, Exhaust Brake

or Retarder is Activated

WINDSHIELD WIPER SPD CONTROL Force Wipers to Slowest Intermittent Speed When Park Brake Set and

Wipers Left on for a Predetermined Time

HORN, AIR Accommodation Package, Less Horn

BATTERY BOX Steel, with Fiberglass Cover, 2-4Battery Capacity, Mounted Left Side Perpendicular to Frame

Rail, 53" Back of Cab

CLEARANCEA4ARKER LIGHTS (5) {Truck Lite} Amber LED Lights, Flush Mounted on Cab or Sunshade

TEST EXTERIOR LIGHTS Pre-Trip Inspection will Cycle all Exterior Lamps Except Back-up Lights

1 0030-0002
Page 11 of72

10t10t22

Page 88

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

HEADLIGHTS ON WWIPERS Headlights will Automatically Turn on if windshield wipers are turned on

STARTING MOTOR {Delco Remy 38MT Type 300} 12 Volt, Less Thermal Over-Crank Protection

COURTESY LIGHT (4) Mounted In Front & Rear Map Pocket Left and Right Side

INDICATOR, LOW COOLANT LEVEL with Audible Alarm

ALARM, pARKING BRAKE Electric Horn Sounds in Repetitive Manner When Vehicle Park Brake is "NOT"

Set, with Ignition 'tOFFrt and any Door Opened

INDICATOR, BATTERY WARNING GrEEN BATTERY ON INdiCAtOr, MOUNtEd ON LEft SidC Of INStTMCNI

Panel, To be Used with Factory lnstalled or Customer Mounted Battery Disconnect Switch

CIRCUIT BREAKERS Manual-Reset (Main Panel) SAE Type III with Trip Indicators, Replaces All Fuses

SWITCH, AUXILIARy Switch 40 amp Circuit for Customer Use; Includes Wiring Connection at Power

Distribution Center (PDC) and Control in Cab

TURN SIGNALS, FRONT Includes LED Side Tum Lights Mounted on Fender

BATTERY DISCONNECT SWITCH 300 Amp, Disconnects Charging Circuits, Locks with Padlock, Cab

Mounted

HEADLIGHTS Halogen, with Daytime Running Lights

FENDER EXTENSIONS Omit

LOGOS EXTERIOR Model Badges

LOGOS EXTERIOR, ENGINE Badges

INSULATION, LINDER HOOD for Sound Abatement

GRILLE Stationary, Chrome

INSULATION, SPLASH PANELS for Sound Abatement

BUG SCREEN Mounted Behind Grille

FRONT END Tilting, Fiberglass, with Three Piece Construction, for WorkStarAfV

1 0030-0002
Page 12 ol 72

10t10t22

Page 89

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

GRILLE EMBER SCREEN Mounted to Grille and Cowl Tray to Keep Hot Embers out of Engine and HVAC

Air Intake System

PAINT SCHEMATIC, PT-l Single Color, Design 100

PAINT SCHEMATIC ID LETTERS ''WK''

pAINT IDENTITY ,PT-2Single Color, Instruction No. 936. Frame/Running Gear, Less Fuel Tanks

NOTE: Battery Box, Air Tanks, Fuel Tanks, steps and Straps NoT Painted

PAINT TYPE Base Coat/Clear Coat, 1-2 Tone

COMMUNICATIONS MODULE Telematics Device with Over the Air Programming; Includes Five Year Data

Plan and International 360

PROMOTIONAL PACKAGE Government Silver Package

KEYS - ALL ALIKE,ID I-1003 Compatible with 2-001

CLUTCH Omit Item (Clutch & Control)

ANTI-FREEZE Red, Extended Life Coolant; To -40 Degrees Fl -40 Degrees C, Freeze Protection

BLOCK HEATER, ENGINE l20V/1000W, for Cummins 158/B6.7llSLlLg Engines

BLOCK HEATER SOCKET Receptacle Typ"; Mounted below Drivers Door

ENGINE, DIESEL {Cummins L9 350} EPA2021,350HP @2200 RPM, 1050 lb-ft Torque @1200 RPM,

2200 RPM Governed Speed, 350 Peak HP (MaD

FAN DRIVE {Horton Drivemaster} Two-Speed Type, Direct Drive, with Residual Torque Device for

Disengaged Fan Speed

FANNylon

RADIATOR Aluminum, Cross Flow, Front to Back System,1228 SqIn, with I167 SqIn Charge Air Cooler,

Includes In-Tank Oil Cooler

DEAERATION SYSTEM with Surge Tank

1 0030-0002
Page 13 of 72

10t10t22

Page 90

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

HOSE CLAMPS, RADIATOR HOSES Gates Shrink Band Type; Thermoplastic Coolant Hose Clamps

RADIATOR HOSES Premium, Rubber

AIR CLEANER Dual Element

EMISSION, CALENDAR YEAR {Cummins L9} EPA, OBD and GHG Certified for Calendar Year2022

THROTTLE, HAND CONTROL Engine Speed Control; Electronic, Stationary, Variable Speed;Mounted on

Steering Wheel

FAN OVERRIDE Manual; with Electric Switch on Instrument Panel, (Fan On with Switch On)

ENGINE WATER COOLER {Sen-Dure} Auxiliary, For use with Fire Trucks

CARB IDLE COMpLIANCE Engine Shutdown System Exempt Vehicles, Complies with California Clean Air
Regulations

CARB EMISSION WARR COMPLIANCE for Cummins L9 Engines

ENGINE CONTROL, REMOTE MOLINTED Provision for; Includes Wiring for Body Builder Installation of
PTO Controls and Starter Lockout, with Ignition Switch Control, for Cummins 86.7 and L9 Engines

TRANSMISSION, AUTOMATIC {Allison 3000 EVS} 5th Generation Controls, Close Ratio, 6-Speed with

Double Overdrive, with PTO Provision, Less Retarder, Includes Oil Level Sensor

TRANSFER CASE {Meritor MTC-4210} 2-Speed, 10,000 lb-ft Torque Rating, Less PTO Provision, Electric

Over Air Control, with Lube PumP

OIL COOLER, AUTO TRANSMISSION {Modine} Water to Oil Type

TRANSFER CASE LUBE {EmGard 50W} Synthetic; I thru 14'99 Pints

TRANSMISSION SHIFT CONTROL Column Mounted Stalk Shifter, Not for Use with Allison 1000 & 2000

Series Transmission

OL COOLER, TRANSFER CASE with Oil Coolant Lines Routed to Oil Cooler

TRANSMISSION OIL Synthetic;29 thru 42 Pints

ALLISON SPARE INPUT/OUTPUT for Emergency Vehicle Series (EVS), Rescue, Ambulance, Package

Number 170

1 0030-0002
Page 14 of 72

10t10122

Page 91

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

SHIFT CONTROL PARAMETERS {Allison} 3000 or 4000 Series Transmissions, Performance Programming

PTO LOCATION Dual, Customer Intends to Install PTO at Left and/or Right Side of Transmission

AXLE, REAR, SINGLE {Meritor RS-26-185} Single Reduction, 26,000-lb Capacity, R Wheel Ends . Gear

Ratio:5.86

SUSPENSION, REAR, SINGLE 31,000-lb Capacity, Vari-Rate Springs, with 4500-lb Capacity Auxiliary
Multileaf Springs

sHocK ABSORBERS, REAR (2)

AXLE, REAR, LUBE {EmGard FE-75W-90} Synthetic Oil;40 thru 49.99 Pints

DEF TANK 9.5 US Gal (36L) Capacity, Frame Mounted Outside Left Rail, Under Cab

FUEL/WATER SEPARATOR {Racor 400 Series} 12 VDC Electric Heater,Includes Pre-Heater, with Primer

Pump,Includes Water-in-Fuel Sensor, Mounted on Engine

FUEL TANK Top Draw, Non-Polished Aluminum,26" Dia,70 US Gal (265L), Mounted Left Side, Under Cab

AUXILIARY FUEL DRAW TUBE Located at Auxiliary Port on Fuel Tank

CAB Conventional6-Man Crew Cab

AIR CONDITIONER with Integral Heater and Defroster

GAUGE CLUSTER Base Level; English with English Electronic Speedometer

GAUGE CLUSTER DISPLAY: Base Level (3" Monochromatic Display); Odometer, Voltmeter, Diagnostic

Messages, Gear Indicator, Trip Odometer, Total Engine Hours, Trip Hours, MPG, Distance to Empty/Refill

GAUGE CLUSTER Speedometer, Tachometer, Engine Coolant Temp, Fuel Gauge, DEF Gauge, Oil Pressure

Gauge, Primary and Secondary Air Pressure

WARNING SYSTEM Low Fuel, Low DEF, Low Oil Pressure, High Engine Coolant Temp, Low Battery

Voltage (Visual and Audible), Low Air Pressure (Primary and Secondary)

SEATBELT WARNING PREWIRE lncludes Seat Belt Switches and Seat Sensors for all Belted Positions in the

Cab and a Harness Routed to the Center of the Dash for the Aftermarket Installation of the Data Recorder and

Seatbelt Indicator Systems, for 4 to 6 Seat Belts

1 0030-0002
Page 15 of 72

10t10t22

Page 92

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

GAUGE, OIL TEMP, AUTO TRANS for Allison Transmission

GAUGE, AIR CLEANER RESTRICTION {Filter-Minder} with Black Bezel, Mounted in lnstrument Panel

Ip CLUSTER DISPLAY On Board Diagnostics Display of Fault Codes in Gauge Cluster

GRAB HANDLE, EXTERIOR (2) Chrome, Towel Bar Type, with Anti-Slip Rubber lnserts, for Cab Entry

Mounted Left and Right Side at B-Pillar

GRAB HANDLE, ADDITIONAL EXT (2) Chrome, Towel Bar Type, with Anti-slip Rubber Inserts, Mounted

Left and Right Side, Rear of Rear Doors, for Crew Cab

SEAT, REAR {National} BENCH;Full Width;Vinyl, with Fixed Back and Two Integral outboard Headrests

MIRRORS (2) C-Loop, Power Adjust, Heated, LED Clearance Lights, Bright Heads and Arms, 7.5" x 14" Flat

Glass, Includes 7 .5" x 7" Convex Mirrors, for 102" Load Width Mirror Dimensions are Rounded to the Nearest

0.5"

SEAT BELT All Red; 4 to 6

CAB INTERIOR TRIM Classic, for Crew Cab

CONSOLE, OVERHEAD Molded Plastic with Dual Storage Pockets, Retainer Nets and CB Radio Pocket;

Located Above Driver and Passenger

DOME LIGHT, CAB Door Activated and Push On-Off at Light Lens, Timed Theater Dimming, lntegral to

Overhead Console, Center Mounted

SLrN VISOR (2) padded Vinyl; 2 Moveable (Front-to-Side) Primary Visors, Driver Side with Toll Ticket Strap

CAB SOTIND INSULATION Includes Dash Insulator and Engine Cover Insulator

WINDOW, POWER ( ) And Power Door Locks, Front and Rear Doors, Left and Right, lncludes Express

Down Feature

HOURMETER, PTO for Customer Provided PTO; with Indicator Light and Hourmeter in Gauge Cluster

Includes Return Wire for PTO Feedback Switch

CAB REAR SUSPENSION Air Bag TYPe

INSTRUMENT PANEL Flat Panel

1 0030-0002
Page 16 ol 72

10t10122

Page 93

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

ACCESS, CAB Steel, Driver & Passenger Sides, Two Steps per Door, for use with Crew Cab

STEP, STANDARD, OMIT Driver & Passenger Sides, Omit Rear Steps for use with Crew Cab

WHEELS, FRONT {Accuride 42644} DISC; 22.5x8.25 Rims, Standard Polish Aluminum, l0-Stud, 285.75mm

BC, Hub-Piloted, Flanged Nut, with Steel Hubs

WHEELS, REAR {Accuride 42644} DUAL DISC; 22.5x8.25 Rims, Standard Polish Aluminum, l0-Stud,

285.75mm BC, Hub-Piloted, Flanged Nut, with Steel Hubs

(2) TIRE, FRONT 12R22.5 Load Range H XDN2 (MICHELIN),483 rev/mile, 75 MPH, Drive

(4) TIRE, REAR 12R22.5 Load Range H XDN2 (MICHELIN),483 rev/mile, 75 MPH, Drive

MISCELLANEOUS SINGLE TONE CAB 1-2 BREAKS 35200---21GWK Color I Red FLNA30012 Colormap

405G4

WARRANTY Standard for HV507, HV50B, fry607 Models, Effective with Vehicles Built July 1, 2017 or

Later, CTS-2025A

4yrAJnlimited Mile Extended Warranty Covering A/C
CAB SEATING AND ALLOWANCE

A warning label shall be installed in the cab to indicate seating positions for five (5) people. A weight allowance

of250 pounds shall be calculated for each person.

LABELS. STANDARD PACKAGE SET

A standard set of labels shall be provided and installed on the inside of chassis cab area. The labels shall contain

the required information based on the applicable components for the apparatus.

DATA ,AOIIE,

A data plaque shall be provided and installed on the inside of the driver's door. The data plaque shall contain the

required information based on the applicable components for the apparatus:

Engine oil
Engine coolant
Chassis transmission fluid
Drive axle lubricant
Power steering fluid
Pump, generator, or other component lubrications
Other NFPA applicable fluid levels or data as required

1 0030-0002
Page 17 of 72

10t10122

Page 94

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

Paint manufacturer, type, and color number

Tire Speed Ratings

Location shall be in the driver's compartment or on the driver's door

DIESEL ONLY LABEL

The fuel tank shall be labeled with a "Diesel Only" label that is green in color'

HOT EXHAUST LABEL

A "CAUTION HOT EXHAUST" label will be placed directly over the exhaust outlet on the apparatus body'

WARNING LABEL .. NO RIDING ON REAR

A warning label stating: "WARNING: DO NOT RIDE ON REAR STEP WHILE VEHICLE IS IN MOTION.

DEATH OR SERIOUS INJIIRY MAY RESULT" shall be installed on the rear of the apparatus. The label shall

be applied to the vehicle at the rear step area. The label shall warn personnel that riding in or on these areas,

while the vehicle is in motion, is prohibited.
WARNING LABEL .- SEAT BELT USAGE

A warning label, stating: "WARNING CRASH HAZARD OCCUPANTS MUST BE SEATED AND BELTED

WHEN VEHICLE IS IN MOTION..." shall be provided in the apparatus cab interior. This label shall be located

so that it is visible from all seating positions.

LOUD NOISE WARNING LABEL

A final stage manufacturer shall install "hearing loss" potential warning labels on the vehicle in any areas or

fixed equipment that produces excessive noise levels. (Exhaust outlet, sirens and air horns shall not be required

for such equipment.)
AIR FILTER EMBER PROTECTION SCREEN WARNING LABEL

A waming label, stating: "THIS VEHICLE HAS AN AIR INTAKE EMBER SCREEN WHICH REQUIRES

PERIODIC INSPECTION & CLEANING" shallbe provided and installed in the apparatus cab interior.

F'RESH AIR MRN,R SE,PARATOR G LABEL

A warning label, stating: "THIS APPARATUS IS EQUIPPED WITH A CAB FRESH AIR INTAKE EMBER
pROTECTION SCREEN. ROUTINE INSPECTION IS REQUIRED." shall be provided and installed in the

apparatus cab interior.
WAR}IING LABEL .. DO NOT WEAR HELMET

A warning label, stating: "CAUTION: DO NOT WEAR HELMET WHILE SEATED" shall be provided in the

apparatus cab interior. This label shall be located so that it is visible from all seating positions.

MANUFACTURER LOGO

The apparatus shall include a BME logo plaque which shall be affixed at the rear of the apparatus.

a

a

1 0030-0002
Page 18 of 72

10t10t22

Page 95

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

The BME plaque shall feature white reflective material on the outside of the Maltese cross and red reflective

material in the middle.
F'RONT TOW PLATE

A horizontal full frame width, '/o-inchthick steel plate, center pull, front tow eye shall be furnished and installed

through or below the front bumper. The tow eye plate shall be triangle shaped extended 6 inches beyond the

front bumper with a 3-inch X 4-inch rectangle tow eye.

The tow eye shall be braced and gusseted to prevent frame rail or bumper damage and bolted to the front frame

rail web with eight (8) Grade 8 frame bolts and lock nuts.

The tow plate shall to be sprayed with black durabak.

FRONT RECEIVER

There shall be one bolted 2" receiver hitch on the front of the apparatus. The receiver shall be mounted off set

as to prevent towing use.

REAR RECEIVER

There shall be one bolted 2" receiver hitch on the rear of the apparatus. The receiver shall be mounted off set as

to prevent towing use.

REAR BUSTLE

A single, frame mounted, 3-inch X 4-inch diameter, rear towing eye shall be provided. It shall be manufactured

from3/+-inch thick steel plate and bolted between the rear frame rail webs with a minimum of eight (8), four (4)

on each side, SAE Grade 8 frame bolts and lock nuts.

The tow eye shall be braced and gusseted to prevent damage to the frame rails, bumper or apparatus body while

being towed from various angles. Access to the tow eye shall be below the bumper and designed not to interfere

withhe required angle of departure. The bustle shall be painted job color.

FRONT FRAME EXTENSION

The front frame rails shall be extended 16" ahead of the cab grill or fender area.

BUMPER PLATFORM

The front bumper extended frame rails shall feature an overlay constructed of .125 inch, 5052 grade, aluminum

deck bright *t i.h shall offer space for mounting components necessary to the apparatus. The bumper extension

shall measure approximately sixteen (16) inches from the cab to the front face of the extension and shall be

approximately eight (8) inches in height.

DRIVERS SIDE -- FRONT BUMPER COMPARTMENT

1 0030-0002
Page 19 of 72

10110122

Page 96

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

One (1) recessed hose storage compaltment shall be installed in the drivers side of the bumper. The

compartment shall be constructed of smooth aluminum. The floor of the compartment shall have drain holes

provided.
BUMPER COMPARTMENT NYLON HOLD DOWN STRAP

One (1) nylon strap with a buckle shall be installed on the specified front bumper compartment. The nylon strap

shall act as a hold down mechanism for the hose in the compartment.

The straps shall be black in color.
BUMPER COMPARTMENT GRATING

The specified bumper compartment shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

CENTER -- FRONT BUMPER COMPARTMENT

One (1) recessed hose storage compartment shall be installed in the center front bumper. The comparlment shall

be constructed of smooth aluminum. The floor of the compartment shall have drain holes provided.

BUMPER COMP RTMENT DOOR

An aluminum tread plate door shall be installed on the specified front bumper compartment. The non-skid

surface door shall have a stainless steel hinge atthe rear,latch, and hold open device installed'

The specified door(s) shall have a Polished stainless-steel D-ring door handle.

BUMPER COMPARTMENT GRATING

The specified bumper compartment shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

PASSENGER SIDE -- FRONT BUMPER COMPARTMENT

One (l) recessed hose storage compartment shall be installed in the passenger side of the bumper- The

compartment shall be constructed from smooth aluminum. The floor of the compartment shall have drain holes

provided.
BUMPER COMPARTMENT NYLON HOLD DOWN STRAP

One (1) nylon strap with a buckle shall be installed on the specified front bumper compartment. The nylon strap

shall act as a hold down mechanism for the hose in the compartment.

The straps shall be black in color.
BUMPER COMPARTMENT GRATING

1 0030-0002
Page 20 of 72

10t10122

Page 97

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The specified bumper compartment shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating' This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

BUMPER

There shall be an International 15 degree bumper installed on the apparatus

FRONT COI,OR

The front bumper shall be painted job color
BUMPER SIDE WINGS

The bumper shall have steel side wings.

FRONT BUMPER WINGS COLOR

The front bumper wings shall be painted job color
AIR HORN

One (1) Buell brand, Model #1063 15" air horn shall be provided and mounted on the frame rail of the

passenger's side frame, behind the bumper.

AIR HORI\ FOOT SWITCH

One (l) foot switch shall be provided and installed. The foot switch shall be located on the driver's side of the

floor and shall activate the air horn system.

B:.XHAUST SYS MODIIIICATION

The chassis exhaust system shall be modified to exit on the passenger side of the apparatus ahead of the rear

wheel. The exhaust pipe modification shall be made from Stainless Steel and shall have an exhaust hanger every

12 inches.

EXHAUST HEAT WRAP

The exhaust pipe shall be wrapped with heat wrap from the diesel particulate filter to just shy of the end of the

tailpipe.
BUMPER BOX PROTECTIVE FLAP

The protective flap shall be a cut down mud flap installed on the rear edge of the front bumper to eliminate

debris from being deposited on the top of the front bumper and in the hose boxes.

REAR MUD FLAPS

The chassis shall be supplied with mud flaps with BME's logo. The mud flaps shall be installed behind the rear

wheels.

1 0030-0002
Page21 of72

10t10122

Page 98

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

DRIVER SIDE CAB STEP

The apparatus shall be equipped with a chassis fuel tank and step area. The fuel tank and step area shall be

located on the drivers side of the commercial chassis. The fuel tank shall be covered with aluminum tread plate.

DRIVER'S SIDE UNDER CAB COMPARTMENT

The apparatus shall be equipped with an enclosed stainless steel compartment located under the crew door on

the left side of the cab. The compartment shall measure approximately 36" wide x 18" high x 21" deep with a

hinged aluminum door and a D-ring style latch'

The doors shall be painted job color
BRASS BOX SLIDE TRAY

The left under cab compartment shall have these additional items installed, a 10-gauge reinforced plain

anodized aluminum sliding drawer-type tray with a 4-inchvertical flange on all sides to be utilized for the

storage ofnozzles and adapters.

The tray shall utilize the maximum available space within this compartment and have extra heavy duty 500

pound lock-in/lock-out roller glides with stops to prevent it from sliding all the way out and to hold it securely

in place when the compartment door is opened or closed'

The brass box tray shall feature adjustable l6 section slotted 4-inch high "egg-crate" divider designed for

vertical storage ofvarious nozzles and adapters'

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

One (1) Code 3 800 Series Corner LED lights shall be installed in the specified compartment(s).

COMPARTMENT LIGHT / DOOR SWITCH

The interior compartment light shall be automatically controlled by a door activated "On-Off' switch. The

switch shall be tied to the door ajar system also.

PASSENGER 'S SIDF],IINDER CAB ARTMF],NT

The passenger side under cab compartment shall be mounted below the rear cab doors in front of the relocated

battery box, the compartment shall be made from stainless steel and have provisions to mount the upper and

lower steps to it. The box and door shall be painted job color and shall have an aluminum diamond plate over

lay that covers the top and both sides.

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

One (1) Code 3 800 Series Corner LED lights shall be installed in the specified compartment(s).

COMPARTMENT LIGHT / DOOR SWITCII

1 0030-0002
Page22 of 72

10t10t22

Page 99

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The interior compaftment light shall be automatically controlled by a door activated "On-Off' switch. The

switch shall be tied to the door ajar system also.

CAB STEPS

Aggressive, extruded aluminum surfaces shall be installed on each of the cab steps areas. The outside edges of
the specified step shall be provided with 2" x l.5" x .250" extruded and knurled aluminum rub rails.

CAB DOOR REFLECTIVE PANELS

The cab doors shall include reflective trim installed inside each door
Specified part shall include White reflective striping.
REAR AIR RIDE SEATS
CAB SEATING

The apparatus shall be equipped with two (2) Bostrom Sierra 100 air ride seats. The seats shall have an inside
(l) arm rest.

The specified seat(s) covers shall be dark grey vinyl.
FRONT AIR RIDE SEATS
CAB SEATING

The apparatus shall be equipped with two (2) Bostrom Sierra 100 air ride seats. The seats shall have an inside
(l) arm rest.

The specified seat(s) covers shall be dark grey vinyl.
REAR WALL ALUMINUM PLATE . F'ULL HEIGHT

Behind the rear seat mounted vertically on the inside rear wall of the cab a ll4 inch aluminum sheet that is

approximately 50 inches high by 60 inches wide will be mounted in the center resting on the floor to the rear

wall of the cab inside with eight (8) % inch bolts with nutserts on the double wall supports.

This piece of aluminum will be centered, and the mounting bolts will not go through the outside of the cab. This
piece of aluminum will be for hanging AVL electrical components after delivery.
This aluminum piece will completely cover the rear window for safety.

There will be a sticker in the middle of the aluminum cover for the rear window that will state do not drill in red

one inch letters.
FAN CLUTCH LOCK UP

The fan clutch shall lock up when the apparatus is shifted into pump mode.

AIR HOSE OUTLET

(l) female quick connect air inlet/outlet shall be provided and installed and labeled "AIR INLET-OUTLET".
The quick connect fitting shall provide connection to a utility air hose and shall be located on the pump

1 0030-0002
Page 23 of 72

10t10t22

Page 100

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

operator,s panel. A round shutoff valve shall be supplied next to the air inlet/outlet and labeled "AIR

SHUT.OFF''
AIR TANK RELOCATION

The air tanks shall be relocated to the rear of the truck between the frame rails.

REMOTE MOUNT FRONT AXLE BREATHER HOSE

The front axle shall have a remount mount breather with hose, and have a metal 1/4" (LDI Industries 1U573 or

equivalent) style vent will be supplied and gain two of lift and be mounted to the firewall on passenger side.

BATTERY RELOCATION

The chassis batteries are to be relocated to the passenger side of the chassis, below the rear cab door in the

o.E.M. battery box, aft of the under cab compartment. The box shall have an aluminum diamond plate lid, and

have provisions to mount an upper cab step to it.
UNDERIIOOD LIGHTS

There shall be two (2) Tecniq LED light(s) installed under the hood of the chassis. Lights shall have local

switching on the driver side under the hood.

LED HEADLIGHTS REPLACEMENT

The factory halogen headlights shall be replaced with LED headlights. The headlights shall be Truck Lite

#27270C7" LED.
AUXILIARY AIR CONDITIONER

The cab shall have a Red Dot #R6840 auxiliary air conditioner installed at the back wall of the cab. The

auxiliary unit shall be connected to the OEM A/C compressor and feature it own fan speed and temperature

controls. The unit shall be capable of 22,300 BTU/FIr cooling capacity with a 325 CFM fan'

AIR FILTER EMBER PROTECTION SCREEN AND WARNING LABEL

The chassis air intake shall be protected by an ember guard of 18 Mesh,0.017-inch wire diameter, and a

maximum mesh opening of 0.0j9 inches. The ember guard shall be sized to fit and located at the intake

opening. The screen shall be readily accessible for inspection and maintenance. The ember guard shall maintain

a minimum lrinch separation from the air filter.
EMBER SEPARATOR.. F'RESH AIR INTAKE TO CAB

The cabin air filter shall be protected by an ember guard with a maximum mesh opening of 0'039 inches.

EMBER SEPARATOR

The final stage manufacturer shall install a stainless steel ember separator within the fire pump engine air intake

system.
FUEL TANK SKID PLATE

'10030-0002
Page 24 of 72

10t10122

Page 101

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

A heavy duty removable skid plate shall be fastened to the bottom side of the fuel tank. The skid plate shall have

the front and rear sides turned up to prevent digging into the ground when the apparatus is in off road

conditions.
EXTERIOR CAB TRIM

A rubber debris skirt will be installed to prevent debris and embers from entering between the cab and frame.

The debris skim will be attached with a 12 gauge stainless steel trim piece the full length along the lower cab

seam below the cab doors. The trim shall be fastened to the body seam with evenly spaced l0/32 stainless steel

Phillips head machine screws and nylock nuts.

AIR. F'UEL. ELECTRICAL LINE PROTECTION

All air lines, fuel lines and electrical harnesses below the chassis frame rails shall be protected with fire resistive

sleeves.

FUEL TANK VENTING

The O.E.M fuel tank vent line shall be extended from the fuel tank and vented to the atmosphere. The vent line

shall extend vertically from the tank to the bottom of the cab rear window and then bend 180 degrees towards

the ground. A vent plug orifice (#60 drill size) shall be installed into the upper end of each line. No fueltank roll
over protection check valves shall be removed from the fuel system. Any chassis fuel system modifications shall

be fully compliant CARB regulations, CVC and FMVSS'

All fuel vent lines shall be copper, steel, or Aeroquip hose, and shall be loomed, "grommeted", and firmly
clamped in position to prevent chafing or damage and all synflex fuel hoses shall be wrapped with fire wrap

lagging capable of withstanding temperatures in excess of 250"C.

The fuel tanks and lines shall be protected as necessary from exhaust heat through the use of heat shields or

baffles. Use only metal fasteners, coated or insulated for maximum fuel line protection.

ECM PROGRAMMING

The cab and chassis ECM shall be programmed as required to allow the apparatus to acheive 68 MPH top

speed.
Performance Taq - Portable PumP

A tag shall be provided on the pump control panel indicating the performance of the portable pump

Pump Performance
20 gpm @ 310 psi

140gpm @l45psi
180 gpm @ 80 psi

FIRE PUMP SPECIFICATIONS

A Darley model JMP 500 GPM two stage fire pump shall be installed. Power to drive the pump shall be

provided by the same engine used to propel the apparatus. The pump shall be equipped with a series-parallel

1 0030-0002
Page 25 ol 72

10t10122

Page 102

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

changeover valve control on the pump panel'

pump casing shall be a fine grain cast iron, with a minimum tensile strength of 30,000 PSI' Pump shall contain a

cored heating jacket feature that, if selected, can be connected into the vehicle antifteeze system to protect the

pump from freezing in cold climates, and to help reject engine heat from engine coolant, providing longer life

for the engine. Seal rings shall be renewable, double labyrinth, wrap around bronze type'

The pump shaft shall be splined to receive broached impeller hubs, for greater resistance to wear, torsional

vibration, and torque imposid by engine, as well as ease of maintenance and repair'

Bearings provided shall be heavy duty, deep groove, radial-type ball bearings. Sleeve bearings on any portion of

the pump or transmission shall be prohibited due to wear, deflection, and alignment concems. The bearings

shalibe protected at all openings from road dirt and water splash with oil seals and water slingers'

The impeller shall be a high strength bronze alloy, splined to the pump shaft for precision fit, durability, and

ease of maintenance. Impel-ler shaft oil seals shall be constructed to be free from steel components except for the

internal lip spring. The impeller shaft oil seals shall carry a lifetime warranty against damage from corrosion

from water and other fire-fighting fluids.

The pump transmission case shall be heavy-duty cast iron with adequate oil reserve capacity to maintain low

operating temperature. pump ratio to be seiected by the manufacturers engineering department. Gears shall be

helical in design and precisi,on ground for quiet operation and extended life. Gears to be cut from high strength

alloy steel, giound, and carburized. Chain drive andlor design requiring extra lubricating pump is not

acceptable.

pump drive shaft shall be precision ground, heat-treated alloy steel, with a 1-318 spline. Gears shall be helical

design, and shall be precision g.ounJfo, quiet operation and extended life. The pump transmission shall require

no further lubrication beyond that providei uv ttr. intrinsic action of the gears, to reduce the likelihood of failure

due to loss of auxiliary lubrication.

MECHANICAL SEAL

The mechanical seal shall use silicon carbide mechanical seals with welded springs. The stationary face of our

mechanical seals shall be made from silicon carbide, an extremely hard and heat dissipative material' which

resists wear and dry running damage'

PUMP SHIFT NO PUMP AND ROLL

The pump transmission shall be engaged by a guarded toggle switch which will lock in both the road and the

pump *od" to ensure that accidental pump engagement or disengagement is avoided'

The main fire pump shift controls shall be mounted in the cab and identified as "PUMP SHIFT" and shall

include a perrnanently inscribed pump shift instruction I.D. plate. The pump shift controls shall include

1 0030-0002
Page26 of 72

10110122

Page 103

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

indicating lights located on the in-cab and left pump panels that advise the operator that the pump shift has been

completed and it is O.K. to pump.

The indicating lights shall be as follows:
o To indicate that the pump shift has been successfully completed.
o An "O.K. to Pump" light located in the cab to indicate that the pump is engaged, the transmission

is in neutral and the A "Pump Engaged" light located in the cab and on the left pump panel
parking brake is set.

o A "Throttle Ready" light located on the left pump operators' panel to indicate the apparatus is in

the O.K. to Pump mode.

The main pump shall be used for stationary pumping only. The main pump shall include a lock-out system that
is interfaced with the apparatus electrical and parking brake systems and is designed to keep the main pump

from being used in pump and roll operations.

The transfer valve will cycle every time the ignition is turned on to keep calcium buildup down and maintain
movement of the valve. Once it cycles it will return to the switch location. The switch will default to *pressure*

mode.
FIRE PUMP ANODE SYSTEM

The fire pump plumbing system shall be provided with anode system to reduce corrosion within the piping. The

anode shall be bolt-in or screw-in type and easily replaceable.

ELECTRIC PRIMER SPECIFICATIONS

A 12 volt electrically driven positive displacement fire pump primer system shall be installed. The priming
pump shall be constructed of heat treated aluminum and hard coat anodized and shall not use oil in the

operation. The system shall perform in compliance to applicable NFPA standards.

FIRE PUMP TEST

The fire pump shall undergo factory fire pump tests for a minimum of 30 minutes of continuous pump at rated

capacity at rated net pump pressure prior to delivery of the completed apparatus. the complete pump test shall
include a pressure control test, a priming system test, a vacuum test and a water tank to pump flow test. The

factory pump testing results shall be furnished on delivery.
FIRE PUMP PTO AND DRIVELINES

A "Hot Shift" power-take-off shall be installed on the transmission PTO opening with the controls located in the

chassis cab, with an AMBER waming light to note engagement. The drive shaft and universals shall be sized for
intended usage and pump rating.
INTAKE DUMP VALVE

1 0030-0002
Page27 of72

10t10t22

Page 104

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire ApParatus

An Elkhart model #40140 intake dump valve shall be provided and plumbed into the intake side of the main

pump. The valve shall be preset from the factory at 125 psi. The pressure setting controls for the valve shall be

accessible from beneath the pump compartment.

The 45" stainless steel discharge pipe shall be angled away from the tire and teminate with a 2%-inch NST

male adapter and labeled "Do Not Cap"'

THERMAL PUMP COOLER

The fire pump shall be equipped with an overheat protection device which monitors the temperature of the water

inside the pump and relieves water when the temperature inside the pump exceeds 140 degrees Fahrenheit. The

Waterous Model #OpM shall also have an warning light on the pump panel to provide additional protection in

the event the temperature inside the pump continues to rise with the overheat protection valve open. The

warning light and test button shall be mounted to a heavy polished casting that is mounted to the pump

operator's panel.

MASTER PUMP DRAIN

One (l) Trident, multiple-port drain valve, fabricated from bronze, shall be provided and controlled at the pump

operator's control pun.t. The valve shall be opened by tuming a rotary hand wheel. The valve shall be plumbed

to drain both the discharge and intake sides of the pump, the relief valve and other plumbing components as

required.

The valve shallbe placed as low as possible to provide proper drainage of the components plumbed to it. The

valve shall be rated to 600 PSI minimum and suitable for daily valve actuation.

MAIN PUMP PLUMBING

The pTO main pump plumbing system shall utilize stainless steel piping incorporating hosing to allow for flex.

The piping shali utilize TIG welding to provide a complete seal. Hard angles shall be avoided when possible to

improve water flow characteristics. The piping shall utilize Victaulic couplers whenever possible to allow flex

as the body module flexes.

Threaded sections of piping shall be avoided to reduce the leak potential of the system. Victaulic couplers shall

be used in place of threading to reduce leak potential. Schedule 10 stainless steel piping shall be used for

transport type piping. Schedule 40 stainless steel shall be used for areas requiring threading to provide a stable

threading base. Brackets shall be installed to support threading locations thereby reducing the potential for leaks

All hoses shall be connected directly to the tank due to the different flex ratios of the tank to body' Any front

discharges, any rear discharges, and all cross lays shall use hose to reach the actual discharge. The use ofhose

shall be utilized due to the difference in flex or movement between the discharge location and the pump

connection. Drain lines shall be provided at the lowest points in the plumbing system to allow for complete

drainage. Bleeders shall be provided for all gauges to relieve pressure after use.

PORTABLE PUMP

1 0030-0002
Page 28 of 72

10t10122

Page 105

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

A Darley l-llzAGE 24K portable pump shall be provided on the apparatus. The unit shall have a liquid cooled,

24IJF, Kubota D902 diesel engine equipped with an electric start.

Pump Performance
20 gpm @ 310 psi
140gpm @l45psi
180 gpm @ 80 psi

Diesel Eneine
Kubota, D902 Diesel, water-cooled,24 hp

Fuel Supply
The engine shall be piped to the chassis fuel system with provisions to prevent fuel drain back to the tank when

the engine is shutdown.

Fuel Prime
A fuel re-prime pump shall be provided to assist in fuel delivery to the diesel engine from the chassis tank.

Lubrication
Pressure feed with spin-on filter

Starter
12-volt electric wired into the chassis battery system

Exhaust
A spark arrestor shall be provided on the engine exhaust system

Air Intake
An air cleaner shall be provided with easy access to remove the element.

An ember screen shall be provided on the inlet to the air cleaner.

The auxiliary fire pump shall provide pressure to all 2-inch discharge valves only including the hose reel and be

capable of re-circulating tank water for pump cooling purposes through the 2-inch tank filler valve.

*NOTE* .The engine oil dipstick will be at the same level of height as the valve cover on the auxiliary engine.

CATTRON CONTROL PANELS

The auxiliary pump throffle controls shall be Cable Craft, low friction, lockable style throttle cables. There shall

be one (1) throttle cable mounted on the cab console and one (l) throttle cable mounted on the left side

operators pump panel.

1 0030-0002
Page 29 of 72

10t10t22

Page 106

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

Panel to include the following items:

Start / Stop Push Button Switch
Ignition "On" Light (Green)

Low Engine Oil Pressure Light
High Engine Temperature Light
Low Pump Water Pressure Light
Alternator Charge Fail Light
Glow Plug Active Light
Push Button Primer
Tachometer
Discharge Pressure Gauge (Red Back Lighted)

Vernier Throttle
AUX BYPASS I,E,R

An auxiliary pump shall have cooling ability. A line will be installed for the auxiliary pump output that uses 1/8

inside diameter hose 300 psi minimu* uni will travel to the tank fill tower and drain inside facing down and

have a check valve installed for priming purposes.

This line will always flow water when the auxiliary pump is running and drain back into the tank. If larger than

l/g inside diameter hose is used an orifice tube to reduce the flow to 1/8 inch will be installed.

AUXILIARY PUMP PLUMBING

The auxiliary fire pump plumbing system shall utilize stainless steel piping incorporating hosing to allow for

flex. The piping shal utilize TIG welding to provide a complete seal. Hard angles shall be avoided when

possible to improve water flow characteristici. The piping shall utilize victaulic couplers whenever possible to

allow flex as the body module flexes'

Threaded sections of piping shall be avoided to reduce the leak potential of the system. Victaulic couplers shall

be used in place of thi"uaing to reduce leak potential. Schedule 10 stainless steel piping shall be used for

transport type piping. Schedule 40 stainless steel shall be used for areas requiring threading to provide a stable

threading base. Brackets shall be installed to support threading locations thereby reducing the potential for leaks.

All hoses shall be connected directly to the tank due to the different flex ratios of the tank to body. Any front

discharges, any reardischarges, and all cross lays shall use hose to reach the actual discharge. The use ofhose

shall be utilized due to the difference in flex or movement between the discharge location and the pump

connection.
AUXILIARY PUMP EXHAUST SYSTEM

The auxiliary fire pump and engine assembly shall have a muffler and exhaust pipe. The exhaust pipe shall be

directed out of the compartmeniand away from the pump operator. An additional guard shall be installed where

the pipe is exposed to touch by an operator.

1 0030-0002
Page 30 of 72

10110122

Page 107

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

LOW PRESSURE PUMP SHUT.DOWN

If the fire pump runs out of water and the pressure decreases below 20 PSI, an automatic pressure switch shall

detect the condition, and turn off the fire pump operation.

LOW OIL PRESSURE / IIIGH TEMPERATURE PUMP SHUT-DOWN

If the fire pump has low oil pressure or high engine temperature, automatic pressure switches shall detect the

condition, and the device shail turn off the fire pump operation. There shall be an override switch provided and

installed on the operators pump panel to allow the system to be disabled when required.

AUXILIARY FUEL SYSTEM

The fuel system for the auxiliary fire pump shall be plumbed to the chassis fuel system. There shall be a separate

fuel pickup tube mounted in the chassis fuel tank specifically for a separate engine driven pump assembly'

There shall be an electric fuel pump with regulator and fuel hose furnished between the chassis fuel tank and the

auxiliary pump.

The fuel tank pick-up tube shall be designed to ensure the auxiliary engine will not exhaust the fuel supply of

the vehicle. (minimum 15-gallon reserve)

A marine grade one way check valve shall be installed in the fuel line to eliminate the possibility of air locks in

the fuel line and prevent the inability of the auxiliary pump engine to start instantaneously.

AUXILIARY FIRE PUMP ELECTRIC START WIRING TO CHASSIS

properly sized 12 volt positive and negative cables shall be provided from the chassis battery to the auxiliary

fire pump.
AUXILIARY AND MAIN PUMP PLUMBING

The auxiliary fire pump shall be plumbed to the main pump discharge.

AUXILIARY PUMP OIL DRAIN EXTENSION

There shall be an oil drain extension installed on the auxiliary pump. This will allow for the engine oil to be

drained without removing the auxiliary engine.

AUXILIARY PUMP COVER

A louvered hinged cover with suitable latches shall be provided over the pump and power unit assembly. The

area around the assembly shall remain open for maintenance and air circulation and the radiator shall be located

behind ventilated side sheet.

LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have no compartment lighting'

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

1 0030-0002
Page 31 of 72

10t10122

Page 108

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar.

BYPASS FIRE PUMP COOLER

The fire pump shall be equipped with 3/8" cooling line from the pump to the water tank. This re-circulation line

shall be conirolled by a pump panel control valve with nameplate label noting it as the "fire pump bypass

cooler".
4'' UNGATED INTAKE.- LEFT SIDE

One (1) 4" un-gated suction intake shall be installed on the left side pump panel to supply the fire pump from an

external water supply. The threads shall be 4" NH male and equipped with a removable screen.

One (l) chrome brass 4" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the intake.

2.1/2'' GATED INTAKE.- LEFT SIDE

One (l) 2-112" gated suction intake shall be recessed mounted on the left side pump panel to supply the fire

pump from an external water supply. The valve shall be a quarter-turn ball valve with the appropriate handle

and shall have 2-ll2" NH female thread'

The intake shall be equipped with a South Park Corp. 3/4" Push-pull type drain valve mounted to the bottom of

the valve.
One (1) Akron 8825 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shallbe designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One d) chrome brass2-712,'NH rocker lug plug with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the intake.

2-ll2'GATED INTAKE .. RI SIDE

One (1) 2-112" gated suction intake shall be recess mounted on the right side pump panel to supply the fire

pump from an external water supply. The valve shall be a quarter-turn ball valve with the appropriate handle

and shall have 2-112" NH female thread.

The intake shall be equipped with a South Park Corp. 3/4" Push-pull type drain valve mounted to the bottom of

the valve.
One (l) Akron 8825 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

.nniron-"nts. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One d) chrome brass 2-112,' NH rocker lug plug with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the intake'

WATER TANK SUPPLY LINE TO FIRE PUMP

A 3" water tank to pump line shall be installed, with a 3" full flow quarter turn ball valve and 3" piping. The line

shall be equipped with a hump hose with stainless steel hose clamps and a 3" check valve to prevent

pressurization of the water tank.

bne (l) Akron 8830 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

1 0030-0002
Page 32 of 72

10t10122

Page 109

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

to operate under nomal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control, Akron Model Rl valve handle.

The 3" valve shall be equipped with an air operated cylinder and control actuator installed on pump panel. The

controls shall be located on the left pump operator's panel, be labeled "Tank to Pump", and feature a 'ogreen"

valve open and "red" valve closed indicator light.
PUMP TO TANK

There shall be a pump to tank line provided from the discharge side of the pumps and plumbed to the top of the

tank. The plumbing shall be 2-inch with a 2-inch Akron 8800 series lo-turn full flow ball valve, and shall be

controlled at the left pump panel by a push/pull T-handle and linkage. The pump to tank shall be plumbed to

flow water from both the main and auxiliary pumps. Control shall be labeled "Tank Fill".
One (1) Akron 8820 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The valve shall be equipped with a Thuemling manually operated pull rod, with quarter-turn locking feature.

2-112" D GE, LEF'T SIDE.- FORWARD PIIMP PANEL

One (l) 2-112" discharge shall be installed on the left side forward pump panel area controlled by a quarter turn

ball valve with the appropriate handle. The discharge shall have 2-112" NH male hose threads, bleeder valve,

and chrome brass cap, with a label adjacent the control handle.

A Class I quarter-tum3l4" drain and bleeder valve shall be installed on the discharge valve.

One (1) Akron 8825 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One (l) chrome brass 2.5" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the discharge.

2.5'' DISCHARGE .- REAR LEFT

One (l) 2.5" discharge shall be installed on the rear left panel with controlled by a quarter turn ball valve. The

discharge shall have 2.5" NH male hose threads and nameplate label adjacent the control handle.

One (1) Akron 8825 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

(1) chrome plated brass 30 degree elbow with 2.5" swivel female NH x 2.5" male NH thread with rocker lugs

shall be provided on the discharge.

One (1) chrome brass 2.5" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the discharge'

2' DISCHARGE .- REAR RIGHT

One (1) 2" discharge shall be installed on the rear right panel, controlled by a quarter turn ball valve on pump

panel. The discharge shall have 2" NPT x l-112" NH male hose threads and nameplate label adjacent the valve

1 0030-0002
Page 33 of 72

10110122

Page 110

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

controlhandle.
One (1) Akron 8820 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One (l) chrome plated brass reducing adapter with a 2" swivel female NH x 1.5" male NH thread with rocker

lugs shall be provided on the discharge.

One (l) chrome plated brass 30 degree elbow with 1.5" swivel female NH x l.5" male NH thread with rocker

lugs shallbe provided on the discharge.

One (1) chrome plated brass 1.5" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the

discharge.
I-I12" CROSSLAY DISCHARGES

Two (2) pre-connected 7-112" hose cross lays shall be installed over pump enclosure. One (1) each side. They

shall be arranged in a single stack design with a divider in the center of the storage area.Each storage area shall

extend from the side of the pump house to the center of the pump house. The dimensions shall be approximately

4-112" wide x 36" deep x32" tall.
Two (2) Akron 8820 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

The crosslay hosebed shall be equipped with an aluminum diamond plate hinged cover and vinyl end flap

enclosures on each side, installed in compliance with applicable NFPA #1901 standards. The cover shall be

equipped with rubber bumpers and lift up handle on each end of the cover.

The specified crosslay flaps shall be red.

CROSSLAY EDGES

The crosslay side sheets shall be rolled on each side to act as a guide for the hose to come out of the tray.

Two (2) chrome plated brass reducing adapter with a 2" swivel female NH x 1.5" male NH thread with rocker

lugs shall be provided on the discharge.

Two (2) chrome plated brass 1.5" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the

discharge.
1-112'' BUMPER AR.EA DISCHARGE &EFT SIDE)

One (1) 2" discharge shall be provided at the driver's side of the front bumper extension. The discharge shall be

plumbed with 2" flexible high pressure hose with reusable fittings or welded stainless steel pipe. The front

bumper discharge shall be equipped with a 2" quarter turn ball valve. The discharge shall have a 90 degree full

swivel elbow, terminating in l-ll2" NST male threads, to allow the hose to be pulled in any direction without

kinking. The swivels shall feature stops allowing them to only rotate 220" from left side to right along the

forward radius.

One (1) Akron 8820 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

1 0030-0002
Page 34 ol 72

10t10122

Page 111

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One f ) chrome plated brass 1.5" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the

discharge.
1-112'' BUMPER AREA DISCHARGE GIGHT SIDE)

One (1) 2" discharge, shall be provided at the passenger's side of the front bumper extension. The discharge

shall be plumbed with 2" flexible high pressure hose with reusable fittings or welded stainless steel pipe. The

front bumper discharge shall be equipped with a 2" quarter turn ball valve. The discharge shall have a 90 degree

full swivel elbow, terminating in l-ll2" NST male threads, to allow the hose to be pulled in any direction

without kinking. The swivels shall feature stops allowing them to only rotate 220" from left side to right along

the forward radius.

One (l) Akron 8820 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement'

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One d) chrome plated brass 1.5" NH rocker lug cap with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the

discharge.
2'' ISOLATION VALVE

One (l) 2" inline valve, labeled, shall be provided to isolate the front bumper extension discharge piping in the

case of a hose or piping failure. This valve shall normally be left in the open position. Control for this valve

shall be through the use of a Rl handle, painted red, located at the valve.

One (1) Akron 8820 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

"nnironrn"nts. 
All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

HOSE REEL

One (l) Hannay aluminum hose reel Model #SBSEPFI7-28-29-RT shall be installed. The reel shall have leak

proof ball bearing swing joint, adjustable friction brake, electric 12 volt rewind and manual crank rewind

provisions.,The reel shali be plumbed with wire reinforced, high-pressure hose coupled with brass fittings. The

reel shall be designed to hold l25oh of the specified hose capacity'

The reel shall be provided with a 12 volt electric motor of appropriate size for rewinding. The hose reel shall

have provisions for being rewound manually. The pinion shaft for the manual rewind gear shall be equipped

with an adjustable tension brake, controlled at the hose reel.

One (1) Akron 8810 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

.nniron*"nts. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

1 0030-0002
Page 35 of 72

10110122

Page 112

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

HOSE REEL MOUNTING

The hose reel shall be mounted over the pump enclosure.

Two (2) Cole Hersee #M-608 push button hose reel rewind controls shall be installed supplied and installed to

rewind the hose reel. One (1) button shall be installed on the left pump panel and one (1) button shall be

installed on the right panel.

HOSE REEL NOZZLE MOUNTING

The specified hose reel nozzle shall be mounted with a PAC nozzle mount. Install the nozzle pocket on the

pump panel below the hardline fairlead with two 5/16 bolts.

HOSE REEL ROLLERS

The hose reel shall include one horizontal and two vertical chrome fairlead rollers. Two (2) additional sets of
fair lead rollers shall be located on the auxiliary pump cover for guiding the hose across the top of the apparatus.

FOAM SYSTEM

A Foampro electronic foam system shall be provided. The system shall be designed for use with Class A foam

concentrate. The foam proportioning operation shall be designed for direct measurement of water flows and

shall remain consistent within the specified flows and pressures. The system shall be capable of accurately

delivering foam solution as required by applicable sections of the NFPA standards'

The system shall be equipped with a control module suitable for installation on the pump panel. There shall be a

microprocessor incorporut.d *ithin the motor driver that shall receive input from the system's flowmeter, while

also monitoring the foam concentrate pump output. The microprocessor shall compare the values to ensure that

the desired amount of foam concentrate is iniected onto the discharge side of the fire pump.A "foam capable"

paddlewheel-type flowmeter shall be installed in the discharge side of the piping system.

The control module shall enable the pump operator to

o Activate the foam proportioning system
o Select the proportioning rates from 0.lo/oto l'jYo
o See a "low concentrate" warning light flash when the foam tank level becomes low and in two (2)

minutes, if the foam concentrate has not been added to the tank, the foam concentrate pump shall be

capable of shutting down.

A l2-volt electric motor driven positive displacement plunger pump shall be provided. The pump capacity range

shall be 0.1 to 1.7 GpM (6.4llmin) at200 PSI (13.8 BAR) with a maximum operating pressure up to 400 PSI

(27.6 BAR). The system shall draw a maximum of 30 amps at 12 volts. The motor shall be controlled by the

microprocessor which shall be mounted to the base of the pump. It receives signals from the control module and

1 0030-0002
Page 36 o'f 72

10t10122

Page 113

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

power the l/3 horsepower (.25 Kw) electric motor in a variable speed duty cycle to ensure that the correct

proportion of concentrate is injected into the water stream'

A full flow check valve shall be provided in the discharge piping to prevent foam contamination of the fire

pump and water tank. A 5 pSI (.35 BAR) opening pressure check valve shall be provided in concentrate line.

Components of the complete proportioning system as described above shall include:

. Operator control module
o Paddlewheel flowmeter
. Pump and electric motor/motor driver
. Wiring hamesses
o Low level tank switch
o Foam tank
r Foam injection check valve
o Main waterway check valve
o Flowmeter and tee with 2" male NPT threads.

The foam system shall be installed and calibrated to manufacturer's requirements. In addition the system shall be

tested and certified by the apparatus manufacturer to applicable NFPA standards.

The foam system design shall be tested and pass environmental testing in accordance to SAE standards.

An installation and operation manual shall be provided for the unit. The system shall have a one (1) year limited

warranty by the foam system manufacturer.

The Foampro 1600 Series foam system shall be provided with a control cable from the controller to the foam

pump assembly.

The Foampro 1600 Series foam system shall be provided with a standard pump panel mounted FoamPro control

head.

A Foampro brass flowmeter shall be provided. The flowmeter shall be installed in the "foam capable" discharge

line. The flowmeter shall have maximum accuracy between the flow range of 15 GPM and 520 GPM and be

capable of operation between 5 GPM to 625 GPM. The tee shall have NPT and Victaulic inlet and outlets

connections.

A Foampro instruction and system rating label shall be provided. The label shall display information for a

FoamPro 1600 Series foam system and shall meet applicable sections of the NFPA standards'

1 0030-0002
Page37 of72

10t10122

Page 114

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

A Foampro foam system schematic label shall be installed on the pump panel near foam controls. The label

shall be a diagram of the FoamPro 1600 series foam system layout and shall meet applicable sections of the

NFPA standards.

The foam system will be fastened and mounted from a double gusseted 5/16 steel mount and be supported on

the top and bottom of the foam pump system to the buildup'

FOAM SYSTEM OUTLETS

The following discharges shall have foam distributed to them.

Front bumper discharges

Front bumper monitor (if applicable)
Pump house crosslaY Pre connects

Booster hose reel

Rear l-1l2" discharge
FOAM SYSTEM CAB CONTRQL

A FoamPro on-off control switch shall be installed in the cab console.

FOAM UPLOAD SYSTEM

There shall be a Hale EZFoamupfill system supplied and installed on the apparatus. The foam transfer system

will be mounted from the frame rail with 1l4-inch steel plate that is gusseted on both ends for support.

PUMP RNCI,OSURE

The pTO fire pump enclosure shall be a separate unit from the body unit and shall be attached and supported at

the chassis frame rails. This module shall allow for independent flexing of the pump enclosure from the body,

chassis, and tank, and shall permit quick removal. The module shall have Polypro mounting pads and shall be

attached to the frame rails. The module shall be a welded frame with all vertical supports from '/t wall 4-36

mild hot rolled steel to be continuous, (no splices or brakes on vertical supports).

The pump enclosure shall be approximately 27" front to rear,72" right to left, and 60" high.

PUMP ENCLOSURE RUNNING BOARD

Both the drivers and passenger side shall be equipped with a side running board a minimum of 12" deep. The

running board shall extend along the width of the pump enclosure from the forward end of the body module to

behind the chassis cab. The exterior edge of the running board shall be constructed of a non'slip aggressive

surface, supported by the pump enclosure framework, and bolted in place with stainless steel fasteners. The

outside edges of the specified step shall be provided with 2" x 1.5" x .250" extruded and knurled aluminum rub

rails.
Specified part shall include White reflective striping.
PUMP ACCESS SERVICE DOOR.- UPPER LEFT SIDE

1 0030-0002
Page 38 of 72

10t10122

Page 115

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The upper left side of the side mount pump enclosure shall be provided with a pump service access door. The

hinged door shall be constructed of stainless steel powder coated satin black, with push button type lever latches

for service access.

PUMP PANELS

The pump panels shall be constructed of stainless steel, bolted to the pump enclosure with stainless steel

fasteners. The operators side pump panel shall be powdercoated satin black, while the right side panel shall be

brushed stainless steel.
MASTER INTAKE PRESSURE GAUGE

One (1) master intake pressure gauge shall be provided on the operator's panel. The gauge shall be a Span brand,

or equivalent, 30-0-150 PSI graduated, with a minimum diameter of 4-112", backlit for nighttime operations and

silicone liquid filled to prevent condensation inside the gauge and to dampen the movement.

The gauge housing shall be constructed of Zytel nylon with a ll4" NPT brass male fitting centrally located on

the rear of the housing. The gauge shall be filled with low-temperature liquid with an operating range of -40 to
+150 degrees Fahrenheit, which prevents bouncing ofthe readout needle and provides for an accuracy rating of
3Vo or I" hg on the vacuum side and 5Yo or l5 PSI on the pressure side ofthe gauge.

The gauges shall be wired so when the pump is engaged the gauge light turns on.

The specified gauge shall feature a drain located at the gauge inlet to help prevent freezing. The drain shall be a

twist open and close type.
Gauge(s) shall include internal, back-lit 12 volt lighting. Replaceable, Red, LED bulb in a water-resistant

holder.
Gauge(s) shall be supplied with a white dial face with black lettering and black gauge marks.

Gauge bezel shall be Chrome in color.
MASTER I) PRESSURE GAUGE

One (1) master discharge pressure gauge shall be provided on the operator's panel. The gauge shall be a Span

brand, or equivalent, 0-600 PSI graduated, with a minimum diameter of 4-112", backlit for nighttime operations

and silicone liquid filled to prevent condensation inside the gauge and to dampen the movement.

The gauge housing shall be constructed of Zytel nylon with all4" NPT brass male fitting centrally located on

the rear of the housing. The gauge shall be filled with low-temperature liquid with an operating range of -40 to
+150 degrees Fahrenheit, which prevents bouncing of the readout needle and provides for an accuracy rating of
5o/o or l5 PSI on the pressure side of the gauge.

The gauges shall be wired so when the pump is engaged the gauge light turns on

Gauge(s) shall include internal, back-lit 12 volt lighting. Replaceable, Red, LED bulb in a water-resistant

holder.

1 0030-0002
Page 39 of 72

10t10122

Page 116

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

Gauge(s) shall be supplied with a white dial face with black lettering and black gauge marks

Gauge bezel shall be Chrome in color'
TEST TAPS

Test taps for pump intake and pump pressure with name plate labels shall be provided on the pump instrument

panel.

PITESSURE GOVERNOR ANd ENGINE MONITORING DISPLAY

Fire Research pumpBoss series pBA40l-D00 pressure governor and monitoring display kit shall be installed'

The kit shall include a control module, intake pressure sensor, discharge pressure sensor, and cables. The

control module case shall be waterproof and have dimensions not to exceed 6 314" high by 4 5/8"' The control

knob shall be 2,, in diameter with no mechanical stops, have a serrated grip, and a red idle push button in the

center. It shall not extend more than I 314" from the front of the control module. Inputs for monitored engine

information and outputs for engine control shall be on the Jlg3g databus. Inputs from the pump discharge and

intake pressure sensors shall be electrical.

The following continuous displays shall be provided:

Engine npru; shown with four daylight bright LED digits more than ll2" high

Check engine and stop engine warning LEDs

Engine oii pressure; shown on a dual color (green/red) LED bar graph display

Engine coolant temperature; shown on a dual color (green/red) LED bar graph display

Transmission Temperature: shown on a dual color (green/red) LED bar graph display

Battery voltage; shown on a dual color (green/red) LED bar graph display

Pressure and RPM operating mode LEDs

Pressure / RPM setting; shown on a dot matrix message display

Throttle ready LED.

The dot-matrix message display shall show diagnostic and warning messages as they occur. It shall show

monitored apparatus information, stored data, and program options when selected by the operator' All LED

intensity shall be automatically adjusted for day and night time operation'

The program shall store the accumulated operating hours for the pump and engine to be displayed with the push

of a button. It shall monitor inputs and support audible and visual waming alarms for the following conditions:

High Battery Voltage
Low Battery Voltage (Engine Off)
Low Battery Voltage (Engine Running)
Hi gh Transm ission TemPerature

Low Engine Oil Pressure

High Engine Coolant TemPerature

Out of Water (visual alarm only'
No Engine Response (visual alarm only).

1 0030-0002
Page 40 of 72

10t10122

Page 117

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The program features shall be accessed via push buttons located on the front of the control module. There shall

be a USB port located at the rear of the control module to upload future firmware enhancements.

The governor shall operate in two control modes, pressure and RPM. No discharge pressure or engine RPM
variation shall occur when switching between modes. A throttle ready LED shall light when the interlock signal
is recognized. The govemor shall start in pressure mode and set the engine RPM to idle. In pressure mode the
govemor shall automatically regulate the discharge pressure at the level set by the operator. In RPM mode the
govemor shall maintain the engine RPM at the level set by the operator except in the event of a discharge

pressure increase. The governor shall limit a discharge pressure increase in RPM mode to a maximum of 30 psi.

Other safety features shall include recognition of no water conditions with an automatic programmed response

and a push button to return the engine to idle.

The pressure governor and display shall be programmed to interface with a Cummins engine

Intake and discharge pressure transducers, water lines, and gauges which control the pump performance will be

protected from freezing to ensure no accidental pump shut down will occur.
An aluminum fold down door and cover made from 1/8 aluminum will be added to the pressure governor that

would fold up and lock in place while pumping and will be painted to match the paint on the pump panel. This
will protect the governor from the sun and radiant heat on fires.

WATER TANK GAUGE

One (1) Fire Research TankVision model WLA300-4'00-520 tank gauge shall be installed on the pump panel.

The water tank indicator kit shall include an electronic indicator module, a pressure sensor, and a l0' sensor

cable. The indicator shall show the volume of water in the tank on nine (9) easy to see super bright LEDs. The

gauge shall be interlocked to turn offwhen the parking brake is released and the pump is engaged.

The specified level gauge shall only activate while the park brake is set and the pump is engaged.

WATER TANK GAUGE

One (1) Fire Research TankVision model WLA300-400-520 tank gauge shall be installed on the cab console.

The water tank indicator kit shall include an electronic indicator module, a pressure sensor, and a 10' sensor

cable. The indicator shall show the volume of water in the tank on nine (9) easy to see super bright LEDs. The

gauge shall be powered when the parking brake is released and the aux pump is engaged.

The specified level gauge shall only activate while the park brake is released and the auxiliary pump is engaged.

WATER TANK VOLUME RT,MOTE INDICATOR

Three (3) Fire Research TankVision model WLA280-A00 tank remote indicator shall be installed. The indicator
shall show the volume of water in the tank on Ninety six (96) easy to see super bright Tri-color LEDs. The

indicator case shall be waterproof, manufactured of Polycarbonate material with an integrated lens. The package

includes a rubber gasket.

1 0030-0002
Page 41 ol 72

10t10122

Page 118

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

The remote indicator shall receive input information over a datalink from a Fire Research TankVision primary

indicator model WLA200-A00, wLA300-400 or WLA400-A00. The remote indicator shall indicate the level as

a single color in Red for 25%o or less, Amber color for up to 50% volume, Blue color for up to 75%o volume and

Green color for up to 100% volume. When the level reaches 25o/o, the red LEDs will begin flashing. When the

level is empty, the red LEDs will scroll in a down-chasing motion and then flash three times. It shall have the

program 
"upuUitity 

to adjust the brightness level for day time and nighttime viewing'

One (l) mounted on each side of the cab, on the "C" Pillars'

one (l) mounted atthe rear of the apparatus on the drivers side between the handrail and thel-zone bracket,

above the BME placard.

The specified level gauge shall only activate while the park brake is set and the pump is engaged.

CLASS A FOAM TANK GAUGE

one (1) Fire Research brand, Model WLA360-A00 tank level gauge shall be provided on the pump operator's

panel'to monitor the foam concentrate storage tank level. The gauge shall indicate the foam concentrate storage

tank liquid level on an LED bar graph display.

The specified level gauge shall only activate while the park brake is set and the pump is engaged.

NOMENCLATURE PLATES

The apparatus shall be equipped with color coded labels. 5i8-inch X 3-inch metal, Vision Mark individual

no-"n.lutureplates shall readily identiff all switches, valves, and controls. The letteringshall be deeply etched;

enamel paint filled or anodized aluminum-etchedcolor-coded tags and shall describe the function of all the

pump panel controls, switches, discharge and suction valves. The plates shall be attached with stainless steel

nytotr nuts and machine screws. The plates shall be attached with stainless steel nylock nuts and machine

,"r"*, (plastic I.D. plates, rivets, adhesive backed plates, andlor self-tapping screws are Unacceptable)'

MID PIIMP NE,I,I,I .. DR SIDE,

There shall be three Tecniq brand LED lights installed under a stainless steel light shield mounted above the

pump panel. The two outeilights shall be operated by a panel mounted switch, while the middle light will only

be activated upon pump engagement.

One (1) of the pump panel lights shall illuminate at the time the fire pump is engaged.

MIDSHIP PUMP PANEL LIGHTS .. PASSENGER SIDE

There shall be one Tecniq brand LED light installed under a stainless steel light shield mounted above the pump

panel. The light shall activate upon pump engagement'

PUMP ENCLOSURE WORK LIGHTS

Two (2) LED work lights shall be installed in the pump enclosure. The work lights shall have clear lenses and

shall have a control switch.

DESIGN AND SCOPE OF WILDLAND BODY

1 0030-0002
Page 42 o'f 72

10t10122

Page 119

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The body shall be designed and constructed of commonly available structural components for ease of repair and

maintenance. The body shall be of a modular design with the body structure independent of the chassis frame

rails. The body module shall be mounted to the chassis frame rails utilizing a unique double spring mounting
system for flexibility and durability over the lifetime of the apparatus. The fabrication of the body shall be of
welded construction to withstand the rigors of fire service use.

The body shall be designed to incolporate and support the tank, hose bed, compartments, and all other

equipment intended to be stored in or mounted to the body module. The body skeleton and compartment

framework shall be designed of tubular members for increased strength and stress resistance. There shall be no

sheet metal or extrusions utilized in the foundation or structural components of the body module due to their
critical role in assuring lifetime durability, functionality and usability.
BODY FRAMEWORK

The entire body framework shall be fabricated from steel tubing. The body framework shall be a completely

welded unit, forming a connected, stable frame for strength, longevity and providing the skeleton of the body
module. The internal upright members of the framework shall act as support for the top layer of the body
module. The external upright members shall act as an exoskeleton providing form and support for compartments

while acting as the external surfaces of the module. The framework shall define the compartment openings and

provide a rigid mounting location for all compartments and doors.

The foundation cross-members shall be placed perpendicular to the chassis frame rails in the wheel well area

extending the full width of the body.

All tank support cross members shall be placed to support the water tank as per the tank manufacture's

recommendation.

The internal upright supports for top layer components shall be placed to provide support for all components

located on the top layer of the body module and shall be constructed of steel tubing.
BODY MOUNTING SYSTEM

The mounting assembly shall be designed to isolate and protect the body module from vibration and twisting
stresses imparted by the flexing of the chassis frame rails. The body module shall employ spring loaded body
mounting assemblies. Each two piece mounting assembly shall be designed to positively position the body on

the frame rails while allowing lateral and forward or aft movement. Mounting assemblies shall be placed

forward and rearward of the rear axle as necessary to provide a strong and stable mounting of the body module

Each mounting assembly shall consist of a "male" upper mounting bracket and a "female" lower mounting

bracket. The upper mounting brackets shall be fabricated from .375 inch thickness steel plate, with .375 inch

painted steel lower mounting brackets. There shall be no vertical bends or offsets for strength.

The mounting brackets shall be aligned and connected by two (2) 518 inch diameter grade 8 bolts equipped with

1 0030-0002
Page 43 of 72

10t10122

Page 120

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire ApParatus

compression springs. The Springs that are used to allow the body to travel up and down shall have a minimum

travel of 718 inches on each mount after the spring is compressed with the mounting nuts.

COMPARTMENT FLOOR. SWEEP OUT STYLE

Each compartment shall feature a raised floor sufficient enough so the lip of the compartment shall clear the

frame rail of the body module to allow debris to be removed easily from the compartment.

COMPARTMENTATION

All compartments shall be constructed of 14 gauge E.G. steel welded for strength and shall be sealed from the

elementi. The compaftments shall be attached to the steel superstructure only, in order to maintain a truly

modular design. Each compartment shall feature a smooth edges and surfaces from the walls to each weld

without burs or sharp edges in the material.

DRIVER'S SIDE BODY COMPARTMENTS
COMPARTMENT Dl

One compartment shall be provided on the driver's side of the apparatus body above the rear wheels. This

compartment shall span from just behind the pump panel to the back of the rear wheel well quarter panel- The

compartments approximate "clear door opening" is 51" wide by 39" high with a variable depth of 13'5123".

Compartment shall have two hat sections that are 4.25 inchwide and will be spaced two inches apart that run

from either side of the compattment.

COMPARTMENT VENTILATION

A minimum Z-inch single "'Weber" style polished stainless steel swivel vent with four (4) %-inch vent holes

shall be provided. These vents shall have a stainless steel center bolt to lock the vent in either the open or closed

position and be located in the compartment walls. All vents will contain fire resistant filters to minimize dust

entering the compartment.
COMPARTMENT F'LOOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body'

COMPARTMENT SILL PLATE

The compartment shall feature a polished stainless steel sill plate protecting the painted surface of the

compartment when items are accessed'

AJUSTABLE UNISTRUT

Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

channels on the left wall and two (2) channels on the right wall. The tracks shall be positioned to provide

support for equipment mounting. The length of the tracks shall be sized to allow for optimum use of the

compartment interior.
Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

horizontal channels on the back wall of the compartment.

1 0030-0002
Page 44 of72

10110122

Page 121

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES

Two (2) adjustable shelve(s) shall be constructed of .188" thick smooth aluminum plate and be mounted in

specified compartments with double bolt cast aluminum shelf brackets. Each shelf shall have a broken front

edge, and a broken rear edge for added strength and reinforcement. All shelves shall be orbital DA finish.
COMPARTMENT SHELF GRATING

The specified compartment shelf shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

comosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.
The compartment shelf and or shelves shall have reflective striping added to the outside lip. The stripe shall be a

l-112" minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.
COMPARTMENT DIVIDER

There shall be one (l) vertical compartment divider(s) installed in the specified compartment. The divider(s)
shall be bolted in place for ease of removal. The aft side of the vertical divider shall have two (2) vertical
unistruts installed.
AJUSTABLE UNISTRUT

Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

channels on the left wall and two (2) channels on the right wall. The tracks shall be positioned to provide

support for equipment mounting. The length of the tracks shall be sized to allow for optimum use of the

compartment interior.
GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This material shall be

resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.
COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compaftment shall have two (2) vertical and one (1) horizontal Code 3 800 series lights installed

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar.

COMPARTMENT D2

One full height compartment shall be provided on the driver's side of the apparatus body aft of the rear wheels.

This compartment shall span from behind the rear wheel well quarter panel to the rear of the body in width and

from the top of the bodyto the rub rail in height. The compartments approximate "clear door opening" is 34"

1 0030-0002
Page 45 of 72

10t10122

Page 122

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

wide by 58" high with a variable depth of 13.5"122.5". Compartment shall have two hat sections that ate 4.25

inch wide and will be spaced two inches apartthat run from either side of the compartment.

COMPARTMENT VENTILATION

A minimum 2-inch single ".Weber" style polished stainless steel swivel vent with four (4) %-inch vent holes

shall be provided. These vents shall have a stainless steel center bolt to lock the vent in either the open or closed

position and be located in the compartment walls. All vents will contain fire resistant filters to minimize dust

entering the compartment.
COMPARTMENT FLOOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body

COMPAR SII,I, PI,ATF],

The compartment shall feature a polished stainless steel sill plate protecting the painted surface of the

compartment when items are accessed.

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES

Two (2) adjustable shelve(s) shall be constructed of .188" thick smooth aluminum plate and be mounted in

specified compartments with double bolt cast aluminum shelf brackets. Each shelf shall have a broken front

edge, and a broken rear edge for added strength and reinforcement. All shelves shall be orbital DA finish.

COMPARTMENT SHELF GRATING

The specified compartment shelf shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.
The compartment shelf and or shelves shall have reflective striping added to the outside lip. The stripe shall be a

1-112" minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.
TOOL ON SIDE WALL OF'CO ARTMENT

Two (2) PAC TRAC tool board panel shall be provided and mounted vertically on the side wall of the specified

compartment. The tool board shall be mounted directly to the wall and not to unistrut.

TOOL BOARD REAR WALL OF COMPARTMENT

A PAC TRAC tool board panel shall be provided and mounted vertically on the back wall of the specified

compartment. The tool board shall be mounted directly to the wall and not to unistrut.

COMP NT GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This material shall be

resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

1 0030-0002
Page 46 of 72

10t10t22

Page 123

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have two (2) veftical and one (l) horizontal Code 3 800 series lights installed.

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compaftment door is ajar.

PASSENGER SIDE BODY COMPARTMENTS
COMPAR NT PI

One compartment shall be provided on the passenger's side of the apparatus body above the rear wheels. This

compartment shall span from just behind the pump panel to the back of the rear wheel well quarter panel in

width and from the top of the body side to the wheel well in height. The compaftments approximate "clear door

opening" is 51" wide by 39" high with a depth of 12". Compartment shall have two hat sections that ate 4.25

inch wide and will be spaced two inches apartthat run from either side of the compartment'

COMPARTMENT VENTILATION

A minimum 2-inch single "'Weber" style polished stainless steel swivel vent with four (4) Yt-inch vent holes

shall be provided. These vents shall have a stainless steel center bolt to lock the vent in either the open or closed

position and be located in the compartment walls. All vents will contain fire resistant filters to minimize dust

entering the compartment.
COMPARTMENT FLOOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body.

COMPARTMENT SILL PLATE

The compartment shall feature a polished stainless steel sill plate protecting the painted surface of the

compartment when items are accessed.

AJUSTABLE UNISTRUT

Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with fwo (2)

channels on the left wall and two (2) channels on the right wall. The tracks shall be positioned to provide

support for equipment mounting. The length of the tracks shall be sized to allow for optimum use of the

compartment interior.
Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

horizontal channels on the back wall of the compartment.

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES

One (l) adjustable shelve(s) shall be constructed of .188" thick smooth aluminum plate and be mounted in

specified compaftments with double bolt cast aluminum shelf brackets. Each shelf shall have a broken front

edge, and a broken rear edge for added strength and reinforcement. All shelves shall be orbital DA finish.

COMPARTMENT SHELF GRATING

1 0030-0002
Page 47 ol 72

10t10t22

Page 124

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The specified compartment shelf shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.
The compartment shelf and or shelves shall have reflective striping added to the outside lip. The stripe shall be a

l-112" minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.

COMPARTMENT GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This material shall be

resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color'
COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have two (2) vertical and one (l) horizontal Code 3 800 series lights installed.

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar.

COMP NT P2

One compartment shall be provided on the passenger's side of the apparatus body aft of the rear wheels. This

compartment shall span from behind the rear wheel well quarter panel to the rear of the body in width and from

below the walkway to the rub rail in height. The compartments approximate "clear door opening" is 34" wide by

58" high with a variable depth of 12"122". Compartment shall have two hat sections that are 4.25 inch wide and

will be spaced two inches apartthatrun from either side of the compartment.

COMPAR VE,NTILATION

A minimum 2-inch single "Weber" style polished stainless steel swivel vent with four (4) %-inch vent holes

shall be provided. These vents shall have a stainless steel center bolt to lock the vent in either the open or closed

position and be located in the compartment walls. All vents will contain fire resistant filters to minimize dust

entering the compartment.
COMP F'I,OOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body.

COMPARTMENT SILL PLATE

The compartment shall feature a polished stainless steel sill plate protecting the painted surface of the

compartment when items are accessed.

AJUSTABLE UNISTRUT

Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

channels on the left wall and two (2) channels on the right wall. The tracks shall be positioned to provide

1 0030-0002
Page 48 ol 72

10t10122

Page 125

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

support for equipment mounting. The length of the tracks shall be sized to allow for optimum use of the

compartment interior.
Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

horizontal channels on the back wall of the compartment.

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES

Two (2) adjustable shelve(s) shall be constructed of .188" thick smooth aluminum plate and be mounted in

specified compartments with double bolt cast aluminum shelf brackets. Each shelf shall have a broken front

edge, and a broken rear edge for added strength and reinforcement. All shelves shall be orbital DA finish'

COMPARTMENT SHELF GRATING

The specified compartment shelf shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating' This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck gratingshall be black in color.

The compartment shelf and or shelves shall have reflective striping added to the outside lip. The stripe shall be a

l-112" minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.

COMPARTMENT GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This material shall be

resistant io heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have two (2) vertical and one (1) horizontal Code 3 800 series lights installed.

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar'

BACK BODY COMPARTMENTS
COMPARTMENT B1

one compartment shall be provided at the back of the apparatus body, below the hose bed and above the

tailboard. This compartmeni shall span just center of the tank. The compaftments approximate "clear door

opening" is 27^wide by 34" high with a depth of 25". Compartment shall have two hat sections that are 4.25

inch wide and will be spaced two inches apartthat run from either side of the compartment.

COMPARTMENT VENTILATION

A minimum 2-inch single "'Weber" style polished stainless steel swivel vent with four (4) %-inch vent holes

shall be provided. These vents shall have a stainless steel center bolt to lock the vent in either the open or closed

position and be located in the compartment walls. All vents will contain fire resistant filters to minimize dust

entering the compartment.

1 0030-0002
Page 49 of 72

10110122

Page 126

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

COMPARTMENT FLOOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body.

COMPARTMENT SILL PLATE

The compartment shall feature a polished stainless steel sill plate protecting the painted surface of the

compartment when items are accessed.

AJUSTABLE UNISTRUT

Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

channels on the left wall and two (2) channels on the right wall. The tracks shall be positioned to provide

support for equipment mounting. The length of the tracks shall be sized to allow for optimum use of the

compartment interior.
Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

horizontal channels on the back wall of the compaftment.

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES

One (1) adjustable shelve(s) shall be constructed of .188" thick smooth aluminum plate and be mounted in

specified compartments with double bolt cast aluminum shelf brackets. Each shelf shall have a broken front

edge, and a broken rear edge for added strength and reinforcement. All shelves shall be orbital DA finish.

COMPARTMENT SHELF' GRATING

The specified compartment shelf shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This

material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

The compartment shelf and or shelves shall have reflective striping added to the outside lip. The stripe shall be a

l-112" minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.

COMPARTMENT GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This material shall be

resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color'
COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have two (2) vertical Code 3 800 series lights installed.

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar'

PUMP HOUSE COMPARTMENT (PHl)

1 0030-0002
Page 50 of 72

10110122

Page 127

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

There shall be a compartment located on the upper passenger side of the pump house. The compartment
dimensions shall be approximately 21" wide x 23" high x 12" deep.

COMPARTMENT VENTILATION

A minimum 2-inch single "Weber" style polished stainless steel swivel vent with four (4) %-inch vent holes

shall be provided. These vents shall have a stainless steel center bolt to lock the vent in either the open or closed

position and be located in the compartment walls. All vents will contain fire resistant filters to minimize dust

entering the compartment.
COMPARTMENT FLOOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body

AJUSTABLE UNISTRUT

Adjustable Uni-Strut equipment mounting tracks shall be installed inside the compartment with two (2)

channels on the left wall and two (2) channels on the right wall. The tracks shall be positioned to provide

support for equipment mounting. The length of the tracks shall be sized to allow for optimum use of the
compartment interior.
ADJUSTABLE SHELVES

One (1) adjustable shelve(s) shall be constructed of .188" thick smooth aluminum plate and be mounted in
specified compartments with double bolt cast aluminum shelf brackets. Each shelf shall have a broken front
edge, and a broken rear edge for added strength and reinforcement. All shelves shall be orbital DA finish.
COMPARTMENT SHELF GRATING

The specified compartment shelf shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This
material shall be resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is

corrosion resistant.
The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.
The compartment shelf and or shelves shall have reflective striping added to the outside lip. The stripe shall be a

l-112" minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.
COMPARTMENT GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek gratigg. This material shall be

resistant to heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.
COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have two (2) vertical Code 3 800 series lights installed

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar

1 0030-0002
Page5l ol72

10t10122

Page 128

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

PUMP HOUSE COMPARTMENT GH2)

There shall be a compartment located on the lower passenger side of the pump house. The compartment

dimensions shall be approximately 11.5" wide x 18" high x 18" deep.

COMPARTMENT VENTILATION LOUVERS

The specified compaltments shall be provided with ventilation louvers. These units shall be approximately 4" to

6" in size to allow exterior air or interior air movement.

COMPARTMENT FLOOR DRAIN

The compartment shall be provided with rear corner floor drains to the underside of the body.

COMPARTMENT GRATING

The compartments shall be fitted with removable interlocking vinyl Dri-Dek grating. This material shall be

resistant io heat, cold, ultra-violet radiation, mechanical impacts, chemical actions and is corrosion resistant.

The specified Dri-Deck grating shall be black in color.

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have two (2) vertical Code 3 800 series lights installed'

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compaftment door is ajar.

SLIDE.IN REAR LADDER COMPARTMENT. PASSENGER SIDE

The rear passenger side of the apparatus body shall have a vertically mounted slide-in ladder storage

compartment. The compartment shall be @!g of storing one (1) *20-foot three-section Duo Safety model

*gt) ladder, one (1) *backboard minimum dimensions 72" L x 16" W x 2" H (Ferno 'Najo Light NB5500" or

similar), one (l) *8-foot long pike pole and one (1) *S-foot digging bar, one (1) *8-foot rubbish hook, *New

York Roof Hook with locking pins to secure each item.

*Items are to be purchased by the end user.

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar,

SLIDE.IN REAR SUCTION HOSE COMPARTMENTS

Two (2) suction hose storage compartments will be located above the side storage compartments on both sides

of the apparatus. The compartments will hold a combined total of three (3) eight (8) foot sections of four (4)

inch hard suction hose and strainer.

1 0030-0002
Page 52 of 72

10t10122

Page 129

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

Both compartments will be capable of holding two (2) eight (8) foot sections of hose if needed. Each

compartment will have a stainless steel painted hinged door on the rear of the compartment. Each compaftment
door will have a locking positive latching door latch.
DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compartment door is ajar
TOP COMPARTMENT TCl

The hose bed shall be provided with a compartment down the center of the hosebed. The top compartment shall
have a one piece aluminum treadplate cover. Approximate "clear door opening" dimensions shall be 13" wide
by 75" deep and 16" high.
ALUMINUM TREADPLATE DOOR

This compartment shall feature an embossed aluminum diamond plate lid. The lid shall be bare embossed

aluminum diamond plate.
DOOR LATCH

The specified hinged door(s) shall be equipped with a sealed, black lever latch(es). Latch(es) shall be

non-locking style.
LIGHTING

The specified compartment shall have no compartment lighting.
DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compaftment door is ajar
PAINTED ALUMINUM PANEL

There shall be a smooth aluminum panel bolted to the rear of the center top storage box
WHEEL WELL LINERS

Wheel well liners designed to protect the body from impact resulting from road debris thrown by the tires shall
be installed. The removable liners shall be constructed from UHMW material to encompass the entire inner
wheel well area. The liners shall be secured with stainless steel threaded fasteners.

REAR WHEEL FENDERT,TTES

Polished stainless steel fenderettes shall be installed at each rear wheel opening. The fenderettes shall be

positioned outside of the wheel well panel to cover the tire area that extends past the body. The fenderettes shall
be secured with stainless steel threaded fasteners.

DRIVERS SIDE BODY -- SCBA INDE,R STORAGR, PROVISIONS

A storage area for an SCBA cylinder shall be provided in the forward area of the driver's side wheel well
Dimensions shall be 8" diameter x 26" deep.

1 0030-0002
Page 53 of 72

10t10t22

Page 130

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

The SCBA door shall be a Cast Products door, the door shall feature a push button on the side to open door.

The SCBA cylinder storage tube shall be made from plastic. There shall be rubber matting to cusion the bottle

glued into the tube.

SCBA CYLINDER STRAPS

There shall be a I " nylon tether installed to secure the bottle in the storage tube.

DRIVERS SIDE BODY -- SCBA CYLINDER STOIL{GE PROVISIONS

A storage area for an SCBA cylinder shall be provided in the rearward area of the driver's side wheel well.

Dimensions shall be 8" diameter x 26" deep.

The SCBA door shall be a Cast Products door, the door shall feature a push button on the side to open door.

The SCBA cylinder storage tube shall be made from plastic. There shall be rubber matting to cusion the bottle

glued into the tube.
SCBA CYLINDER STRAPS

There shall be a 1" nylon tether installed to secure the bottle in the storage tube'

PASSENGER SIDE BODY .. SCBA CYLINDER STOIL{GE PROVISIONS

A storage area for an SCBA cylinder shall be provided in the forward area of the passenger's side wheel well

Dimensions shall be 8" diameter x 26" deep.

The SCBA door shall be a Cast Products door, the door shall feature a push button on the side to open door.

The SCBA cylinder storage tube shall be made from plastic. There shall be rubber matting to cusion the bottle

glued into the tube.
SCBA CYLINDER STRAPS

There shall be a 1" nylon tether installed to secure the bottle in the storage tube.

PASSENGER SIDE BODY.. SCBA CYLINDER STOIL{GE PROVISIONS

A storage areafor an SCBA cylinder shall be provided in the rearwardarea of the passenger's side wheel well

Dimensions shall be 8" diameter x 26" deep.

The SCBA door shall be a Cast Products door, the door shall feature a push button on the side to open door.

The SCBA cylinder storage tube shall be made from plastic. There shall be rubber matting to cusion the boffle

glued into the tube.
SCBA CYLINDER STRAPS

There shall be a 1" nylon tether installed to secure the bottle in the storage tube.

RUB CI,EARANCE LI AND REF'LEC TAPE

The sides of the lower body area fore and aft of the wheel well area shall be provided with 2" x 1.25" x -250"

extruded aluminum rub rails, with end caps or angled corners.

Specified part shall include White reflective striping.

F'RONT OF BODY.- PROTECTIVE SURFACE

1 0030-0002
Page 54 of 72

10t10122

Page 131

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The entire front of the apparatus body shall include a protective surface, constructed of aluminum tread plate

material.
FRONT RS OF'BODY -- SURF'ACES

The front corners of the apparatus body shall include a protective surface installed. The surface shall be

constructed of polished stainless steel material.
REAR BODY PANELS

The entire rear ofthe apparatus body shall be painted apparatus color.

OUTER REAR BODY PANELS -- PROTECTIVE COVERING

The rear outer panels of the body shall have protective surfaces installed on the corners. The protective covering

shall be constructed of polished stainless steel material.

TOP OF BODY COMPARTMENTS .- PROTECTIVE SURTA

The top of the side compaftments shall have a protective surfaces installed. The surface shall be constructed of
aluminum tread plate material.
ANODIZED AL DRIP RAIL

All enclosed compartment doors shall be provided with an aluminum drip rail above the doors.

ALUMININUM _ COMPARTMENT DOOR. HINGED OVERLAP

One (1) single, vertically hinged door shall be provide and fabricated from aluminum. The frame of the door

shall be constructed of 1.75" x 1.75" x.125" aluminum tubing to prevent corrosion and provide structural

support. The spacing created by the frame tubing shall filled with Styrofoam for added support, dent resistance,

insulation and noise reduction. The exterior surface shall be .125" aluminum for durability. The interior surface

shall be .080" aluminum. There shall be no mechanical fasteners, such as bolt heads or rivets on the inside or

outside of the doors.

The exterior of the door shall overlap the opening of the compartment. A .75" lip shall be constructed around

the opening of the compartment and the exterior of the door. A rubber seal shall be installed on the .75" lip on

both the compartment and the door to provide for a double seal against water and dust. A rain gutter shall be

mounted above the door creating a third layer of water protection.

The door shall be designed utilizing a D-ring style latch system. A 6" stainless steel D-ring latch, large enough

to accommodate a gloved hand, shall be mounted on the exterior of the door. A stainless steel bezel shall be

installed to house and protect the D-ring locking mechanism. The easily serviced bezel shall be mounted

utilizing stainless steel screws. The D-ring locking mechanism shall be a double catch design. The first catch

shall engage to secure the door in the event of improper closure. The second catch shall seal the door from water

and other elements once the door has been properly closed.

1 0030-0002
Page 55 of 72

10t10t22

Page 132

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire APParatus

The door shall be mounted using a stainless steel piano style hinge and a .25" diameter hinge pin for stability.

The vertical hinge shall be mounted to the body frame with threaded inserts and stainless steel screws to

preserve functionalify and ease of maintenance in the event of damage.

Gas struts shall be utilized to hold the door in the open position and to prevent the door from slamming during

closing. The gas struts shall be mounted directly to the door with a stainless steel bracket assembly for stability

and ease of maintenance. The gas struts shall be mounted to the interior of the compartment with a fully

adjustable assembly.

The exterior of the compartment doors and the door frames shall be painted to match the body in quality and

tone. The interior surface shall not be painted, it shall be sanded utilizing a dual orbital technique'

The specified door(s) shall have a Polished stainless-steel D-ring door handle.

The specified door(s) D-ring handles shall be equipped with manual key door locks keyed to use the 1250 key.

COMPARTMENT DOOR EDGE STRIPING

The hinged compartment doors shall have reflective striping applied on the edges. The stripe shall be a l-112"

minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.

ALUMININUM _ COMPARTMENT DOOR. HINGED OVERLAP

There shall be five (5) double, vertically hinged sets of doors fabricated from aluminum and installed on the

apparatus body. Each door shall feature exterior surfaces which overlaps the opening of the compaftment. The

exterior surface shall be .125" aluminum for durability and damage resistance. The interior surface shall be

.080', aluminum for structural suppoft and overall appealing appearance of the compartment. The frame of the

doors shall be constructed of 1.75" x 1.75" x .125" altminum tubing to prevent corrosion and provide structural

support. The spacing created by the frame tubing shall be filled with Styrofoam for added support and dent

resistance, temperature insulation, and noise reduction'

A .75.lip shall be constructed around the opening of the compartment and the exterior of the door. A rubber

seal shall be installed on the .7 5" lip of both the compartment and the door to provide for a double seal against

water and dust. A rain gutter shall be mounted above the latch type door for an added third layer of water

protection.

The doors shall be designed utilizing a D-ring latch system. A 6 inch stainless steel D-ring latch, large enough to

accommodate a gloved hand, shall be mounted on the exterior of the door to allow the door to seal and fasten in

the closed position. A stainless steel bezel shall be installed to house and protect the D-ring locking mechanism.

The easily serviced bezel shall be mounted utilizing stainless steel screws for added stability of the mechanism

and ease of maintenance in the event of damage. The D-ring locking mechanism shall be of a double catch

design. The first catch shall engage to secure the door in the event of improper closure. The second catch will
seal the door to water and other elements once the doors has been properly closed.

1 0030-0002
Page 56 of 72

10t10122

Page 133

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The doors shall be mounted with a stainless steel hinges with .25" diameter hinge pin for stability. The vertical

hinges shall be mounted to the body frame with threaded inserts and stainless steel screws to preserve

functionality with use or age and ease of maintenance in the event of damage.

Gas struts shall be utilized to hold the door in the open position and to prevent the door from slamming during
closing. The gas struts are mounted directly to the door with a stainless steel bracket assembly for stability and

ease of maintenance. The gas struts shall be mounted to the interior of the compaftment with fully adjustable

assembly for ease of adjustment and maintenance while increasing stability.

A polished stainless steel scuff guard shall be installed on the bottom of the compaftment opening to prevent

damage and wear to the paint and finish of the body module due to the removal and storage to equipment in the

compartment.

The exterior of the compaftment doors and the door jambs shall be painted to match the body in quality and

tone. The interior of the door shall not be painted due to lack of exposure and inherent resistance to corrosion.

The interior of the door shall be sanded utilizing a dual orbital technique. The sanding shall provide for a

smooth, regular, scratch free surface on the interior of the door. The exterior skin to door frame joining seam

shall be caulked and painted to provide a moisture proof seal.

Each compartment shall be provided with two vertically hinged doors with one (1) D-ring latch on each door in

the set ofdoors.
The specified door(s) shall have a Polished stainless-steel D-ring door handle.

The specified door(s) D-ring handles shall be equipped with manual key door locks keyed to use the 1250 key.

COMPARTMENT DOOR EDGE STRIPING

The hinged compartment doors shall have reflective striping applied on the edges. The stripe shall be a l-112"

minimum in width.
Specified part shall include Red and White DOT approved reflective striping.
REAR STEP

The rear bumper shalll be made from aluminum diamondback grip strut. The design of the grip strut shall allow
for no debris or dust buildup and will allow for easy clean out with just water.

The step shall be of a three piece design each section to operate independently during body and chassis flexing.

The step will be full body width by a minimum 8-inch deep stand off type. When mounted, the loaded rear

departure angle will be no less then22 degrees.

The drop step will have locking positions to allow for up position storage and rear compartment door opening

access. The drop step will incorporate a stop in the down position to prevent movement when in use.

AUXILIARY FIXED STEP .. DRIVERS SIDE REAR

1 0030-0002
Page57 of72

10t10t22

Page 134

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

Three (3) Cast Products 8" square cast aluminum auxiliary step(s) shall be provided. The step shall be installed

on the rear drivers side of the body.
AUXILIARY D STEP -. PASSENG SIDE, REAR

Three (3) Cast Products 8" square cast aluminum auxiliary step shall be provided. The step shall be installed on

the rear passenger side ofthe body.
HANDRAILS

Three (3) knurled type non-slip handrail, approximately 18" in length, shall be vertically installed.

HANDRAILS

Two (2) knurled type non-slip handrail, approximately 42" in length, shall be vertically installed.

HANDRAILS

Two (2) knurled type non-slip handrail, approximately 12" in length, shall be horizontally installed.

HANDRAILS

One (l) knurled type non-slip handrail, approximately 60" in length, shall be horizontally installed.

HOSE BODY CONSTRUCTION SPNCIFICATIONS

The hose bed side sheets and floor shall be constructed from aluminum material. The hosebed shall provide two

separate hose beds one on the left and one on the right side ofthe top loaded center dunnage. The hose body

shall be free of sharp corners, bolts, or other obstructions that may catch hose and other equipment.

HOSE BED DIVIDER

Two (2) adjustable width hose bed divider constructed from no less than .250 (ll4) aluminum material shall be

installed. The divider shall be secured to the hose bed by utilizing adjustable track type channels and fasteners.

The divider shall be full length and depth of the hose bed.

HOSE STORAGE BRACKETS

Two (2) I-Zone hose brackets shall be provided on the rear of the apparatus body, rear-facing, one (1) on each

side of the body. Approx length of the I-zone pole shall be24".
ALUMINUM IIOSEBED GRATING

The hose bed compartment deck shall be constructed entirely from maintenance-free, extruded aluminum slats.

The slats shall feature an anodized, contoured, ribbed top surface. The slats shall be of widths approximately

314" highx 4.5" wide and shall be welded into a one-piece grid system to prevent the accumulation of water and

allow ventilation to assist in drying hose.

ALUMINUM HOSEBED COVER

Two (2) separate aluminum tread'plate hose bed covers shall be installed, %-inch aluminum alloy diamond plate

reinforced with a %-inchaluminum alloy hat section as needed to support walking on the hose bed covers. The

1 0030-0002
Page 58 of 72

10t10122

Page 135

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

covers shall be hinged on the outboard side using full length polished stainless steel hinges with a minimum
,A-inch pin and 1-inch joint length and installed to avoid any hindrance in walking on hose bed covers'

The hose bed covers shall have full length handrails installed along the rear lip and one (1) additional grab

handle mounted on the top side of the covers and two (2) mechanisms on each cover to assist with opening and

closing of the hose bed covers. Each hose bed cover shall have a mechanism to hold the hose bed cover in the

open position and will be substantial enough to prevent accidental closing in extreme wind conditions.

The covers shall be reinforced so that they will support the weight of a person walking on the cover and shall be

sloped to the outboard side of the apparatus to aid in water run-off.

HOSEBED REAR ENCLOSURE

A vinyl end skirt with two (2) straps per cover, and large quick release buckles (minimum 2-inch) shall be

installed on each hose bed cover. Quick release buckles and nylon tie down straps shall be attached to the end

skirts. The end skirts will be weighted at the bottom end with a full width flat strip of metal sewn into the hem

of the skirt. The end skirts, straps, buckles, etc. will be exposed to direct sun light and shall be protected against

IJV rays.
The flaps shall be black in color.
HOSEBED .. AREA LIGHTS

(4) Tecniq El0lights shall be provided and installed on hosebed door(s)

DOOR AJAR SENSOR

The Specified door(s) shall feature a magnetic proximity switch to indicate when the compafiment door is ajar'

WATER TANK CIF'ICATIONS

A United Plastics Fabricating (UPF), 500 gallon booster tank (Poly Tank) shall be fabricated from a minimum

of .500" polypropylene complete with a minimum of .3T5" polypropylene internal full height baffles that are

raised 4" off the tank floor for maximum water flow between baffles. In addition, provisions for the main pump

outlet, direct tank filler inlet, a pump to tank filler/churn valve inlet, aback pump filler outlet, afftting for an

electronic water level gauge sensor and clean outs for manual tank flushing shall be provided. The tank shall be

structurally reinforced and restrained to prevent deformities or damage to the tank or apparatus body during

stressed off road operations. The booster tank shall be a rectangular design, and shall be capable of being

completely removable from the body without cutting or bending of any components. The tank and cradle

assembly shall be mounted to the chassis frame in strict accordance to the tank manufacturer's installation

guidelines.
The water tank shall be constructed of polypropylene, nitrogen-welded and tested inside and out. The tank

manufacturer shall define the floor, top, sides, ends, and baffles material thicknesses. The tank shall carry a

lifetime warranty. The water tank shall be manufactured by United Plastic Fabrication.

The transverse and longitudinal swash partitions shall be interlocked and welded to each other as well as to the

walls of the tank. The partitions shall be designed and equipped with vent holes to permit air and liquid

1 0030-0002
Page 59 of 72

10t10122

Page 136

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

movement befween compartments. The .cover shall be recessed .375" from the top of the side walls. Hold down

dowels shall extend through and be welded to both the covers and the transverse partitions, providing rigidify
during fast fill operations. Drilled and tapped holes for lifting eyes shall be provided in the top area of the water

tank.

The water tank manufacturer shall certiff the capacity of the water tank prior to delivery of the apparatus. This

capacity shall be recorded on the manufacturer's record of construction and the certification shall be provided to

the purchaser when the apparatus is delivered. Tank construction shall conform to applicable NFPA standards.

The water tank shall be configured in a rectangular style with consistent widths on the sides from top to bottom.

TANK FILL AND OVERFLOW PROVISIONS

The water tank shall have a combination vent and manual fill tower. The fill tower shall be fabricated from ll2"
polypropylene and shall have a minimum outer perimeter dimension of 8" x 8". The tower shall have a 714"

thick polypropylene screen and a polypropylene hinged cover. Inside the fill tower, halfway down from the top,

shall be fastened a vent overflow pipe. The vent overflow shall be fabricated from Schedule 40 polypropylene

pipe, with a minimum I.D. of 4". The vent overflow shall be designed to run through the tank interior and shall

be designed to exit the water tank interior behind the rear wheels.

The tank cover shall be fabricated from ll2" thick pollpropylene and shall incorporate a three-piece design

which allows for the removal of each individual cover section for inspection or repair of the tank interior, if
necessary. The tank cover shall be recessed 3/8" from the top of the tank sides and shall be welded to both the

sides and the longitudinal baffles. Each of the three cover sections shall have hold downs to assist in keeping the

cover rigid under fast filling conditions. These hold downs shall consist of 2" polypropylene dowels, spaced a

maximum of 30" apart, fitted and then welded to the transverse partitions. The dowels shall extend through the

cover sections and be welded to them. Two of the dowels shall be drilled and tapped to accommodate the tank

lifting eyes.

The sump shall have a minimum dimension of 8" x 6" with a 3l4" thick bottom. On all tanks with a bulkhead

suction inlet, a 3" Schedule 40 polypropylene pipe sweep shall be provided from the front of the tank to the

sump location. The sump shall have a threaded plug located at the bottom of it for a tank drain and clean out.

There shall be two standard tank outlets: one for the tank to pump suction line, which shall be a minimum of a

3" NPTF coupling, and one for a tank fill line, which shall be a minimum of a l-712" NPTF coupling. All tank

fill couplings shall be backed with flow deflectors to break up the stream of water entering the tank.

The water tank shall rest on the body subframe cross members, which shall be spaced a maximum of 22" apart.

The tank shall be insulated from those cross members by hard rubber insulators, with a minimum thickness of
1/4", glued and mechanically fastened to the cross members to protect the tank from direct contact with the steel

body subframe. The tank shall be designed on a free-floating suspension principle and shall not require the use

of additional hold downs. The tank shall be completely removable without disturbing or dismantling the

apparatus body strucfure.
VENT AND OVERFLOW

1 0030-0002
Page 60 of 72

10t10t22

Page 137

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The fill tower shall incorporate avent and overflow system shall be designed into the watertank' The system

shall include a 3" diameter PVC pipe that functions both as an air vent while emptying the tank and as an

overflow when filling the tank. The overflow shall discharge excess water below the frame rails of the vehicle.

TANK SUMP AND DRAIN PROVISIONS

A one (l) cubic foot (minimum) polypropylene sump, with anti-swirl baffles shall be provided. The sump shall

be located as close to the center of the tank floor as the chassis cross members, and differential driveline will
allow.

One (l) 3-inch or 4-inch National Pipe Thread (NPT) outlet and plug shall be provided in the sump floor for

flushing of the tank. A lVz-inch drain valve shall be provided in the tank sump for flushing of the booster tank.

The valve will be located as to provide for adequate clearance from cross members and differential during

extreme twisting motions of the chassis and buildup

The sump shall also be provided with a 1-inch NPT outlet for the back pump filler hose.

Due to space constraints, it may be necessary to locate the main pump suction outlet in the tank sump for

maximum water usage. The main pump suction tube will be of an adequate size to supply the main pump with

enough water to meet pump ratings.

A minimum 3-inch direct tank fill NPT inlet and internal manifold shall be provided on the left rear of the tank.

If the direct tank fill inlet is located on the rear tank wall, the inlet manifold shall pass through the first baffle

and feature a tum down to eliminate any possible damage to the tank or baffles while filling the tank.

WATER TANK AIN PROVISIONS

A 3" plugged drain provision shall be installed in the bottom of the water tank, sump, or plumbing for water

tank draining and the flushing-out of debris.

CLASS A FOAM TANK SPECIFICATIONS

The Class A foam tank shall have a capacity of 20 gallons. The foam tank shall be manufactured by UPF and

have a lifetime warranty.

The tank shall be equipped with a positive sealing pressure/vacuum vent type cap, a low foam concentrate

sensor that turns off the foam pump at a pre-set level, a visual sight gauge, an easily accessible brass or stainless

steel drain valve located at the lowest point of the foam tank and an accessible brass or stainless steel cleanable

strainer installed in the supply line from the foam tank to the foam pump.

The foam tank shall be mounted on a removable sub-structure. The tank will have a positive tie down. The tie

down will allow for easy removal of the foam tank'

1 0030-0002
Page 61 of 72

10t10t22

Page 138

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The foam tank will have two (2) quarter turn brass or stainless shut off valves at the pump supply and fill lines

to allow for the removal of the tank without loss of foam. The float switch harness and the foam concentrate

supply and fill lines shall have connections located adjacent to the tank to facilitate foam tank removal.

F'OAM TANK FILL AI\D VENTING PROVISIONS

The foam concentrate tank shall be provided with a fill pipe having a volume of not less than 2petcent of the

total tank volume. The filler opening shall be capped with a sealed air-tight threaded cover. The fill opening

shall be designed to incorporate a removable screen and shall be located so that foam concentrate from a five (5)

gallon container can be dumped into the tank.

The foam tank filler shall be equipped with a pressure/vacuum vent that enables the tank to compensate for

changes in pressure or vacuum when filling or withdrawing foam concentrate from the tank. The

pressure/vacuum vent shall not allow atmospheric air to enter the foam tank except during operation or to
compensate for thermal fluctuations. The vent shall be protected to prevent foam concentrate from escaping or

directly contacting the vent at any time. The vent shall be of sufficient size to prevent tank damage during filling
or foam withdrawal.

A color coded label or visible permanent marking that reads "CLASS A -- FOAM TANK FILL" shall be placed

at or near the foam concentrate tank fill opening. An additional label shall be placed at or near any foam

concentrate tank fill opening stating the type of foam concentrate the system is designed to use.

Any restrictions on the types of foam concentrate that can be used with the system shall also be stated, along

with a warning message that states "WARNING: DO NOT MD( BRANDS AND T\?ES OF FOAM."
A 314" diameter connection, piping, and gate type valve shall be installed for the foam tank for draining

purposes.
DIRECT TANK F'ILL . RRAR DRIVE,RS SIDE

A valve for direct filling of the tank shall be supplied.The ll4 turn valve shall be configured with 2-112" NH
female threads, debris screen, threaded plug with retention chain and lever handle. The valve shall be located on

the drivers side rear ofthe apparatus.

One (l) Akron 8825 series swing-out style valve(s) shall be supplied and installed. All valves shall be designed

to operate under normal conditions up to 500 PSI and shall have dual seats to work in both pressure and vacuum

environments. All valves and controls shall be easily accessible for service, repair or replacement.

The specified valve shall have a direct actuated 'local' control Akron Model TSC valve handle.

One (1) chrome brass 2-112" NH rocker lug plug with a securing chain or cable shall be installed on the intake.

(l) chrome plated brass 30 degree elbow with 2.5" swivel female NH x 2.5" rnale NH thread with rocker lugs

shall be provided on the direct tank fill.
BACK PACK I, SYSTE,M

There shall be one (1) back pack fill system provided and installed on the lower area of the pump panel. The

valve plumbing shall be 314" I.D. hose.

12 VOLT ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS

1 0030-0002
Page 62 of 72

10t10t22

Page 139

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The following describes the low voltage electrical system on the apparatus including all panels, electrical

components, switches and relays, wiring harnesses and other electrical components. The apparatus manufacturer

shall conform to the latest Federal DOT standards, current automotive electrical system standards, and the

applicable requirements of the NFPA 1906.

Wiring shall be stranded copper or copper alloy conductors of a gauge rated to carry 125 percent of the

maximum current for which the circuit is protected. Voltage drops shall not exceed l0 percent in all wiring from

the power source to the using device. The wiring and wiring harness and insulation shall be in conformance to

applicable SAE and NFPA standards. The wiring harness shall conform to SAE J-l128 with GXL temperature

properties. Exposed wiring shall be run in a loom with a 290 degree Fahrenheit rating. Wiring looms shall be

properly supported and attached to body members. Electrical conductors shall be constructed in accordance with

applicable SAE standards, except when good engineering practice requires special construction.

All wiring connections and terminations shall provide positive mechanical and electrical connections and be

installed in accordance with the device manufacturer's instructions. When wiring passes through metal panels,

electrical connections shall be with mechanicaltype fasteners and rubber/plastic grommets.

Wiring between cab and body shall be split using Deutsch type connectors or enclosed in a terminal junction

panel allowing body removal with minimal impact on the apparatus electrical system. Connections shall be

insulated with heat shrink crimp-type tubing to resist moisture and foreign debris such as grease and road grime.

Weather resistant connectors shall be provided throughout the system'

Electrical junction or terminal boxes shall be weather resistant and located away from water spray conditions.

When required, automatic reset breakers and relays shall be housed in the main body junction panel.

There shall be no exposed electrical cabling, harnesses, or terminal connections located in compartments, unless

enclosed in an electrical junction box or covered with a removable electrical panel. Wiring shall be secured in

place and protected against heat, liquid contaminants and damage and shall be uniquely identified at least every

six inches (6") by color coding or perrnanent marking with a circuit function code and identified on a reference

chaft or electrical wiring schematic per requirements of applicable NFPA 1906 standards.

Low voltage protective devices shall be provided for the electrical circuits. The devices shall be accessible and

located in required terminal connection locations or weather resistant enclosures. Over current protection

devices shall be automatic reset type suitable for electrical equipment and meet SAE standards. All electrical

equipment, switches, relays, terminals, and connectors shall have a direct current rating of 125 percent of
maximum current for which the circuit is protected. Electro-magnetic interference suppression shall be provided

in the system as required in applicable SAE standards'

The electrical system shall include the following:

1 0030-0002
Page 63 of 72

10t10t22

Page 140

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

Electrical terminals in weather exposed areas shall have a non-conductive grease or spray applied. All terminal
plugs located outside of the cab or body shall be treated with a corrosion preventative compound.

All electrical wiring shall be placed in a protective loom or be harnessed.

Exposed connections shall be protected by heat shrink material and sealed connectors.

Large fender washers shall be used when fastening equipment to the underside of the cab roof and all holes

made in the roof shall be caulked with silicone.

Electrical components installed in exposed areas shall be mounted in a manner that will not allow moisture to

accumulate inside.

A service loop shall be provided behind an electrical appliance to allow them to be pulled away from mounting

area for inspection and service work.

Upon completion of the vehicle and prior to delivery, the apparatus shall be electrically tested and the electrical

testing, certifications, and test results shall be submitted with delivery documentation per requirements of NFPA
1906.
ELECTRICAL ING HARNE,SS

The electrical system shall be divided into separate harnesses. The individual harness shall be connected with
Deutsch type quick connectors. The wiring and appliances shall be protected by automatic reset type circuit
breakers.

CUSTOM ATED CONSOI,F],

A custom fabricated electrical console and enclosure shall be located befween the driver's and the officer's

seating positions. The center console will contain*two* USB dual 2.1-amp dual inlet charging ports one on the

side of each seat in the front and two in the rear of the center console facing back on either side of the console.

USB CHARGIN(] PORT

Four (4) USB charging porl(s) shall be installed in the cab of the truck for the fire departments accessory

devices. The USB charging port shall have two (2) USB connections and shall have a 5 volt, 4.8A output with
Intelligent Device Recognition capabilities.
The specified power source shall be wired battery hot.

SPARE WIRING

Five (5) pair of spare wiring shall be provided. One wire shall be t2-volt battery switched controlled and the

other shall be a 12-volt, 15-amp fused ignition switch controlled circuit.

The wiring shall be labeled as to their function, coiled, and located within the center console and behind the rear

seat. Additional ignition and battery fuse panel (blue sea style) shall be included and will terminate in the center

console.
BATTERY SWITCH. MASTER DISCONNECT

1 0030-0002
Page 64 of 72

10t10t22

Page 141

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

A battery cutoff switch shall be provided in the cab within easy reach of the driver; by the chassis manufacturer.

There shall be a200amp continuous rated solenoid installed and switched by the OEM battery master switch.

150 AMP CIRCUIT BREAKER

A "Class l " (or equal) 150-amp circuit breaker shall be located between the master battery switch and the

sub-panel. The 15O-amp circuit breaker shall be located in an enclosed compartment with a removable door with

four bolts that will be located in the battery box.

The wiring going to and from the circuit breakers will be insulated with loom and have rubber grommets where

the wiring passes through metal compartments. All terminals on this panel shall be properly labeled and

numbered with permanent, moisture and heat resistant material.

BATTERY CHARGER

A Kussmaul Autocharge 1200 PLC, model #091-187-12, automatic battery charger shall be provided. The

battery charger shall be wired to the 12 volt battery system. Charger maintainer will be installed behind the rear

seat driver's side. This area will be enclosed with l/8-inch aluminum with a bolt on access cover with four bolts

for servicing and have two 120-volt muffin fans on one side with equal breathing diameter holes on the opposite

side that are activated when the engine is plugged in to 120 volts'
KUSSMAUL SUPER AUTO EJECT DELUXE COVER

There shall be a Super Auto Eject with Deluxe Cover with Digital Display installed. The Super Auto Eject shall

be a 120V, 154 eject. The digital display shall show volts and amps. Super Auto Eject shall be installed on the

drivers' side of the cab with a3116 aluminum plate that has gussets installed on the angle bracket below the door

and jam and not contacting the frame or battery box.

The specified auto eject cover shall be red

IDENTIFICATION LIGHTS

All LED identification lights shall be installed on the vehicle as required by applicable highway regulations

LICENSE PLATE MOUNTING

A front, predrilled license plate position shall be installed in the front bumper if permissible to the design

Passenger side.
LICENSE PLATE MO ITNTING AND LIGHT

A predrilled backing plate and LED light shall be installed on the rear for mounting of the license plate.

STOP. TAIL. LIGHTS

Two (2) Peterson #8l7KR-7 4" LED lights shall be installed as stop/tail lights on the rear of the apparatus. They

shall be grommet mounted.
TAIL IGHTS

1 0030-0002
Page 65 of 72

10t10122

Page 142

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

Two (2) Peterson #8l7KR-7 4" LED lights shall be installed as turn signal lights on the rear of the apparatus

above the stop/turn lights. They shall be grommet mounted.

BACK UP LIGHTS

Two (2) Peterson #M81 7C-7 4 LED lights shall be installed as back up lights on the rear of the apparatus. They

shall be grommet mounted.
ZONE C- LOWER REAR

Two (2) Whelen M6 Series Model # M6RC warning light shall be provided. The waming light shall

incorporate Linear Super-LED@ and Smart LED@ technology. The M6RC configuration shall consist of 18 red

Super-LEDs and a clear optic polycarbonate lens.

The lens/reflector assembly shall be sealed and resistant to water, moisture, dust, and other environmental

conditions. The hard coated lens shall provide extended life/luster protection against UV and chemical stresses.

The specified Whelen M6 lights shall be equipped with chrome plastic flange type light bezel mountings.

MAP LIGHT

One (l) Havis Shields #C-MAP-T-LED 12" LED map light, 12 volt, with a gooseneck arm an on-off switch

located on the base of the light shall be installed on the dashboard'

FRONT BUMPER -- GROUND LIGHTS

There shall be two (2) Tecniq E10, LED ground light(s) installed under the front bumper. The lights shall

activate by a button located on the Cencom core control head, and any time a cab door is opened.

CAB GROUND LIGHTS

There shall be four (4) Tecniq El0, LED ground lights installed under the cab door(s). The lights shall activate

by a button located on the Cencom core control head, and any time a cab door is opened.

GROUND LIGHTS . PUMP PANEL

There shall be two (2) Tecniq E10, LED ground lights installed under the pump panel running board(s). The

lights shall activate by a button located on the Cencom core control head, and any time a cab door is opened.

GROUND LIGHTS .IINDER REAR STE,P

There shall be two (2) Tecniq El0, LED ground lights installed under the rear step area. The lights shall activate

by a button located on the Cencom core control head, and any time a cab door is opened.

PIONEER MICRO

There shall be six (6) Whelen Pioneer Micro lights provided and installed on the apparatus.

1 0030-0002
Page 66 of 72

10t10t22

Page 143

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

The lights shall be located:

r One located on each side of the pump house recessed into upper panels. Controlled by "Left Scene" and

Right Scene switches on the Whelen siren controller

r Two located under the middle steps on the back of the apparatus. They shall be operated by the "Rear

Scene" switch located on the Whelen siren controller

a Two (2) mounted rear facing under the rear of the body

FRONT BUMPER BEZEL

The center of the front bumper shall feafure abezel, the bezel shall trim out around the front tow plate and front

Whelen Micro Pioneer lights and have an BME logo. The BME logo shall have reflective material behind it.

REFLECTIVE BACKGROUNI)

Part shall feature a Red reflective background.
The scene lights shall be activated by individual buttons or switches on the cab center console. Left, right, and

rear scene light controls.
PIONEER PLUS SCENE LIGHT

There shall be two (2) Whelen Pioneer Plus model# PCHIPI with a switch and pole/pedestal mount located on

the rear of the apparatus. The light heads shall be white in color. The light's shall be supplied with battery

switched power, and be activated with the included light mounted switch.

TOMAR 3O'' LIGHTBAR

(1) Tomar TRX thirty inch 30" lightbar Model# TRX-3OW-AC shallbe installed as specified on the apparatus.

The lightbar shall emit White and Amber light.
FRONT BUMPER B.F"ZF,L

The center of the front bumper shall feature abezel, the bezel shall trim out around the front tow plate and front

Tomar 30" TRX light bar.
The scene lights shall be activated by individual buttons or switches on the cab center console. Left, right, and

rear scene light controls.
DOOR OPEN RNING I,IGHT

The door ajar warning system shall be separated into four zones, aLeft, Right, upper hosebed area, and Rear

zone. Each zone shall have an individually labeled warning light and also activate an audible alarm. The door

ajar lights and audible alarm shall activate only when the apparatus parking brake has been released.

RADIO SPEAKERS MOUNT

1 0030-0002
Page67 of72

10t10t22

Page 144

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

An interior cab ceiling mounted box shall be installed and be pre wired, routed to the center console. The box

shall be big enough to mount a speaker and be powder coated black.

RADIO INSTALLATION

There shall be four (4) radio antenna installed on the apparatus and routed to the cab center console.

BACK UP ALARM

One (l) solid state back up alarm shall be provided at the rear of the apparatus. The back up alarm shall be

wired to the reverse circuit of the transmission, and shall provide an audible alarm to the rear of the apparatus

when reverse gear is selected. The alarm shall have a volume of 87 to ll2 db while in operation.

BACK UP CAMERA

There shall be a Rear View Safety back up camera system supplied and installed on the apparatus. The camera

system shall consist of a7" TFT LCD Digital Color Display, l30o Ultra Wide Angle Back Up Camera. Part#
RVS-770613-HD. A reverse sensing RVS-770613HD auto dimming back up camera system shall be installed

with a seven-inch monitor.

The camera for this system will be mounted in the dead box facing rear between hose beds coyers.

*The camera screen will be located in the open compartment facing rear in the dash'*

This camera will not contact the stacked CAL FIRE stacked logo.

HEADLI F'I,ASHER

The white portion of the Whelen, M6DD light heads shall be programmed to function as the wig wags. It shall

be activated in the "calling for the right of way" mode and be turned off in the "blocking of the right of way''

mode by applying the parking brake. Should the feature need to be interrupted, the wig wags shall also

incorporate a separate cut off switch on the Whelen CORE control head.

ELECTRONIC SIREN

A Whelen CenCom Core C399 electric siren and lighting control module shall be installed. The siren shall be

wired through the siren control head and the OEM horn ring and be activated only when the *calling for the

right of way* function has been activated.

WHELEN CORE CONTROL HEAD

There shall be a Whelen model CCTL6 control head supplied with the Cencom Core system. It features a 3

section control head, with 8 push buttons, 4- position slide switch with a 7 position rotary knob. A manual siren

and air horn button, and 3 traffic advisor control buttons.

WHELEN CORE WECANX TRAFFIC ADVISOR MODULE

1 0030-0002
Page 68 of 72

10t10t22

Page 145

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

There shall be a Whelen model CTA Traffic Advisor module interfaced with the Cencom Core system

SIREN SPEAKER

One (1) Whelen Model #SA3l5P siren speaker shall be provided. The 100 watt siren speaker shall be designed

in a black nylon composite housing with 123 decibel rating.
ZONE A FRONT UPPER -- LIGHTBAR

One (l) Whelen Model #TB-CALFIRE-ECT-M34 Cenator series WeCanx light bar shall be installed on the

apparatus. The lightbar shall feature the following:

Eight forward facing RED/WHT LIN6 lights
Two forward facing LED take down lights.
A left and right facing LED take down light.
Four corner RED/WHT LIN6 lights.
Two rear facing RED/AMBER LIN6 lights.

ZONE A.. LOWER FRONT WARNING LIGHTS

Two (2) Whelen M6 Series Model # M6D warning light shall be provided. The red portion shall be used as a

front warning light and the white portion shall be used as front wig wags as well as additional area lighting
when needed.

The specified Whelen M6 lights shall be equipped with chrome plastic flange type light bezel mountings.

ZONE A -- LOWER WARNING I,IGHTS

Two (2) Whelen WIONSMCR lights shall provided and installed on the front face of the bumper, towards the

outer edge.

ZONE B AND D-. F'RONT INTERSECTION

Two (2) Whelen M6 Series Model # M6RC warning light shall be provided. The waming light shall

incorporate Linear Super-LED@ and Smart LED@ technology. The M6RC configuration shall consist of l8 red

Super-LEDs and a clear optic polycarbonate lens.

The lens/reflector assembly shall be sealed and resistant to water, moisture, dust, and other environmental
conditions. The hard coated lens shall provide extended life/luster protection against UV and chemical stresses

The specified Whelen M6 lights shall be equipped with chrome plastic flange type light bezel mountings.

ZONE B AND D.. LOWER MID BODY

Two (2) Whelen M6 Series Model # M6RC warning light shall be provided. The warning light shall

incorporate Linear Super-LED@ and Smart LED@ technology. The M6RC configuration shall consist of l8 red

Super-LEDs and a clear optic polycarbonate lens.

The lens/reflector assembly shall be sealed and resistant to water, moisture, dust, and other environmental

conditions. The hard coated lens shall provide extended life/luster protection against UV and chemical stresses.

The specified Whelen M6 lights shall be equipped with chrome plastic flange type light bezel mountings.

1 0030-0002
Page 69 ol 72

10t10t22

Page 146

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

ZONE B AND D.. UPPER REAR CORNER

Two (2) Whelen M6 Series Model # M6RC warning light shall be provided. The waming light shall

incorporate Linear Super-LED@ and Smart LED@ technology. The M6RC configuration shall consist of 18 red

Super-LEDs and a clear optic polycarbonate lens.

The lens/reflector assembly shall be sealed and resistant to water, moisture, dust, and other environmental
conditions. The hard coated lens shall provide extended life/luster protection against UV and chemical stresses.

The specified Whelen M6 lights shall be equipped with chrome plastic flange type light bezel mountings.

ZONE C -. UPPER REAR WARNING LIGHTS

Two (2) Whelen M6 Series Model # M6K waming light shall be provided. The warning light shall incorporate
Linear Super-LED@ and Smart LED@ technology. The M6K configuration shall consist of 18 Super-LEDs and

a clear optic polycarbonate lens.
The lens/reflector assembly shall be sealed and resistant to water, moisture, dust, and other environmental

conditions. The hard coated lens shall provide extended life/luster protection against UV and chemical stresses.

The M6K light shall include a split design including red and amber LEDs, with a clear lens

The specified Whelen M6 lights shall be equipped with chrome plastic flange type light bezel mountings.
REAR TRAF'F'IC F:,IGHT (8) I,.E-D. I,AMPS

A Whelen TAZ86 eight lamp LINZ6 Super-LED Traffic Advisor with all amber lights shall be provided and

mounted at the rear of the body. The solid state traffic advisor shall include model TACTL5 control head, or it
can be directly connected to a Whelen CenCon Siren Head Controller.
PAINTING -- EXTERIOR CAB /

The exterior of the chassis cab shall be a single tone finish painted by the final stage manufacturer
BODY PAINTING SPECIFICATIONS

All exposed surfaces shall be prepared and painted using a multi-step process to ensure a blemish-free,
protective coating for the base metal materials.

All removable items, such as brackets and compartment doors, shall be removed and painted separately to
insure finish paint behind them after they are reinstalled.

Due to its modular design, the apparatus body shall be completely finish painted prior to its installation on the

chassis.

The body shall be sanded, and cleaned. Any imperfections or defects in the metal shall be corrected with
premium body filler and then sanded smooth.

An epoxy primer shall be utilized on all painted and coated surfaces and shall prepare the metal for the final
paint. The direct-to-metal primer shall be used to create a first level seal allowing secure adhesion between the

1 0030-0002
Page70 of 72

10t10t22

Page 147

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

base metal and the subsequent substrates

All body and components shall then be primed, thoroughly sanded, and meticulously inspected for any

imperfections ; which shall be properly corrected..

All surfaces shall then be painted with a base coat of premium paint following the guidelines as established by

the paint manufacturer. The body shall be painted using a single color to match the cab primary color, and then

shall be buffed to a high gloss finish.
INTERIOR F'INISH

The interior wall, floor and ceiling surfaces of compartments shall be finished with Rust-Oleum brand

Multispec color flecked paint. The final color combination shall be determined in pre-con.

The specified compartment(s) shall be coated with Gray Stone colored Multi-Spec paint.

TOUCH.UP PAINT

Touch-up paint shall be furnished with the completed truck at final delivery
VALVE PAINTING

All exposed valves shall be painted to match the color of the exterior body

MISC PAINTING

The fuel tank support brackets, air tanks and mounting brackets shall be painted job color red

CAL.F'IRE STRIPING PACKAGE

The following graphics shall be provided:

. Three (3) reflective stripes will be provided across the front of the vehicle and along the sides of the body. The reflective
band will consist of a 1 .00" white stripe at the top with a 1.00" gap then a 8.00" White stripe with a 1.00" gap and a
1.00" white stripe on the bottom.

. 4" high black reflective band across face of bumper

. There will be alternating diamond grade chevron striping located on the rear-facing vertical surface of the
apparatus. The entire rear surface, including the rear compartment doors, will be covered. The colors will be red

and trellow. Each stripe will be 6.00" in width.

. The reflective band located on each side of the apparatus body will contain one (1) iog(s) and will be angled at
approximately a 45 degrees when installed.

. A white reflective stripe will be provided on the interior of each cab door.

. six (6") inch white reflective letter with black outline and shade reading "CITY OF FOLSOM" installed on each side of
body between fonrvard scene light and rear warning light. Top of graphics straight with bottom of graphics arched. Font to
match Pierce job 34002
. four (4") inch white reflective letter with black outline and shade reading "ENGINE 334" installed on each side of body
between forward scene light and rear warning light under CITY OF FOLSOM letteirng.

1 0030-0002
Page7l of72

10t10t22

Page 148

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Golden State Fire Apparatus

. Four inch white reflective letter with black outline and shade on approximately 15" x 6" red painted plate on right side
bumper reading "FOL"
. Four inch white reflective letter with black outline and shade on approximately 15" x 6" red painted plate on left side
bumper reading "E334" (engine number yet to be defined)
. Three inch white reflective letter with black outline and shade on approximately 14.5" x 4.5" red painted plate on right
side rear body reading "E334" (engine number yet to be defined)
. Sixteen inch black reflective letters on cab roof reading "FOL"
e (1) 17" Reflective Folsom Logo with .5" cutout of stripe on each cab door

NO-Cal-Fire Equipment Package

5# DRY CHEMICAL FIRE EXTINGUISHER

One (1) 5# ABC dry chemical fire extinguisher and mounting bracket shall be provided on the apparatus. The
extinguisher shall have a pressure gauge and shall be filled with a dry chemical extinguishing agent.

HYDRATILIC JACK

One (l) hydraulic jack shall be provided. The jack shall be designed for lifting capacity of twelve (12) tons
LUG WRENCH

There shall be one (1) lug wrench provided artd shipped loose with the completed apparatus
Cal-Fire Tag On Adjustment

1 0030-0002
Page 72 ol 72

10t10122

Page 149

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



GOLDENSTATE
FIRE APPARATUS

DEALER
SUPPLIED

EAUIPMENT
AND/OR

SERVIGES

Page 150

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



DEALER SUPPLIED EOUIPMENT ANd/OT SERVICES
The following items andlor services will be provided by Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. (GSFA)

LICENSED MAI\UFACTURER
The State of California Vehicle Code, section I 1701 requires "every manufacturer of a vehicle subject to
registration shall make application to the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) for a license containing a
general distinguishing number". The manufacturer has a current license at time of proposal and shall
provide a copy upon request. Temporary licenses are not acceptable.

LICENSED DEALERSHIP
The State of Califomia Vehicle Code, section 11701 requires a "dealer in vehicles of a type subject to
registration, shall make application to the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) for a license containing
a general distinguishing number". Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. has a current license at time of bid as

outlined above and is available upon request. Temporary licenses are not acceptable.

LICENSED SALES REPRESENTATIVE
The State of California Vehicle Code, section 1 1800 requires that it shall be "unlawful for any person to
function as a vehicle salesperson without having first procured a license issued by the Department of
Motor Vehicles (DMV)". The representative has a current vehicle salespersons license at time of proposal
and shall provide a copy upon request. Temporary licenses are not acceptable.

VEHICLE REGISTRATION
The State of California Vehicle Code section 11739 requires that the "dealer of a new motor vehicle sale
is responsible for applying for the title, securing vehicle registration, and obtaining license plates for the
Customer" through the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV). Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. is a
factory-authorized dealer of the vehicle being sold and is authorized to register with the State of
California as a new vehicle manufacturer.

GSFA will make all necessary applications and complete all transfer papers, including applying for
California Exempt "E" license plates.

LOOSE EOUIPMENT
The following loose equipment list will be provided by Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. prior to final

Motorola Solution Quote 1849030 (EXPIRES 11-13-22\ 1

Vincent Communications BK Quote # 52023 1

2112" x 50' Hose Key Big 10 (FDNY spec) Orange DP25-800 50 FT 8

2 1 12" x 25' Hose Key Big 10 (FDNY Spec) P25-800 1

41 314" x 50' Hose Key Big 10 (FDNY spec) Blue DP18-800-FDNY

I 1 12" x 100' single jacket wildland hose Key SP-15-600 PU 12

1 1 12" x 15' Hose, Angus Rubber Jacket, RED Reg Duraflow RC15-600 2

81" x 100' NPSH sinqle iacket wildland hose KEY SP10-600 PU

3/4" x 100'NPSH live reel hose (rubber) Kocheck KRBH75-100-3

3/4" x 50' NPSH live reel hose (rubber) Kocheck KRBH75-50-3

103/4" x 50 feet pencil line hose Key FF075-600

4" x 7' Hard suction hose with rocker luos Kocheck 2PW0210 2

4" Hard Suction Strainer Kocheck BS40 I

2

2

Page 151

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



1 1 12" x Z Hard suction hose Kocheck PF152-1O 2

11 1/2" Floating Strainer self leveling with foot valve Kocheck #FS15FV

1 1 /2" Stainer with foot valve Kocheck KC-8S151 1

1 314" Nozzle 1 50 GPM/75PS| Elkhart Chief XD mid-range with 15/1 6" smoothbore with quantity (2)
7/8" smoothbore nozzles that go with the Chief XD

2

1 ll2" Nozzle 20-95 GPM @ 100 psiTask Force Tip FS2095 6

3l" Nozzle 10-24 GPM Task Force Tip DS1024 with bale and pistol grip

101" Wildland twister nozzles

3/4" Brass twister nozzles nozzles 10

12 1 12" double male Red Head #3625N25N

I2 1 12" double female Red Head #3525N25N

21 12" to 1 1 12" reducer Red Head #3725N15N 2

22112 to 1 112 galed wye NH Task Force Tip #AYNJNFTFT

11 1/2" double male Red Head #3615N15N

1 1 /2" double female Red Head #3515N15N 1

1 112" lo 1" NPSH reducerAction #3715N10P 3

21 1 /2" NH to 1" NPSH gated wye Mercedes #\ ru1510 (CS Supply)

I 1/2" NH to 1" NPSH water thief / hose T TFT #ATNFID 4

41 112 Gizmo Pressure reduction appliance Gizmo#4702O

11" double male NPSH Action #3610P10P

1" double female NPSH Action #3510P10P 1

11" NPSH lo 1 112" increaserAction #3710P15N

21" to314" garden hose adapter NPSH Action #3710P75G

3/4" hose reel field reoair couplinq #BW1475BP 4

103/4" pencil line shut offs

2spanner wrench/hydrant wrench combo with (1) Red Head Mount

pin lug spanners Red Head #103RH 2

Dead Blow Hammer Nupla SF-3SG I

1Forestry shovel - True temper

Pulaski - Council Tool Pulaski Axe FSS version 36" wood handle 2

2Thau Claw Fire Tool

16 ft New York Roof Hook Fire Hooks Unlimited #RH

30" Pro bar Fire Hooks Unlimited #PB-30 1

1Pick Head Axe Fire Axe lnc. 36" wood handle

1Flat Head Axe Fire Axe lnc. 36" wood handle

Pinch Point Bar 60" True Temper #1 160100 1

1Bolt cutters 36" with mounting hardware

1Come-a-long

2

Page 152

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



IWildland Hose Packs with molle for clamp pouch, True North #3 with integrated clamp pouches

2Backpack pump - lndian Chief DBL500 backpack with Fedco pump

1Collaosable Traffic Safetv Cone (Kit with 5 cones)

1Water Shut-off tool Reed Manufacturing #02347R (Acme Tools)

1Honda Portable Trash Pump WH20x 1 1/2 Discharge and 2" intake, no cage

1Trash Pumo lntake adapter I 112" NPSH to NH

1Trash Pump Discharge Adapter 1 1/2" NPSH to NH

1Chainsaw 18" Stihl MS261C

1Chainsaw 24" Stihl462C

1Honda Portable generator EU1000i

1htkit #AK-ELSS-XLAC-HGLED Flood LEDAkron

IPortable Fire Extinquisher 3A:408C with mountinq hardware

2Wheel Chocks Worden HWCTY-WH Hi Vis
2Drip torch with brackets Cascade Fire Equipment #12000 (Bracket #12001)

6Timberline hose clamos #FF-1
4Kholer Briqhtstar Riqht Anqle Rechargable Flashlight with 1 10 volt and DC charger

1Chainsaw mount-small Ziamatic QM-CSM-S

1Chainsaw mount-laroe Ziamalic QM-CSM-L
2

Fire-Line Tape
1hose rubbers or 4 lbs or QTY 20 HRRB ARC

1GPS Reciever. Garmin Montana #010-01534-1 1

IBinauculars, Bushnell Marine 7x50 #137501
1Kit #89088
1EMS Pack Conterra Fliohtline Ultra Aero-Medical Pack

1AED - ZOLL AED Plus
1Ai Pro an

1Hose Roller with 2" reciever mount
1Tow Strap - vellow
13 fire20' rTow
1Fuel Can for Drio torch fuel

Lock-out kit Access Tools Emergency Response Kit #ACT-ERK (Zips Towing)

FINAL INSPECTION. FACTORY TRIP
A final inspection trip to the manufacturing facility will be provided for three (3) Customer

representative(s). The intent ofthis trip is to ensure that the apparatus is built to specification and to detect

any deficiencies that reiluire correction. The final inspection trip will have a duration of two (2) days and

one (1) night and be scheduled at times mutually agreed upon between GSFA and the Customer. Costs for
airfare, lodging, meals, and ground transportation while at the manufacturer's location will be the

responsibility of GSFA. Air travel will be from one of the following airports: Sacramento, San Francisco,

or San Jose.

-1

Page 153

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



Costs such as Customer ground transportation in California, Customer airport parking, Customer luggage

fees and Customer incidentals while traveling to the factory will be the responsibility of the Customer.

Flight reservations are non-refundable and in the event of a cancellation after booking, the Customer will
be responsible for all costs associated with this cancellation, which may include not only the original
ticket cost but also any change or cancellation fees imposed by the airline and/ or travel agency. Flight
reservations are also non-transferable.

DELIVERY TO AUTHORIZED SERVICE FACILITY
GSFA will, at their expense, deliver the apparatus (including any applicable equipment, spare parts, and

supplies) to their Northern Califomia facility in Sacramento for a dealer preparation inspection.

To ensure proper break in of all components while still under warranty, the apparatus shall be delivered

under its own power - rail or truck freight shall not be acceptable.

PRE-DELIVERY SERVICE
After transportation from the factory and prior to delivery, the apparatus will receive a pre-delivery
service to confirm proper operation and correction ofany issues found as a result ofsaid inspection. The

Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. pre-delivery service consists of the following:

Engine Compartment and Undercarriage - Check for any broken mounting brackets and inspect
for correct capacities of the following (if applicable): engine oil, coolant, power steering fluid,
washer reservoir fluid, transmission fluid, rear end fluid, pump transmission oil, and primer oil.

a

a

a

a

Interior - Operate all doors, windows, and locks for proper adjustment. Check upholstery.

Exterior - Repair reasonable paint scratches or chips. Tighten any loose hardware and inspect

tires and wheels for proper pressure and lug torquing.

Road Test * With the water tank (if applicable) full, the apparatus will be driven approximately
twenty miles which allows the drive train components to get up to operating temperature. Road

test will be on both city and highway roads. A DOT compliant brake test will be conducted to
ensure the system is holding air. The brake condition and wheel seals will also be inspected.

Electrical - Operate all lights, sirens, and other electrical accessories to verify operation.

Pump - If applicable, vacuum test the pump to hold for 15 minutes. After vacuum test, operate the

relief valve, transfer valve and check pump shift. Check water tank for leaks and inspect water
level gauge for calibration. With discharge caps loose, rapid test all individual gauges and main
gauges for calibration. Lubricate valve rods.

Foam System - If applicable, tighten caps and connect foam lines. Test selector, valves, metering
valve and operation of foam system (including flush).

Fuel Tank - Fuel tank will be filled at the dealership location prior to final delivery.

DEF Tank - DEF tank will be filled at the dealership location prior to final delivery.

Wash - The apparatus will be thoroughly washed at the dealership location prior to final delivery.

a

a

a

a

a

a

4

Page 154

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FINAL DELIVERY (CUSTOMER LOCATION)
GSFA will, at their expense, deliver the Product (including any applicable equipment, spare parts, and

supplies) to the Customer specified address once completed. Prior to delivery of the Product, Customer agrees

to provide proof of liability and physical damage insurance to GSFA. GSFA will not release the Product to
the Customer until such proof of insurance is provided.

It is the responsibility of the Customer to have any outstanding balance due, paid in full to GSFA, prior to or
at the time that the Product is complete and ready to deliver. If payment is late or delivery is delayed pending
payment, a daily finance charge of $150.00 and a daily storage fee of $50.00 may apply until such payment is

received.

Due to insurance liability, the Product will not be delivered without full acceptance and full payment (or prior
written agreement between the Customer and GSFA).

END of DEALER SUPPLIED EQUIPMENT and/or SERVIGES

5

Page 155

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FIRE TRUCKS

PRODUGT
WARRANTIES

Exhibit 33C"

Page 156

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FIRE TRUCKS

STAI{DARD WARRAI{TY

BASIC GOUERAGE:
BME Fire Trucks LLC. warrants each new piece of Fire and Rescue Apparatus to be free f rom
defects in material and workmanship under normal use and service and will at it's option repair or
replace any part of this vehicle which proves defective in material and/or workmanship with new or
re-newed parts for the first 12 months from new vehicle delivery date. This warranty shall not
apply to any new product, which has been subjected to misuse, neglect, modification, alteration,
accident, and lack of normal maintenance or items used in routine maintenance.

COI.I Plll{ E]IT GIITIERAG E:
Certain components are given additional warranty coverage of variable time periods and distance
traveled limitations. Component examples are frame rails, chassis cab components, engines,
transmissions, driveline systems, water tank, etc. and are warranted by their respective
manufacturers. Extended warranties are also available on many other specif ied chassis and body
components and can be purchased as needed with the vehicle. Additional warranty coverage and
extended warranties will vary depending on components specif ied and supplied. You may obtain
more information regarding additionaland extended coverage by contacting BME Fire Trucks LLC.
or your local Boise Mobile Equipment Dealer.

DISGLAII,IER:
NO WARRANTIES ARE GIVEN BEYOND THOSE DESCRIBED HEREIN. THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED. THE COMPANY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILLITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ALL OTHER
REPRESENTATIONS TO THE USER/PURCHASER, AND ALL OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES.
THE COMPANY FURTHER EXCLUDES LIABILITY FOR INCIDENTAL AND CONSEOUENTIAL
DAMAGES, 0N THE PART 0F THE COMPANY 0R SELLER. No person is authorized to give any other
warranties or to assume any liabilities on the Company's behalf unless made or assumed in writing
by the seller; and no other person is authorized to give any warranties or to assume any liabilities
on the seller's behalf unless made or assumed in writing by the seller.

(IBTAII{I]{G SERVIGE:
Return the vehicle to any BME Fire Trucks LLC. dealer/authorized service center; return the
vehicle to BME Fire Trucks LLC.; or contact BME Fire Trucks LLC. When contacted, BME Fire
Trucks LLC. will authorize repair or replacement of parts as outlined above; will authorize a return

WE ARE WILDLAND
www.bmefire.com I 800.445.8542

Page 157

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



of parts f or inspection/repair or replacement if required; will direct you to the nearest Boise Mobile
Equipment authorized service center if necessary. \

WE ARE WILDLAND
www.bmefire.com I 800.445.8342

Page 158

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FIRE TRUCKS

IO-YEAR BODY STRUCTURE WARRANTY

B(IDY STRUCTURAL WARRA]ITY

BME Fire Trucks LLC. (hereafter known as BME)warrants the fire body shall be f ree of structural
or design failure or workmanship f or a period of ten (10)years f rom the date the apparatus is put
into service by the end user. This warranty is extended to the original purchaser only and
terminates upon transfer of ownership or possession to any other entity.

A body is defined as the structure, which fabricated from steel, stainless steel or aluminum sheet
metal and the associated framework that comprises fire body separate of the chassis cab area
where the driver, passengers and controls are located. This warranty is strictly limited to that
part of the body manufactured by BME and as defined above, exclusive of all hardware,
purchased components, mechanical items, electrical items, or paintwork.

This warranty is expressly limited to the repair and/or replacement of defective items as BME

may elect upon examination of any defects in material or workmanship. This warranty covers
only labor for repair or replacement, which is reasonably necessary as determined by BME. All
repairs must be expressly approved in writing by the BME warranty department prior to any work
being performed. The failure to obtain approval f or repairs f rom BME or to have the body
repaired or replaced at BME or a place designated by BME shall void this warranty. Any repair or
replacement performed by BME pursuant to this warranty shall be warranted under this warranty
only f or the duration of the original warranty.

BME's obligation to render any repairs under this warranty is subject to the following conditions
in their entirety:

1. The claimed failure must be reported to BME, lnc within the above stated warranty
period.

2. The claimed defective body must be returned to BME or an authorized BME warranty
service center immediately after notification of BME. Transportation costs will be the
responsibility of the purchaser, as will any charges for drivers, loading, unloading, or
other costs associated with the transportation of the chassis.

3. BME will then have the unconditional right to examine the body to determine if the
claimed defect falls within the scope of this warranty.

WE ARE WILDLAND
www.bmefire.com I 800.445.8542

Page 159

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



This warranty shall not cover the following

1. Damage caused by f ire, misuse, neglect, or accident.
2. Damage caused by theft, vandalism, riot, or explosion.
3. Damage caused by acts of God such as lightning, flood, hurricane, etc.
4. Damage that may or may not, at BME's discretion, be caused by or associated with

unauthorized repairs of modifications.
5. Damage that may or may not, at BME's discretion, be caused by or associated with lack or

improper maintenance procedures.
6. Loss of time, loss of use of the chassis, inconvenience, rodging, food, or other

consequential loss that may result from the claimed failure of the repair and claim
procedure.

This warranty is expressly in lieu of all other warranties, expressed or implied.

WE ARE WILDLAND
www.bmefire.com I 800.445.8342

Page 160

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



FIRE TRUGKS

PAI]IT WARRAI{TY

BASIC PAII{T COVERAGE:

BME Fire Trucks LLC. PPG Paint Company warrants to the original purchaser the paint f inish
applied to each new piece of Fire and Rescue Apparatus to be free f rom defects in material and
workmanship under normal use and service and will at its option repair or replace the paint of the
damaged area. The warranty coverage shall be for a period of seven (7)years f rom the new
vehicle delivery date. This warranty shall not apply to any new apparatus that has been subjected
to misuse, neglect, modification, alteration, accident, and lack of normal maintenance practices.

SPECIFIC C(IVERAGE:

The paint finish applied to the BME Fire Apparatus is guaranteed to the original purchaser for a

period of seven (7)years against the following:

. Peeling or delaminating of the topcoat and/or other layers of paint

. Cracking or checking

. Loss of gloss caused by cracking, checking, or chalking

. Any paint failure caused by defective paint materials covered by this guarantee

EXCLUSI(lilS:

A paint failure resulting f rom any of the following conditions is excluded from coverage

o Paint deterioration caused by bubbles, blisters, or other film degradation due to rust or
corrosion originating from the substrate

. Corrosion due to design/engineering (i.e., electrolysis dissimilar metals)

. Hazing, chalking or loss of gloss caused by improper care, abrasive polishes, cleaning
agents, or heavy-duty pressure washing

. Paint deterioration caused by abuse, accidents, acid rain, chemical fallout, or other acts
of nature

. Accidents, scratches, chips, or stone bruises due to normal vehicle use

. Repairs done over previously refinished areas unless stripped to bare metal

. Claims presented without proper guarantee documentation

WE ARE WILDLAND
www.bmefire.com | 800.445.8542

Page 161

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



0BTA|Nll'lG SERVICE:

Return the vehicle to any BME Fire Trucks LLC. dealer/authorized service center or contact BME

Fire Trucks LLC. When contacted, BME Fire Trucks LLC. will authorize and will direct you to the

nearest authorized paint repair facility if necessary.

WE ARE WILDLAND
www.bmefire.com I 800.445.8342

Page 162

10/25/2022 Item No.12.



.i.1, ::|

: i.ri':t,.'\'ir ! ir

. rjlilr:111 t.; r.lrrrii

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No. 10935 A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Broadstone Estates

Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision was

approved by the City Council on April 11,2077.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision. The Final Map
for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision will create a total of 8l single-family (SF) residential
lots. With the approval of the Final Map, the subdivision process for this project will be

complete.

I

MEETING DATE: 10t2512022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo.10935- A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and

Accept Offers of Dedication for the Broadstone Estates

Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Broadstone
Estates Subdivision

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 163

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



RUSSELL RANCH PH 3 SUBDIVISION

US HWY 50

n

!iilrF;

TilhF I

I

EE
JF

$F

ott-lts4s
PffiU

ffimp
tllntE! rsYxlFt

07!-ai{&!
traffist ut

The Broadstone Estates Subdivision is located on the east side of Placerville Road north of the

Russell Ranch Phase 3 Subdivision and south of US HWY 50 in the Folsom Plan Area (FPA)
(see above).

POLICY / RULE

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the City's Subdivision Ordinance

require that the City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision have been

reviewed by the Community Development Department and other City departments. The Final
Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the approved Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have been satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Broadstone Estates

Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information concerning when the

condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit, etc.), which City
department is responsible to verifi that it has been satisfied, and comments or an explanation

on how the condition was satisfied. This subdivision is consistent with the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan (FPASP) in regards to zoning and unit count.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously
approved for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN l5-308) on June 28, 2016 in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The proposed Small-Lot

2
Page 164

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map is consistent with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision
Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigation measures have

been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition, none of the conditions
described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section 15162 of the CEQA
Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Therefore, no

additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10935- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Broadstone
Estates Subdivision, and Approval ofthe Final Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision

2. Broadstone Estates Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Broadstone Estates Subdivision Final Map

4. Broadstone Estates Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions of Approval for the Broadstone Estates Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

J
Page 165

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT I

RESOLUTION NO. 10935- A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT
AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OF'F'ERS OF DEDICATION FOR THE

BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION, AND APPROVAL OF'
THE FINAL MAP F'OR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES

SUBDIVISION

Page 166

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10935

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OT'F'ERS OF'

DEDICATION FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION, AND APPROVAL
OF'THE F'INAL MAP FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Broadstone Estates subdivision has been

reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the approved or conditionally
approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Broadstone
Estates subdivision ; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accept, subject to improvement, any and all
offers of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Broadstone Estates subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Folsom that the Final Map for the Broadstone Estates subdivision is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to
execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Elliott Homes, Inc. in a form acceptable

to the City Attomey and accept the offers of dedication for the Broadstone Estates subdivision.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s)

NOES: Councilmember(s)

ABSENT: Councilmember(s)

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s)

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10935

Page I of I Page 167

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 2

BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT
AGREEMENT

Page 168

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Code Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY:

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO;

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITV, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
City Clerk
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF FOLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of 2022,by and

between the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Elliott Homes, Inc, a Arizona
Corporation hereinafter referred to as "Subdivider",

RECITALS

A. Subdivider has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land

located within the corporate limits of the City that has beerr prepared in accordance with the
Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the

Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council
of the City.

The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as Broadstone Estates
and is herein referred to as the "subdivision". Subdivision further described as Final Map (PN-
15-303) Broadstone Estates Small Lot Map recorded in Book _ of Maps at Page 

- 
in

the ofiicial records of Sacramento County.

Subdivider has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of
the public improvements (as shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit
A), including, but not limited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,

bikeways, storm drainage faciiities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public
utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational improvements and

appurtenances thereto, in or required by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances

of the City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by
the City. The foregoing improvements, more specifically listed on Exhibit A attached hereto,

are hereinafter referred to as "the required improvements".

B

C

Page 169

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



D City Council has required as a condition precedent to the approval of the Final Map, the

Subdivider first enters into and executes this subdivision improvement agreement with the City

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Perlbrnrance ot Work. Subdivider agrees to furnish, construct, and install at his own

expense the required improvements as shown on the approved plans and specifications

of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development

Department, and is incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or

modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions,

changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer. The

approved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be modified by the

Subdividei as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved

in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,

as shown on Exhibit A, is FIVE MILLION NINE HUNDRED NINETY-TWO
THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETY-THREE AND OO/1OO DOLLARS
($5,992,393.00).

2. Workt Sntisthction o{'City tlngineer. All of the work on the required improvements is

to be done at the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's

Improvernent Standards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable

City ordinances or state and federal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer'

3. Workl Tirne tbr Cormnens-ement and Perlblmatrcc. Work on the required

irnprovements shall be completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months

frorn the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the

commencement of such work, the Subdivider shall notiff the City Engineer in writing

of the date fixed by Subdivider for commencement of the work.

'I'ime ol Esscnce: Extetrsion.

a. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The date for completion of the work

of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 16.36.110 of
the Folsom Municipal Code'

5 Improvernent $ecurity. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the

Subdivider shall furnish the City:

a. Improvement security in the sum of FIVE MILLION NINE HUNDRED
NINETY-TWO THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETY.THREE AND
00/100 DOLLARS ($5,992,393.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent

of the total estimated cost of constructing the required improvements and the

cost of any other obligation to be performed by Subdivider under this

Agreement, conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and

4

2

Page 170

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



6

b. Separate improvement security in the sum of FIVE MILLION NINE
HUNDRED NTNETY-TWO THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETY.
THREE AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($5,992,393.00), which sum is equal to one

hundred percent of the estimated cost of constructing the required

improvements, securing payment to the contractoro subcontractor and to persons

furnishing labor, materials, or equipment to them for the construction of the

required improvements.

c. The Subdivider shall deposit with the City THREE TIIOUSAND AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to correct deficiencies and conditions caused by the

Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the

construction of the subdivision.

d. The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent (10%)

construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments

in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Government Code of the State of California,
and an estimated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.

In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may

submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification from the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

Plan Checking and tnspectiorr Fecs. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the

checking, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for
inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the

times established by the CitY.

lnclemnit'ication arrcl tlold Ij.armless. The Subdivider shall indemnifu, protect, defend,

save and hold the City harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or

injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts,

errors, or omissions of Subdivider or Subdivider's officers, employees, volunteers, and

agents during performance of this Agreement, or in connection with Subdivider's work,

or from any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent

caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Subdivider or its employees, subcontractots, or agents, or by the quality or character of
Subdivider's work. It is understood that the duty of Subdivider to indemnify and hold

harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil
Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under

this Agreement does not relieve Subdivider tiom liability under this indemnification

and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to

any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have

been determined to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this

Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, Subdivider acknowledges and agrees to

the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Subdivider shall, at his own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal

proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

3

1

Page 171

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



8.

employees, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satisfu any judgement that may be

rendered against the City in any such actions, suits or legal proceedings, or result

thereof.

Insurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdivider to perform any ofthe
Required Improvements shall, at their expense, maintain in effect for the duration of
this Agreement or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever

first occurs, not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisfactory to the City' The

maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of
insurance is a material element of this Agreement. The failure of Subdivider or any of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be

heated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement'

a. Minimum Limits qf Insurance. Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than:

1 Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per

occuffence for bodily injury, personal injury and property danage.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

J Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability: Worker's
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

b Deductibles and Self-In$ured Retentiong. Any deductibles or self-insured

retentions shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the

City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate suoh deductibles or self-insured

retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related

investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to

contain, the following provisions:

l. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

A, The City, its offtcers, officials, employees and volunteers are to

be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider;products
and completed operations of the Subdivider; premises owned,

leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,

hired or borrowed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain

no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the

City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insurance ooverage shall be primary insurattce

4

2.

c

B.

Page 172

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the
City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the
Subdivider's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,

officials, employees or volunteers.

D The Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer

shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or

cancelled by either partV, reduced in coverage or in limits except after
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

Asceptability of lnsurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's
rating of not less than A: VII.

Verification ol'Coveragc. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,
the Subdivider shall furnish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf. The City teserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies at any time.

'['itle to lrnprovQlnents. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements

constructed under this Agreement by Subdivider shall vest absolutely in the City upon

completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. The City
Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such

improvements have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specifications,

approved modifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City Improvement Standards and

Standard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws

and after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion.

Warranty Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City
Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defective

materials used in the performance of the required imptovements (Warranty Security)

throughout the warranty security period which shall be the period of one year following

5

C.

5

d

e.

9

10

Page 173

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



11.

l2

13

14.

completion and written acceptance of the improvements (Warranty Security Period). The

amount of the Warranty Security shall not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction

of the improvements, including the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agreement,

which shall be retained for the Warranty Security Period.

Repgir or lleconstruction of Del'ective Work or Materials. If, within the Warrauty Security
peiiod or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work

done under this Agreement fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications refemed to huein as determined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise

unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to act

promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require

iepairs or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City may, at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent (15%) within
thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City. The parties further understand and

agree that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph 10 of this Agreement shall

guarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of the provisions of this paragraph

during the Warranty Security Period.

Sutrclivicler Not Agent ol'City. Neither Subdivider nor any of Subdivider's agents or

contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance

of Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement.

Notice of Breach and Default. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any part

thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified, or any

extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruptcy, or Subdivider should make a general assignment for the benefit of his

rriditorr, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees should

violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,

serve written notice upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this

Agreement, or of any portion thereof'

Breach of Aglcement: Perlbrntance By Surety or Citv. In the event of any such notice,

Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and the

r.equired improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after the

seiving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written notice of its intention to

take over the performance thereof within fifteen ( I 5) days after notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by

contract, or by any other melhod the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incurred by the City; and in such event, the City, without liability for so

doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances,

plant or other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

therefor.

6

Page 174

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



l5

If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, after giving notice of
breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the

manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument'

Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person

or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

ATTN: City Engineer

Notices required to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Elliott Homes,Inc.
340 Palladio Parkway' Suite 521

X'olsom, CA 95630
ATTN; Price Walker, Vice President, Project Development

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

The Continental Insurance Company
151 N. Franklin Street, lTth Floor

Chicago,IL 60606
Elizabeth Collodio Attorney-in-Fact

Any party of the surety rnay change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attorney's Fees. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,

the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, in addition to

any other relief to which he may be entitled'

17. Assignment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors in

interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City
may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's

Office.

7

Page 175

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

SUBDIVIDER

Elliott Hom Inc.
AnA

BY BY

Print Namer Prlce Walker Print Name; StePhen

Title: Vice Presidentr ProJ' Developurent Title' Executlve Vice Presldent/CFo

DA DATE /o (- Q-U

CITY OF FOLSOM, a Municipal Corporation

DATE
Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

A I'TEST:

DATE
Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

DA
Pam Johns
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DATE
Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF "SUBDIVIDER" MUST BE NOTARTZED

Certificate of Acknowledgement pursuant to Civil Code, Section 1189, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Broadstone Estates

8

Page 176

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKT{OIilIEDGMENT ctvtl coDE s 1189

A notary public or olher officer completing this certificate verifles only the ldentity of the lndlvldual who signed the

document to whloh this certlflcate is aftached, and not lhe truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of Californla

County of Sacramento

On October 7,2022 before me, Susan R Stephens, Notary Public

Date

personally appearsd

Here lnsert Name and Title of the Officer

Stephen Heminston and.Price Walker

Name(s) of Signer($

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidonce to be the person(b) whose name(s) ie/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that hebhe/they executed the same in
hiehe#their authorized capacity(ies), and that by hislhedtheir signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of Galifomia that the foregoing paragraph
is true and conect.

WITNESS my hand and officialseal.

Signature
Signaturc of Notary

Place Notaty Seal Above
OPTIONAL

Though th/s secfion ls optlonal, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unlntended document.

Description of Attachcd Document
Title or Type of Document: SrMblon lnFd.ffil Ag.il6! _ &donr bd6- lhutMip 15 308 Documenl Date: October 6, 2022

Number of Pages: Signe(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Slgner(sl
s Name: Name:

Corporate
Padner -
lndividual
Trustee

Other:
ls Representing: ls Representing:

@.:*fiflllil,i:'Iffi,,

Partner -
lndividual Attomey in Fact

Guardian or Conseruator

@2014 Natlonal Notary Assoclatlon , www.NationalNotary.org . 1-800-US NOTARY 0-800-876-6827) ltem #5907

Page 177

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



FOTSOM PIAN AREA
Cost Estlmote fot

BROADSTONE ESTATES

Unlt Prlce

%

Item No quantlty Unlt Descrlptlon Total

TotEl cost

$ 2,617,355.00

$ so459o.oo

$ zu,aeo.oo
S 686,200.00

$ 74,265.00

TorAts $ &871,488.00

Cost to
complete complet€

Summsrv Btoadstone Estate!

Slte Preparatlon & Eafthwork
Sanltary Sewer System

Storm DrEln System

Potable Water Dlstrlbutlon System

Non-Potable water Dlstrlbutlon system

Concrete

Streetwork

Street llghts & Joint Trench

Landscaping & Sound walls
contlngency (10%l

s 509,997.00

$ Goz,o26.oo

$ 982,800.00

$ 1,367,895.00

$ 806.500.00 
"

cost to complete

$
$ so6,59o.oo

$ 7ra86o.oo

$ 586,200.00

s 7426s.00

$ so9,g97.oo

$ 507,025.00

$ 982,800.00

S 1,367,89s.00

s s{4,?60.00

$ s,992,3e3.00

5ol 5
Page 178

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



No. 35471

I

ExhibitA

FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estimate Summsrq

for
BROADSTONE ESTAIES

BROADSTONE ESTATES

Total

Cost

s 9,971,488

Cost to

Complete

$ 5,992,399

Subtotal Broadstone Estates

TOTAL COSTS

s

$

9,871,488

&871,488

5,992,393

5,992,393

$

$

TolsPage 179

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



FOLSOM PIAN AREA
Cost Estlmdte for

BROADSTONE ESTATES

Unlt Prlce

.S ._ *zoo.oo
$ 3.s0

s 3s.00
S l,o8s,ooo.oo

s 795,830.00_

s 370,020.00

7,400,00 100%

too%
700%

Cost to
Complets

54,200.00

257,390,00
99,000,00

13,000.00

2,000.00

81,000.00

$ soo,sso.oo

%

Item No quantlty Unit Descrlptlon

Slte Pr€pa.atlon & Earthwork

37

310,000

22,738
LO,S72

9,203

37

Sanltary Sewer System

1,084

3,677

22

2

4

81

Storm Draln system

Ac Clearing&Grubbing

CY Rough Grade Excavation

SF Masonry Retalnlng Wall

SF Basalite Retalnlng Wall

SF Rockery Retaining Wall

AC eroslon Control

LF 5" Sanltary Sewer, PVC SDR 25

LF 8" SanitarySewer, PVcSDR 26

EA 4S" Standard Sanltarv Sewer Manhole

EA 60" Standard Sanltary sewer Manhole

EA connecttoExlstlngSewerMain
€A 4"sanltarySewerService

LF 12" Storm Drein, RcP CL lll

tF 15" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

LF 18" Storm Drain, RcP cL lll

LF 24" Storm Draln, RcP CL lll

EA 48" standard Storm Drain Manhole

EA 60" Standard Storm Draln Manhole

EA T2" Standard Storm Drain Manhole

EA Modified Type'Br Drainage lnlet

EA Type GoL-7 (On-Grade) Drainage lnlet

EA Type GOL-10 (On-Grade) Drainage lnlet

EA Type'F'Drainagelnlet
EA 12" Flared End Section

EA 24" Flared End Section

LF 4" canyon Draln

LF 3' Rock Llned DralnaBe swales

LF Overside Rock-Lined Drainage Swales

EA 24" Temporary Riser; Perforated HDPE

EA 30" Temporary Riser; Perforated HDPE

EA Connect to Exlsting Storm Drain Main

subtotal Gradlng & slte PreP 5

s 50.00 s 54,200.00

$ 2s7,3eo.oo

$ 99,ooo.oo

5 13,000.00

S 7o.oo

s 4s00.00
s 5,s00.00

$ soo.oo

s 1,000.00

Subtotal sewer S 506,590.00

s i5.ss
S 1,ooo.oo

s 322,X0s.00

s 37,000.00

complete

100%

100%

LOO%

o%

0%

o%

0%

o%

o%

o%

o%

o%

096

or{
0%

0%

0%

0%

oL

0%

09&

0%

0%

Total

s
s
s
s

s
(

s

t
2

3

4

5

6

s

$ 3s.oo

1

2

3

4
5

6

$ aooo.oo
$ 81,ooo.oo

$

s
s
$

s

$

S +s.oo 104,175.00
11,935,00

81,120.00

42,83s.00

120,000.00

28,000.00

27,000.00

35,000.00
10&000.00

15,000,00

18,000.00

4,000.00

3,000.00

68,750,00

38,395.00

2,300.00

2,350.00

1,5oo.oo

1,500.00

$ 1o4,u5,oo o% s
(

(
$

s

5

$

s
5

$

)
s

s

$

s

s
$

s

s

s 38,3e5.00

$ 2,3oo,oo

5 s,000.00

5 u,ooo.oo

5 9,ooo.oo

5 3,soo,oo

S 4,5oo.oo

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

L2

13

74

15

16

L7

18

79

2,315

2r7
1,352

659

24

4

3

10

24

2

9

4

2

1,375

5,485

23

1

t
3

s ss,00

$ eo.oo
5 11,93s.00

S 81,120.00

S 4,ooo.oo

$ 3,0oo.oo

$ 68,7so.oo

s 6s.00 $ 4a83s.oo
3 120,000.00

5 28,000.00.

s 27,000.00

$ . 7,soo.oo

S 2,ooo.oo

S :tooo.oo .

s 108,000.00

$ 15,ooo.oo

s l8pgo,Qo

s 1,900.00

$ 1,s00.00

5 so.oo

$ z.oo

5 10010!,
S Z,gsO.oo $ 2,3s0.00

$ 1,soo.oo s 1,500.00

s soo.oo $ l,soo.oo

Subtotal Storm Draln $ 712,860,00

2ol 5Page 180

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



a

FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estimote for

BROADSTONE ESTATES

Cost to
complete Complete

%

Item No quantity Unlt DescrlPtlon

Potable Water Dlstrlbutlon System

3,700

L,377

16

9

1

18

4
2

81

2

L

5

Non-Potable Water Dlstributlon System

3,059

6,935

36,807

7

L2

r,L25

LF S" Water Main, PVC c900 CL 235

LF 18" Water Main, DIP CL 350

EA 8" Gate Valve

EA 18" ButterflyValve

EA 8" Pressure Reduclng Statlon

EA Fire Hydrant Assembly {5" Lead & Appurienances}

EA 2" Alr&Vacuum ReleaseValve

EA 3" Air & Vacuum Release Valve

EA l" Water Servlce

EA Water Sampllng Statlon

EA 4" Blow-Off Valve & Box

EA Connectlon to Exlsting Water Main

Unlt Prlce Total

ss.00 $ 203,500,00 096

s 100.00 S 137,700.00 o%

S 32,ooo.oo

s
s 50,000.00

S s,ooo.oo

s 3,500.00 $ 14000.00

s 4,000.00 s 8,00q.0q

s 1,000.00

$ s00.00

$ 2,5oo.oo

s 2,s00.00.

$

s 1,000.00

203,500,00

137,700.00

32,000.00

s4,000.00

50,000.00

90,000.00

14,000.00

8,000.00

81,000.00
1,000.00

2,500,00

12,500.00

S 686,200.00

s
s
(

s

s
s

$(
s

s
(
$

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

8
I
10

11

t2

s o%

o%

o%

096

.9.%
0%_
M(

.. s s4,000.00

S so,ooo.oo

s 90,000.00

s 2,s00.00

S 12,soo.oo

$ 81,000.00

LF 8" Non-Potable Water Maln, PVc C900 cL 200

EA 8" Gate Valve

EA 2" lrrigation Service

EA 4" End of Llne Blow-Off Valve

EA Remove 4" Blow-Off Valve & Connect

EA 2" Air & Vacuum Release Valve

LF 4" PVc {SCH 80} lrrigation sleeves

LF 5'PVC (scH 80) lrrigatlon sleeves

LF Modified Type 2 Vertical curb & Gutter (w/ 6" AB)

LF MountableCurb&Gutter(w/6"AB)
SF sidewalk (6" PCc/6" AB)

EA Concrete SurveY Monument

EA Sidewalk Curb RamP

LF 3'Concrete V-Ditch

subtotal PoiebloWater S 685,200.00

55_00 S 23,210.0o oro

$ z,ooo,oo s aasa4o 096

s 3,soo,oo s 7,000.00 0%

)

0%

0%

0%

o%

vA

23,210,00

2.000.00

7,000.00

5,000.00

1,000.00

3,500.00

24,255.00

8,300.00

s

$

$

$
(
(
$

$

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

I

422

1

2

2

2

L

1,517

415

S 2,5oo.oo

S soo,oo
s _,,,,_ilq949_
s 1,000,00

s 3,soo.oo 5 3,500.00

s 1sloq $ 24,255.00

s 20.00 $ g,goo.oo

Subtotal Non-Potable Water S 74,265.00_ (

Conffete

$

s

$

s

s

s

1

2

3

4

5

6

s 20.00

s 2s.00

$ o.oo

5 3oo.oo

$ 2,500.00

S 2o,oo

$ 61,180.00 o%

S 173,375.00 o%

s 220,842.00 0%

S 2,1oo.oo o%

s 30.000.00 0%

S 22,soo.oo o%

61,180.00

173,375.00

270,847.O4

2,100.00

30,000,00
22,500,00

s s09.997.00Subtotal Concrete S 509,997,00

3ol 5Page 181

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Cost EstlmateJor

BROADSTANE ESTATES

Unlt Prlce Total

s 80.qq S 26o,s6o.oo

S 2o.oo

Cost to
complete Complete

%

Item No quantlty Unlt Descrlptlon

Streetwork

f 161,000.00

$ 18,878.00

$ g,5go.oo

5 z,soo.oo

s 300.00

S 2,ooo.oo

$ 30o.oo

s s0o.oo

$ 3oo.oo

-s s0o.o0

s 300.00

5 too,oo

s 3oo,oo

S 3oo,oo

$ z.oo

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

L2

13

L4

15

x6

3,257

8,050
9,439

778
5

1

4

1

5

9

6

340

46
488

380

1

Ton Asphaltconcrete{Type'B')
Ton Aggregate Base (Class 2)

SF Demo Exlstlng Pavement

SF Pavement Markings

EA Street Name Slgn on Post

EA Street Name Sign on Street Light (Sign Only)

EA Stop Slgn (R1-1) on Post

EA Stop Slgn (R1-1) on Street Llght (SiCn Only)

EA Stop sign (R1-1) on street Name Post (Sign only)

EA Mlscellaneous slgns

EA Removable Bollard

LF 12" White Stripe Limlt Une (stop Llne)

tF 5" Dashed Stripe (DTL 39A)

LF 6" Solld Strlpe (DTt 39)

LF Two-Dlrection No'Passing Line {DTL 22}

t5 At Grade Street Rallroad Crosslng

680.00

s 1.00

s 1.00

s 1.80

s 1s0,000.00

Subtotal streetwork S 0OZ,oZ6.OO

$ 8,ooo.oo $ 648fooo.oo

$*--Uq9!9- $ lo,ooo.oo

$ 11,600.00 s 3248oo.oo

subtotal street Liehts & Joint Trench $ 982,800.00

S z.oo

s

0%.

o%

o%

0%

9%
a%

0%

0%

o%

o%

0Yo

OYo

260,560.00

161,000,00

18,878.00

3,590,00

2,500.00

300.00

2,000.00

300.00

1,500.00

2,700.00

1,800,00

680.00

45.00

488.00

684.00

1s0,000.00

5,00

s
s
)
(

s
s
$

$

s
s
s
s
$

s

$

$

a

$ 1,5oo.oo

$ ?J09.00
S 1,8oo.oo

s

$ qs.oo.

S 488,00

s 684.00

5 150,000.00

Street Li8hts & Joint Trench

Landscaping & Sound walls

43,67L
3?-,844

SF Landscape & lrrlgation

5F Masonry Sound Walls

1

2

3

81

2

28

LOT lolntTrench Excavation & Backflll

EA streetlight servlce Point

EA LED Streetllght (including conduit, wlring &

appurtenances)

o%

o%

o%

607,026,00

$ 648,000.00

$ 1o,ooo,oo

s 3248oo.oo

s 982,800.00

$ 218,3ss.00

s 1,149,s40.00

s 1,367,895.00

$ 5,447,633.00

S 544,760.00

$ s,e92,393,00

1

2

S 5.oo S

$ 3s.00 s

218,355,00

1,149,540.00

a%

a%

subtotal Landscaplng & Sound walls S 1,367,895.00

Total

ContingencY

Total cost Estimate

$

@ $ 805,500,00

$ 8,871,488.00

4ol 5Page 182

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 3

BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
FINAL MAP

Page 183

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



OWNER'S STATEMENT CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY SIATE TST WE ARE THE ONLY PARry HAVING NY R€CORO NNE
INTEREST IN ftE @ PROPER1 INCLUOEO WTHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF TSIS FINAL MP OF
"AROSSIONE ESTATES SMALL LOT MAP' NO DO HEREAY DECU€ NE CONSENT FROM NO OIHER
PERSON IS NECESRY NO WE CONSENT TO THE PREPSATION AND REC@ANON OF frIS FINAL
Mfi N0 OFFER FOR DEDICATON ANO m HEREBY DEDI*IE AS PUSllC RIGHT-OF-WAYS ANO AS
WUfr SSEMENTS TO THE CITY OF FOSOM, OtrEY OAK DRIVE, RMfi HILS CIRCLE HINSDALE
DRIW, DEHONE CIRCLE ND SPOFED OOG COURTAS SHOWN HEREON,

WE M HEREBYDEOICATE FffiSPECIFIC PURPOSESTHE FOLLOWNG

1. A PUBLIC EASEMENT FOR THE INSI{4NON NO MNTEMNCE OF DruN, GN, SEreR AND
WAER PIRS ND FOR UNDERGRWND WffiS AND CODU]IS FOR ELEMrcAL, TELEVISION ANO
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES. TOGffiER WTH NY NO &L APPURGNNCES PERTAINING
THESIO ON. OVER. INDER AND ACROSS LOTS B, C, J PqTIONS OF LOIS O NO F AND THOSE
STRI6OFNDSHOWNHEREONNDDESIGMTED'PUBLIC!ILIryASEMENT'EUE).

2. A PUBLIC qSEMENT ANO RIGHT"OF.WAY FOR THE ]NSTALUTION, REPAIR, REMOV{ OR
REPUCEMENT OF UNDSCAP'NG TOGETNER WITH ANY ND &L APPURTENNCES PERTANING
THEreTO ON, OWR. UNDER ND rcROSS A. B. C, I AND THOSE STRIPS OF UND SHOWN HEreON
ND DESIGMTED "WDSCAPE €SEM€NT" (LE).

3 A PUBLIC SEIIENT FOR THE INSTEUNON AND MANIENNCE OF SIDEWIK AND PEOE$RN
ACCESSON,OVERNDACROSSAPORNONOFLOTFANDTHOSESTRIPSOFUNDSHOWNHEFEON
NO DESIGMTED'PEDESTRN ACCESS EASEMENT' (PAE).

4. A FUBLIC SEMENT FOR CONSTRUCNON AND MANTAINNG CENTru1ZED MIL OANERY BOES,
PEOESTALS ANO SUBS TGEBER WTH ANY AM ALL APPURTENANCES PERIAINING THERETO
INCLUOING PEDES]RIN ACCESS FOR DELIVERY ANO RECEIPT OF MAIL ON, OVER, ANO ACROSS
sTRm oF s0 FtvE (5)FEfl tN WDTH CON1GUOUS TOAL R|GHT-OF-WAYS.

5, N ACCESS SEMENT FOR THE INGRESS AND EGRESS OF CIry OF FOLSOM VEHICLES ON, OVER
AND ACROSS lOT J, A PORTION OF LOT F NO THOSE STRPS OF 4ND SHOM tsEREON AND
DESIGNATE ?CCESs ilSEMENf (AE).

I HEREBY SIATE IHAT I tsAW EXAMINED THIS FINAL MAP OF 'BRONSTONE ESTATES SWL LOi [hP'
AND FIND IT TO BE SUSINIMYNE SME AS THE TENTATIVE MM APPROVED BY THE CIfr COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF FOLSM AND NAT [L PROVISIONS OF ftE SUBOIVISION MAP ACT NO ALL
APPLIWLECIry MINANCES HAVE AEEN C@PLIED WTH.

SBEN R. KMNN, RCE 49291

OryENGINEER
ory oF FosoM
UCENSE APnES:9iS/2024

DATE] _

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAW *MINEO THIS FNru MF OF "BROAOSTONE ESTATES SMruL LOI MAP'
ANO IAM SAT]SFIED THAT ilD MP IS ECHNICUYCORRECT.

N.T.S.

NAVD88 BENCHMARK-CITY OF FOLSON,I

BENCHMARK'7I' ELEVATION =444.8,4'

GEMLDA. YOUNG, L.S. S€
CIWSURVEYOR
LICENSE qPIRES:6&m24

DATE| _

NAVD88
CITY CLERKS STATEMENT

ELUOTT HOI\4ES, INC., AN ARIZONACORPOMTION BMSS DISK STNPED "CIff OF FOLSOM 8M'71'ON THE SOITHWEST CORN€R OF frE CONCRETE
FOOIING FORA 69W POWER POLE+UDl25803. LOCATION OF SIE IS APPROXMTELY lOO FEET SOUTH
OF HIGHWAY 50 ND 3E ST OF THE MILROAD TRACKS &ONG OLD PUCERVILLE ROAD.
APPRO{MAIEUTITUOEi N38038'&.6E"LONGITUoE:W121006 33,76''

BYI

I HEREBY STATE ThAT frE CIry COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM HAS APPROWO THIS FIML MAP OF

'BROADSTONE ESTATES SWL LOTMAP',AND HASACCEPTEO, ON 8EH[FOF TH:PUBLIC, SUB]ECTTO
IMPROVEMENTS. AL RIGHT-OF-WAYS AND ASEMEN]S OFFERED HEREON FOR EDICATION IN

ACCORDNCE WTH THE TERMS OF THAT OFFER AND HAS APPROVED THE SANDONMENT OF THE
EASEMEWS IISTEO HEREON.ffiw THE BAS]S FOR EVELS WERE RUN FROM COUNry BENCHMARK UO1B.Mg STNPED'K-856' IN

FEBRLARI 20'4 SWMCMYA\O SOMPS CVIL ENGINEERS, INC.

PRESIOENT

CHRISTAFREEMNIE
qflCLERK

DATE:

P{g-litui,T?"rv
RECORDER'S STATEMENT

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT
FiLEDTH|S...............'-DAyoF _,2022,AT_.M.tN8ooK sMAPS,
AT PAGE ATTHE REQUSTOF MAC$Y &SOMPS CIVILENGINEEre. INC. TITLE TOTHE UNO
IrcLUDSINTHIS FlWW BEING VESTED AS PERCERNFICAIE
FILEINTHISOFNCA

A NOTARY PUSLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLENNG THIS CERTIBqTE VERIFIES ONLY THE

IOENNry OF THE INOMDUN WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENI TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS
ANACHED. AO NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS ACCURACY OR VAUOIry OF THAT OOCU6T. tM

$CMMENTO COUNry RECOROER
STATE OF C&IFORNIA

DOCUMENTNO.: _

STAE OF C&IFORNIA

COUNTY OF

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT 8Y:_
DEPUry

FEE: $

BEFOre ME 

-, 

ANOTNY PUBLIC

PffiSONALYAPPARED-
wHo pRowo ro ME oN rHE BAsrs oF sAnsac-6FiTii6Ei6E.6-dE.FETEF!6qs;-
WE(S) 

'S/ARE 
SUSSCRI€EO TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT NO ACKNOWLEOGED TO ME THAT

HgSHEtrHry ffCUTP THE SAME IN HIS/HEffiE]R AUTHOruED CAPACIfr(IES}, NO THAT BY

HS/H8trHERSreNATlR€(Si ON IHE INSTRUMENI THE PERSON(S), ORlHE EMITY UPON BEHALF OF

WHICN THE PASON(S)ACED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENI

I CERTIry UNDER PENITY OF PERJURY UNER THE LAWS OF TNE STATE OF CALIFORNIATHATTHE

FOREGO NG PAUGUPH IS NUE AND CORREfr,

WTNESS MY MNDANO OFFIC{ SE&

TNIS MP WN PREPM€O BY ME OR UNDER MY OIreCION AND IS MSED UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN

CONFORMNCE WTH THE REQUIREMENTS OF TNE SUBOVISION W ACT ND LOCA ORDIMNCE AI
TNE REOSESI OF ELLPN HOMES. INC.. AN AroONACORPOMIION IN FEBRUARY2022. I HEREEY STATE

TtsAT lHlS FIN{ W SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONOITIONALLYAPPROVED TENTAIVE MAP|

TMTTHE MONUMENTS WLL 8E OF THE CHAMfrER AND Wtr @CUPY THE POSITIONS N I@ICATED

ND WLL 8E sET BY DECEMBER 31,2023i AND TUT $lD MoNUMENTS W[ BE SUFFICIENTTO ENSIE
BE SURVryTO BE RRCED.

MCNY &SOMPS CIV]LENGINEES. INC.

F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATE,S
SMALL LOT MAP

ALL THAT REI PROPERfr DESCRIBED INTHAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED ON
APRIL 10.2017, IN EOOK ?017@10, AT PAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACWENTO

COUNry, BEINGA PORTION OF PARCEL E AS SHOWN ON THATCERTAIN REMRD OF

SURVfrT'TLED'PUT OF SURVEYOF TtsE JOS- WOOOARD EST," FILEO IN BOOK 7 OF
SURVEYS, MAP NO 39, SACRAMENTOCOUMY RECOROS, ALSO BEING APORTION OF
PARCEL4AS SHOWN IN THAT CERTAIN CERTIFIqTE OF COMPUANCE RECORDED ON

MAy 04.1996. tN 800K19980504_AT PAGE 0731, OFF|C|AL RECOROSOFSACWENTO
COUNTY, SITUATED IN SECTIONS 9 & 16. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, MNGE 8 4SI, M.D,B.M-$GNATURE FRN'ED NAME

MY PRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUSINESS
PAULFERGOSON, JR,

rus9265 EXP.0!31-2024
CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

MY CONIMISSIoN qPlRESr_MY COMMI$ION NUM8ER: _ ocToBER 2022

SHEET 1 OF 11DAE:
mtcKtY&somPs
AGNES PWEB 3UffiOB

.,uesr 0tor3r's

Page 184

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



NOTES

?f
l;9

5

1'DIA, BMSS DISKryP.

c/L,4

9

I

g

FRONT LOT CORNER. DETACHED SIDEWALK

TYPICAL 8'OFFSET

1. ALI CUWE DI@SIONS ARE RMIUS, ARC LENGTH ND DELTA. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE
GROUND DISTNCES AND NE IN FEF AND DECIMALS THEREOF. DUE TO ROUNDING THE SUM OF

INDIVIOU{ DIMENSIONS MAY NOT EOUITHE OVEMLL DIMENSION.

2. BIS FINAL MF rcNTAINS 36.64T ACRES GROSS CONSISNNG OF 81 RESIOEMru IOTS ND
10 EfrffiED LOIS.

X APELIMIWY GEOIECHNIC{ ENGINEERING REPORT FORTHERUSSELL UNCH SOUft (PROJECT

NO. Ei7053,132J WAS PREPffiED BY YOUNGDAHL CONSULING GROUP, INC ON MTOEER 13,2021
NO MY BE AVASIE FOR PUBUC INSPECNON AI THE CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNIfl
DflELOPMilT DEPffiTMilT,

4, ALL FRONTLOT CORNEN WLL BE SETWTHAN 8.OO FOOT OFFSETONTO THE OflACtsED SIOffAK
ON THE SIDE LOT LINE ORA 1.OO FOOIOFFSET ONIO THE AFACHED SIDEWAK ON THE SIDE LOT
LNEffiENDEDWITHAf'OAMETERBMSS DISCSTMPED'1S9265"(SEEDETAILTHISSHEEI).

5. Rffi CORNERS WLL BE SET AS FCLOWS (UNLES SHOWN OIHERWSE)
5.1. FoR LfrS 3ag, 41{6, 5ft2, 6s-69 AND 72-7 WLL 8E Sfl WTH A 58" REBAR N0 PWTIC

cp STAMPO'LS 355'.
5,2, FOR LOre 4i.53 NO THE COMrcN UNE F LOIS 30/31 ND g€5 WILL 8E $T WTH A 1.OO

FOOT OtrSET ON THE S DE LOT UNEWTH A 5/8'ffiM AND PBSTIC CAPSTAMPED 'LS 926'
(SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET),

5.3. FOR LOTS 1.30, S{0, @4i AND THE @MMON L|NE OF LOTS 5319,6ffi4170171, nnwg
ffiICH FAL WTHIN A MSONRY SOUND/RtrANING WAL, W[ BE Sfl WTH A 3/4" BffiS
TAG STAMPED 'LS 955'TO frE FACE OF WALL 2,OO FOOT €OVE GROUND OR ON TOP OF THE

6 PROPERry SUBJECTTOTHE PROPGD BOUNDffiIES tr CIry OF FOLSOM COMMUMry FACILITIES
DSTRICT NO.2014n (nPOWER PACE PROGW) PER&131223 OR305.

/, FROPERTY LIES WTHIN THE rcINDARY OF CIIFORNIA HOME flMrcE NTHORIry COMMUNITY
FACTLfrIES otSrRrCTNO. A1+1 (CLEAN ENERGY) PER20151005 ffi 0763.

& PROPERil SU&EfrTO CdMUNIfi FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.18 {FOLSM PLAN MS. ffiWOE
TMPRoWMENTS ND SERVTCS) PER 20r 51 209 OR @27.

9 PROPERry SUEJECT TO'WATER SUPPLY AND FACIIIIES FIMNCING PSN ND reREEMEW
BryEEN THE CIry OF FOLSOM ND C€RTAN UNDOWNEre IN THE FOLSOM PUN ffi' PER
20130124 OR 13& AND 'NSIGNMENIAND ASSUMMON AGREEMENT REUTIVE ]O WATER SUPPLY
ANO FACILITIES FIWCING PW NO AGREEMENT BEruEEN THE CIry OF FOLSOM AND
UNDOWNERSINTHEF4SOMPUNAffi'PER2O140603OR0959&09&,

10 PROPERfl SUBJECT TO PERPETUI NONqCLUSIVE AS€MENT FOR AVI$TDN ND INCIDENT{
PURPOSES IN FAVOR OF COUNTYOF SACMMENTOAND CIfl OF FOL$M PER20141 126 OR0592.

11. PROPERWSUBECTTOCOMMINIryFACILITIESDI$RCT2O1}1(WAERFACILITIESANDSUPPL4
P€R201312$ 0.R.0311.

12. FROPERTY SUBJECT TO COMMUNIfr FACILITIES DISTRIfr NO. 17 (WILLOW HILL PIPELINE} PER
20r $224 0.R. q24 AND 201 $325 0.R. 03s3.

13. PROPERTY LIES WTHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF PENDING SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT
otsRtcT No. 2.

URLOTLINE

xa'

=

6

REAR LOT CORNER
TYPICAL4'OFFSET

14. PROPERTY SUBJECT TO SCHOOL FACILMES IMPROVEMENT OISTRICT NO, 3 PB 20060707 O.R
m2.

15. PROPERry SUBJECT TO TERMS ANO PROVISIONS CONTANEO IN 'TIER 1 OEVELOPMENT
AGreEMENT reUTIW TO IHE FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PW DATED AUGUST 2, 411, 8Y ND
SEMil THE CIry OF FOL$M ANO RUS$I.FROMONTORY LLC. ET A, RECOROEO AUGUST 3,

2011 tNB@K201tS03,PAGE42,OFF|CIALRECORDS.

16, LOTSHSDJTOBEDEDEDINFEEBYSEPARATEO@UMENTTOfrECIfr OFFOLSOM.

17. LOTS A, 8, C, D, E, F, G, ND I IO BE DEEDED TO AND MANTAINED BY THE HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION BY SEPMATE O@UilEM.

18. PURSUNT TO SECTION 6&g(G) OF THE SUBOIVISION W ACT frE FIUNG OF THIS FINA MF
SHALL CONSTITUTE ESOONUENT OF TMT PORTION OF TtsE ASEMilTS LISTED BELOW, NOI
SHOWN HEREON, THAT FM WITHIN THE SUBJECT PROPERfr:

A. PUE &ONG NORNERLY RIGHT.AF-WAY LINE OF PLSSNT MVINE DRIVE PER DN

11903201208 (ToED|CATEDON fftS W)
S. TNE NORTHERLY RIGHT.OF-WAY OF PLEMI UVINE DRIVE ACROSS DEHONE CIRCLE

(REDEDICATED ON THIS MP),
C. IOO WtrHIN frE WOS OF ELUON HOMES INC PER ON 201903201209 AB ] (HINSDALE

DRIW). ffig 2 (DEWEY OAK DRIVE),ARS3 (DEHNE CIRCLE).

F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

ALL THAT REI PROPERfi DESCRIAED IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDEDON
APRIL 10,2017, IN B@K ?017@10, AT PAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACWENTO

COUNry, BEINGAPORTION OFPARCEL E AS SHOWN ON TMTCERTAIN RECORD OF

SURVEYNNED'PLAT OF SURVryOF THE JOS, WOOOARD EST.', FILED IN BOOK 7 OF
SURVryS, MAP NO39, SACRAMENTO COUMY RECORDS, ALSO BEINGA PORTION OF

PARCEL4AS SHOWN IN THAT CERTAIN CERTIFICATE OF COMPUANCE RECORDED ON

MAY & 1998. IN BOOK 199A05&. AT PAGE O?91, OFFICIA! RECORDS OFSACWENTO
COUNTY. SITUATED IN SECNONS 9 & 16, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH. MNGE 8 AST, M.O.B,M,

19. IN 18& IN BO* I12 OF DEEDS AT PAGE 236, ffE CENru PACIFIC RALROD COMPNY (CPRC)

CONVEYED TO JOSEPH WOODre THE WEST 12 OF lHE SE 
'4 

OF SECTIil 9. T. 9 N., R. 6 E. CPRC
EXC€PT€D AND RESERVED FROM SAIO CNryANCE, FOR BlROrc PURPOSES (INCLUOING

RIGhTS TO USE WAIER ND HAW FENCES CdSTRUfrE), A 1OO'STRIP OF LANO OVER ANY
MILRON TMCKS THEN OR THERAFTER CONSTRUCTED. ffiOXIMATELY THE SST N2 OF THE
SU&ECT PROPERW LIES WITHIN SAIO WEST 12 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 9 NOWWR, NO
MLROrc TRACKS ARE CONSTRUCTED WTHIN THE SUBJECT PROPERfl AND THE PUCERVILE
NCH UILROP EXIsTs TODAY AONG THE WESERLY BOINOARY OF THE SU&ECT PROPERTY
(OWNED CUMENTLY BYftE SPTCJPA).

clTY oF FoLSoM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFoRNIA

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 2 OF 11

,i;:]IJ
-l

FRONT LOT CORNER. ATTACHED SIDEWALK
TYPICAL 1'OFFSET

s

a
l1

c/L i)
PAVEMENT

SEE SHEET 4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

nACKIY&$0mPS
d4ES FuXES $RWOB

. cAsru 00711'e

Page 185

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



FOUNO 1'BRNS DISC STAMPED'LS 9265'SfliN
CONCRffi FOOTING OF OS F€NCE POSI IN LIEU
OF 1-1/2" IRON PIPE STAMPED "LS 7W' PER

R5 18
TO CIry PER

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

U.S. HIGHWAY 5U

s0
PER

t0r9

Nb6"111l'E(8)29610 {ssrsl(8) -

tttzdVgtiTnSEE DETAIL'N
ON THIS SHEET

---6i!16-.-
LOT

SPICJPA TO STAIE

m0m90E 0R 1020
7l RS

OTY OF
20r 70606

162 163

5
161

1

PARCEL 2
244 ]J

r58
cttY OF FOLSOM PHAS€ 3A

432 BM 1
DN 242010201219

r56 153,2
IOT N

12 \

1)
|1

f--- 35 Lorn 
J-L L=171.40(1)

32 v
71

RUSSELL LOT V r09 93
LOI C

PHASE 38
4JJ B[1 1

75f'
t).".

t 31 LOT H
r03

105

LOT F 70 10E 94
30 36

106
101

29
69 89

37 LOT U 101

100 96
38 77

99 saleT27
39

t-
I

+22.81 (6)

t .-----'--
tuon T0 crfr PtR
20030820 0R 5m
CIfi IO STAT€ PIR
2006G08 0R 1019

R/W SflgPA TO STAIE

200609s G rD20

(34149-2)
71 RS t8

ANACHED BNS TAG 'LS 92S'

F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

AL!THAT RE{ PROPERry DESCRBED IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED ON

APRIL 10,2017,IN B@K2017&10, AT PAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDSOF SACWEffiO
COUNry, BEINGAPORTION OF PARCET E AS SHOWN ON TSTCERTAIN RE@RD OF

SURVTNTIED "PLAT OF SURVEY OF THE JOS. WOOOARD EST-', FILEO IN BOOK 7 OF
SlRVryS, MAP NO39, SACRAMENTO COUNTY RECORDS, ALSO BEING A PORTION OF

PARCEL4AS SHOWN IN THAT CERTAIN CERTIFICATE OF COMPUANCE RECORDED ON

MAY 04,199A, IN B@K 19960504,AT PAGE 0791, OFFICIAL RECORDSOF$CUMENTO
COUNTY, SIIUATEO IN SECTIONS 9 & 16. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, MNGE 8 SST, M.D,B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

SOUTH OF P/L O,2

111.

+
18 5011)

SMUD SSEMENT \ LANDS OF ELLIOTT
$.82orAct\\t\

L!
SPiCJPA

19960906 0R 1665
20170609 0R 0822

PER20ts1218

970

-\- - DETAIL'A'

\ ---J ocToBER 2022

SHEET 3 OF 11

73

FENCE NORTH OF

FENCE NORTHOF Ptr

!44j3313_814LR.l

970

AIIACHED BNS TAG 'LS 9265'

129.sl1X6)

NS"55'53'E

N87.039T 9.
N88"55 53"E

151.1011)

t6)

PMCEL A
20170410 0R 0774

(PORTION OF PARCEL E PER 7 BM 39)
LANDS OF ELLIOTT

35 826dC

aJo s55"
NS"55538

o!'

<p
6F
Ei
oi
Pao

FOUND 3/4' IRON PIPE/MET& CAP
STAMPED "LS 9265'PER (4)

SPTCJPA

19960906 0R 1665
20170609 0R 0822

UTILMES)

WlHTHIS

STAMPED LS 591s'PER(6)

i6),

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

o 80 160 320"#' 
MAGKAY&SONPSsruE: r"'15o' 
ilH:ffi*"-ifi!|ffi-"^*:rfifl,1tr

Page 186

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



FOUND 1' BRSS DISC STNPED "LS 9265" Sfl IN

CONCREEFOOTING OFOLD FENCErcST IN LIEU

oF1-t2'TRONPTESTAMPED'LS7W'PER(1)

---1
rcUNERS RIGHTS @INOUISHED PER I562OR8,1562OR 14,

U,S, HIGHWAY 50

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

1562 ffi 20,1562 0R26, 1592 0R s12 AND sq1 0R591

r
I

SEE DETAIL "A' FOUNO 1-114"
SHEEI 5 5915 PER (61

N86"11 00"e

AfrACNED BMSS TAG 'LS 9265'

r0T T
z

ro
158

\
/

157

r56

PARCEL 3 LOT K

E
J.L DRIVE

12\1\2)

STAMPA'LSP6tPER(4) - - - - -
A=14'3925'
L=16a3(1X2)

0
I

IRON PIPE\ 5 SMUO gSEMENTPER FOUND 1-1D',

20114920 0R 1427

-D.E.[)V\ rOT C

104 STAMPEo ',PAC rFrC-RE 53 I2X3)
DESTROYEO 8Y CONSIRUCTION32

3l

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE 2 LARGE LOT

412 BM 7

SNCJPA
19960S60R1665
201 70@9 0R 0822

+
fuCERVLLE ROM o

I,
o
o

q
q
@g

o
€
N
c/L
DE

toD
LE

OR
os

PUE
(R)

RS

sMuo

FOUND SECTION CORNER AS NOTED

FOUND MONUMEM AS NOED

FOUNO 1 14" |RON PTPESTAMPEO"L.S.794',11)

FOUND 3/4 IRON PtPE STAMPED'r.S. 92S"(2)

FOUNDS/6' REtsARWiH PLSTIC CAPSTAMPEO'1S965'12)

FOUND SNDARD CIW OF FOLSOM MONUMENTWELL STAMPED'LS 9265 12)

SET STNOM CIfl OF FOLSOM MONUMEMreTLSTAMPED'L.S 9265'

SET A4 EUSS TAGSTNPED "LS 9265"

SET 3/{ IRON PIPE WTH PSSTIC PLUG STNPED "LS 9265"

SET 5A ESAR WITH PUSTIC CAP STAMPED 'LS 9S5"
OIMENSION POINT

RECOro DATA PER REFERENCE

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
THE WESI LINE OT LOTS 10 NO 11 AS SHOWN AND SO OESIGNATED
ON THAT CERTAIN LARGE LOT FIN& MP FILEO FOR RECOM ON
SEPTEMBER 21,201/ IN BMK 398 Oi ilAPS, AT PAGE 1, SCMMENTO
COUW RECOMSNO HAUNGABEffiING OF NORTh Of11'03' WEST, 0 60 r20 240

---l
SruE: l"=120'

REFERENCES:

o
\21
(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

0)
(8)

(s)

(10)

111)

t12)

433 BM 1

432 BM 1

217 PMg
412 BM7
71 R5 18'
20031218 OR 054 (SMUO ASEMENT)
CALRNS B ROUTE 50 -PM 22.1 AND PM 22-5

20181m9 m0546 (JPAXTNG)

20171212 OR 0970 (SMUD ASEMENT)
2017fr 10 m 0774 (VEST|NG DEED)

1S05q OR0791 (LLA)

ACRES
ACCESS ASEMENT

F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

AlL THAT RAL PROPERil DESCRIAEO IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT OEEO RECORDED ON
APRIL 10,2017,IN BOOK2O17&10, AT PAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACWENTO

COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL EAS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORD OF
SURVry NTLED 'PLAT OF SURVEY OF IHE JOS. WOODARD EST.' FILED IN BOOK 7 OF
SURVryS, MAP NO 39. SACRAMENTOCOUMY RECOROS, ALSO BEING APORTION OF
PARCEL4N SHOWN IN THAT CERTAIN CERTIFICATE OF COMPUANCE RECORDED ON

MAY 04, 1996, IN EOOK 199E0504, AT PAGE 0791, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SCWENTO
COUNTY, SITUATED IN SECTIONS 9 & 16. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, NGES AST, M.O.B,M.

tsooK oF Mfs
CENTERLINE
DMIMGE $SEM€NT

IRRryME OFFER OF OEOICAIION

SDSCAPE ASEMENT
OVEruL
OFFICII RECORDS OFWRAMENTO COUNry
OPEN SPACE
PEDESTRAN ACCESS EASEMENT

PROPERTYLINE

PUBLICUNLIN 4SEMENT
MDII ASRNG
RECORO OFSURWY

SQUARE FEET

SACWENTO MUNICIPA UTILITY D6NCT

(:.i SHEET INDEX

_ BOUNOARY

- 

LOTLINE

'RECORoDISTANCESINMETERSCONVEREDTOU.S. FEflx3.280833

LOT LINE i R]GHT-OF-WAY
qISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

SECTION LINE

rcJACENT PROPERry LNE

SUfiER'S RIGHTS RilNQUISHED

fENCE

Clry OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO CoUNTY. CALIFoRNIA

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 4 OF 11

18

27 28

17 16 15 14
'13

,L- 
x'eue

/ ,oto

12 1

40

DRIVE -

HILLS

DEWEY OAK

Q)t

I
(:,)

I
t

LOT F

I
I

I
I
I

,'f
f

f
20'AElpUElpAE--y/ /
LOT F ,, ,\

51

63

64 59

61

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES

SACRAMENT@UCERVILLE fu SPORTATION
CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

nACIAY&somPs
AdiEEM PUNS gUlwOS

..4$70 (e$)mi'3e

Page 187

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



151.

U.S. HIGHWAY 50

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
+s.12(6)

=--@--r

\

I
7r RS 18

ELLIOfr TO CITY PER

20030820 0R 580

FOUND 1.1/4'IRON PIPE
STAMPS "LS S19'PER (6) 6,

ON
SEE DETAIL A

NGL€ POINTPER (6)

AfrACHED BMSS TAG 'IS 9&5"

l- F.
F
lll
UI
Ia
uJ
uJa

SMUD EASEMENTPER
200312180R09

N54'029'E

)
)

OS/DE/PUE/E

LOT
MANGINl

c/L-

2

1.

3

14
I

i>

/r'o&

LOT J
4.os$c

).'

I

N85'$'1o"jge:8'll9) - 
-' 

- 
337.80

DJyFIe^['gRJvE ---- ---T
\

{
i

I-l
I

I

I

I

+

1

SEE SHEET 6

u
c3

c2

c1

Curue Table

500.00'

20 m'

20.00'

20,00'

3'&'56',

s'3523

B',44'45

odb

26lo',

29.68'

8.4'

21.59

LengS

L1

Line Table

N47164'W(R)

Beain9

4.00'

l€ngh

\
) t- N82"5314'E

1.92(1)

L

10

/ a=m.og

L=S.33'

LOT

o

?p.

R-S-@

L=@.59

ca ,t \t
DETAIL'A"
sGE l = 10'\

0204040

--:54E: l"=4O'
mACIAY&sonP$
flGrrffi PdNs ffi

cAM €il)mrte

F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

{L THAT RSL PROPERTY OESCREEO INTMTCERIAN GRNT DED rcCORDED ON

APRIL 10, 20I7, IN BOOK 2017@10. AT PASE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF $CMMENTO
COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF PSCELEN SHOWN ON TBATCERTAIN RECORD OF

SURVEYTITLED'PhT OF SURVEY OF THE JOS. WOODARD E$." FIIED N AOOK7OF
SURVEYS, UP NO 39, SACMMENTO COUNryRECORDS ASO BEINGAPORTION OF

PARCEL4N SBOWN IN THATCERTAIN CERNFIMTE OF COMPLIANCE RECORDEO ON

MAY@, 1S8,IN BOOK 199805q, ATPAGE 0791, OFFICIAL RECORDSOF SACWEMO
COUNTY, SITUATED IN SECTIONS 9 & 16, TOWNSHIP9 NORTH, NGES ST. M,D.B.M.

clTY oF FoLSoM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 5 OF 11

PARCEL 3
247 PM 9 oas J

23

SF
LOT

12,752
LE

PHASE 2
LARCE LOT

,\ +rz eu z

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

l=47 35
17,146 SF

16
10,613 SF

__ ____L-

15
1 1,320 SF

Page 188

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



FINAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
S\,IALL LOT MAP

ALLTHAT R4 PROPERry OESCRIBrc IN THATCERTAN GMM DEED RE@ROro ON
APRIL 10, 2017, IN BOOK 2017910, AT PAGE 0774. OFFICIAL RECORDS OF $CMMENTO

COUNil, AEINGAPORTION OF PffiCELEAS SHOWN ON TMTCERTAIN RECORD OF
SURVEYTITIEO'PBTOFSIRVEY OFTHE JOS. W@DAro EST" FILEO IN BOOK 7 OF
SURVEYS, @NO39, $CMMENTO COUNry RECORDS,ALSO BEINGA PORTION OF
FARCEL4 AS SHOWN IN THATCERTAN CERTIFIqTE OF COMPLIANCE RECORDED ON
MAY@, 1998,]N BOOK 1S805@, AT PAGE 0791, OFFtq[ RECOrcS OF $CWENTO
COUNTY, SITUATED IN SECTIONS 9 & 16. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, NGE 8 AST M,D.B.M.

SEE SHEEi 5

SEE SHEET 7

r3

='F'-

1427

101 C

1E

VffiIABLEWIDTH ryAPUE(2)

DEWEY OAKDRIVE

17
16

t5
1 4

8?9.81(oA)

19.5 PUE

26sJf
^sq-Tq

276.30

CITY OF FOLSOM I SACRAMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

ocToBER2022
SHEET 6 OF 11

_"\_----- -fztsi.---

mACiliry&somPs
EidEE DlsEB SWOE

icAsTs €r0l77rrile

21

22

34

/r*o a'""'

PARCEL 3 \ 
\T

247 PM I

LOT
MANGINI

r
a
t1

Line Table

N221600E

N88'55'53E

N88's5'53'E

N33.03t7"W

8€dn9

14.W

27.23'

23.71'

29.m

bn9h 22/

,Qo

F
uJ
uJ

=a
L!
l..Ua

L01 r

35

,!t

$

ctr.

/- s.ROCKY HILLS CIRCLE

=N88'55 53E 47.25'-

31

PHASE 2
LARGE LOT
412 BM 7

c8

q
c6

a
c3

c2

Curve Table

6250'

37.50

37.50'

250.00'

2$.m'

20.00'

20 00'

20.00'

15'm'55'

16"00'55'

38'43 59"

12'29'16'

4414tr

s'35'23'

4"4'45',

61'50'3E'

odb

10.4E',

25.35'

54.49'

16.30'

29.88

8.29

21.59'

LengS

30

+
"*,)

\\ 179.0916)

LOT C

0204080

-: SCALE: l'-40'
RUSSELL MNCH

PHASE 38
433 BM 1 \ --t.-\ - -VELVET \

' 'cRovrcottnt \ SHEET 6 OF 11
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 4 FOR OF BEARINGS,

L=39.59

23
9,330 SF

25
9,825SF

&90"03!6' L=31.44'

6

19'

Nza8'00'E

PUE

L=26.83'
4=6'09@"

r5
l;

LOT D
1.237AC

o5

I 4@'

L-rzs eue
I

I
I

I

10
11,14SF

1
12,699SF

I
8,815 SF

NS5"5640"E 1177

2
8.630 SF

7
8.g6SF

8,708SF

19.'PUE J
PAE

4
12,103SF

l=31.39

N@'03?0'w1R)

,r.a' ore --rl

Page 189

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



U.S. HIGHWAY 50

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

ffi'S RIGHTS RELINQUISHED
PA 1S20R6, 1S2 0R 14, 15620R20.
1$20R26,1592 0R512ND S41 0R 591

LOT J
4.086SC

OS/PUE/OE i AE

FUTUREIMIL

N85"5d40'E 1?41.8{OA)
2OPUE/PE/E\

r)
F
uJ
ulI
U)
ut
uta

LOT F

os

// /('
/.! /

,'if.,,.6r,"4 ,a+*

,,s

15

19'5'PUE/PAE
-1 _--
L------

N@.0320'W{R) LOT F
3.477N

os

o
Ftll
ul
Ia
t,rJ
lrla

.19.5 PUE/PE_)--------
12.5.PUE

DEWEY OAK DRIVE
ctr\

---zT6 A=62'4216'

2657f

.-.-'!.f. ctr 5.00'
19.5 R=30 00'

NE5'56Q'E
19.5 PUEi PAEI

14.5 PUE

A=ts'46s" L=2s24 L=13.53

19.5'
tg.s'puer eee --l 5_m

I R=20.m' &97"39!2' LOT E

I 1s5 PUE
n 4.S"03!6' L=31 &' N66'2338V(R)

I
f-12.5 PUE U

=uo
12.5'PUEJ

4l
I

I

L-r2.5'PUE
I

J5
LOT D

SEE SHEET 8 FINAL MAP (PN 11308)
BROADSTONE ESTATES

SMALL LOT MAP
ALLTtsAT R4 PROPERry DESCRIBS INTHATCERTAN GMNTDEED RECORDEDON
APRIL 10, 2017,IN BOOK 2017q10. AT PAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECOROS OF SACWENTO

COUNil, BEINGA PORTION OF PffiCEL EAS SHOWNONMTCERTAIN RECORD OF

SURVEYTITLEO "PLAT OF SURVEY OF THE JOS. W@DARD EST.', FILED IN BOOK 7 OF

SURVEYS, MP NO S, SACWENTO COUNfr RECORDS, AISOBEINGA PORTION OF

PARCEL4AS SHOWN IN THAT CERTAN CERTIFICATE OF COMPLINCE RECOROEO ON

MAY &- 199E,IN B@K19980504,AT PAGEOrul, OFFIO& RECOrcS OF SACMMENTO
COUNry, SITUATED IN SECTIONS 9 & 16. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, MNGE 8 EAST, M.D.E.M,

Clry OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

SEE SHEET 6

+[1

Line Table

N5f3127V

Beahg

40.E3

Length

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 7 OF 11

12
11jmsF

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

Page 190

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOIES, SEE SHEET 4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

12

SEE SHEET 7

DEWEY OAK DRIVE

R:30.00 4.9"q'07'
L1

Line Table

N$'31?7W

Bead.g

40.s

47
LOT F

3,477irc

1J 1e,puErpf I

l-f tz'' 
"'e1z;

I \ 
LOTH

RUSSELL
PHASE 38
433 BM 1

19.5'

r9.5 PUE
PM\2) 

\ t mACxtY&s0mPS
H@ PUiES 9uffiffi
Fff c@erR4.DM,silrr$.tu{! ds6z 1e14?nir$

OGTOBER 2022

SHEET 8 OF 11

_t8M40iEgg81
46

45

44

43

0204080

---l
SC[E: 1'=4O'

a1 
FTNAL MAP (PN 11308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

ruLTHATRilL PROPERTY DESCRI#D IN THATCERTAN GMNT DEED RECOruE ON
PRL 10. 201 7, IN BOOK 2017041 O, AT PAGE 0774 OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACMMENTO

COUNry, BEING APORTION OF PARCEL ENSHOWN ON TMTCERTAN RECORD OF

SURVry TILED'PhTOFSURVEY OFTHEJOS. WOODARD EST.', FILED IN BOOKT OF
SURVEYS, W NO39, SACWENTO COUNry RECORDS, {SO BEINGA PORTION OF
PNCEL4 AS SHOWN IN THATCERTAIN CERTIFICATE OFCOMPIIACE RECORDEDON
MY 04. 1SE, tN BOOK 1S80504, AT PAGE 0791, OFFtCt& RECORDS OF $CWENTO
COUNN SFUAEO IN SEqIONS 9 & 16 TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, NGE 8 EAST, M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

_--611i-
181

dLr

d<-rq"\-
137 80 :r

il

L ,g.s eue
PAE ard

sEcnoN g

sEcnoN 16

5.00'

F12.5'PUES/

s;
{l
P

{

=]

i1

31
Rl
3'
{/

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
I

LOT F

os

"i

o)

-"t
kl

co'lr

;,
"l

(o
A

_8
O)I(t)

LOT D

+
.=t i
oE/

t95'

)

I
L-rz.s pue

I

LOT U

I 12S PUE(2)
WOTH I95'PUE

PE (2)
72

EVA/PUE{2)__----\ rl \\

u
7,865SF

I

I

J

14.5ruE1

11418SF

PAE

130.

40
10 &8 SF

rgspuerpeeJ

37
9,59 SF

I

12.5 PUE

5.00' l

t--
I

I

LOT E
1.524$C

os

12.5' PUE

A*3"!6'50' l:29 24'

5.00

N85'56!0'E(R)
19 5'PUE/ PE

19.5'PUE r P€ --l

36
10,179SF

Page 191

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



a=9"39'36'

.195'L-

42
9,*SF

47
10,985SF

48
10.712SF

"q

49
10,120SF

50
9,089 SF

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

SEE SHEET 8 SEE SHEET 7
LOT F

0s

AAUreRS RIGHTS RELINQUISHEO
15620R 14.15620R20.

1 562 0R 26. 1 592 0R 51 2. 5@1 0R 591

RUSSELL RANCH
PHASE 38
431 BM 1

73
LOT F

os
A=10'55'S'

M0'3312'E 1nq r, \c_,91e

*T--
.,.ori

LOT G

4
SEE SHEET ,,I1

6l
M4'59r5"E

rs!

N05'00!5w(R)
LOT J

4.0slaC
os/0E
PUE/SX z

\--
--jR

rz5
p$9

510204080

--E-
SCALE: 1"=40'

"qrP
\5 

,s.s'eue

rz3 rg3
F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

ALL THAT RilL PROPERryDESCRBED IN THATCERTAIN GMNTOEED RECORDEO ON

APRIL 10,2017, IN BOOK2017@10, ATPAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECOROSOF $CMMENTO
COUNry, BEING APORTION OF PARCEL EAS SHOWN ON frAT CERTAIN RECORDOF
SURVEYTITLED'P[TOFSURVEY OFftE JOS. WOODARD EST.', FIED IN BOOKT OF
SURVEYS, MS NO 39. SACMMENTOCOUNry RECOROS,ALSO BEING A PORTION OF
PMCEL4N SHOWN IN THATCERTAIN CERTIFICATEOFCOMPLINCE RECORDED ON

MAY 04, 1S8. IN BOOK 199EOg, AT PAGE 0791, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACMMENTO
COUNry, SIruAGD IN SECTIONS 9 & 16. TOWNSHIP 9 NORft, MNGE 8 AST. M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACMMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

67

19.5 PUE --'\
1O

}ee

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 9 OF 11
MACIGY&SMPS
4CilES F$EF swn*
r%crslc@.N,sdE1$ toalEas[ prc)il]re SHEET 9 OF 11

Page 192

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



SEE SHEET 9
FINAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

ALLTHAT RA PROPERil DESCREED IN THATCERTAIN GMNT NED RECOroEDON
APRIL 10,2017, IN rcOK 2017fr10, AT PAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF $CMMENTO

COUNry, BEINGAPORTION OF PARCEL E AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORO OF
SURVEYTITLED'PHT OFSURVEY OF*E JOS. WOODARD EST,', FILED IN AOOKT OF

SURVEYS, MP NO 39. SACMMENIO COUNN RECORDS, ALS BEINGAPORTION OF
PARCEL4AS SHOM IN HTCERTAIN CERNFICATEOF COMPLISCE RECORDED ON

mY 04. 199E. rN BOOK 199605q, AT PAGE 0791. OFFICI{ RECORDS OF $CWENTO
COUNil. SITUATED IN SEqIONS 9 & 16, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, NGE 8 4ST, M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

lnmnY&$0mPs
EiqTffi PWXEB SWMG
cscrant&req!*tro tu0e cAaru os)rhls

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 10 OF 11

LOT A

12.s PuEl l
___--I--

I

l-- 19.5'PUE

I PAE

I

I
I

I

19.5

0204080

---SCALE: l"=40'

SPOTTED DOG

CdURT

- ---1-^
125 PUEJ

67

c3

c2

c1

Curue Table

1900

1900

19.00'

r021r

83'57'28',

s"5945"

&b

2.33

27.U'

30.16'

64

L3

v
L1

Line Teble

N03"$$.E

N87'03'52W

N86'04!7 W(R)

N02'$'m'E(R)

bdng

16.15',

39.15'

500

500

Len9ih

19.5'PUE J
PEI

I

I

\

i
i

I

I
>c
#st
6Iao
o-
E=a'<s-
z
F

,4
62

an.5
I

I

I

I

U
tro
u2

E
Fz
@

u
J
G

$rE

sef;

SEE SHEET 1 1

'' p|E

LOT K

66

^11

t
t

crttztl

63

65

N03'55'53"E

PURPLE SAGE CIRCLE

-1 \

110

\--

r58

LOT J
4.08MC

RUSSELL RANCH
PHASE 38
431 BM 1

5'\

i:joi.d>

15.00In0(2iG)

ctr\
DEHONE CIRCLE

157

OS/DE/PUE/S

LOT L

15'

)
€t

-l
ql

12.5'PUE
PA€ (2) F

92

LOT D l\
SHEET 10 OF 11

t5' 15'/
FOUND I.1/2'IRON PIPE
STAMPED ',PACt FIC-RE 53'(2)(3)
DESNOYEO 8Y CONSTRUCTION

RUSSELL RANCH
PHASE 3A
432 BM 1

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 4 FOR EASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

( t9.5,pUE

?8 60'

78'

14,1785F

a+'05'4'

60
12,376 SF

58
11,92 sF

'- PPE

57
13,266 SF

u
10,1E0SF

9,976SF

51
9,02E SF

Page 193

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



F|NAL MAP (PN 15-308)

BROADSTONE ESTATES
SMALL LOT MAP

49 50 51 52
53

48

19.5 PUE1
PAEALLTHAT RfrPROPAfr DESCRBEO IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECOMEDON

APRIL 10,417, IN B@K20170410, ATPAGE 0774, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACMMENTO
COUNry, BEINGAPORION OF PNCEL E AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORD OF
SURVryTIIED'PhT OF SURVry OFTHE JOS. WOODARO EST,", FILED IN B@K7 OF
SURVEYS MAP NO 39, SACMMENTOCOUNTY RECORDS, ALSO AENGAPORTION OF
PARCEL 4AS SHOM NTHAT CERTAIN CERTIFICATEOF COMPUANCE RECOROED ON
MAY &, 1998, IN BOOK 1998059, AT PAGE 0791, OFFICII RE@ROS OF SACMMENTO
COUNTY,gruATED IN SECTIONS9 & 16, TOWSHIP 9NORTH. MNGEs AST, M,D.B.M.

54

47

55

Clry OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA ,' (
mAGltY&sUnPS
HilES FffiE6 !llw3
16 tubrb @ fr* sun r0 tue tr cA Bts letr) rln$

ocToBER 2022 ,/
SHEET 11 OF 11 56

Q

ct

Curue Table

m.00'

l9!q

45'm!0'

90's!5'

Dab

15.71

s_18'

Le4th q
45

57

+

.lQ
q</

44

o204080

--:SCALE: 1"=40'

43/
I

/.n19.5'PUE

o2/

I

I

I

41

19,5'PUE /PAE

61
16.15'

L=2 33'

73 \

PAE(2)

74

LOT V w{2)- PLEASANT RAVINE 0RlyE
,>-- - -rJ 
----- 

tit;-----\

r2.5 PUE(2) 1
-t u 1..-

\ -d8r.i,i,*i5"
-r

?
l.- Lot S

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3B
433 BM 1 ,a

12.5

75
11,633 5F

,(- t' 0 
"'

L=76.04

/ 

^=rrr,,

9$-'1ql3_WlRl

LOT G
39,261 SF

=

a

\
I

PUE ---{

78
9,666SF

12.5'

68
€,791 SF

70
8.E61 SFL=13.23

F-12.5 PUE

\ rc.oo

N03'55'53'E

A=6"48'46'
t=59 45

1029SF
19.5 PUE/P€

63
9,301 SF

54
10,46SF

\
\
\..\b5,

10.633 SF :

I

19.5 PUE / PAEi

4 c4\175.25

E

484.5915'E

SPOTTED DOG

COURT

;l
ll
FI

=i

fl
3'
3l-l
tl i
,:l o

ir
s\

1

R:35.@'

22

Ft
fo
O
ooo
ou
F

\r

'"t-d

Fil
?j

d

q,

ts_

n

79.5,

/
!0

f/
si
{l
:l
t,
"t 195

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 4 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES SHEET 11 OF 11

Page 194

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 4

BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Page 195

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



-t'\.
t: l:1,I

\i : I ll(ill\\ 1Y !i'
Villase 2

4l I.0TS-65 x 105 (YP.)

Villas l

10LOTS-dJril05 [TYP.)

i

fS
.l I
4n-r-

5

c/2-31lO A3e

zicl.q c0MNiRclI.
?ARINi]RS ILC

*Tl1.. :r

\'USSELL &AICI
(AP?ROVID lFIIIAI V' M P)

a/?.n 9a-a3!
caRPaN[R 4\9 _.C

.,:; .:it'_"'l{iT" -..i-i..
_.1t- ' ,:;_ii

l::J r .:rii'i*. 'f,: :t!i.-

ili:,:/%T'
;: i;:, -

'rl',l )
'. :t

', ;/.i \

"rr:t.'
i,''i.ll.',li;;,, il:r 1 l'':&.?i

TENTANVE W INFORMATION

+

VICINITY MAP ,A 39 RrGHT-or-wAY
\:, L.d srest. sapaated sdewalk Lo€r sr60l - Arbched si&wafi

BENCIIMARK

!'::'a'*"
't: i:.i.:.
-Lr'

- ' : r'iaif !

-r ri..'r ffi *'*):,,,,:,lifi

";i.*:i :s!'
NOTES

I A 39 RrcHT-oF-wAY

# '€'-==*'"rl*Aibd6d sidda k on. sido conn6clon ro Rrss.i Ran.h Scdion F
(Paenq and sdeark oh. slde)

"'-.-'g"

SMALL LOT
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

BROADSTONE ESTATES
lcsu{Pu.,de,iij:l N ?:lj}.'

LAND USE SUMMARY

S€lc: l '= 100

NACKAY&SONPS

oclobe. I0. 2015

Page 196

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 5

TABLE OF CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL
FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES

SUBDIVISION

Page 197

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDT!'ISION PROJECT (PN 21-234)
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF TIfi INTERSECTION OF U.S. HIGHWAY 50 AND PLACERVILLE ROAI)

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVTSION MAP EXTENSION

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the improvement plans

and the final map for the project.
The approved improvement plans

are in substantial compliance with
the preliminary grading and

drainage plans, the preliminary
site and utility plans, offsite
infrastructwe exhibit, the

preliminary landscape plans and

the community design guidelines.

The final map for this subdivision
is in substantial compliance with
the approved Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map.

Improvement plans for this
subdivision have been reviewed
approved by the City. Landscape

plans for this subdivision have

also been reviewed and approved

by the City.

The smalllot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the
subdivision was approved by the
Citv Council on Anril 11-2017.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

CD (P)(EXB)

cD (P)

When
Required

G,I,M,B

G, I,M,

OG

Condition of Approval

Final Development Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community Development
Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced below:

I . Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map dated 3-9- I 7

2. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan dated 3-9-17

3. Preliminary Utility Plan dated3-9-17

4. Preliminary Offsite Improvements Plan dated.3-9-17

5. Russell Ranch and Broadstone Estates at Russell Ranch Design Guidelines

6. Inclusionary Housing Plan

The Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map, Russell Ranch and Broadstone Estates at Russell

Ranch Design Guidelines and Inclusionary Housing Plan are approved for the development ofa 81

lot single family residential subdivision (Broadstone Estates Subdivision). Implementation of the

project shall be consistent with the above referenced items and these conditions ofapproval.

Plan Suhmittal
All civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be submitted to the

Community Development Department for review and approval to ensure conformance with this
approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements ofthe City ofFolsom.

Validity
This approval of the Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a period of
three years or thirty-six months (April 11 , 2025). Pursuant to Section 2.2 of Amendment No. 1 to
ARDA, the term of the Proiect Design Guidelines shall track the term of the map.

Mitigation
Measure

2.

J.

Page 198

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR Tm, BROADSTOTIE ESTATES SUBDMSION PROJECT (PN 21-234)
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF TITX,INTERSECTION OF U,S. HIGHWAYsO AND PLACERVILLE ROAI)

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SIJBDTVISION MAP EXTENSION

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

All required infrastructure to
serve the subject subdivisions has

been identified and will be
required to be constructed prior to
the issuance ofthe first building
permit. There is no phasing plan
associated with the infrastructure
necessary to serve the subject
subdivision.

Responsible
Department
PFFP. M,B
CDD(EXPX
B), PW, FD,

EWR, PR

When
Required

M

Condition of Approval

Improvements in the PFFP
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all thresholds, timelines and deadlines for the construction
and final completion of various improvements for the entire Folsom Pian Area. The various
improvements are outlined and detailed in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities
Financing Plan (PFFP) dated January 28,2014 and adopted by City ofFolsom Resolution No. 9298.

These improvements in the PFFP include, but are not limited to, the backbone infrastructure water
(water reservoirs, water transmission mains, booster pump stations, pressure reducing valve stations,

etc.), sanitary sewer (lift stations and forced mains) systems, recycled water mains and associated

infrastructure, roadway and transportation (future interchanges, major arterial roadways, etc.)

improvements , aquatic center (community pool), parks, fire stations, municipal services center,

community library, etc. The thresholds and timelines included in the PFFP require facilities to be

constructed and completed based on number of building permits issued and in some cases, number
of residential units that are occupied. The owner/applicant shall be required to address these

thresholds and timelines as the project moves forward through the various developments stages and

shall be subject to the various fair share requirements, subject to the provisions ofthe PFFP, the

ARDA and anv amendment thereto.

Mitigation
Measure

4.

Page 199

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES ST]BDIVISION PROJECT (PN 21-234)
SOUTIIEAST CORNER OT'THEINTERSECTION OT'U.S. HTGHWAY 50 AND PLACNRVILLE ROAI)

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDWISION MAP EXTENSION

Condition
Satisfred?

Yes

Comments

The City standard subdivision
improvement agreement includes
language that satisfies this
condition. The subdivision
improvement agreement will be

executed by the City Manager
upon approval by the City
Council.

Responsible
Denartment
CD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

When
Required

OG

Condition ofApproval

Indemnity for City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnifu, and hold harmless the City and its agents,

officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers
or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the City or any ofits agencies,

departrnents, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or legislative body conceming the project,
which claim, action or proceeding is brought within the time period provided therefore in
Government Code Section 66499.37 or other applicable statutes of limitation. The City will
promptly notify the owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will cooperate

fully in the defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in the defense, the owner
owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City
or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition. The City may, within its unlimited

*..Tr.j.", 
participate in the defense of any such claim, action or proceeding if both of the following

a

The City bears its own attomey's fees and costs; and

The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such claim, action or
proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant. The owneri applicant's
obligations under this condition shall apply regardless of whether a Final Map is ultimately recorded

with respect to this project.

Mitigation
Measure

Page 200

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 21.234)
SOUTIIEAST CORNER OF TIM INTERSECTION OF U.S. HIGHWAY 50 AIID PI,ACERVILLE ROAI)

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE STJBDI!'ISION MAP EXTENSION

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has

complied with all applicable
mitigation measures from the
FPASP FEIfuEIS and other noted
approved environmental
documents prior to the issuance
of a grading permit.
Additionally, construction
inspection and monitoring was
conducted throughout
construction by the City and/or its
Consultants
The owner/applicant has

complied with all of the
requirements in the Amended and
Restated Development
Agreement and all amendments
thereto.

The owner/applicant has funded
and participated in a MMRP
reporting program performed by
the City's consultant (Helix)
and/or City staff.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD

cD (E)

cD (P)

When
Reouired

OG

G, I,M,B

OG

Condition of Approval

Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
The vesting tentative subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon compliance with all
environmental mitigation measures in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FEIR/EIS) and the

Broadstone Estates Addendum.

ARDA and Amendments
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendment No. I to the ARDA and any

approved amendments by and between the City and the landowner/developer ofthe project.

Mitigation Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall be required to participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting
progmm pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Resources Code 21081.6. The
mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
FEIR/EIS have been incorporated into these conditions ofapproval in order to mitigate or avoid
significant effects on the environment. These mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are

identified in the mitigation measure column. Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all
mitigation monitoring (e.g., staff and consultant time).

Mitigation
Measure

6.

7

8

Page 201

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE BROADSTOIIE ESTATES SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 21-234)
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF TIIE INTERSECTION OF U.S.IIIGEWAY 50 AND PLACERVILLE ROAI)

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATWE SUBDTVISION MAP EXTENSION

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant provided
onsite security during
construction and has incorporated
line of sight guidelines into
landscaping plans at intersections
which have been reviewed and
approved by the City.

The owner/applicant has paid all
current taxes and fees associated
with this subdivision.

The owner/applicant has paid all
taxes and fees associated with this
subdivision and filed a tax
segregation request for applicable
taxes.

Responsible
Denartment

POLICE/SECURITY REQUIREMENT

PD

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE REOUIREMENTS
cD (PXE)

CD (E)

When
Reouired

G,I, B

OG

OG

Condition ofApproval

The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all reasonable
crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be considered:

A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot secwity fence shall be constructed
around the perimeter of construction areas.

Security measwes for the safety ofall construction equipment and unit appliances.

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at intersections or screen
overhead lighting.

Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at the rate and

amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and the Amended and Restated
Develooment Agreement.
Assessments
Ifapplicable, the owner/applicant shall pay offany existing assessments against the properfy, or file
necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.

Mitigation
Measure

9

10.

ll

Page 202

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE BROADSTOTIE ESTATES SUBDMSION PROJECT (PN 21-234)
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF TIIE INTERSECTION OF U.S, IIIGHWAY 50 AI{D PLACERVILLE ROAD

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP EXTENSION

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
pdor to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Owner/Applicant shall pay
all required City fees and Plan
Area wide fees prior to issuance
of building permits.

The City has not yet utilized any

outside services for any type of
legal issues for this subdivision. If
at any time during the

development of this subdivision.
any outside legal services were
necessary, the owner/applicant
would be required to comply with
this condition.

The City has provided notice to
the owner/applicant for various
Consultants perlorming services
for the development ofthis
subdivision. The City has

collected deposits in advance of
such work for these services.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (P) PW,
PK

CD (PXE)

CD (PXE)

When
Reouired

B

OG

G,I,M,B

Condition of Approval

FPASP Development Impact Fees

The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area development
impact fees in place at the time of approval or subsequently adopted consistent with the Public
Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement and amendments thereto, unless exempt

by previous agreement. The owner/applicant shall be subject to all applicable Folsom Plan Area
plan-wide deve'loprnent impact fees in effect at such tirne that a building permit is issued. These
fees may include, but are not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation Management Fee,

Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee, Housing Trust Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, resewations or other exactions imposed on this project
will begin on the date of final approval or otherwise shall be governed by the terms of Amendment
No. I to the ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at the fee rate set forth in the PFFP and the ARDA.
Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services ofoutside legal counsel to assist in the

implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing and/or revising
agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If the City utilizes the services of such
outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the owneriapplicant ofthe outside counsel
selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all
outside legal fees and costs incurred and documented by the Cify for such services. The
owner/applicant may be required, at the sole discretion of the City Attomey, to submit a deposit to
the City for these services prior to initiation of the services. The owneri applicant shall be
responsible for reimbursement to the City for the services regardless ofwhether a deposit is
required.

Consultant Sewices
Ifthe City utilizes the services ofconsultants to prepare special studies or provide specialized design
review or inspection services for the project, the City shail provide notice to the owner/applicant of
the outside consultant selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall
reimburse the City for actual costs incurred and documented in utilizing these services, including
administrative costs for City personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to
initiating review of the Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans, or beginning inspection,
whichever is aoolicable.

Mitigation
Measure

12.

13

14.

Page 203

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition

YesThe City has reviewed and
approved a phasing plan for this
subdivision, which identifies all
necessary utilities, points of
access for emergency services
and off-site improvements
necessaxy to serve this
subdivision. Al1 required off-site
public improvements for this
subdivision have been completed
to the satisfaction ofthe City

Comments

CDD(E),
EWR, PW,

FD

ResponsibleWhen

G,I,M

Phasing Plan
The owner/applicant shall prepare a complete and comprehensive phasing plan and shall submit
the phasing plan to the City for each proposed phase ofdevelopment. The phasing plan shall
include all required inftastructure for each proposed phase ofdevelopment. The infrastructure
shall include all required on-site and off-site improvements, including but not limited to, water

system improvements ( dishibution and ftansmission mains, booster pump stations, water
reservoirs, PRV stations, etc.), Recycled water mains and associated infrastructure, sanitary sewer

improvements (sewer mains, lift stations, forced mains, etc.) roadway and transportation
improvements, storm drainage improvements (detention/water quality basins, outfalls, etc.) and

all other necessary improvements required for each phase ofdevelopment. The phasing plan shall

include itemized cost estimates for all required improvements and the phasing plan shall be

reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval ofgrading and/or improvements plans.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

GRADING
15.

Page 204

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

The owner/applicant obtained
Rights of Entry, construction
easements and grant deeds for all
off-site improvements prior to
commencement of grading. All
rights-of-entry are on file with the
Community Development
Department.

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment

cD (E)G,I

When
Required

G, I,M
The City Engineer may condition the phasing to ensure that each phase functions independently
and is consistent with the minimum utility and access standards of the City. All maps filed in
phases will be required to have two points of access for vehicle access and/or general traffic
purposes for each phase and all off-site utilities deemed necessary as determined by the City
Engineer.

Improvement plans for all phases that include half sections of streets shall include a minimurn of
I 5 feet of pavement over the centerline, to allow two-way traffic and shall be subject to approval
of the Community Development Department and Fire Department.

The City will not dictate the order of the phasing provided that the fust phase meets the following
requirements;

All offsite utilities (i.e. water, sanitary sewer, recycled water, storm drainage, roadway
improvements, etc.) necessaxy to serve the project shall be completed and accepted by the
City Engineer.

a

Off-site improvements / Rights of EnW
For any improvements constructed on private property that are not under the ownership or control
ofthe owner/applicant (and are not subject to the provisions ofthe Amended and Restated
Development Agreement between the City of Folsom and the property owner), all rights-of-entry,
and if necessary, and any permanent easements shall be obtained and provided to the City.

All rights of entry, construction easements, either permanent or temporary and other easements

shall be obtained and shall be fully executed by all affected parties and shall be recorded with the
Sacramento County Recorder, where applicable, prior to approval ofgrading and/or improvement
olans.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

cont.

15.

16.

Page 205

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant submitted a

grading plan incorporating all
geotechnical recommendations
for review and received approval
bv the Citv.
The owner/applicant submitted a

plan and retained Youngdahl &
Associates for monitoring and
testing during construction.
Copies ofthe plan and test results
are on file with the Community
Development Deoartrnent

Comments

A geotechnical report has been
prepared by the consulting firm of
Youngdahl & Associates, Inc.,
which includes an analysis for
site suitability, roadway, and
pavement design. The
Community Development
Departrnent has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans

for the subdivision to ensure that
all recommendations of the
Geotechnical report have been
addressed.

cD (E)

cD (P)
cD (E) (B)

Responsible
DeDartm€nt

cD (E)

G

G

When
Required

G

G e ot e ch n i c al Rec o mme ndatio n s
The owner/applicant shall submit to the Engineering Division, for review and approval, a grading
plan for the project site which ensures that all geotechnical recommendations specified in the
geotechnical report are properly incorporated and utilized in the design.

Geotechnical Mo nitoring Program
The owner/applicant shall contract with a geotechnical engineer who shall develop a program to
monitor the site during constmction to ensure compliance with the recommendations presented in
the geotecbnical report(s) and conditions for performing such monitoring. The geotechnical

monitoring program shall include a description ofthe improvements areas where geotechnical

monitoring shall be required. The completed program shall be submitted to the City prior to
aooroval ofanv eradine and/or improvement plan.

Geotechnical Report
Prior to the issuance ofany grading permit, the owner/applicant shall have a geotechaical report
prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer that includes an analysis of site preparation, soil
bearing capacity, appropriate sources and tlpes of fill, potential need for soil amendments, road,

pavement and parking areas, stuctural foundations, including retaining wall desigus, grading
practices, soil corrosion ofconcrete and steel, erosion /winterization, seismic grormd shaking,

liquefaction and expansive/unstable soils.

Condition ofApproval

3A7-lb

Mitigation
Measure

347-la

3A7-ta

17

18-

19

Page 206

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant was not
required to perform a seismic
refraction survey for the grading
ofthis subdivision. The grading
was completed and furalized
without the need for any blasting
and the geotechnical engineer
determined during the course of
grading that the seismic refraction
survey was not necessary.
Compliance with this condition
was monitored through
construction inspection.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

When
Required

GPrepare a Seismic Refraction Sumey and Obtain Appropriate Permits for all On-Site and Off-
siu Elements East of Old Plncemille Road

Before the start of all construction activities east of Old Placerville Road, owner/applicant shall
retain a licensed geotechnical engineer to perform a seismic refraction survey. Project-related
excavation activities shall be carried out as recommend by the geotecbnical engineer, Excavation
may include the use ofhealy-duty equipment such as large bulldozers or large excavators, and
may include blasting. Appropriate permits for blasting operations shall be obtained from the

relevant Cify or county jurisdiction, if applicable, prior to the start of any blasting activities.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall
be coordinated by owner/ applicant with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or
Sacramento Counties).

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

31'.7420.

Page 207

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

The improvements plans for all
water systems have isolation
valves and incorporate design
standards that allow the City to
isolate portions ofthe City's
water system in the event of
failure.

Comments

The required Geotechnical Report
in this condition is no longer
applicable. This condition was
added to the project since the
original concept for water supply
contemplated extending a large
diameter water main from the
Sacramento River to the FPA. In
lieu of the water supply being
extended through the various
jurisdictions noted in this
condition, the water supply
provided to the FPA comes from
conservation efforts by the City to
provide the needed water supply
for the FPA. The new water
supply proposal was validated in
2014.

EWR, CD
(E)

Responsible
Denarfment

(EXEWR)
CD

When
Reouired

G, I

IIncorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures Into Final Pipeline Design
Isolation valves or similar devices shall be incorporated into all pipeline facilities to prevent
substantial losses of surface water in the event ofpipeline rupture, as recommended by a licensed
geotechnical or civil engineer. The specifications ofthe isolation valves shall conform to the
California Building Code and American Water Works Association (AWWA) standards.

Prepare Geotuchnical Report(s) for the Off-site Vl/ater Facilities and Implement Required
Measures.

The owner/applicant shall provide a comprehensive facility design for all proposed Off-site Water
Facility improvements and shall comply with the site-specific design recommendations as

provided by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer. The final geotechnical and/or civil
engineering report shall address and make recommendations on the following:

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the geotechnical investigation
shall include subsurface testing of soil and groundwater conditions, and shall determine
appropriate foundation designs that are consistent with the version ofthe Califomia Building
Code that is applicable at the time building and grading permits are applied for. All
recommendations contained in the final geotechnical engineering report shall be implemented by
the owner/applicant.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

38.7-|a

3B.7-1b

2l

22.

Page 208

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

During the course ofgrading and
construction for this subdivision
no mine shafts or funnels were
located or discovered.

Staging areas for this subdivisron
were shown on the approved
grading plans and located away
from biologically sensitive areas.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the retaining wall
material for this subdivision and
they are consistent with the
adj oining Russell ranch
subdivision which is recently
been constructed.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (P) CD
(E) (B)

cD (P) (E)G

When
Reouired

G

G

Mine Shaft Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open cuts,
tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structues existing on the project site, with
specific recommendations for the sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet all applicable
health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be prepared by an appropriately
licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City
orior to approval of eradine plans.

Material Storage Areas
The owner/applicant shall locate staging and material storage areas as far away from sensitive
biological resources and sensitive land uses (e.g., residential areas, schools, parks) as feasible.
Staging and material storage areas shall be screened from adjacent occupied land uses in earlier
development phases to the maximum extent practicable. Screens may include, but are not limited
to, the use of visual barriers such as berms or fences. Staging and material storage areas shall be
shown on all eradinE and/or improvement plans prior to plan approval by the CiW.

Retaining llalls
All retaining walls constructed on the open space lots or in any area visible to the public shall be
constructed of rockery or split face masonry block. If the adj oining portion of the Russell Ranch
subdivision (located to the south and east ofthe subject property) has been constructed or is
approved to be constructed prior to construction ofthe Broadstone Estates Subdivision, the
materials to be used for the retaining walls for the Broadstone Estates project shall be the same as

those used on the Russell Ranch project.

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

3A1-4

23

25.

24.

Page 209

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a
joint traffic management plan that
was approved by the Cify
Engineer and is on file at the
Community Development
Department.

cD (E), PW

Responsible
Denartment

When
Reouired

GTraffic and ParHng Management Plan
Prior to the approval ofthe grading plan and or construction, the owner/applicant shall prepare a

construction traflic and parking management plan to the satisfaction ofthe City Traffic Engineer
and subject to review by any affected agencies, ifnecessary. The plan shall ensure that acceptable
operating conditions on local roadways and freeway facilities are maintained. Measures typically
used in traffic conhol plans include advertising ofplanned lane closures, warning signage, a

flagperson to direct traffic flows when needed, and methods to ensure continued access by
emergency vehicles. During project construction, access to existing land uses shall be maintained
at all times, with detours used as necessary during road closures. At a minimum, the plan shall
include the following:

. Description oftrucks including number and size oftrucks per day (i.e., 85 trucla per day),
expected arrivaVdeparture times, and truck circulation patterns.

. Description of staging area including location, maximum number of trucks
simultaneously permitted in staging area, use of traffic control personnel, and specific
signage.

. Description of street closures and/or bicycle and pedestrian facility closures including
duration, advance warning and posted signage, safe and efficient access routes for existing
businesses and emergency vehicles, and use ofmanual traffic control.

. Description ofd.riveway access plan including provisions for safe vehicular, pedestrian,
and bicycle travel, minimum distance from any open trench, special signage, and private
vehicle access.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure
34. 14-126.

Page 210

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a
joint traffic management plan that
was approved by the City
Engineer and is on file at the
Community Development
Department.

Responsible
DeDertment

cD (E)

When
Required

GPrepare TrafJic Control Plan.

Prior to construction, a Traffic Control Plan for roadways and intersections affected by
construction shall be prepared. The Traffic Control Plan shall designate haul routes and comply
with requirements in the encroachment permits issued by the City of Rancho Cordova,
Sacramento County, and Caltrans and any other local agencies, including but not limited to the

City, ifapplicable. The Traffic Control Plan to be prepared by the project construction
contractor(s) shall, at minimum, include the following measures:

periods, possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision of construction signage.

feasible.

hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification ofaltemative routes and

detours to enable for the avoidance of the immediate construction zone.

construction throughout the construction period. This information will be posted in a local
newspaper, via the City's web site, or at City Hall and will be updated on a monthly basis.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

27

Page 211

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The required roadway
assessments in this condition are

no longer applicable. This
condition was added to the
project since the original concept
for water supply contemplated
extending a large diameter water
main from the Sacramento River
to the FPA. In lieu of the water
supply being extended through
the various jurisdictions noted in
this condition, the water supply
provided to the FPA comes from
conservation efforts by the City
to provide the needed water
supply for the FPA. The new
water supply proposal was
validated in 2014.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E)

When
Reouired

GAssess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Condition*
Prior to construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for assessing current road
conditions for off-site improvement haul routes including the local access roads and develop post

construction road restoration requirements. As part ofthe encroachment permitting process, an
agreement shall be entered into with applicable jurisdictions prior to construction that details post
construction road restoration requirements. Statrwittt Sacramento County or Folsom shall review
the post construction restoration standards for each ofthe affected roadways. The owner/applicant
shall perform roadway repairs or rehabilitation as necessary such that post construcfion
requirements are met.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

28.

Page 212

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant is required
to submit a monthly equipment
usage report to the Sacramento

MetropolitanAfu Quality
Management District
(SMAQMD). Copies of the

monthly reports are available
upon request from the city.

The Solid Waste Diversion and

Recycling was not required as the

Off-site Water Facilities do not
include the construction of the

Off Site Water Facilities in
Rancho Cordova and

unincorporated areas of
Sacramento County.

Responsible
DeDArtment

cD (E)

SMAQMD

When
Required

GDevelop and Implement a Plan to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Constaction-
Generated Toxic Air Contaminant Emissions.

The owner/applicant(s) shall develop a plan to reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs
generated by project construction activity. Each plan shall be developed by the owneriapplicant(s)
in consultation with SMAQMD. The plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval
before the approval ofany grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences are the least

likely to be occupied, requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in use, and prohibiting heavy
trucks from idling for more than 3 minutes. Applicable measures shall be included in all project
plans and specifications for all project phases.

Signs shall be posted at all truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered trucks must be

shut offwhen not in use for longer than 3 minutes on the premises in order to reduce idling
emissions.

The implementation and enforcement of all measures identified in each plan shall be funded by
the owner/applicant for the respective phase ofdevelopment.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

34.2-4a
34.2-4b

29

i-.-: 
- 

.- ,

Page 213

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Setisfied?

Yes

Comments

The development ofthis
subdivision has been conducted
where there are no existing
residences within 200 feet ofany
of the construction related
activity. Therefore the study
required for this condition was
not required.

Rdsponsible
DeDartment

CD (EXP)

When
Required

GConduct Project-Level Diesel Particulate Matter (DPM) Screening and Implement Measures to
Reduce Annual DPM to Acceptable Concentrations.

ScreeningJevel DPM assessments shall be conducted for diesel-powered pump operations
proposed within 200 feet ofresidences or otler sensitive receptors. These analyses should include
exact distances between the receptors and operations, and include the actual DPM emissions for
the engines proposed. Ifthe analysis shows an annual average DPM concentration from project
operations at residences within 200 feet ofthe DPM source to be greater than 0.024 pglm3,the
engine location shall be moved to a location where the annual average DPM concentration from
project emissions at the residences is less than 0.024 pglm3. The acceptable concentration of
0.024 pglm3 was determined using the current OEHHA cancer potency factor and methodology
for diesel exhaust (OEHHA 2003). If diesel €xhaust concentrations at the affected receptor would
be below 0.024 pglm3, then the cancer health risk would be less thaa 9.9 cancers in a million
oooulation.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

38.2-3b30.

Page 214

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satis{ied?

Comments

The owner/applicant has included
several approved
recommendations from the

SMAQMD for implementation
dwing construction. See

Condition #39 for a more detailed
list of construction
implementation measures.

Responsible
Denartment
CDD(E), (P)

'When

Reouired
GImplement Greenhoase Gas Reduction Measures d.uring Construction.

Prior to approval ofa grading permit, the owner/applicant(s) shall stipulate that these measures be

implemented within the project notes.

1) Construction vehicles and equipment will be properly maintained at all times in
accordance with manufacturer's specifications, including proper tuning and timing of engines.

Equipment maintenance records and equipment design specification data sheets shall be kept on-
site during construction and demolition activities and subject to inspection by the Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD).
2) Operators will tum offall construction vehicles and equipment and all delivery vehicles
when not in use, and not allow idling for more than 3 minutes or for such other more restrictive

time as may be required in law or regulation.
3) On-site construction vehicles and equipment will use Air Resowces Board (ARB)-
certified biodiesel fuel ifavailable (a minimum ofB20, or 20 percent ofbiodiesel) except for
those with warranties that would be voided if B20 biodiesel fuel were used. Prior to issuance of
grading or demolition permits, the contractor shall provide documentation to the City that verifies
whether any equipment is exempt; that a biodiesel supply has been secured; and that the

construction contractor is aware that the use of biodiesel is required.

4) A Solid Waste Diversion and Recycling Plan (or such other documentation to the

satisfaction ofthe City) shall be in place that demonstrates the diversion from landfills and

recycling ofall nonhazardous, salvageable and re-useable wood, metal, plastic and paper products

during construction and demolition activities. The Plan or other documentation shall include the

name of the waste hauler, their assumed destination for all waste and recycled materials, and the

nrocedures that will be followed to ensure imolementation of this measure.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3B 4-1a3l

Page 215

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has included
several approved
recommendations from the

SMAQMD for implementation
during construction. See

Condition #39 for a more detailed
list of construction
implementation measures.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)(P)

SMAQMD

CARB

When
Required

G

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U.S. 50 interchange improvements, it is
anticipated that Caltrans would coordinate with the development and implementation of the

overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange
improvements, to ensure that water quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the

maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall
be coordinated by the owner/applicant of each applicable project phase with El Dorado County
and Caltrans.

Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated Greenhouse Gas
Emissions

Prior to approval of a grading permit, the owner/applicant(s) shall obtain the most current list of
greenhouse gas reduction measures that are tecommended by Sacramento Menopolitan Air
Quality Management District (SMAQMD) and stipulate how those measures be implemented
within the project notes. The owner/ applicant(s) may submit to the City and SMAQMD a report
that substantiates why specific measures are considered infeasible for construcfion ofthat
particular development phase and/or at that point in time. The report, including the substantiation
for not implementing particular greenhouse gas reduction measures, shall be approved by the
City, in consultation with SMAQMD prior to approval of a grading permit. In addition to
SMAQMD-recommended measures, construction activity shall comply with all applicable rules
and regulations established by SMAQMD and Califomia Air Resources Board.

Condition ofApproval

31'4-l

Mitigation
Measure

32

3l

cont.

Page 216

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The required NOX emission fees

in this condition are no longer
applicable. This condition was
added to the project since the
original concept for water supply
contemplated extending a large
diameter water main from the

Sacramento River to the FPA. In
lieu of the water supply being
extended through the various
jurisdictions noted in this
condition, the water supply
provided to the FPA comes from
conservation efforts by the City to
provide the needed water supply
for the FPA. The new water
supply proposal was validated in
2014.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (EXP)
SMAQMD

When
Reouired

G
Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to OffSa NOX Emissions Generated by
Co nstructio n of Off-site EIem ents.

The off-site elements could result in construction-generated NOX emissions that exceed the

SMAQMD threshold of sigrificance, even after implementation of the SMAQMD Enhanced

Exhaust Control Practices (listed in Mitigation Measure 3A.2-la). Therefore, the owner/applicant
shall pay SMAQMD an off-site mitigation fee for implementation of each off-site element in for
the purpose ofreducing NOX emissions to a less-than-significant level (i.e., less than 85 lbiday)-

The specific fee amounts shall be calculated when the daily construction emissions can be more

accurately determined. Calculation of fees associated with each off-site element shall be

conducted by the owner/applicant in consultation with SMAQMD staff before the approval of
respective grading plans. The calculation ofdaily NOX emissions shall be based on the cost rate

established by SMAQMD at the time the calculation and payment are made. Because the fee is

based on the mass quantity of emissions that exceed SMAQMD's daily tkeshold of significance
.of85 lb/day, total fees for construction ofthe off-site improvements would vary according to the

timing and potential overlap of construction schedules for off-site elements.

Mitigation for the off-site improvements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries

shall be developed by the owner/applicant ofeach applicable project phase in consultation with
the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County or Caltrans).

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

jA.2-1gJJ

.-..:lr .1

Page 217

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant provided the
comprehensive equipment list to
SMAQMD priorto
commencement of grading and
SMAQMD approved the DMP
for this subdivision.
Additionally, monthly equipment
usage and emissions were
reported to the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District. Dust
control best management
practices were implemented to
control fugitive dust and offsite
track out material.

The owner/ applicant has
provided continuous monitoring
of construction equipment during
the course of construction.
General notes have been included
on the approved grading plans for
the subdivision and compliance is

monitored through construction
inspection by the City.

Responsible
Department
SMAQMD

cD (EXP)
SMAQMD

G,I

When
Required

G,IDevelop and Implement a Construction NOX Redaction Plan.

Consistent with SMAQMD requirements, the owner/applicant shall provide a plan for
demonstrating that the hear,y'duty (> 50 horsepower) off-road vehicles to be used in the
construction project, including owned, leased and subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a project
wide fleet-average 20% NOX reduction.

Prior to construction, the owner/applicant's contractor shall submit to the SMAQMD a

comprehensive inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than 50
horsepower, that will be used an aggregate of40 or more hours during any portion ofthe
construction. The inventory shall include the horsepower rating, engine production year, and
projected hours ofuse or fuel throughput for each piece ofequipment. The inventory shall be
updated and submitted quarterly throughout the dwation ofthe project, except that an inventory
shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no construction activity occurs. At least 48
hours prior to the use of subject heavy-duty off-road equipment, the owner/applicant shall provide
SMAQMD with the anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and phone

number ofthe project manager and on-site foreman.

Conduct Wsible Emissions Testing and if Non-Compliance, Repair Equipment Immediately.

The owner/applicant shall ensure that emissions from all off-road diesel powered equipment used
on the project site do not exceed 40o/o opacity for more than three minutes in any one hour. Any
equipment found to exceed 400% opacity (or fungelmann 2.0) shall be repaired immediately, and
the City and SMAQMD shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of non-compliant
equipment. A visual survey of all in-operation equipment shall be made at least monthly, and a
quarterly summary ofthe visual survey results shall be submitted throughout thc duration ofthe
project, except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no
construction activity occurs. The monthly sunmary shall include the quantity and tlpe of vehicles
surveyed as well as the dates of each survey.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

38.2-Ia

38.2-tb

34.

35.

Page 218

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has

complied with all applicable air
quality mitigation measures
included in the Air Quality
Mitigation Plan. Compliance is
monitored through construction
inspection bv the Citv.
The owner/applicant has assumed
the presence ofNOA and
implemented an Asbestos Dust
Mitigation Plan during
construction. TheMitigation
Plan has been reviewed and
approved by the SMAQMD prior
to the issuance of a grading
permit. On-site inspection and
monitoring has been conducted to
ensure compliance with these

measures.

CommentsResponsible
D€Dartment
Sacramento

Metropolitan
Air Quality

Management
Disfict

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolitan
Air Quality
Management
District

cD (E) (P)

When
Reouired

G,I, B

G

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Air Quality Mitigation Plan

The owneriapplicant shall implement all applicable measures in the Sacramento Metropolitan Air
Quality Management District approved Folsom Plan Area Specific Pian Air Quality Mitigation
Plan.

Natur ally O c c u rri ng Asb e sto s
Prior to the commencement of any site-disturbing activities, the owner/applicant shall
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
that Naturally Occurring Asbestos does not exist on site. To demonstrate the owner/applicant
shall obtain the services of a Califomia Certified Geologist to conduct a thorough site
investigation of the development area per the protocol outlined in the Califomia Geological
Survey Special Report 124 to determine whether and where Naturally Occurring Asbestos is
present in the soil and rock on the project site and/or areas that would be disturbed by the project.
The site investigation shall include the collection ofthree soil and rock samples per acre to be
analyzed via the California Air Resources Board 435 Method, or other acceptable method agreed
upon by Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District and the City. If the
investigation detemines that Naturally Occurring Asbestos is not present on the project site, then
the owner/applicant shall submit a Geologic Exemption to Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District as allowed under Title 17, Section 93105, Asbestos Airborne Toxic Control
Measure for Construction, Grading, Quarrying, and Surface Mining (Asbestos ATCM). The
owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with the above to the Community Development
Department for review and approval prior to the commencement of any site-dishrbing activities.

If the site investigation determines that Naturally Occurring Asbestos is present on the project
site, or alternatively ifthe owner/applicant elects to assume presence oftrace Naturally Occurring
Asbestos, then, prior to commencement of any gtound disturbance activity, the owner/applicant
shall submit to the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District for review and
approval an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan, including, but not limited to, control measures
required by the Asbestos ATCM, such as vehicle speed limitations, application of water prior to
and durine eround

Condition ofApproval

342-5

Mitigation
Measure
31.2-236

37

Page 219

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

The required analysis in this
condition is no longer applicable.
This condition was added to the
project since the original concept
for water supply contemplated
extending a large diameter water
main from the Sacramento River
to the FPA. In lieu of the water
supply being extended through
the various jurisdictions noted in
this condition, the water supply
provided to the FPA comes from
conservation efforts by the City
to provide the needed water
supply for the FPA. The new
water supply proposal was
validated in 2014.

Comments

Sacramento
Metropolitan
Air Qualify
Management
District

Caltrans

Sacramento
County

cD (E) (P)

Responsible
I)eDartment

G

When
Required

disturbance, keeping storage piles wet or covered, and track-out prevention and removal.

The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with the above to the Community
Development Deparhnent for review and approval prior to the commencement of any site-
disturbing activities. Upon approval of the Asbestos Dust Conkol Plan by the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District , the owner/applicant shall ensure that
construction contractors implement the terms of the plan tlroughout the construction period. If
Naturally Occurring Asbestos is determined to be located on the surface ofthe project site, all
surface soil containing Naturally Occurring Asbestos shall be replaced with clean soil or capped

with another material (e.g., cinder or rubber), subject to review and approval by the City
Engineer.

Analyze and Disclose Projected PM10 Emission Concentrations at Nearby Sensitive Receptors

Resalting from Construction of Off-site Elements.

Prior to construction of any improvements that would involve site grading or earth disturbance
activity that would exceed 15 acres in one day, the responsible agency or its selected consultant
shall conduct detailed dispersion modeling ofconstruction-generated PM10 anissions pursuant to
Sacramento Meftopolitan Air Quality Management District guidance that is in place at the time
the analysis is performed.

Condition ofApproval

3Az-th

Mitigation
Measure

38.

37.
cont.

Page 220

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Denartment

When
Reouired

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District emphasizes that PM10 emlsslon
concentrations at nearby sensitive receptors be disclosed in project-level CEQA analysis. Each
project-level analysis shall incorporate detailed parameters ofthe construction equipment and
activities, including the year during which construction would be performed, as well as the
proximity ofpotentially affected receptors, including receptors proposed by the project that exist
at the time the construction activity would occur. If the modeling analysis determines that
construction acfivity would result in an exceedance or substantial contribution to the California
Ambient Air Quality Standards and National Ambient Air Quality Standards at a nearby receptor,
then the owner/applicant shall require their respective contractors to implement additional
measures for controlling construction-generated PM10 exhaust emission and fugitive PMl0 dust
emissions in accordance with Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
guidance, requirements, and/or rules that apply at the time the project-level analysis is performed.
It is likely that these measures would be the same or similar to those listed as Enhanced Fugitive
PM Dust Control Practices for Soil Disturbance Areas and Unpaved Roads and Enhanced Exhaust
Conhol Practices. Dispersion modeling is not required for the two El Dorado County roadway
connections because the total amount of disturbed acreage is expected to be less than the
EDCAQMD screening level of 12 acres,

Mitigation for the any consfuction outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall
be developed by the owner/applicant(s)of each applicable project phase in consultation with the
affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County or Caltrans)-

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

cont

38

Page 221

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The grading and improvement
plans for this subdivision
included the applicable notes.
Additionally, monthly equipment
usage and emissions were
reported to the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality
Management Dishict. Dust
control best management
practices were implemented to
control fugitive dust and offsite
track out material.

Responsible
Denartment
Sacramento
Metropolitan
Air Quality
Management
District

cD (E) (P)

When
Required

G, I,B

The owner/applicant shall implement Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
's list of Basic Constnrction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter
Dust Control Practices (listed below), and Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices or whatever
mitigation measures are recommended by Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District at the time individual portions of the site undergo construction. In addition to Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District -recommended measwes, construction operations

shall comply with all applicable Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District rules
and regulations.

The following shall be noted on Grading Plans and building construction plans:

. Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not limited
to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking axeas, staging areas, and access roads' The

owner/applicant shall not be permitted to use potable water from the City ofFolsom water system

for grading and/or construction white the City is in a stage 3 (water warning), stage 4 (water

crisis), or stage 5 (water emergency) conservation stage as determined by the City and in
conformance with Chapter 13 .26 W ater Conservation of the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC) . The
City may prohibit the use ofpotable water for grading and/or construction purposes on the project

in its sole discretion regardless ofthe Water Conservation Stage.
. Cover or maintain at least two feet offree board space on haul trucks transporting soil,
sand, or other loose material on the site. Any haul tnrcks that would be haveling along freeways

or major roadways shall be covered.

Basic Construction Emission Conttol Practices

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

3A 2-la
3A 2-1d
3A 2-1f

39.

1.

Page 222

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoarfment
Sacramento
Metropolitan
Air Quality
Management
District

cD (E) (P)

When
Required
G, I,BUse wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove aay visible trackout mud or dirt onto

adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use ofdry power sweeping is prohibited.
. Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).
. All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed as

soon as possible. In addition, building foundations shall be laid as soon as possible after grading
unless seeding or soil binders are used.
. Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the
time of idling to 5 minutes (as required by the state airborne toxics control measure [Title 13,

Section 2485 ofthe Califomia Code ofRegulationsl). Provide clear signage that posts this
requirement for workers at the entrances to the site.
. Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to
manufacturer's specifications. The equipment shall be checked by a certified mechanic and
determine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas

. Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. However, do not
overwater to the extent that sediment flows off the site.
. Suspend excavation, grading, an&or demolition activity when wind speeds exceed 20
mph.
. Install wind breaks (e.g., plant hees, solid fencing) on windward side(s) ofconstruction
areas.
. Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in disturbed areas as

soon as possible. Water appropriately until vegetation is established.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A2-la
3Az-td
3A2-1fcont.

39

':.' 4.. :-r.l - -., r:

Page 223

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department
Sacramento
Metropolitan
Air Quality
Management
District

cD (E) (P)

When
Required
G,I, BEnhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads

. Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash off al1 trucks and equipment leaving
the site.
. Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to l2-inch layer
ofwood chips, mulch, or gravel to reduce generation ofroad dust and road dust carryout onto
public roads.
. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the

construction site regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action
within 48 hours. The phone number of Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management

District and the City contact person shall also be posted to ensure compliance.

The owner/applicant shall provide a plan, for approval by the City ofFolsom Community
Development Department and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District,
demonshating that the heavy-duty (50 horsepower ftpl or more) offroad vehicles to be used in the

construction project, including owned, leased, and subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a project
wide fleet-average 20% NOX reduction and 45% particulate reduction compared to the most
current California Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at the time of
construction. Acceptable options for reducing emissions may include use oflate-model engines,

low-emission diesel products, alternative fuels, engine retrofit technology, after-treatment
products, and/or other options as they become available.

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices

Condition ofApproval

3A2-la
3A 2-1d
3A2-1f

Mitigation
Measure

cont.

39

!..- ,: __:-l

Page 224

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satis{ied?

CommentsResponsible
Denartment
Sacramento
Mehopolitan
Air Quality
Management
District
cD (E) (P)

When
Reouired

G,I, B
The owner/applicant shall submit to the City of Folsom Community Development Department
and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District a comprehensive inventory of all
off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than 50 hp, that would be used Ln aggregate
of40 or more hours during any portion ofthe construction project. The inventory shall include the
horsepower rating, engine production year, and projected hours ofuse for each piece of
equipment. The inventory shall be updated and submitted monthly throughout the duration of the
project, except that an inventory shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no
construction activity occrus. At least 48 hours prior to the use ofheavy-duty off-road equipment,
the project representative shall provide Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District with the anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and phone

number of the project manager and on-site foreman.

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District's Construction Mitigation Calculator
can be used to identify an equipment fleet that achieves this reduction (Sacramento Metropolitan
Air Quality Management District 2007 a). The project shall ensure that emissions from all off-road
diesel powered equipment used within the project area do not exceed 40olo opacity for more than
three minutes in any one hour. Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or
Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired immediately, and the City and Sacramento Metropolitan Air
Quality Management District shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of non-compliant
equipment. A visual survey ofall in-operation equipment shall be made at least weekly, and a
monthly summary of the visual survey results shall be submitted throughout the duration of the
project, except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no
construction activity occurs. The monthly summary shall include the quantity and type ofvehicles
surveyed as well as the dates of each survey. Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District staffand/or other officials may conduct periodic site inspections to determine compliance.
Nothing in this mitigation measure shall supersede other Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District or state rules or regulations.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

342-la
3A 2-1d
3A2-tfcont.

39

Page 225

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Comments

The owner/ applicant has
provided continuous monitoring
of construction equipment and
fugitive dust during the course of
construction. General notes have
been included on the approved
grading plans for the subdivision
and compliance is monitored
through construction inspection
by the City.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolitan
Air Quality
Management
District

CD (EXP)G,I

When
Required

G, I,BIf at the time of grading and/or construction, Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District has adopted a regulation or new guidance applicable to construction emissions,

compliance with the regulation or new guidance may completely or partially replace this
mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the mitigation contained herein, and if
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District so permits. Such a determination shall
be supported by a project-level analysis and be approved by Sacramento Mehopolitan Air Quality
Management District.

Implement Fugitive Dust Contol Measures and a Particulate Matter Moniloring Program
during Construction,

The owner/applicant shall implement fugitive.dust control measures and a particulate matter
monitoring program during construction. The owner/applicant shall ensure implementation of
dust conhol measures and a particulate matter monitoring program during each phase of
construction. Dust contool measures may include, but are not limited to, the following:

consistent with the paxameters established in Condition 39;

leaving the site; and

as needed to nrevent fuEitive dust.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

342-la
3A2-1d
3A2-1f .

38.2-1c

39

cont,

40.

Page 226

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Setisfied?

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has included

these practices and rules in the

grading and improvement plans.

A general note is included on the

approved grading and

infrastructure plans for this
subdivision which addresses this
condition. Compliance will be

monitored through construction
inspection.

Comments

The Community Development
Departrnent has reviewed and
approved the grading plans to
verifu that all proposed building
pad elevations in the subdivision
are in compliance with the
preliminary grading and drainage

olan.
There are no proposed pump
stations within 200 feet of any
sensitive receptor in this
subdivision.

Responsible
DeDartm€nt
cD (E) (P)

cD (E)

cD (E), PWI

When
Required

G,I

I

Limit C o nstr uctio n Hours.
Construction activities shall be limited to daylight hours between 7 a.m. and 7 p'm. Monday
through Friday, and 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. on Saturday. No construction shall be allowed on Sundays

or holidays.

Minimum Pad Elevations for Noise Attenaation
The elevation ofall building pads shall be no less than those shown on the preliminary grading

and drainage plan dated March9,20l7.

Locate Pump Stations Awry from Sensitive Receptors.
New pumping stations including back-up diesel generators shall be located more than 200 feet

away from sensitive receptors. Electrically-powered pumps shall be used to po'"ver new pumps, to

the extent practicable.

Condition ofApproval

38.2-3a

38.11-1a

Mitigation
Measure

42.

43.

4t.

Page 227

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has included
these practices and rules in the
grading and improvement plans.

A general note is included on the

approved grading and

infrastructure plans for this
subdivision which addresses this
condition. Compliance will be

monitored through construction
inspection.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the grading plans for
this subdivision that includes all
ofthe required masonry noise
barriers. The noise barriers are in
compliance with the subdivision
aoproved noise analvsis
A general note is included on the

approved grading and

infrastructure plans for this
subdivision which addresses this
condition. Compliance will be

monitored through construction
inspection.

Responsible
Denartment
cD (E), Pw

cD (EXP)

cD (E)(P)

When
Reouired

G,I

G,I

G,I,B

Minimize Noise from Construction Eqaipment and Slaging,
Construction equipment noise shall be minimized during project construction by muffling and
shielding intakes and exhaust on construcfion equipment (per the manufacturer's specifications)
and by shrouding or shielding impact tools, where used. The City's construction specihcations
shall also require that the contractor select staging areas as far as feasibly possible from sensitive
receptors.

Maximize the Use of Noise Barriers.
Construction contractors shall locate fixed construction equipment (such as compressors and
generators) and construction staging areas as far as possible from nearby residences. If feasible,

noise barriers shall be used at the construction site and staging area. Temporary walls, stockpiles
ofexcavated materials, or moveable sound barrier curtains would be appropriate in instances
where construction noise would exceed 90 dBA and occur within less than 50 feet from a

sensitive receptor. The final selection ofnoise barriers will be subject to the City's approval and
shall nrovide a minimum 10 dBA reduction in construction noise levels.

Prohibit Non-Essential Noise Sources During Construction
No amplified sources (e.9., stereo "boom boxes") shall be used in the vicinity ofresidences during
project construction.

Condition ofApproval

38.l I-Ic

38.11-Id

Mitigation
Measure

38.11-Ib

45

46.

44.

Page 228

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

A general note is included on the

approved grading and

inftastructure plans for this

subdivision which addresses this
condition. Compliance will be

monitored through construction
inspection.

Comments

The grading contractor for thls
subdivision has been on-site
throughout the course of grading
for this subdivision to verifu
compliance with this condition.
Compliance by the City has been
performed through construction
insoection.

Responsible
Department

CD (EXP)

CD (P)
cD (E) (B)

G,I, B

When
Required

G,I
Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for Filing Noise Complaints' The
owner/applicant shall provide an on-site complaint and enforcement manager that shall track and

respond to noise complaints during grading and construction. The City shall also provide a

mechanism for residents, businesses, and agencies to register complaints with the City if
construction noise levels are overly intrusive or construction occurs outside the required hours.

Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement a Noise Control
Plan, and Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitive Receptors.

The owner/applicant shall prepare and implement a construction noise management plan. This
plan shall identifu specific measwes to ensure compliance with the noise control measures

specified below. The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City ofFolsom before any noise-
generating construction activity begins and shall be noted on Grading Plans and building
construction plans. Grading and construction shall not commence until the construction noise

management plan is approved by the City of Folsom.

. Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours between 7 a.m. and

7 p.m. Monday through Friday, and between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. on Saturdays. No construction is
allowed on Sundays. These hours may be expaaded to include Saturday and Sunday between 8

a.m. and 6 p.m. provided there are no sensitive receptors within 1500 feet, subject to the sole

discretion ofthe city.
. All construction equipment and equipment staging areas (including rock crushing
operations) shall be located as far as possible from nearby noise-sensitive land uses.
. Al1 construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with noise-

reduction intake and exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in accordance with manufacturers'
recommendations. Equipment engine shrouds shall be closed during equipment operation.
. All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to prevent
idling.
. Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter procedures (e.g., using
welding instead of riveting, mixing conffete off- site instead of on-site).

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

38.1 I-Ie

3A 11-1

381-3a

47

48.

t,': . l

Page 229

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

A general note is included on the

approved grading and

infiastructure plans for this

subdivision which addresses this
condition. Compliance will be

monitored through construction
inspection.

cD (EXP)
Underground

Services
Alert

Responsible
Department

When
Recuired

G

. Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating equipment
(e.g., compressors and generators) as planned phases are built out and future noise sensitive

receptors are located within close proximity to futwe construction activities.
. Written notification ofconstruction activities shall be provided to all noise-sensitive
receptors located within 850 feet ofconstruction activities. Notification shall include anticipated
dates and hours during which construction activities are anticipated to occur and contact
information, including a daytime telephone number, for the project representative to be contacted

in the event that noise levels are deemed excessive.
Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior noise levels (e.g., closing
windows and doors) shall also be included in the notification.

. To the extent feasible, acoustic barriers (e.g., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall be

constructed to reduce consfuction-generated noise levels at affected noise-sensitive land uses.

The barriers shall be designed to obstruct the line of sight between the noise-sensitive land use

and on-site construction equipment. When installed properly, acoustic barriers can reduce
construction noise levels by approximately 8-10 dB (EPA 1971).

. When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged construction
noise, noise-attenuating buffers such as structures, truck trailers, or soil piles shall be located
between noise sources and future residences to shield sensitive receptors from construction noise.

Minimize UtiW Conflias by Implementing an Underground Senices Alert, Underground
utilities and service connections shall be identified prior to commencing any excavation work
through the implementation of an Underground Services Alert (USA). The exact utility locations
will be determined by hand-excavated test pits dug at locations determined and approved by the
construction manager (also referred to as "pot-holing"). Temporary disruption of service may be
required to allow for ionstruction. No service on such lines would be disrupted until prior
approval is received from the conskuction manager and the service provider.

Condition of Approval

38.16-3a

Measure
Mitigation

49

48.

cont.

Page 230

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Setisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has obtained
all required utility easements for
the development of this
subdivision. The overhead power
line through this subdivision has

since been placed underground
and no additional permits are

required.
The owner/applicant has prepared

an erosion and sedimentation
control plan which has been
approved by the City. A copy is
available from the Community
Development Department.

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (E)

cD (E)

When
Reouired

G

G

Grading in Utilily Easement
The owner/applicant shall obtain a consent agreement, letter ofwaiver and/or an encroachment

permit fiom Pacific Gas and Electric, SMUD, WAPA, etc. for any proposed grading and/or
construction in any existing tower line and/or underground facility easement. The
owneriapplicant shall provide the approved consent agreement, letter ofwaiver and/or
encroachment permit to the City prior to approval ofany grading and/or improvement plans.

Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan.
Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the owner/applicant shall retain a Califomia Registered

Civil Engineer to prepaxe a grading and erosion and sedimentation control plan. The grading and

erosion and sedimentation conhol plan shall be submitted to the Community Development
Department prior to issuance of a grading permit. The plan shall be consistent with the City's
Qlading Ordinance, where applicable, the state's NPDES permit, the FPASP preliminary grading
plans and shall include the site-specific grading associated with development for all project
phases.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule, and maintenance

schedule ofall erosion and sediment control measures, a description ofmeasures designed to

control dust and stabilize the construction-site road and entrance, and a description ofthe location
and methods of storage and disposal ofconstruction materials. Erosion and sediment conhol
measures could include the use of temporary detention basins, berms, swales, wattles, and silt
fencing, and covering or watering ofstockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion. Stabilization on

steep slopes could include construction ofretaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after
construction. Stabilization of constuction entrances to minimize trackout (control dust) is
commonly achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of approximately I foot.

The owner/applicant(s) shall ensure that the construction contractor is responsible for securing a

source for transportation and deposition of excavated materials.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A-7.351

50

Page 231

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

YesThe owner/applicant has prepared
an erosion and sedimentation
control plan in compliance with
this mitigation measure and a
copy is available from the
Community Development
Denartment.

Comments

The owner/applicant has prepared

an erosion and sedimentation
control plan in compliance with
this mitigation measure and a
copy is available from the
Community Development
Department.

cD (E)

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (E)

When
Reonired

G

G
Erosion and sedimentation control measures
Erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be incorporated into all grading and/or
construction plans. These measures shall conform to the City ofFolsom requirements and the

County of Sacramento Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standards and Specifcations-current
edition and as directed by the Community Development Departrnent.

Erosion Control Plan
Prior to the approval ofthe final facilities desiga, commencement ofgrading and/or construction
activities, the owner/applicant shall submit an erosion conhol plan to the City for review and

approval. The plan shall identifu protective measures to be taken during excavation, temporary
stockpiling, any reuse or disposal, and revegetation. Specific techniques may be based upon
seotechnical reoorts. the Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook ofthe State ofCalifomia
Department of Conservation, and shall comply with all updated City standards.

Condition ofApproval

3A7-3

Mitigation
Measure

347-352.

53

Page 232

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant obtained a

NPDES Stormwater Permit and
prepared a project specific Storm
Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP). The SWPPP includes
Best Management Practices
(BMP's) including but not limited
to slope stabilization, inlet
protections, sedimentation ponds
and silt fencing. The SWPPP was
provided to the City prior to
grading.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

When
Reouired

GAcquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare und Implement Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and Best Management Practices (BMPs).
The owner/applicant ofthe project disturbing one or more acres (including phased construction of
smaller areas which are part of a larger project) shall obtain coverage under the State Water
Resources Control Board's National Pollution Discharge Elimination System stormwater pemtit
for general construction activity (Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including preparation and submittal of
a project-specific Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan at the time the Notice of Intent is filed.
The Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and other appropriate plans shall identiff and specify:
o the use of an effective combination of robust erosion and sediment control BMPs and

construction techniques accepted by the localjurisdictions for use in the project areaatthe
time of construction, that shall reduce the potential for runoff and the release, mobilization,
and exposure ofpollutants, including legacy sources ofmercury from project-related
construction sites. These may include but would not be limited to temporary erosion control
and soil stabilization measures, sedimentation ponds, inlet protection, perforated riser pipes,

check dams, and silt fences
o the implementation of approved local plans, non-stormwater management controls,

permanent post-construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance responsibilities;
o the pollutants that are likely to be used during construction that could be present in

stormwater drainage and nonstormwater discharges, including fuels, lubricants, and bther
tlpes of materials used for equipment operation;

. spill prevention and contingency measures, including measues to prevent or clean up spills
ofhazardous waste and ofhazardous materials used for equipment operation, and emergency
procedures for responding to spills;

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A. 9-154.

,3 '.. t:

Page 233

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Denartment

cD (E)G

When
Reouired

personnel training requirements and procedures that shall be used to ensure that workers
are aware of permit requirements and proper installation methods for BMPs specified in
the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan; and
the appropriate persormel responsible for supervisory duties related to implementation of
the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.

Where applicable, Best Management Practices identified in the Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Plan shall be in place throughout all site work and construction/demolition activities and shall be
used in all subsequent site development activities. Best Management Practices may include, but
are not limited to, such measures as those listed below:
. Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measures in disfurbed areas to

minimize discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances, in compliance with
state and local standards in effect at the time of construction. These measures may include
silt fences, staked straw bales or wattles, sediment/silt basins and traps, geofabric,
sandbag dikes, and temporary vegetation.

. Establishing permanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas disturbed by
construction by slowing runoffvelocities, trapping sediment, and enhancing filtration and

transpiration.
. Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to control erosion and runoffby

conveying surface runoffdown sloping land, intercepting and diverting runoff to a
watercourse or channel, preventing sheet flow over sloped surfaces, preventing runoff
accumulation at the base ofa grade, and avoiding flood damage along roadways and
facility inliastructure.

A copy of the approved Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan shall be maintained and available
at all times on the construction site.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

cont.
54.

:l:---:1,a,.iL

Page 234

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Comments

The owner/applicant provided a

preliminary drainage plan at the

time of Tentative Map approval.

A revised analysis was provided
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. The revised analysis was

reviewed by the City's Consultant
(Mead & Hunt) to ensure that that
the proposed drainage system was

consistent with Mitigation
Measure 3A-9.2. The

improvement plans for this
subdivision and the supporting
backbone improvements contain
detention basins, conhol
structures and ditch systems in
accordance with the Stormwater

Quality Partnership
Hydromodification Management
Plan and in compliance with the
FPA.Storm Drain Master Plan.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)G,I

When
Required

Preltare tnd Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirenents Contained in Those

Plans.
The owner/applicant shall submit a final drainage plan to the City demonstrating that off-site
upstream runoffwi1l be appropriately conveyed through the Folsom Plan Area, and that project-

related on-site runoffwill be appropriately conveyed and contahed in detention basins or
managed through other improvements (e.g., source controls, biotechnical stream stabilization) to

reduce flooding and hydromodification impacts and provide water quality treatnent.

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

. a drainage swale, located at the base ofthe noise berm, shall be included to prevent sheet

flow from the berm flowing onto the Class 1 bike hail. Inlets and under drains shall be

included as necessary.
. an accurate calculation ofpre-project and post-project runoff scenarios, obtained using

appropriate engineering methods, that accwately evaluates potential changes to runoff,
including increased surface runoff;

. runoffcalculations for the l0-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events (and other,

smaller storm events as required) shall be performed and the trunk drainage pipeline sizes

confirmed based on alignments and detention facility locations finalized in the design

phase;
. a description ofthe proposed maintenance program for the on-site drainage system;
. project-specific standards for installing drainage systems;
. City flood control design requirements and measures designed to comply with them;

Implementation of stormwater management BMPs that avoid increases in the erosive

force of flows beyond a specific range of conditions needed to limit hydromodification
and maintain current stream geomorphology. These Best Management Practices will be

designed and constructed in accordance with the forthcoming Stormwater Quality
Partnership Hydromodification Management Plan (to be adopted by the Regional Water

Quality Control Board) and may include, but are not limited to, the following:

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A-9.255.

Page 235

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment
cD (E), PwG

When
Required

Use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques to limit increases in
stormwater runoffat the point of origination (these may include, but are

not limited to: surface swales; replacement of conventional impervious
surfaces with pervious surfaces [e.g., porous pavement]; impervious
surfaces discormection; and trees planted to intercept stormwater);
Enlarged detention basins to minimize flow changes and changes to flow
duration characteristics;
Bioengineered stream stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing
vegetative and rock stabilization, and inset floodplain restoration features
that provide for enhancement ofriparian habitat and maintenance of
natural hydrologic and channel to floodplain interactions;
Minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention facility
outfall channel with the existing receiving channel gradient to reduce
flow velocity; and
Minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankment, and

other encroachments into the channel and floodplain conidor, and utilize

:ffii:::"* 
O"x culverts to allow sediment passage on smaller drainage

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom Community
Development and Public Works Departments that 1O0-year (0.01 AEP) flood flows would be
appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to people or damage to structures within
or down gradient ofthe Folsom Plan Area would not occur, and that hydromodification would not
be increased from pre-development levels such that existing stream geomorphology would be

changed (the range of conditions should be calculated for each receiving water if feasible, or a
conservative estimate should be used, e.g., an Ep of I +10% or other as approved by the

Sacramento Stormwater Quality Partnership and/or City of Folsom).

lv

ll.

i ii.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A-9.255

cont.

r : t:''_

Page 236

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/Applicant is in
compliance with the Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) for the subdivision.
General notes have been included
on the approved grading and
public infrastructure plans to
address this condition.
Compliance has been monitored
through construction inspection.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E)

'When

Required
GDevelop and Intplement a BMP and ll/ater Quality Maintenance Plan

A detailed BMP and water quality maintenance plan shall be prepared by a qualified engineer

retained by the owner/applicant(s) for the project. The plan shall finalize the water quality
improvements and firther detail the structural and nonstructural BMPs proposed for the project.

The plan shall include the elements described below.

. A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis ofproposed conditions incorporating
the proposed drainage design features.

. Predevelopment and post development calculations demonstrating that the proposed water
quality BMPs meet or exceed requirements established by the City of Folsom and

including details regarding the size, geometry, and functional timing of storage and

release pursuant to the latest edition of the "Stormwater Quality Design Manual for
Sacramento and South Placer Regions" (the City's MS4NPDES permit, page 46) and El
Dorado County's NPDES SWMP (County of El Dorado 2004).

. Source conhol programs to conbol water quality pollutants within the project, which may
include but are not limited to recycling, street sweeping, storm drain cleaning, household

hazardous waste collection, waste minimization, prevention of spills and illegal dumping,
and effective management ofpublic trash collection areas.

. A pond management component for the proposed basins that shall include management

and maintenance requirements for the design features and BMPs, and responsible parties
for maintenance and funding.

. LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality maintenance
plan. These may include, but are not limited to:
r surface swales;
. replacement ofconventional impervious surfaces withpervious surfaces (e.g.,

porous pavement);
. impervious surfaces disconnection; and
o trees planted to intercept stormwater.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

56.

Page 237

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment

When
Required

New stormwater facilities shall be placed along the natural drainage courses

within the project to the extent practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage
pattems. The reduction in runoffas a result ofthe LID configurations shall be
quantified based on the runoffreduction credit system methodology described in
"Stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer

Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix D4" (SSQP 2007b) and proposed detention
basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized to handle these runoff
volumes.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange improvements, it is
anticipated that Caltrans would coordinate with the development and implementation of the

overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange

improvements, to ensure that water quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the

maximum extent practicable. Mitigation for the off-site improvements outside of the City of
Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be coordinated by the owner/applicant of each applicable
nroiect nhase with El Dorado Countv and Caltans.

a

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

56.

cont.

Page 238

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

A Vector Control Plan was
prepared and submitted to the

City for review and approval.
The plan incorporated various
Best Management Practices in
consultation with the
Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Control District. A copy
of the Vector Control Plan is
available from the Community
Development Department.

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (E)
Sacto.
County

When
Required

cPrepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consaltation with the Sacratnento-Yolo
Mosquito and Veuor Control Districl
To ensure that the operation and design of the stormwater system, including multiple planned

detention basins, is consistent with the recommendations of the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and

Vector Conhol District regarding mosquito control, the owner/applicant shall prepare and

implement a Vector Control Plan. This plan shall be prepared in coordination with the

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Conhol District and shall be submitted to the City for
approval prior to issuance ofthe grading permit for the proposed detention basins under the City's
jurisdiction.

The plan shall incorporate specific measures deemed sufficient by tJle City to minimize public

health risks fiom mosquitoes, and as contained within the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector

Control District BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008).

The plan shall include, but is not limited to, the following components:
. Description ofthe project.
. Description ofdetention basins and all water features and facilities that would

control on-site water levels.
. Goals of the plan.
. Description of tle water management elements and features that would be

implemented, including:
i. BMPs that would be implemented on-site;

ii. public education and awareness;
iii. sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal ofgarbage);
iv. mosquito control methods used (e.g., fluctuating v/ater levels,

biological agents, pesticides, larvacides, circulating water); and

v. stormwater management.

Condition ofApproval

34. 8.7

Mitigation
Measure

57

'.. ,:---:.-

'--;',.

Page 239

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment

cD (E)

When
Reouired

GLong-term maintenance ofthe detention basins and all related facilities (e.g.,

specific ongoing enforceable conditions or maintenance by a homeowner's
association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the owner/applicant
shall coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District to identiS and

implement BMPs based on their potential effectiveness for the site conditions. Potential BMPs
could include, but are not limited to, the following:

. build shoreline perimeters as steep and uniform as practicable to discourage dense

plant growth;
o perform routine maintenance to reduce emergent plant densities to facilitate the

ability ofmosquito predators (i.e., fish) to move throughout vegetated area;

. design distribution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes to drain
fully and prevent standing water. The design slope should take into consideration
buildup ofsediment between maintenance periods. Compaction during grading
may also be needed to avoid slumping and settling;

r coordinate cleaning ofcatch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains with mosquito
treatment operations;

r enforce the prompt removal of silt screens installed during construction when no
longer needed to protect water quality;

o if the sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the exception of the

inlet and outlet, submerge the inlet and outlet completely to reduce the available
surface area of water for mosquito egg- laying (female mosquitoes can fly
through pipes); and

o design structffes with ttre appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or other
necessary equipment to allow for easy dewatering ofthe unit ifnecessary
(Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008).

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

cont.

57

I .

Page 240

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant has obtained
all required State aad Federal
permits and copies are available
from the Community
Devel onment Denartment.

Comments

All water discharges from
hydrostatic testing were approved
by the City and in accordance
with RWQCB requirements.

cD (P) CD
(E)

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (E)

CVRWQCB

G,I

When
Required

G

i. Surface swales;
ii. Replacement ofconventional impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces

(e.g., porous pavement);

iii. Impervious surfaces disconnection; and
iv. Trees planted to intercept stormwater.

Properly Dispose of Hyd.rostatic Test lltater and Construc'tion Dewatering in Accordance with
the Central Valley Regional lVater Quality Control Board

All hydrostatic test water and construction dewatering shall be discharged to an approved land
disposal area or drainage facility in accordance with Central Valley RWCQB requirements. The
City or its construction contractor shall provide the Central Valley RWQCB with the location,
type ofdischarge, and methods oftreatment and monitoring for all hydrostatic test water
discharges. Emphasis shall be placed on those discharges that would occur directly to surface
water bodies.

State and Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide evidence that
said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject to staffreview prior to
approval ofany grading or improvement plan.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3B.9-lb

57

cont.

58.

s9

j,-: .:ii :-:- ''i,..- ---.-,1. ,-:'- .i._';_,- 
'1--: i, .,- 'ir 

- _

t l1,-.. r j - .- l:' .,

Page 241

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant obtained
these permits for Backbone
improvements and project
specific improvements prior to
implementing ground disnubin g

activity. Compliance reports are

on file with the Community
Development Department.

Responsible
Department
cD(P) CD

(E)
United States

Army Corps.
Of Engineers

Central
Valley

Regional
Water

Quality
Conhol
Board

When
Required

G, IClean Water Act Sections 401 and 404 Permits
Prior to the approval ofgrading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking activity
associated with each distinct project phase, the owneriapplicant shall secure all necessary permits

obtained under Sections 401 md 404 of the Clean Water Act or the State's Porter-Cologne Act
and implement all permit conditions for the proposed project. All permits, regulatory approvals,

and permit conditions for effects on wetlald habitats shall be secured and conditions implemented

before implementation of any grading activities within 250 feet of Waters of the U.S, or wetland

habitats, including Waters ofthe State, that potentially support federallyJisted species, or within
100 feet of any other Waters of the U.S. or wetland habitats, including Waters of the State. The

owner/applicant shall adhere to all conditions outlined in the permits. The owner/applicant shall

commit to replace, restore, or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in accordance with United States

Army Corps Of Engineers and the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board) the

acreage of all wetlands and other Waters of the U.S. that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded

with implementation of the project. Wetland habitat shall be restored, enhanced, and/or replaced

at an acreage and location and by methods agreeable to United States Army Corps OfEngineers,
the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, and the City, as appropriate, depending

on agencyjurisdiction, and as determined during the Section 401 and Section 404 permitting
processes. The boundaries ofthe 404 permit, including required buffers shall be shown on the

grading plans.

All mitigation requirements to satisry the requirements of the City and the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board, for impacts on the non-jurisdictional wetlands beyond the
jurisdiction of United States Army Corps Of Engineers, shall be determined and implemented
before grading plans are approved.

All wetland mitigation compliance reports submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers shall also

be copied concurrently to the City.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

34. 3-1b

3A 3-la60.

Page 242

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

YesThe owner/applicant submitted
and received approval ofa Sub-
notification Form (SNF) from the
California Dept. of Fish &
Wildlife. All required mitigation
or project conditions were
satisfied in accordance with the
SNF authorization. A copy of the
SNF is available from the
Community Development
Department.

Comments

The owneriapplicant obtained a

Section 401 Water Quality
certification for the backbone and
project specifi c improvements.
All required measures were
implemented prior to
construction.

cD(P) cD
(E)

California
Department
ofFish and
Wildlife

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

When
Required

G

G

lVater Quality C ertijication
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required before
issuance ofthe record of decision and before issuance ofthe Section 404 permit. Before
construction in any areas containing wetland feahres, the owner/applicant shall obtain water
quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance ofwater quality
certification shall be implemented pursuant to the permit conditions.

Master Streambed Alteration Agreement
The owner/applicant shall amend, if necessary, and implement the original Section 1602 Master
Streambed Alteration Agreement received fiom Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife for
all construction activities that would occur in the bed and bank of Califomia Deparhnent of Fish

and Wildlife jurisdictional features within the project site. As outlined in the Master Streambed
Alteration Agreement, the owner/applicant shall submit a Sub-notification Form (SNF) to
Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife 60 days prior to grading and/or the commencement of
construction to notifu Califomia Deparhnent of Fish and Wildlife of the project.

Any conditions of issuance of the Master Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be implemented
as part ofthose project construction activities that would adversely affect the bed and bank within
on-site drainage channels subject to Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife jwisdiction. The
agreement shall be executed by the owner/applicant and California Departrnent ofFish and
Wildlife before the approval of any grading or improvement plans or any construction activities in
any project phase that could potentially affect the bed and bank of on-site drainage channels under
California Department of Fish and Wildlife iurisdiction.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

343-4a.

6l

62.

-i:

Page 243

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Safisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/Applicant has

restored al1 areas required under
the Permit. Annual monitoring is
ongoing and a copy ofthe Annual
Monitoring Report is available
with the Community
Development Department.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E)

When
Reouired

GRestore All Waters Impacted by Trenching and Temporary Consttuction Staging
For all crossings ofwaters ofthe U.S. or State in which the use oftrenchless technologies are not
feasible, the City shall ensure that all waters impacted by trenching activities are restored to pre-
project conditions. In addition, within 30 days following project construction, the

owner/applicant shall ensure that all temporary construction staging areas within waters ofthe
U.S. or State are restored to preproject conditions.
At minimum, the City shall ensure that the following measures are implemented during
construction:
) Conduct trenching and construction activities across drainages during low-flow (e.g., <l to 2
cfs) or dry periods as feasible;
) If working in active channels, install cofferdam upstream and downstream of stream crossing

to separate construction area from flowing waterway;
) Place sediment curtains upstream and downstream of the construction zone to prevent

sediment disturbed during trenching activities from being transported and deposited outside ofthe
construction zone;
) Locate spoil sites such that they do not drain directly into the drainages or seasonal wetlands;

) Store equipment and materials away ffom the drainages and wetland areas. No debris will be

deposited within 250 feet ofthe drainages and wetland areas;

) Prepare and implement a revegetation plan to restore vegetation in all temporarily disturbed
wetlands and other waters using native species seed mixes and container plant material that are

appropriate for existing hydrological conditions.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3B 3-1c63

! r''r ':: ..':. 1_:i."_ ::,^l

Page 244

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Prior to the approval ofgrading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking activity
associated with grading and construction requiring fill ofwetlands or other waters ofthe U.S. or
waters of the state, the owner/applicant shall submit a wetland mitigation and monitoring plan
(MMP) for the restoration of these waters within the selected water alignment to the US Army
Corps of Engineers (USACE) and Cental Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCB) for review and approval of those portions of the plan over which they have
jwisdiction. The Mitigation and Monitoring Plan (MMP) would have to be approved prior to
issuance of a Section 404 permit. Once the final MMP is approved and implemented, mitigation
monitoring shall continue for a minimum of 5 years from completion of restoration activities, or
human intervention (including recontouring and grading), or until the performance standards
identified in the approved MMP have been met, whichever is longer.

At minimum, the MMP shall provide the following information:

vegetation of the waters of the U.S. and State that would be impacted through henching activities.
This information shall include site photographs taken at each

impacted water.

adversely alter existing hydrology, including the draining of the waters (e.g., use of cut-offwalls).

plan for the revegetation of the site following installation of the improvements.

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

cont.
63

Page 245

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

Preconstnrction surveys were
conducted and no active nests
were found.

Responsible
Deoartment
cD(P) CD

(E)
Califomia

Department
ofFish and

Wildlife

When
Required

GSwainson's Hawk Nesting Habitat
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the owner/applicant to conduct preconstruction surveys
and to identiE/ active Swainson's Hawk nests on and within 0.5-mi1e of the project area. The
surveys shall be conducted before the approval of grading and/or improvement plans (as

applicable) and no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the beginning ofgrading
and construction. To the extent feasible, guidelines providedin Recommended Timing and
Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk
Technical Advisory Committee 2000) shall be followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. Ifno
nests are found, no further mitigation is required.

Ifactive nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's Hawks shall be avoided by establishing
appropriate buffers around the nests. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area

until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until a qualified biologist has

determined in coordination with Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife that reducing the
buffer would not result in nest abandonment. Califomia Deparbnent of Fish and Wildlife
guidelines recommend implementation of 0.25- or 0.5-mile-wide buffers, but the size of the
buffer may be adjusted if a qualified biologist and the City, in consultation with Califomia
Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife, determine that such an adjustrnent would not be likely to
adversely affect the nest. Monitoring ofthe nest by a qualified biologist during and after
construction activities will be required ifthe activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

343-2a64.

Page 246

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner has secured and
recorded a Conservation
Easement on a City approved site
in Sacramento County. A copy
of the recorded easement is
available from the Commrmity
Development Department.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (P)
California

Department
ofFish and
Wildtfe

When
Reouired

GSwainsort's Hawk Habitat
Prior to the approval of grading and improvement plans, or before any ground-disturbing
activities, whichever occurs first, the owner/applicant shall secure suitable Swainson's Hawk
foraging habitat to ensure appropriate mitigation of habitat value for Swainson's Hawk foraging
habitat that is permanently lost as a result ofthe project, as determined by the City after
consultation with California Department of Fish and Wildlife and a qualified biologist.

The habitat value or shall be based on Swainson's Hawk nesting distribution and an assessment of
habitat quality, availabilify, and use within the project area^ The mitigation ratio shall be

consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the Staff Report
Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson's Hawks (Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley
of California. If such mitigation shall be accomplished through purchase of credits at an approved
mitigation bank, the transfer offee title, or perpetual conservation easement, the ratio for habitat
value shall be 0.5:1. Ifnon-bank mitigation is proposed, the mitigation land shall be located
within the lnown foraging area and within Sacramento County and the habitat value shall be l:1.
The City, after consultation with California Department of Fish and Wildlife, will determine the

appropriateness of the mitigation land.

The owner/applicant shall transfer said Swainson's Hawk mitigation land, through either
conservation easement or fee title, to a third-party, nonprofit conservation organzahon
(Conservation Operator), with the City and California Department of Fish and Wildlife named as

third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a qualified conservation easement

land manager that manages land as its primary function. Additionally, the Conservation Operator
shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit conservation organization that meets the criteria ofCivil Code

Section 815.3(a) and shall be selected or approved by the City, after consultation with Califomia
Department of Fish and Wildlife. After consultation with California Department of Fish and

Wildlife and the Conservation Operator, the CiE shall approve the content and form

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

3A3-2b65

..- . ,- r:.

Page 247

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department
cD(P) CD

(E)
California

Deparhnent
of Fish and

Wildlife

When
Required

Gof the conservation easement- The City, Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the
Conservation Operator shall each have the power to enforce the terms ofthe conservation
easement. The Consewation Operator shall monitor the easement in perpetuity to assure

compliance with the terms of the easement.

After consultation with the City, The owner/applicant, California Department of Fish and
Wildlife, and the Conservation Operator, shall establish an endowment or some other financial
mechanism that is sufficient to fund in perpetuity the operation, maintenance, management, and

enforcement of the conservation easement. If an endowment is used, eitler the endowment funds
shall be submitted to the City for impacts on lands within the City's jurisdiction to an appropriate

third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or they shall be submitted directly to the third-parry
nonprofit conservation agency in exchaage for an agreement to manage and maintain the lands in
perpetuity. The Conservation Operator shall not selI, lease, or transfer any interest ofany
conservation easement or mitigation land it acquires without prior written approval of the City
and Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife

Ifthe Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, manage, maintain, and

enforce the interest shall be transferred to another entity acceptable to the City and Califomia
Department of Fish and Wildlife- The City Planning Department shall ensure that mitigation
habitat established for impacts on habitat within the City's planning area is properly established
and is functioning as habitat by conducting regular monitoring of the mitigation site(s) for the first
ten years after establishment ofthe easement.

Condition ofApproval
Meesure

Mitigation

cont.

65

Page 248

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Preconstruction suweys were
conducted and one active nest
was found and buffer areas and
protocols were established during
construction.

Comments

Preconstruction surveys were
conducted and no burrowing owls
were located.

cD(P) CD
(E)

Califomia
Department
ofFish and
Wildlife

Responsible
DeDartment
cD(P) CD

(E)
California

Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

G

G

When
Reouired

Nesting Raptors
To mitigate impacts on nesting raptors, a qualified biologist shall be retained by the

owner/applicant to conduct a preconstruction survey to identiff active nests on and within 0.5

miles ofthe project area. The surveys shall be conducted no less than 14 days and no more

than 30 days before the beginning of construction activities for each phase of development

If active nests are found, impacts on nesting raptors shall be avoided by establishing
appropriate buffers around the nests. No project activity shall commenqe within the buffer
area until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until a qualified biologist has

determined in coordination with California Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife that reducing the

buffer would not result in nest abandonment. The buffer may be adjusted if a qualified

biologist and the City, in consultation with Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife,
determine that such an adjustment would not be likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring
ofthe nest by a qualified biologist during and after construction activities will be required if
the activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

Burrowing Owl
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the owner/applicant to conduct a preconstruction survey
to identifu active Burrowing Owl burrows within the project area. The surveys shall be conducted

no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the beginning ofgrading and construction
activities for each phase ofdevelopment. The preconstruction survey shall follow the protocols

outlined in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2012).

If active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City for review and

approval before any ground-disturbing activities. The City shall consult with California
Department of Fish and Wildlife. The mitigation plan may consist of installation of one-way
doors on all burrows to allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and construction of artificial burrows
within the project vicinity, as needed; however, burrowing owl exclusions may only be used if a
qualified biologist verifies that the burrow does not contain eggs or dependent young. If active

burrows contain eggs and/or young, no construction shall occur within 50 feet ofthe burrow until
young have fledged. Once it is confirmed that there are no owls inside burrows, these burrows
mav be collapsed.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

343-2a

67

66.

Page 249

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

Preconstruction suweys were
conducted and no active nesting
colonies were found.

Responsible
DeDertment
cD(P) CD

(E)
Califomia

Departrnent
ofFish and

Wildlife

When
Required

GAvoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies.

To avoid and minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird, the owner/applicant ofall project
phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey for any project activity that would occur during
the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March l-August 3 1). The preconstruction survey
shall be conducted by a qualified biologist before any activity occurring within 500 feet of
suitable nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and areas of riparian scrub vegetation.

The survey shall be conducted within 14 days before project activity begins,

Ifno tricolored blackbird colony is present, no further mitigation is required. If a colony is
found, the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nesting colony. No project
activity shall commence within the buffer area until a qualified biologist confirms that the
colony is no longer active. The size ofthe buffer shall be determined in consultation with
DFG. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 100 to 500 feet, depending on the nature ofthe
project activity, the extent of existing disturbance in the area, and other relevant
circumstances.
Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries
(i.e., U.S. 50 interchange improvements) must be developed by the owner/applicant of each

applicable project phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans)
and must be sufficient to achieve the oerformance criteria described above.

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

3A.3-2c68

. t . ..'..,,-,

Page 250

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

A protective orange fence was
installed along the perimeter of
disturbed areas. The barrier
fencing included in this condition
was not required since none of
the grading for this subdivision
was adjacent to any existing
development.

Comments

Preconstruction surveys were
conducted and no active nests

were found.

cD (E) (P)

Responsible
Denartment
cD(P) CD

(E)
Califomia

Department
ofFish and
Wildlife

G

When
Required

GOther Nesting Special-Status and Migratory Birds
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction survey for any
project activity that would occur in suitable nesting habitat during the avian nesting season

(approximately March l-August 3 l).The preconstruction survey shall be conducted within 14

days before any activity occurring within 100 feet ofsuitabls nssling habitat. Suitable habitat
includes annual grassland, valley needlegrass grassland, freshwater seep, vernal pool, seasonal

wetland, and intermittent drainage habitat within the project site.

Ifno active special-status or other migratory bird nests are present, no firther mitigation rs
required. If an active nest is found, the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nest.

No project activity shall commence within the buffer area until a qualified biologist confirms that
the nest is no longer active. The size ofthe buffer shall be determined in consultation with
Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 50 to 100
feet, depending on the nature ofthe project activity, the extent ofexisting disturbance in the area,

and other relevant circumstances.
Animal Barrier
To discourage the migration ofundesirable small animals (including snakes) into adjacent
developed properties during the development of the project, the owneri applicant shall install a

barrier along all areas adjacent to developed residential properties and parks to the satisfaction of
the Commmity Development Department and consistent with a qualified biologist's
recommendations. In general, the barrier may consist of wire-mesh fabric with openings not
exceeding %-inch width. The height ofthe barrier shall be at least 18 inches (above the ground
surface), and may be buried into the ground at least twelve inches. The barrier shall be supported
with metal stakes at no more than l0-foot spacing. The barrier shall be installed by the
owner/applicant, as approved by the Community Development Deparfirent and a qualified
biologist, prior to any construction disturbance on the site, including clearing and grading
operations.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

70.

69

Page 251

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satislied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant retained a
qualified archeologist and
provided Workers Awareness
Training to all new construction
personnel. A copy of the training
video and attendance records are

available from the Community
Development Dep.

Responsible
Department
cD cD (E)

USACE

When
Reouired

GConduct Constraetion l4/orker Awareness Training, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if Required"
Stop llork if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Signijicance of the Find" and
Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified archaeologist to prepare and disseminate a contractor
awareness training program for all construction supervisors. The sensitivity training program will
provide information about notification procedures when potential archaeological material is

discovered, procedures for coordination between conskuction personnel and information about

other treatrnent or issues that may arise ifcultural resources (including human remains) are

discovered during project conskuction. The training shall be carried out each time a new
contractor will begin work in the project area, and a minimum of once at the start of each

construction season by that contractor, the qualified archeologist shall submit the completed
training attendance roster and a copy of the haining materials to the City and the USACE within
48 hours ofdelivery ofthe training program.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3 A 5-1a
3A5-2
3A 5-3

'71

Page 252

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

No human remains were

discovered during construction.

Responsible
Denartment

Sacramento
County
Coroner

Native
American
Heritage

Commission

cD (P) CD
(E)

When
Reouired

OG
Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with
California Health and Safely Code Procedures.
ln the event that human remains are discovered, construction activities within I 50 feet of the
discovery shall be halted or diverted and the requirements for managing unanticipated discoveries
in Mitigation Meastxe 4.4-2(a) shall be implemented. In addition, the provisions of Section
7050.5 of the Califomia Health and Safety Code, Section 5097.98 of the Califomia Public
Resources Code, and Assembly Bill2641 shall be implemented. When human remains are

discovered, state law requires that the discovery be reported to the County Coroner (Section
7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code) and that reasonable protection measures be taken during
construction to protect the discovery from disturbance (AB 2641).

If the Coroner determines the remains are Native American, the Coroner shall nofifu the Native
American Heritage Commission (NAHC), which then designates a Native American Most Likely
Descendant for the project (Section 5097.98 ofthe Public Resources Code). The designated
Native American Most Likely Descendant then has 48 hours from the time access to the property
is granted to make recommendations conceming treatment of the remains (AB 2641).

If the owner/applicant does not agree with the recommendations of the Native American Most
Likely Descendant, the NAHC can mediate (Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code). If no
agreement is reached, the owner/applicant shall rebury the remains where they will not be further
disturbed (Section 5097.98 ofthe Public Resources Code). This will also include either recording
the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center; using an open space or
conservation zoning designation or easement; or recording a deed restriction with the county in
which the Drobertv is located (AB 2641\.

Condition ofApproval
Meesure

Mitigation

3A 5-372.

Page 253

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant retained a

qualified geo-archeologist in
predetermined areas during
construction and the geo-

archeologist provided a1l ofthe
required reports to the USACOE.

Comments

The owner/applicant retained a

qualified archeologist and
provided Workers Awareness
Training to all new construction
personnel. A copy ofthe training
video and attendance records are

available from the Community
Development Department.

cD (E) (P)

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E) (P),

G

When
Reouired

G

Ge oarc heo I o gical Mo nitorin g
In the event that any grading lrill occur within areas determined to require geoarcheological

monitoring, the owner/applicant shall retain a qualified professional geoarcheologist who has a

graduate degree in the specialized discipline, possesses a demonstrated ability to carry research to

completion, and has at least 24 months ofprofessional experience and/or specialized training in
geoarcheology. The geoarcheologist shall monitor the ground disturbing activities in the affected

areas down to 1.5 meters below the srrrface. The monitoring geoarcheologist shall submit proof
of monitoring in the form of daily field monitoring logs to the City and the US Army Corps of
Ensineers within 48 hours of completion of monitoring activifies.

Condact Construction lllorker Awareness Training, Stop Work if Paleontological Resources

are Discovered, Assess the Signilicance ofthe Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery)

Plan as Required
Before the start ofany earthmoving activities, the owner/applicant shall retain a qualified
professional to train all construction personnel involved with earthmoving activities, including the

site superintendent, regarding the possibility of encountering fossils, the appearance and types of
fossils likely to be seen during construction, and proper notification procedures should fossils be

encountered. The training shall be included in the archaeological conhactor awareness training
program.

Ifpaleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the construction crew

shall immediately cease work in the vicinity of the find and notify the City of Folsom's

Community Development Department. The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified
paleontologist to evaluate the resource and prepare a recovery plan in accordance with Society of
Vertebrate Paleontology guidelines (1996). The recovery plan may include, but is not limited to, a

field survey, construction monitoring, sampling and data lecovery procedures, museum stolage

coordination for any specimen recovered, and a report offindings. Recommendations in the

recovery plan that are determined by the lead agency to be necessary and feasible shall be

implemented before construction activities can resume at the site where the paleontological

resources were discovered.

Condition of Approval

3A 5-1a

3l^5-2

Mitigation

74.

73.

Page 254

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has provided
construction inspection

. throughout the course of
construction to verifu compliance
with this condition.

Responsible
Denrrtment

cD (E), FD

When
Reouired

G,I,B
Transport, Store, and Handle Construction-Related Hazardous Materials in Compliance
with Relevant Regulations and Guidelines.

The City shall enswe, through the enforcement ofcontractual obligations, that al1 contractors
transpod, store, and handle construction-related hazardous materials in a manner consistent with
relevant regulations and guidelines, including those recommended and enforced by Caltrans,
Central Valley RWQCB, local fire departments, and the County environmental health department.

Recommendations shall include as appropriate transporting and storing materials in appropriate
and approved containers, maintaining required clearances, and handling materials using
applicable Federal, state and/or local regulatory agency protocols. In addition, all precautions
required by the Cenhal Valley RWQCB-issued NPDES construction activity stormwater permits
shall be taken to ensure that no hazardous materials enter any nearby waterways.

ln the event ofa spill, the City shall ensure, through the enforcement ofcontractual obligations,
that all contractors immediately control the source of any leak and immediately contain any spill
utilizing appropriate spill containment and countermeasures. If required by the local fue
departrnents, the local environmental health departrnent, or any other regulatory agency,
contaminated media shall be collected and disposed ofat an off-site facility approved to accept
such media.
The storage, handling, and use ofthe construction-related hazardous materials shall be in
accordance with applicable Federal, state, and local laws. Construction-related hazardous
materials and hazardous wastes (e.g., fuels and waste oils) shall be stored away from stream
channels and steep banks to prevent these materials from entering surface waters in the event of
an accidental release. These materials shall be kept at sufficient distance (at least 500 feet) from
nearby residences or other sensitive land uses. This includes materials stored for expected use,
materials in equipment and vehicles. and waste materials.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3B.8-1a75.

.:.:. : -- l.l \r :. - | .:' ,.. :- i-, : .'t ^ -., rr\. -,' .".i_'

Page 255

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant retained a
geotechnical engineer and
implemented recommendations
for this mitigation measure. A
geotechnical report outlining
these recommendations is
available fr om Community
Develooment DeDartment.
The owner/applicant has shared
in the construction ofthe on-site
and off-site sewer infrastructure
to serve this subdivision. The off-
site infrastructure includes the
sewer trunk main, the Alder
Creek Parkway sewer lift station
and forced main.
The City obtained a letter from
Regional San which provides
verification that there is adequate
capacity in the existing Regional
San conveyance and treatment
system to accommodate the entire
Folsom Plan Area at buildout.
The City obtained a letter from
Regional San which provides
verification that there is adequate
capacity in the existing Regional
San conveyance and treatment
system to accommodate the entire
Folsom Plan Area at buildout.

Responsible
Department
cD (E) PW

cD(E)PW

cD (E),
EWR

When
Required

G

M,B

I

Landslide /Slope Failure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the grading activities
to identiir existing landslides and potential slope failure hazards. The said engineer shall be
notified a minimum of two days prior to any site clearing or grading to facilitate meetings with
the grading contractor in the field.

Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance Facilities and
Implement On- and Olf-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate
Financing Is Secured.

Before the approval ofthe final map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, the
owner/applicant shall submit proofto the City ofFolsom that an adequate wastewater conveyiurce
system either has been constructed or is ensured through pa1'rnent ofthe City's facilities
augmentation fee as described under the Folsom Municipal Code Title 3, Chapter 3.40, "Facilities
Augmentation Fee - Folsom South Area Facilities Plan," or other sureties to the City's
satisfaction. Both on-site wastewater conveyance infrastructure and off-site force main sufficient
to provide adequate service to the project shall be in place for the amount of development
identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe final map and issuance ofbuilding permits,
or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction ofthe City.

Coordinate with Utility Providers and Implement Appropriate Installation Methods to
Minimize Potential Utility Service Disruptions,

Prior to installation, the City shall consult with SCWA, SRCSD, CSD-I, and PG&E to determine
proper installation methods and final design criteria to minimize the potential for disruptions to
existing and planned utilities.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A.1GI

38.1G3b

76.

77

78.

i 
i]: 

'-, 
j.:r ri, 

r: :.,;_:--i1-.. ' ,:,1 ',. l1

Page 256

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans for all
infr astructure improvements
required to serve this subdivision.
The City Engineer has reviewed
and approved all required
improvement plans to serve this
subdivision. Copies ofthe
improvement plans are available
from the Community
Develooment DeDartment.
There are no existing dams within

or upstream from this
subdivision.

The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans in accordance

with the City's Standard

Specifications.

Responsible
Department

cD(E)

cD(EXP)

cD (P) CD
(E)

When
Required

M

I,M

I

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans for the required public aad private subdivision improvements necessary
to serve any and all phases ofdevelopment shall be reviewed and approved by the Community
Development Deparhnent prior to approval of a Final Map.

Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site and Make
Improvements if Necessary.

Prior to submittal to the City of tentative maps or improvement plans the owner/applicant shall
conduct studies to determine the extent ofinundation in the case ofdam failure. Ifthe studies
determine potential exposure of people or structwes to a significant risk of flooding as a result of
the failure of a dam, the owner/applicants shall implement of any feasible recommendations
provided in that study, potentially through drainage improvements, subject to the approval ofthe
ciw.

Condition ofApproval

Standard Construction Specifications and Details

Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle lanes and
trails, streetlights, underground infrastructure, landscaping and irrigation and all other
improvements shall be provided in accordance with the latest edition of the City of Folsom
Standard Construction Specifications and Details and the Desisn and Procedwes Manual and
Imorovement Standards.

Mitigation
Measure

349-4:

IMPROVEMENT PLAI\ REOUIREMENTS
79

80.

81

?l .j I .:::

Page 257

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has installed
all sewer and water infrastructure
within the street right of way.
The outfall sewer line has been
installed within easements or
planned right of way within
future streets.

The owner/applicant has obtained
a Public Utility Easement for
utilities within the Sacramento
Placerville Transportation
Corridor-Joint Powers Authority
(SPTC-JPA). The roadway
crossing for this subdivision in
future Dewev Oak Drive.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

I

I

Condition ofApproval

Al1 publicly owned water and sewer infrastrucflre shall be placed within the street right of way.
In the event that a public water or sewer main needs to be placed in an area other tlan the public
right of way such as through an open space corridor, landscaped area, etc. an access road shall be
designed and constructed to allow for the operations, maintenance and replacement ofthe public
water or sewer line along the entire water and/or sewer line alignment. The public water and
sewer mains shall be publicly owned and maintained within any street and public sewer and water
main easements shall be provided and in no event shall a public water or public sewer line be
placed on private residential property. For example, installing a public water main on the
property line between two single family homes. The domestic water and irrigation system shall
be separately metered per City ofFolsom Standard Construction Specifications and Details.

All publicly owned water and sewer lines and services shall be accessible for operations,
maintenance, and repat. Non-accessible situations would include placing mains and services
behind retaining walls, placing public mains on private property, etc.

Water and Sewer Infrastructure

SPTC-IPA Approval
The owner/applicant shall cooperate with the City to obtain written approval from both the
Sacramento Placerville Transportation Corridor-Joint Powers Authority (SPTC-JPA) and the
Public Utilities Commission (PUC) for any proposed crossing(s) of work within the existing JPA
corridor which parallels Old Placerville Road. The owner/applicant shall provide written
approval from both the SPTC-JPA and as required by the PUC to the City prior to approval of
grading and/or improvement plans. The owner applicant shall provide all encroachment permits
from the SPTC-JPA and PUC as necessary.

Mitigation
Measure

82.

83.

Page 258

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

YesThe owner/applicant submitted a

Design Review Application and

received approval for the

construction of the future Zone 4
Water Tank.

The owner/applicant has

coordinated with the various
utility agencies.

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a

Lighting Plan for all roadways in
the subdivision in accordance
with the Design Guidelines and
City Standards for Street
Lighting. A copy of the lighting
plans are available from the
Community Development
Deparbnent.

cD (P) (E)
EWR

cD (P) CD
(E)

Responsible
DeDartm€nt

cD (P)

When
Reouired

I

G, I

I

Above Ground Utitity Site Design Review Application
The owner/applicant shall submit a Site Design Review Application for all above ground utility
installations (water tanks, booster pumps stations, etc.) to the Community Development
Department to ensure these facilities are adequately screened. These above ground utility
installations shall be designed to be adequately screened and./or blended into the hillsides through
use of berming, landscaping or through the use of walls or fences to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Department.

Utility Coordination
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion ofthis project
with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant shall provide the

Citv with written confirmation of oublic utilitv service orior to approval of all final maps.

Lighting Plan

The owneriapplicant shall submit a lighting plan for the project to the Community Development
Department. The lighting plan shall be consistent with the Design Guidelines:

shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on
adjacent properties;
place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential areas

and passing motorists;
for public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use oflight fixtures that are

ofunusually high intensity or that blink or flash;
use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or
finish, neutral, earthtoned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened

lighting, and appropriate signage in the office/cornnercial areas to prevent light and glare

from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and
design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscaping design

in the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent with the

overall site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to light only the sign face
with no offsite slare.

Condition ofApproval

38. 1-2a.

Measure
Mitigation

3Al-5

86

84.

85

Page 259

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has provided
cathodic protection in the
improvement plans in accordance
with City requirements for all
metallic water pipelines and
appurtenances. The plans were
approved by the City.

No existing improvements were
included as part of this
subdivision.

The Owner/applicant has

completed the infr astructure
allowing for the water meter fixed
network system. Meters will be
fumished and installed during
home construction for each
individual metered connection.

The Community Development
Deparfinent has reviewed and
approved the plans for all ofthe
sound walls, fences and gates in
the subdivision.

CDD(E),
EWR

CD

cD (E)

cD (E)

Denartment
Responsible

I

When
Required

I

I, OG

IWater Meter Network
The owner/applicant shall pay for, furnish, and install all infrastructure associated with the water
meter fixed network system.

Final Design
The final design ofall sound walls, fences, and gates shall be subject to review and approval by
the Community Development Departrnent.

Implement Corrosion Protection Measures,
The owneriapplicant shall be required to provide that all underground metallic fittings,
appurtenances and piping in the City's water systems include a cathodic protection system to
protect these facilities from corrosion. The cathodic protection system shall be prepared by a

licensed geotechnical or civil engineer and the system shall be reviewed and approved by the City
prior to approval ofimprovement p1ans.

Replacing Hazardous Facilities
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or hazardous public
sidewalk, curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site frontage and/or boundaries,

including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction ofthe Community
Development Department.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

38.',14

89.

90

87

88.

:-l

ii
::.....,

Page 260

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



YesThe owner/applicant was not
required to construct a temporary
detention basin within lots 23

through 29. Previous
developments adj oining this
subdivision and another off-site
development constructed the
permanent detention/hydro-
modification basin to serve this
subdivision. The off-site
detention/hydro-modifi cation
basin was constructed west ofthe
Parcel 6l & 77 development and
has been completed in the
September of2022.

cD (E)ITemporary Detention Basin

a. Design. If it is necessary at the time of recordation ofthe first final map, the owneriapplicant
shall be responsible for the design and construction ofthe temporary detention basin which will
temporarily impact the development of tentative subdivision map lots 23 through 29 of the

Broadstone Estates subdivision. The detention basin design shall include City approved vehicular
access to the entire basin, including but not limited to, the inlets and outfalls for the basin. The
improvement plans for the proposed interim basin shall be reviewed and approved by the City
prior to approval ofthe Final Subdivision Map.
b. Easements. Prior to approval ofthe first final map, a maintenance and access easement and a
public drainage easement shall be granted to the City ofFolsom over the entire basin.

c. Operation and Maintenance Manual. The owner/applicant shall prepare an Operations and

Maintenance manual for the interim detention basin for maintenance by the City. The manual

shall be subject to review and approval by the City prior to approval ofthe first final map.

d. Operation Funding. The owner/applicant shall provide a funding mechanism, separate from the
funding mechanism for the permanent detention basin, for the operation and maintenance by the

City ofFolsom ofthe interim detention basin.

a. Notice of Temporary Detention Basin

The owner/applicant shall record a separate instrument against the property comprised of
tentative map lots 23 through 2g,thatsaid lots shall be encumbered by the construclion of
a temporary detention basin needed to serve the development ofthe Broadstone Estates.

The document shall include a description ofthe proposed improvements, describe the

required off site pemanent detention basin needed to be constructed in order to abandon

the temporary detention basin, and shall include a statement that the development oflots
23 tkough 29 as shown on the approved tentative subdivision map cannot proceed until
such time as the interim basin is removed and all easements are abandoned to the

satisfaction of the city.

b. Removal of the Temporary Detention Basin
The owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for the removal and cost ofthe temporary
detention basin at such time as the temporary detention basin is no longer required. Lots
23 through 29 of the Broadstone Estates subdivision map shall not be created with a final
map until it has been determined that the downstream permanent detention basin has been

constructed bv others in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master

9l

Page 261

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Denartment

When
Reouired

Plan and is operational and the temporary detention basin is abandoned, removed and

regraded to allow for home construction to the satisfaction ofthe City.

c. Removal Agreement
The owner/applicant shall execute an agreement with the City of Folsom to guaxantee the

funding for the removal of the temporary detention basin prior to approval of the first
final map.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

Page 262

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment

When
Reouired

The firnding for the operation and maintenance of the basin shall remain in place until such time
as the required permanent detention basin(s) are constructed downstream by others and are

operational in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan. The funding
mechanism shall be in place and funding available to the city prior to approval ofthe first final
map.
e. Notice of Temporary Detention Basin. The owner/applicant shall record a separate instrument
against the property comprised oftentative map lots 23 through 29, that said lots shall be

encumbered by the construction ofa temporary detention basin needed to serve the development
ofthe Broadstone Estates. The document shall include a description ofthe proposed

improvements, describe the required offsite permanent detention basin needed to be constructed
in order to abandon the temporary detention basin, and shall include a statement that the

development oflots 23 through 29 as shown on the approved tentative subdivision map cannot
proceed until such time as the interim basin is removed and all easements are abandoned to the
satisfaction of the city.
f. Removal ofthe Ternporary Detention Basin. The owner/applicant shall be solely responsible
for the removal and cost of the temporary detention basin at such time as the temporary detention
basin is no longer required. Lots 23 through 29 ofthe Broadstone Estates subdivision map shall
not be created with a final map until it has been determined that the downstream permanent

detention basin has been constructed by others in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Storm
Drainage Master Plan and is operational and the temporary detention basin is abandoned,
removed and regraded to allow for home construction to the satisfaction ofthe City.
h. Removal Agreement. The owner/applicant shall execute an agreement with the City of Folsom
to guarantee the funding for the removal ofthe temporary detention basin prior to approval ofthe
first final map.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

cont.

9l

n:-,:.:. -: : !t:

Page 263

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

Existing Placerville Road
between Dewey Oak Drive and
White Rock Road will be
permanently closed in 2022. The
traffic that comes from north of
US ITWY 50 will be re-aligned to
use Westwood Drive to Savannah
Parkway rather than Placerville
Road. The abandoned portion of
Placerville Road will become a

Class I Bike Trail in the future.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

When
Required

IOld Placewille Road
The City may consider the closure and re-alignment of Old Placerville Road between US

Highway 50 and fuhre Alder Creek Parkway as part of future development in the Folsom Plan

Area, consistent with the project Folsom Plan Area EIR. The removal of the existing asphalt

concrete pavement on any future abandoned segment of Old Placerville Road will not be

permitted without the prior approval of the City.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

92

Page 264

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

All proposed utility service to the
lots in this subdivision have been
placed underground.

Comments

All of the required off-site
roadway improvements for this
subdivision have been completed
by other developments adjoining
this subdivision. These off-site
roadway improvements are

completbd are in operation and
have been accepted by the City.

cD(E), EWR

Responsible
Department
cD (E), Pw

I

When
Reouired

I,B

Future Utility Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project, shall be placed
underground within and along the perimeter of the project at the developer's cost. The
owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground easements for the electrical
facilities that will be necessarv to service develooment ofthe oroiect.

Placemille Road/Alder Creek Parkway Intersection

Prior to the issuance ofthe first building permit, the owner/applicant shall have completed all off
site road and intersection improvements from the on-site terminus of Dewey Oak Drive, Dehone

Drive to Purple Sage Drive and to Alder Creek Parkway, ultimately to the Placerville Road/Alder
Creek Parkway intersection and it shall be operational, to the satisfaction ofthe City. These

improvements are to be applied to the existing Placerville Road alignment and ge,ometry;

Two lanes (one in each direction) of Alder Creek Parkway shall be constructed from Placerville
Road to the proposed intersection ofPurple Sage Drive and Alder Creek Parkway and the
segment of Purple Sage Drive connecting to t}le local streets within the project to provide the

required secondary access.

Southbound on Placerville Road, the lane configuration shall include the addition ofa southbound

left hrm lane consisting of200 feet hansitional length plus I40 feet storage lengtb, excluding
appropriate tapers, to accommodate anticipated vehicle queuing and deceleration for the
southbound left tum laae onto eastbound Alder Creek Parkway. The resulting southbound lane
configuration will be two lanes, one left turn lane, one through lane.

Northbound on Placerville Road the lane configuration shall include the addition ofa northbound
right turn lane consisting of 180 feet transition length. The resulting nonhbound lane
configuration will be one lane, a shared right turn and through lane.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

94.

93

Page 265

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The improvement plans for the
subdivision improvements and

backbone roadways provide
vertical curbing as required.

All Class II bike lanes have been

constructed in accordance with
the Specific Plan, Design
Guidelines and City standards.

Comments

The owner/applicant has

completed the sewer trunk main,
lift station and force mains to
serve the subject subdivision.
The Owner/applicant developed a

flushing plan that was reviewed
and approved by the City
Engineer and the Environmental
and Water Resources Department.

cD (P) (B)

cD (E) (P)

Responsible
DeDartment

cD(E), Pw,
EWR

I

I

When
Reouired

I

Vertical Curb
All cgrbs located adjacent to landscaping, whether natural or manicured, and where parking is
allowed shall be vertical.

Class II Bike Lanes
All Class II bike lanes shall be striped and painted green. No parking shall be permitted within
the Class II bike lanes.

OIf-site Trunk Sewer Main
The owner/applicant shall design and construct the off-site trunk sewer main as shown in
Preliminary Offsite Infrastructure Plan attached to the vesting tentative subdivision map.

Ornrneriapplicant may propose an altemative alignment for routing the sewer backbone

infrasfucture in conformance with the Wastewater Master Plan Update subject to the sole

discretion ofthe City. The off-site sewer trunk mains, the sewer maintenance roads, sanitary

sewer lift stafion(s), and sewer forced mains extended across US Highway 50 to the existing

Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District (SRCSD) lift station shall be completed and

accepted by the City for operation and maintenance prior to issuance of the fust building permit in
the project.

The owner/applicant shall be responsible for constructing any and all odor control facilities,

providing high-velocity hydraulic cleaning and vacuum cleaning of select sewer mains and

providing temporary supplemental flows into select sewer mains as determined by the City until
such time the peak average flows are met in the Folsom Plaa Area backbone sewer system in
accordance with the Wastewater Master Plan Update.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

96.

97

95

Page 266

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

YesThe owner/applicant has designed
and graded the Class I bike hail
along the landscape corridor
parallel to US HWY 50. The
owner/applicant has also
designed and will construct the
Class [I bike lanes along East

Bidwell Street (formerly Scott
Rd) and Mangini Parkway. The
graded Ciass Trail along the US
HWY 50 corridor will be placed

in a separate landscape 1ot which
will ultimately be deeded to the
City in the future.

Comments

The owner/applicant has
participated in the asphalt
maintenance road for the entire
length of the sewer line extending
from East Bidwell Street
(formerly Scott Rd) to the Alder
Creek Parkway sewer lift station
as well as the sewer forced main
extension to the US50 crossing.

CD, PR

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E)

When
Required

I

I

Sewer Maintenance Road
The owner/applicant shall provide an asphalt concrete (AC) maintenance road (a minimum of 12

feet wide) which extends from East Bidwell Street (formerly Scott Road) to the future sanitary

sewer lift station on the proposed future extension of Alder Creek Parkway. The owner/applicant
shall also construct an asphalt concrete (AC) maintenance road (a minimum of 12 feet wide)
which extends from Placewille Road to Alder Creek Parkway, as shown on the Preliminary Off
Site Infrastructure Plan. The AC maintenance road shall be designed to meet City Standards for
utility vehicle loads including, but not limited to, vactor trucks, fire vehicles, and fire appaxatus

and other maintenance vehicles.

Parks and Recreation
The following measures shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Parks and Recreation

Department:

l. The Owner/Applicant will pay Parkland Dedication In-Lieu fees based on 0.0146 AC. per

single-family unit resulting in a total parkland dedication requirement of 1.04 acres. The
inlieu fee shall be calculated based on a Complete Summary Appraisal prepared to
establish a Fair Market Value as defined by the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC 16.32.040).

2. The Owner/Applicant will provide the proposed Class I bike trarl alignments and

connections consistent with the Bikeways Master Plan and Illustrative Master Plan for
Broadstone Estates Exhibit dated October 8, 2015. The Owner/Applicant may enter into a

construction reimbursement agreement with the City in the future to facilitate efficient
delivery ofthe trail facilities to the public

3. The Class I Bike Trail and associated drainage swales shall be placed in a separate lot and
granted to the City of Folsom. The trail shall be designed to accommodate regular vehicular
access bv maintenance vehicles usine the trail to access the Fuhrre Zone 4 water tank.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

98.

99

Page 267

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The landscape plans for Dewey
Oaks Drive include the required
sound walls and the lots that are

along the US HWY 50 alignment
will be constructed in accordance
with the recommendations of the
acoustical study and the
preliminary grading and drainage
plan.

Responsible
Denartment
cD (E) (P)

When
Reouired

INoise Barriers
In conjunction with the submittal of improvement plans for each proposed development phase

where noise barrier locations are required, the owner/applicant shall show on the Improvement
Plans that sound walls and/or landscaped berms shall be constructed as shown on the Preliminary
Grading and Drainage plan dated March 9,2017 "

The solid noise barriers shall be no less than the height shown on the Preliminary Grading and

Drainage Plan dated March9,2017, relative to building pad elevation and shall be confirmed
based upon the final approved site and grading plans. Noise barrier walls shall be constructed of
decorative split face concrete masonry units and shall be treated with an anti-graffiti treatment.

Abrupt transitions exceeding two feet in height shall be avoided. The Grading and/or
Improvement Plans shall be subject to review and approval by the City Engineer.

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

3A. 1l-4100.

Page 268

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/applicant has

provided updated Master Plans
for approval prior to the issuance
of a grading permit. Copies of
the Master Plans are available
from the Community
Development Department.

Responsible
Deoartment

CDD(E),
EWR, PW

When
Reouired

G,IMaster Plan Updnes
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, the Folsom Plan Area
Water System Master Plan and the Folsom Plan Area Wastewater Master Plan Update. The
owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to each ofthese approved master plans for the
proposed changes to each master plan as a result oftle proposed project. The updates to each
master plan for the proposed project shali be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval
of grading and/or improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location, and timing
of the proposed facilities. Improvernents shall be constructed in phases as the project develops in
accordance with the approved master plans, including any necessary off-site improvements to
support development of a particular phase or phases, subject to prior approval by the City. Off-
site improvements may include roadways to provide secondary access, water transmission lines or
distribution facilities to provide a looped water system, sewer trunk mains and lift stations, water
quality facilities, non-potable water pipelines and infrastructure, and drainage facilities includ:ing

on or off-site detention. No changes in infrastructure from that shown on the approved master
plan shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master plan has been revised and approved

by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be modified to accommodate the improvements
identified in these studies to the satisfaction ofthe City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage improvements with
corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these studies and the latest edition of
the City of Folsom Standard Construction Soecilications and Details. andthe Design and
Procedures Manual and Imorovement Standards.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-development
conditions.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

101.

,' .- j,

Page 269

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has prepared

a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) which
implements stormwater water
quality practices in accordance
with the Stormwater Quality
Design Manual for Sacramento

and Placer Regions. The off-site
drainage system improvements to
serve this subdivision have been

completed by others and have

been completed and accepted by
the City.

Responsible
Denartment
cD(E),PW
PW (Sacto.

Co. or El
Dorado Co.)

CALTRANS

USACE

cvRwQcB

When
Reouired

G,IDesign Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans to Avoil and
Minimize Erosion and Runoff to All Wetlands and Other ll/aters That Are to Remain on the
project and Use Low Impact Development Fealares.
To minimize indirect effects on water quality and wetland hydrology, the owner/applicant shall
include stormwater drainage plans and erosion and sediment conhol plans in their grading and/or
improvement plans and shall submit these plans to the City for review and approval. Prior to
approval ofgrading and/or improvement plans, the owner/applicant for any particular
discretionary development application shall obtain a NPDES Construction General Permit and
Grading Permit, comply with the City's Grading Ordinance and City drainage and stormwater
quality standards, and commit to implementing all measures in their drainage plans and erosion
and sediment control plans to avoid and minimize erosion and runoff into Alder Creek and a1l

wetlands and other waters that would remain on-site.
The owner/applicant shall implement stormwater quality treatrnent controls consistent with the
Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions in effect at the time
the application is submitted. Appropriate runoffcontrols such as berms, storm gates, off-stream
detention basins, overflow collection areas, filtration systems, and sediment traps shall be
implemented to control siltation and the potential discharge ofpollutants. Development plans

shall incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) features, such as pervious strips, permeable
pavements, bioretention ponds, vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter downspouts, and rain
gardens, where appropriate. Use of LID features is recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts
on water quality, hydrology, and stream geomorphology and is specified as a method for
protecting water quality in the proposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge systems
shall be used for all roadway crossings over wetlands and other waters that are retained in the on-
site open space. These bridge systems would maintain the natura.l and restored channels ofcreeks,
including the associated wetlands, and would be designed with sufficient span width and depth to
provide for wildlife movement along the creek corridors even during high-flow or flood events, as

specified in the 404 permit.
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for all necessary off-site improvements
needed to support the Broadstone Estates drainage system.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

34' 3-1a102.

Page 270

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Setisfied?

YesThe Ou'neriapplicant has received
a NPDES permit from the State
Regional Water Quality Control
Board (SRWQCB). The NDES
Permit requires the
implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for
stormwater runoff. The NPDES
Pemrit includes a Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP), which outlines
monitoring standards, frequency
and baseline modeling. The
Owner/applicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and

sRwQcB.

CommentsResponsible
DeDartm€nt

cD (E)

When
Required

G,IBest Managetnent Practices
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that meet the

requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek
and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek' The

owner/applicant shall establish a baseline of conditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow
conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and 100-year storm events. These baseline conditions

shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the stormwater system on the Specific Plan

Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring progam shall be submitted

to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be designed

and constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9,
"Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be designed as off-stream detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek,

Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-project conditions are

being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as necessary. The mitigation measures will
be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met for 5 consecutive years without undertaking

corrective measures to meet the performance standard.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

103.

,.,-. :._ 4,

Page 271

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied

Yes

The owner/applicant submitted
and received approval ofa Fuel
Modification Plan. A copy of the
FMP is available from the
Community Development
Department.

Comments

The owner/applicant has

complied with this provision and
completed periodic on-site
cleaning and sweeping of the

site.

The Community Development
Department and the Fire
Department have reviewed all
proposed improvement plans for
the construcfion ofthe water and
fire flow system for this

cD (P) FD

Responsible

cD (E)

cD (E)
Fire

I,B

G,I,M,B

When

OGLitter Conbol
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and sweeping of
all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm drains shall be cleaned
immediately before the commencement of the rainy season (October 1 5).

Incorporate Fire Flow Requiremenls into Project Designs.
The owner/applicant shali incorporate into their project designs fire flow requirements based on
the Califomia Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code and shall verify to the City of Folsom Fire
Department that adequate water flow is available, prior to approval of improvement plans and
issuance of occupancy permits or final inspections for all project phases.

Prepare fael modification plan (FMP).
The owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan to the City for review and preliminary
approval from the Fire Code Ofticial prior to any Final and/or Parcel Map. Final approval of the
plan by the Fire Code Official shall occur prior to the issuance of a permit for any new
construction. A Fuel Modification Plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans showing fuel
modification zones indicated with applicable assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan and an
irrigation plan. A fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall be prepared by one ofthe
following: a Califomia state licensed landscape architect, or state licensed landscape contractor, or
a landscape designed, or an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Offrcial.

The owner/applicant agree to be responsible for the long-term maintenance ofthe Fuel
Modification Plan. Notification of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon sale to
new property owners. Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan shall be

tosubmitted to the Fire Code Official for

Condition ofApprovalMitigation

3A 14-3

104.

106.

FIREDEPARTMENT
105.

:i_ j-:1 --r,i;_r .:i:a_ .:

Page 272

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has designed
and received approval for all
weather access improvements and
fire hydrants for this subdivision.
Permits for vertical construction
will not be issued prior to these
improvements being completed,

Responsible
Department

cD (E)
Fire

When
Reouired

I
All-Weather Access and Fire Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fue hydrants before combustible
materials are allowed on any project site or other approved altemative method as approved by the

Fire Code Offrcial/Fire Chief. All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and

flushed) shall be provided before combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on any

project site or other approved altemative method as approved by the Fire Code Offrcial/Fire
Chief (All-weather access is defined as six inches of compacted aggregate base from May 1 to
Septanber 30 and two inch asphalt concrete over six inch aggregate base from October I to April
30).
The building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting the

property. Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire
Marshal.

o The minimum fire flow for residential dwellings is 1,000 Wm at 20 psi for houses 3,600

sq. ft. and less, 1,750 gpm for dwellings greater than 3,600 sq. ft. in area, and 2,000 gpm

for dwellings greater than 4,800 sq. ft. up to 6,200 sq. ft. in area. Please determine the

maximum size homes that will be built in this subdivision. A water model analysis that
proves the minimum fire flow will be required before any permits are issued'

r A11 public streets shall meet City of Folsom Street Standards unless an altemative is

specifically included within this approval.
. The maximum lenglh ofany dead end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance with

the Folsom Fire Code. Several streets indicated on the plans are dead ends greater than 500

feet. In such cases, a second emergency access will be required.
r All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be

provided before combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-
weather access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May 1 to September 30 and 2"AC
over 6" AB from October I to April 30

r The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Ranch Plan Area shall be completed and

operational at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied homes within the Folsom
Ranch Plan Area is met.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

107

Page 273

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The Community Development
Department and the Fire
Department have reviewed all
proposed improvement plans for
the constmction of the water and

fire flow system for this
subdivision. Future building
permits will be reviewed and
approved by the CDDiFire prior
to buildins nermit issuance.

Comments

The City of Folsom Fire
Department. has reviewed and
approved the subdivision plans

and any off-site improvements for
compliance with this mitigation
measure.

cD (B)
Fire

Responsible
DeDartment

FD
PW

(E)CD

I,B

When
Required

I,B,O

Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions, and Alterations Document Suhmittdl List to

the Citl, of Folsom Commanity Development Department Building Division

The Fire Dept. shall review and approve any improvement plans or building permits for
accessibility ofemergency fire equipment, fire hydrant flow location, and other construction
featues. The City shall not authorize the occupancy of any structures until the owneriapplicant
have obtained a Certificate of Occupancy from the City of Folsom Community Development
Department verifying that all fire prevention items have been addressed on-site to the satisfaction
of the City of Folsom Fire Department.

Incorporate Califurnia Fire Code; City of Folsorn Fire Code Requirements; and EDHFD
Requirements, if Necessary, inlo Project Design and Sabmit Project Design to the City of
Folsom Fire Departmentfor Review and Approval

To reduce impacts related to the provision ofnew fire services, the owner/applicant shall do the

following, as described below:
Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom
Fire Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 8.36), and other applicable requirements

based on the City ofFolsom Fire Departrnent fire prevention standards. Improvement plans showing
the incorporation of automatic sprinkier systems, the availability of adequate fire flow, and the

locations of hydrants shall be submitted to the City of Folsom Fire Department for review and

approval. In addition, approved plans showing access design shall be provided to the City ofFolsom
Fire Department as described by ZoningCode Section 17.57.080 ("Vehicular Access

Requirements"). These plans shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and finished surfaces

for firefighting equipment. The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access road
shall be approved by the City ofFolsom Fire Department. The design and operation ofgates and

barricades shall be in accordance with the Sacramento County Emergency Access Gates and

Barriers Standard, as required by the City ofFolsom Fire Code.

Condition of Approval

3A 14-2

Mitigation
Measure

109.

108

Page 274

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has

constructed reclaimed water
pipelines within the subdivision.
These pipelines will be connected
to a potable water soruce until a

recycled water source is
available. These pipelines have

been planned to serve the
landscape corridors within the
subdivision.

Responsible
Department
cD (E) (P)
EWR, PK

When
Required

I

The owner/applicant shall install a reclaimed water "purple" pipe conveyance and irrigation system

for all proposed landscaping for the project including, but not limited to, landscape corridors along
roadways, median islands within roadways, future pmk sites, school sites, open space parcels either
publicly maintained or privately maintained by the owner/applicant, etc. in accordance the Folsom
Plan Area Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report. The reclaimed water pipe conveyance and

irrigation systems shall be designed and maintained by the owner/applicant to accommodate the

future conversion of these irrigation systems from potable water to non-potable water at such time
the non-potable water systems is constructed and installed in accordance with the 2014 FPA
Recycled Water Analysis 2.0" The owner/applicant shall include the reclaimed water pipe
conveyance and inigation systems on all future landscape plans within the project to the satisfaction
of the City.

Reclaimed llater Pipe

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

I 10.

'' ,:.":,,.::r'-l

Page 275

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Landscaping will soon be under
construction and the
owner/applicant has provided
security to guarantee the
completion of the landscaping
improvements along adjoining
roadways.

Comments

The Owner/applicant has

prepared a landscape plan for all
supporting backbone roadways
and detention basins. The plans

are in accordance with all City
requirements and Desi gn

Guidelines for the Folsom Plan

Area

cD(P), PW

Responsible
DeDartment
cD(P), Pw

I, OG

I, OG

When
Reouired

Right of Way Landscaping
Landscaping along all road rights ofway and in public open space lots shall be installed when the

adjoining road or lots are constructed.

Landscaping Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect and

approved by the City prior to the approval ofimprovement plans. Said plans shall include all on-

site landscape specifications and details, and shall comply with all State and local rules,

regulations, Govemor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water conservation and outdoor
landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in tle Folsom Municipal Code Chapter

17.57 where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient
requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model water
Effircient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own Water Efficient'
Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply with any new ordinance.

Shade and omamental trees shall be maintained according to the most cuffent American National

Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified tree care professionals. Tree

topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall not be

allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved

landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-year establishment and training period.

Landscaping installed in open spaces located between tiers of lots shall be chosen for resistarce to
fre and limited fuel production.

Furthermore, the owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on

water usage. Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating
to landscape water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought
conditions on all landscaping in the Broadstone Estates Project-

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

112.

lll

tl'r' ,,. .

Page 276

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The required subdivision
improvement agreement is
included as part ofthe Crty staff
report accompanying the final
map for City Council approval.
The resolution approving the final
map for this subdivision includes
a statement authorizing the City
Manager to execute the
subdivision improvement
agreement for the subdivision
along with approval ofthe final
maD.

The Russell Ranch Phase 3

subdivision improvements have
already been constructed by the
adjoining owner/applicant and the
required improvements in this
subdivision are therefore no
longer required.

Responsible
Department

cD@)

When
Reouired

MSuhdivision Improvement Agreement
Prior to the approval of any Firtal Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision
improvement agreement with the City, identifuing all required improvements, if any, to be

constructed with each proposed phase of development. The owner/applicant shall provide security
acceptable to the City, guaranteeing construction ofthe improvements.

Hillsdale Drive Lo* j0 through 35 Inclusive
Lots 30 through 35, inclusive, shall not be created with a final map until such time as one ofthe
following access options has been provided:

l. An Emergency Vehicle Access Easement (EVA) (as shown on the Preliminary Off Site
Infrastructure Plan) from the terminus of Hinsdale Drive, across the adjoining Russell

Ranch property andjoining the EVA located along the easterly side ofLot 29
2. Hinsdale Drive through the adjoining Russell Ranch Subdivision has been constructed,

3. A temporary turnaround has been constructed at the end ofHinsdale Drive. Any such

tum-around will be subject to review and approval of the Fire Department.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

1 14.

MAPREQUIREMENTS
113

:.1- .. '..,1_' i',:i'' ..:''.::' i:'..':'',.'"'- ',_ i _ . - i,.,:r'::' .,-.r.

-a'a'...r:-ii.::::.'":'

Page 277

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant has formed a

Homeowner's Association for the
ownership and maintenance of the

open space and common area lots
within the subdivision.

Comments

The owner/applicant has executed
an Inclusionary Housing
Agreement with the City. The

agreement allows the
owner/applicant to provide an in-
lieu fee assigned to each building
permit in the subdivision. The in-
lieu housing fee will be paid at

the time of building permit
issuance.

cD (PXE)

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (PXE)

M

When
Reouired

M

The owner/applicant shall form a Homeowners Association for the ownership and maintenance of
all landscaped open spaces and common ateas on hillsides, slopes etc. (Lots A through G, I, and

L), and all sound walls located along the norther$ side ofthe subdivision.

In addition, CC&R's shall be prepared by the owner/applicant and shall be subject to review and

approval by the Commrmity Development Department for compliance with this approval and with
the Folsom Municipal Code and adopted policies, prior to the recordation of the Final Map'

Hom eow ner's A ss o ciatio n

The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan and Final Inclusionary Housing Agreement as approved by
the City Council shall be executed prior to recordation ofthe first Final Map for the Broadstone

Estates Subdivision.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

1 15.

I 16.

Page 278

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has provided
copies of their proposed CC&R's,
which contain provisions in
accordance with the Items #1-3
and #5 listed in this condition of
approval. Ttemlj4 does not apply
to this subdivision.

Responsible
Denartment
cD (P)PKM

'When

Required
Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions (CC &Rs)
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Covenants, Conditions, and

Restrictions (CC&RS) and in the Departrnent of Real Estate Public Report

1) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occurring asbestos.

2) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or historic
object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance of any archaeological
site or historic property, is prohibited.

3) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight path and

that overflight noise may be present at various times.

4) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or used for
agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by
written disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising
any transferee ofthe potential adverse odor impacts from surrounding agricultural
operations which disclosure shall direct the hansferee to contact the County of
Sacramento concerning any such property within the County zoned for agricultural uses

within one mile ofthe subject property being transferred.

5) All sound walls are located on Open Space property owned and maintained by the

Homeowners Association. These walls cannot be altered by the adjoining homeowners.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A2-6tt7

:,1..-- '..,. r' 11. r

Page 279

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Condition
Satis{ied?

Previous developers in the FPA
provided all necessary public
utility easements, grant deeds,

offers ofdedication or temporary
construction easements required
to build al1 ofthe required
Backbone Infr astrucfure needed
to serve the subdivision. These

were recorded with Sacramento
County Recorder within either a

Large Lot Final Map or by
separate instrument

The owner/applicant has

dedicated a 12.5' PUE along all
roadway utility corridors as well
as internal streets within the

subdivision. The public utility
easements are shown on the final
map

Comments

The City has formed CFD 18, a

Maintenance CFD which shall be
responsible for maintenance of all
backbone infrastrucfire. drainage
facilities, street lighting and
landscaping. The assessments for
CFD 18 will be triggered at the
issuance ofa building permit.

cD (E)

cD (E)

Responsible
Denartment

CD (P) CD
(E)

M

When
Recuired

M

MP ub lic Utility E as em e nts
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on
properties adjacent to the sfeets. A minimum of twelve and one-half-foot (12'5') wide Public

Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMLID, Pacific Gas and Electric, cable

television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all private and public street rights-of-way.
The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to accommodate extraordinary facilities as

determined by the City. The width of the public utility easements adjacent to public and private

risht of wav mav be reduced with prior aooroval from public utilitv companies.

B ackb o ne I nfrastru cture
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. I thereto, the owner/applicant shall
provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary Backbone

Infrastructure to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public rights of way, public
utility easements, public water main easements, public sewer easements, irrevocable offers of
dedication and temporary construction easements. All required easements as listed necessary for
the Backbone Infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by the City and recorded with the

Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to the timing requirements set forth in Section 3.8 ofthe
ARDA.

Financing Districts
The owner/applicant shall form a Landscape and Lighting Assessment District, a Community

Services District, and/ or a Home Owners Association, which shall be responsible for
maintenance of all common areas, maintenance of all on-site landscaping, maintenance of storm

drainage facilities, maintenance of storm water detention/detention basins and associated

channels,maintenanceofwaterqualityponds,andmaintenanceofanyothersitefacilitiesin the

subdivision throughout the life of the project to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department. Vegetation or plant spacing shall not be less than that depicted on the final
landscape plan, unless tree removal is approved by the Community Development Department
because the soacins between trees will be too close on center as they mafure.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measure

119

120.

118

Page 280

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has installed
one (1) new benchmark per the
direction ofthe City Engineer and
have been shown on the
subdivision improvement plans.

The City Council adopted
Resolution No. 9666 ard9667 for
the formation of CFD No. 18,

which includes the special tax
assessments for all of the items
listed in this condition. All ofthe
required CFD's included in this
condition have been established
and approved by the Cify
Council.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

M

M

New Per man ent B en c hmar ks
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the (NAVD 88)

datum in various locations within the subdivision or at any other locations in the vicinity ofthe
off-site Backbone Infrastructure as directed by the City Engineer. The type and specifications for
the permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the City. The new benchmarks shall be placed by
the owner/applicant within 6 months from the date of approval of the vesting tentative subdivision
map.
Maintenance Plan Final Approval
No final map will be accepted by the city for processing and review until such time that the Open

Space Management and Financing Plan, the Drainage Facilities Maintenance and Financing Plan

and the Parks, Trails, Landscape Corridors, Medians and Open Space Maintenance Community
Facilities District is formed and approved by the City Council.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

121

122_

Page 281

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant has

constucted the necessary
infrastructure to provide potable
water to this subdivision. The
potable water infrastructure will
be approved by the City prior to
issuance ofthe first building
permit in this subdivision in
compliance with this condition.

Comments

The City Council adopted
ResolutionNo. 9666 and9667 for
the formation of CFD No. 18,

which includes the special tax
assessments for all of the items
listed in this condition. All of the
required CFD's included in this
condition have been established
and approved by the City
Council.

cD (E)
utilities

Responsible
Denarfment

cD (E)

M

When
Required

M

llater Supply Availabilily
The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with Government Code Section 66473.7

(SB 221) by demonstrating the availability ofa reliable and sufficient water supply from a public

water system for the amount ofdevelopment that would be authorized by the final subdivision
map. Such a demonstration shall consist of information showing that both existing sources are

available or needed supplies and improvements will be in place prior to occupancy. The written
proofofcompliance shall be provided to the City and approved by the City prior to approval of
any final map.

Community Facilities Districts and Financing Plans
Prior to approval of the first small lot final map and in accordance with Amendment No. I of the

ARDA and any frrther amendments thereto, the owner/applicant is required to complete the

following:
r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Sewer and Water CFD,
o Formation and approval by the City Council of the Aquatic Center CFD,
r Formation and approval by the City Council ofthe Parks, Trails, Landscape Corridors,

Medians and Open Space Maintenance CFD,
r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Storm Drainage Maintenance CFD

(unless such drainage maintenance is included in the Services CFD) ,

r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Sheet Maintenance District/Lighting
Maintenance District CFD (unless such street maintenance is included in the Services

cFD)
r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Open Space Management and

Financing Plan.
o Formation and approval by the City Council of the Drainage Facilities Maintenance and

Financing Plan

Condition of Approval

4.7 -l
3A 18-l

Mitigation
Measure

124.

r23.

Page 282

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

YesThe City obtained a letter from
Regional San which provides
verification that there is adequate
capacity in the existing Regional
San conveyance and treatrnent

system to accommodate the entire
Folsom Plan Area at buildout.

The owner/applicant has

conskucted the on-site and off-
site sewer infrastructure to serve
this subdivision. The off-site
infrastructure includes the sewer
trunk main, the Alder Creek
Parkway sewer lift station and
forced main.

Comments

The off-site potable water
infiastructure for this subdivision
has been constructed to serve this
subdivision. The City has verified
that the off-site potable water
infrastructure is adequate to serve
this subdivision.

cD (E) (B),
PW

cD (E) (B)
PW

Responsible
DeDartment
cD (E) (B),

PW

M,B

M,B,O

M,B

When
Recuired

Demonstrate Adequate SRIVTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity.

The owner/applicant shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the Sacramento Regional Water

Treatrnent Plant for new wastewater flows generated by the project. This shall involve preparing a

tentative map-level study and paying connection and capacity fees as identified by Sacramento

Regional County Sanitation District. Approval of the final map and issuance of building permits

for all project phases shall not be granted until the City verifres adequate Sacramento Regional
Water Treatment Plant capacity is available for the amount of development identified in the

tentative map. The written approval from the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District
shall be provided to the City.
Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site ll/astewflter Conveyance Facilities and Implement
On- and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is
Secured-
The owner/applicant shall submit proof to the City of Folsom that an adequate wastewater

conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured through payment or other sweties to
the City's satisfaction. Both on-site wastewater conveyance infrastructure and off-site force main
sufficient to provide adequate service to the project shall be in place for the amount of
development identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe final map and issuance of
building permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction ofthe
Citv.

Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site llater Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off-Site
Infrastructure Sewice Sytstem or Ensure That Adeqaate Financing Is Secured
The owneriapplicant shall submit proofto the City of Folsom that an adequate off-site water
conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured to the Cify's satisfaction. The off-
site water conveyance infrastructwe sufficient to provide adequate service to the project shall be

in place for the amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval of a final
subdivision map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be

ensured to the satisfaction ofthe City. A building permit shall not be issued for any building
within the project until the water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to serve such building has

been constructed and is in place to the satisfaction of the City.

Condition ofApproval

3A 16-3

3A 16-1

Mitigation
Measure

3A 18-2a

127

125

126.

Page 283

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

The owner/applicant has entered
into a SPIF
Credit/Reimbursement
Agreements with the City for
eligible improvements
constructed by the
owner/applicant.

Comments

The Final Map includes an
easement that allows for the
construction and maintenance of
centralized mail delivery boxes.

The Final Map for this
subdivision contains names
chosen from the approved list.

cD (E)

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

cD (E)M

M

When
Required

M

Credit Reimb urceme nt A gree ment
Prior to the recordation ofthe first final map, the owner/applicant and City shall enter into a credit
and reimbursement agreement for constructed improvements that are included in the Folsom Plan

Area's Public Facilities Financing Plan.

Centralized MaiI Delivery Units
Alt Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of centralized
mail delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for the placement of any

cenhalized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such base shall be determined
pursuant to the applicable requirements ofthe U. S. Postal Service and the City ofFolsom
Community Development Department, with due consideration for street light location, trafftc
safetv. securitv- and consumer convenience.

Street Names
The sheet names identified below shall be used for the small lot final map:

Dewy Oak Drive
Hinsdale Drive
Dehone Drive
Purple Sage Drive
Rocky Hills Drive
Spotted Dog Court

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

r28.

129.

I 30.

Page 284

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Comments

These measwes will be
implemented with the home

desip and construction.

Responsible

cD (PXB)

When

BImplement Additional Measures to Reduce Operational GHG Emissions.

Energy Efliciency

photovoltaic cells, solar thermal electricity systems, small wind turbines).

the Title 24las of 2007lby 35%).

and sun screens to reduce energy use.

contol systems, where practical. Use daylight as an integral part of lighting systems in all
buildings.

bicycle and pedestrian routes.

Water Conservation and Efficiency

drought-resistant species in all public area and commercial landscaping. Use water-efficient firrf
in parks and other turf-dependent spaces.

cars.

irrigation controls.

appliances.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A.4-2t131

BUILDINGPERMIT

:r..

Page 285

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment

When
Required

B
surfaces) and contol runoff. Prohibit businesses from using pressure washers for cleaning
driveways, parking lots, sidewalks, and street surfaces. These restrictions should be included in
the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions of the community.

and increases their energy consumption, construct driveways to single-family detached residences
and parking lots and driveways of multifamily residential uses with pervious surfaces. Possible
designs include Hollyrvood drives (two concrete strips with vegetation or aggregate in between)
and./or the use ofporous concrete, porous asphalt, furfblocks, or pervious pavers.

Solid Waste Measures

vegetation, concrete, lumber, metal, and cardboard).

buildings.

golfcourses, and pedestrian zones in areas ofmixed-use development

Transportation and Motor Vehicles

percentage ofparking spaces for ride-sharing vehicles, desigrrating adequate passenger loading
and unloading zones and waiting areas for ride-share vehicles, and providing a Web site or
message board for coordinating ride-sharing).

use oflow- or zero-emission vehicles (e.g., electric vehicle charging facilities and conveniently
located altemative fueling stations).

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A.4-2a131.

Cont.

a ,t:; I

Page 286

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

All of the required on-site and
off-site improvements necessary
to serve this subdivision have
either been constructed and
accepted by the City or are

bonded for in the subdivision
improvement agreement for this
subdivision.

Comments

The Community Development
Deparhnent will require the
copies ofthe recorded final map
to be submitted prior to approval
of the first building permit in the
subdivision.

The Community Development
Department will require the
copies ofthe recorded final map
to be submitted to the Folsom-
Cordova Unified School District
prior to approval of the first
building permit in the
subdivision.

cD (E)

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (P)
FCUSD

B

B

When
Reouired

B

Infrastructure Improvements Timing
All on and off-site subdivision and Backbone Infrastruchrre improvements required to serve this
project and any subsequent phase ofthe project, including but not limited to, roadway and

transportation improvements, sanitary sewer, water, storm drainage, water quality/detention

basins, etc. shall be completed to the satisfaction ofthe City prior to issuance ofthe first building
permit within the project.

Recorded Final Map
Prior to issuance ofbuilding permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-Cordova
Unified School District with a copy of the recorded Final Map.

Condition ofApproval

Recorded Final Map
Prior to the issuance ofbuilding permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital copy ofthe
recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development Departrnent.

Mitigation
Measure

133.

134.

132.

Page 287

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The Planning Commission will
review and approve all future

design reviews for the proposed

structures in this subdivision prior
to issuance of a building permit.

The Community Development
Department will review and

approve all site plans for each and
every residential structure in the
subdivision to verifu compliance.

Comments

The Community Development
Department will review and
proposed plans for stationary

noise sowces in the subdivision.
At this time there are no proposed

noise generating noise sources in
the subdivision

cD (P)

cD (BXP)

Responsible
Denartment
cD (PXB)

B

B

When
Reouired

B

Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from BaiWing Foundations.

The owner/applicant shall either install subdrains (which typically consist of perforated pipe and
gravel, surrounded by nonwoven geotextile fabric), or take such other actions as recommended by
the geotechnical or civil engineer for the project that would serve to divert seasonal flows caused

by surface infiltration, water seepage, and perched water during the winter months away from
building foundations.

Implement Measures to Redace Noisefrom Project-Generated Stationary Sources.

The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures to reduce the effect of noise levels
generated by on-site stationary noise sources that would be located within 600 feet ofany noise-
sensitive receptor:

conducted during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e.,7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All electrical
generators shall be equipped with noise control (e.g., muffler) devices in accordance with
manufachrers' specifi cations.

designed to reduce noise emissions below the stationary noise source criteria. These features may
include, but are not limited to, locating generators within equipment rooms or enclosures that
incorporate noise-reduction features, such as acoustical louvers, and exhaust and intake silencers.

Equipment enclosures shall be oriented so that major openings (i.e., intake louvers, exhaust) are

directed away from nearby noise-sensitive receptors.

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building pennit for any residential units within the subdivision, the

owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review approval from the Planning Commission for all
residences to be built within the subdivision. If the architecture is not consistent with the

Broadstone Estates Design Guidelines, the owner applicant may modify the plans or apply for a

modification to the Design Guidelines to be approved by the Planning Commission.

Condition ofApproval

34.7-5

Measure
Mitigation

3A.11-5I 35.

136.

137

Page 288

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Comments

The Community Development
Department will review and

approve all building permits in
the subdivision and verify that all

required school fees are paid.

Responsible
Department

cD (B)

When
Required

BFCUSD Fees
The owner/applicant agrees to pay to the Folsom Cordova Unified School Dishict the maximum
fee authorized by law for the construction and/or reconstruction of school facilities. The
applicable fee shall be the fee established by the School District that is in effect at the time of the
issuance of a building permit. Specifically, the owner/applicant agrees to pay any and all fees and
charges aad comply with any and 4ll dedications or other requirements authorized under Section
17620 of the Education Code; Chapter 4.7 (commencing with Section 65970 of the Government
Code: and sections 65995- 65995.5- and 65995.7 of the Govemment Code.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

138.

TRAFFIC, ACCESS, CIRCULATION, AIID PARKING REQTIIREMENTS
It should be noted that many ofthe Transportation, Traffic, and Circulation mitigation measures identified below will be satisfied through the pa1'rnent offees.
Below is a brief summary of the fee tlpes and their purpose. The acronyrns for each fee type noted below are further noted in the Implementation Schedule
column of each applicable mitigation measrue to clarifu how each mitigation measure is anticipated to be satisfied.

Fublic Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP):

In January of 2014, the Crty of Folsom adopted the PFFP for the Folsom Plan Area which detailed all the infraskucture components to address fulI build out of
the Plan Area. The PFFP includes various techniques including development fees to fund the necessary infiastructure. The City is currently in the process of
preparing and adopting implementing ordinances and a nexus sfudy required by State law to impose the associated development fees.

lncluded in the PFFP are a number roadway projects including the Highway Interchanges that the White Rock Springs Ranch project will have cumulative
impacts on within the Folsom Plan Area. The PFFP was designed to satisfr the "fair share" financing of all the Plan Area's backbone roadway system.
Participating in this fee program will satisff numerous roadway mitigation measures as shown in the MMRP table.

Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee (SCTDF) contribution:
The City is establishing a "fair share" fee to mitigate roadway impacts outside the project boundaries and within unincorporated Sacramento County. This fee
will be included in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan program and wiil be collected at the time of building permit issuance. The
basis for the calculation of the fee is a report entitled, "Fair Share Cost Allocation Sacramento County & City of Folsom" dated Jantary 2,2014.

Cal Trans/ City Memorandum of Understanding (Cal Trans MOU):
The City of Folsom and Cal Trans entered into an MOU on December 17 , 2014 to establish a fee mechanism to address the "fair share" impacts to Highway
50. The MOU identifies all the highway improvements for which there are mitigation measures and potential construction projects to address them. The City
will establish a fee in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan and it will be collected at the time of building permit issuance.

Page 289

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
nermit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment ofthe Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee (SPIF) -
Offsite Road Set Aside Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
palrment of the Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee (SPIF) -
Offsite Road Set Aside Fee.

Comments

cD (E), Pw

Responsible
DeDartment
cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

When
Required

B

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

(IS 50 from Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell Street/Scott Road
Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U'S. 50

between Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell Street/Scott Road (Freeway Segment 4). To ensure

that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie

City Road an auxiliary lane shal1 be constructed. This improvement was recommended in the

Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is

included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owneriapplicant, to reduce the impacts to

Eastbound U.S. 50 between Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell StreeVScott Road (Freeway

Seement 4).

E ast B idw ell/Iro n P o int
Prior to issuaace of a building permit, the owner/applicant shall pay a fair share fee to the City of
Folsom towards the modification to the westbound approach to the East Bidwell StreeVlron Point

Road intersection to include three left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and one right-turn 1ane.

Empire Ranch Road/Iron Point Road Intersection
To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road / Iron Point Road intersection operates at a LOS D or
better, all of the following improvements are required:
. The eastbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist ofone left-tum lane, two through

lanes, and a right-tum lane.
. The westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one

through lane, and a through-right lane.
. The northbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-tum lanes, three

through lanes, and a right-turn lane.
. The southbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-tum lanes, three

through lanes, and a right-tum lane.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of fi rndino nf imnrnvemenfs

Condition ofApproval

3A 15-1s

3A 15-4f

Mitigation
Measure

3A l5-4b,d

t4l

139

140.

Page 290

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
pa)rynent ofthe Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

Responsible
Department
cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

When
Required

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(PFFP)

lAe$bound U.S. 50 between Prairie Cily Road and Folsom Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and
Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvement was recommended
in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This
improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
shrdy or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce the

imoacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard.
a.S. 50 EastboundlPrairic City Road Diverge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road off-ramp
diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge shall be constructed. This
improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S, 50
Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge.

U,S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road Direct Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road on-ramp
direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road diverge shall be
constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee

Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road direct merge.

U,S, 50 Eastbound/Prairie CiE Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off-Ramp
ll/eave
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover
on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an improvement acceptable to Caltrans shall
be implemented to eliminate the unacceptable weaving conditions. Such an improvement may
involve a "braided ramp". The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp
to Oak Avenue Patkwav off-ramD weave.

Condition of Approval

3.A l5-1x

34. 1s-ly

3A 15-12

Mitigation
Measure

3,A' l5-1u

r44

145

142.

143

Page 291

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
wiil be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

cD (E), Pw

cD(E), PW

Responsible
Department
cD (E), Pw

cD (E). Pw

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

When
Required

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

U.S, 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak Avenue
Parkway loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the Prairie City
Road off-ramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound Oak Avenue Parkway would merge into this
extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway loop ramp merge.

U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road loop
ramp merge, an auxiiiary lane to the Folsom Boulevard offramp diverge shall be constructed.
This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound./Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge.

U,S, 50 Eastbound/Oak Avenae Parlcway Loop Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue Parkway loop
merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road diverge shall be constructed. This
auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The

owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge (Freeway Merge 9).

U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch

Road loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street

- Scott Road off ramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into
this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by
Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge.

Condition ofApproval

3A' 15-1ff

Mitigation
Measure

34' 15-1aa

3A l5-1dd

34. 15-1ee

t4'7

148.

t49.

146.

Page 292

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

cD (E), Pw

Responsible
Department
cD (E), PW

cD (E), PwB
(pay PFFP/
Interchang

e fee)

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

When
Required

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Slip Ramp Merge.
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road
slip on-ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak
Avenue Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, w and x), and the southbound
Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and
start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Steet - Scott Road off ramp.
Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie Citv Road slip ramp merse.

U,S, 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Direct Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptabie LOS at the Prairie City Road direct
ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off ramp diverge shall be constructed.
This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program.
The owneriapplicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound,/Prairie City Road direct ramp merge.

Eastbound US 50 baween Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and
Oak Avenue Parkway, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on-ramp should merge with the
eastbound auxiliaiy lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp and the

southbound Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway
off ramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off
ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak
Avenue Parkwav.

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A.-15-lgg

3A 15-4t

3,A' l5-4u

1 s0.

151

152

Page 293

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
pa).rnent of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

cD (E), Pw

Responsible
Denartment
cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PWB
(pay PFFP

fee)

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

When
Required

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

U.S. 50 Westboand / Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch

Road loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street

- Scott Road off ramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound Empire Ranch Road slip ramp wouid
merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment shall be

implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound i Empire
Ranch Road loon ramn merse.

U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Roail Flyover On-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp
ll'eave
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road

slip on-ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak

Avenue Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3.A'.15-4u, v and x), and the southbound

Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp and

start an extended fulI auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp.

Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans, The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway
Off Ramp Weave.

U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the southbound Oak Avenue
Parkway loop on-ramp should merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that starts at the

southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on-ramp and ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott

Road off ramp (see mitigation measwe 3A.15-4u, v and w). Improvements to this freeway
segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share

of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and

reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50 Eastbound /
Oak Avenue Parkwav Looo Ramo Merse.

Condition of Approval

3,A. 15-4x

34. 15-4v

3A 15-4w

Mitigation
Measure

t54.

1 55.

153

Page 294

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

Condition
will be
satished
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit.

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Transit Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
pa]'rnent ofthe Specific Plan
Infiastructure Fee (SPIF) -
Offsite Road Set Aside Fee

collected prior to building permit
issuance.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment ofthe Specific Plan
Infrastructwe Fee (SPIF) -
Offsite Road Set Aside Fee

collected prior to building permit
issuance.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

Responsible
Department
cD (E), PW

B
(pay PFFP

fee and
Transit fee)

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

When
Required

B
(pay PFFP

fee)

Provide Options for Alternative Transportation Modes.
The owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development application shall participate in
capital improvements and operating funds for transit service to increase the percent oftravel by
transit. The project's fair-share participation and the associated timing ofthe improvements and

service shall be identified in the project conditions of approval and./or the project's development
agreement. Improvements and service shall be coordinated, as necessary, with Folsom Stage

Lines and Sacramento RT.

Folsom Boulevard/Blae Ravine Road Intersection
To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard./Blue Ravine Road

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach shall
be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-tum lanes, one through lane, and
one right-tum lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the
imnacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road intersection
Sibley Street/ Blue Ravine Road Intersection
To ensure that the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach
shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, two through lanes,

and one righrtum lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or
other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to
reduce the impacts to the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection

U.S. 50 llestbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge.
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City
Road loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that continues beyond the Folsom
Boulevard off ramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound Prairie City Road slip ramp would merge

into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by
Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as

may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp

Merqe.

Condition of Approval

34' l5-1a

3A l5-1b

Mitigation
Measure

3,A l5-4v

3A l5-2a

1 56.

15'7

158

1 59.

Page 295

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

Responsible
DeDartment

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

When
Recuired

scTDF)

B
(pav

Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection and to White
Rock Road widening between the Rancho Cordova City limit to Praitie
CiA Road
Improvements shall be made to ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS. The currently County proposed White
Rock Road widening project will widen and realign White Rock Road

from the Rancho Cordova Cify limit to the El Dorado County line (this
analysis assumes that the Proposed Project and build alternatives will
widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie City Road to the El
Dorado County Line). This widening includes improvements to the Grant
Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock Road to be the through
movement. The improvements include two eastbound through lanes, one

eastbound right turn lane, two northbound left turn lanes, two northbound
right tum lanes, two westbound left tum lanes and two westbormd
through lanes. This improvement also includes the signalization ofthe
White Rock Road and Grant Line Road intersection. With
implementation of this improvement, the intersection would operate at an

acceptable LOS A. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements,
based on a prograrn established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection
Eastboand U.S. 50 as an alternative to improvemen$ at the Folsom
Boulevard/a.5, 5 0 Eastbound Ramps Intersection
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established
by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50
Eastbound Ramps intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4).
To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/U,S. 50 eastbound ramps
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes should be
added to eastbound U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to east ofFolsom
Boulevard. This was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Renort for the II.S. 50 Auxiliarv Lane Proiect.

Condition ofApproval

3A.15-1o

Mitigation
Measure

3A.15-1i160.

161

Page 296

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
willbe
satisfied
pdor to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payrnent of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

Responsible
Department
cD (E), Pw

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

When
Required

B
(Caltrans

MOU/)
SCTDF

Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound U-S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, a bus/carpool
(HOV) lane shall be constructed. This improvement is currently
planned as part ofthe Sacramento 50 Bus-Carpool Lane and

Community Enhancements Project. The owner/applicant shall pay its

proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that
agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 bet'ween Zinfandel
Drive and Sunrise Boulevard
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boul'evard
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an

auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvement was recommended

in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane

Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Progtam. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the

imoacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard

Grant Line Road/ State Route 16 Intersection
To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbotmd and

southbound approaches shall be reconfigured to consist of one left-tum lane and one shared

through/right-turn lane, Protected left-tum signal
phasing shall be provided on the northbound and soutlbound approaches.

Improvements to the Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intersection are

contained within the County Development Fee Program, and are

scheduled for Measwe A funding. Improvements to this intersection shall be implemented by
Calhans, Sacramento County, and the City ofRancho Cordova'
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant
Route 16 intersection.Line

Condition of Approval

3.{.15-lq

3A.15-lr

Mitigation
Measure

3A.15-1p

164.

163.

r62.

Page 297

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50

Improvement Fee.

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

Responsible
Department

When
Reouired

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans

MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

ll/estbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an

auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvement was recommended
in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane
Project, and included in the proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchange project.
Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans.
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Westbound
U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard
U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable
LOS at the Folsom Boulevaf,d merge, ar auxiliary lane from the Folsom
Boulevard merge to the Prairie City Road diverge shall be constructed.
This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is
included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to
the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramo Meree
U.S. 50 Eastbound,/Folsom Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at
the Folsom Boulevard Diverge, an arxiliary lane from the Prairie City
Road loop ramp merge shall be constructed. Improvements to this
freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. This auxiliary lane
improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee

Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus sfudy or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce the
imnacts to the II.S. 50 F.astbound / Folsom Boulevard diverge

Condition ofApproval

3,A..15-1w

3A. l5-1hh

Mitigation
Measure

3A.15-1v165

t66.

167

Page 298

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Safisfied?
Condition

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
nermit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Highway 50
Improvement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payment ofthe Transit Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the
payrnent of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF) and
the Specific Plan Inftastructure
Fee (SPIF).

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee (SPIF) -
Offsite Road Set Aside Fee

collected prior to building permit
issuance.

Responsible
Denarfment
cD (E), PW

cD (E). Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

When
Required

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B

B
(Caltrans

MOU,
PFFP fee,
SCTDF)

B
Pay PFFP

fee

U.S. 50 lYestbound/Hazel Avenue Direct Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable
LOS at the Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the
Sunrise Boulevard offramp diverge shall be constructed. This auxiliary
lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee

Program. The owneriapplicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Westbound/Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge.
Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program
The owner/applicant for any particular discretionary
development application shall pay an appropdate amount into the City's
existing Transportation System Management Fee Program to reduce the

number of single-occupant automobile travel on area roadways and
intersections.

Pay Full Cost of Identified Improeements that Are Not Funded by the Citlt's Fee Program.
In accordance with Measwe W, the owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development
application shall provide fair-share contributions to the City's transportation impact fee program
to fully fund improvements only required because of the Specific Plan.

Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection
To ensure that the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection operates at a LOS D with less than
the Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo
left-tum lanes, two through lanes, and one dedicated righrtum lane. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study
or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owneriapplicant, to reduce the impacts to
the Sibley Skeet/Blue Ravine Road intersection

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A.15-1ii

3A.15-2b

3A.15-3

34.15-4a

1 68.

L69

170.

r7l.

Page 299

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment ofthe Specific Plan
Infrastmcture Fee (SPIF).

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transpodation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
pa).rnent ofthe Specific Plan
lnfrastructure Fee (SPIF).

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee (SPIF).

cD (E), Pw

cD (E). PW

Responsible
Denartment
cD (E), PW

cD (E), PWB
Pay

SCTDF

B
Pay PFFP

fee

B
Pay

SCTDF

When
Required

B
Pay PFFP

fee

Oak Avenue Parhway/Iulifulle Road Intersection
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Nliddle Road intersection (as shown in the FPA)

operates at an acceptable LOS, control all movements with a stop sign.

Huzel Avenue between Madison Avenue and Carragh Downs Drive

To ensure that Hazel Avenue operates at an acceptable LOS between Ctmagh Downs Drive and

Gold Country Boulevard, Hazel Avenue must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is part

ofthe County adopted Hazel Avenue widening project.

East Bidwell Street/College Street
To ensure that the East Bidwell Street/College Street intersection operates at acceptable LOS C or
better, the westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist ofone left-tum lane, one left /
through lane, and two dedicated right-tum lanes. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate

share of firnding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate

and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the East Bidwell
StreeVCollege Sheet intersection

Oak Avenue Parkway/Alder Creek Parkway
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Alder Creek Parkway intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS the southbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes,

two through lanes, and rwo right-tum lanes.

Condition ofApproval

3A.15-1f

3A.15-li

Mitigation
Measure

3,A'.154c

34..15-4g173.

t74.

175.

172.

Page 300

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Responsible
DeDartment

PW

PW

When
Required

B
Pay

SCTDF

SCTDF

B
Pay

To ensure that the White Rock RoadliVindfield Way intersection operates at an acceptable LOS,
the intersection must be signalized and separate northbound left and right tum lanes must be

striped. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfreld Way intersection.

Wite Rock Road/lVindfield lVay Intersection

To ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS
E or better this intersection should be replaced by some type ofgrade separated intersection or
interchange.

Improvements to this intersection are identified in the Sacramento County's Proposed General

Plan. Implementation of these improvements would assist in reducing traffic impacts on this
intersection by providing acceptable operation. Intersection improvements must be implemented
by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by
that aeencv to reduce the imoacts to the Grant Line Road,{Vhite Rock Road intersection.

Grant Line Road/llhite Rock Road Intersection

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

3A.15-11:

3A.15-4i

176.

177

Page 301

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Sacramento
County
Cify of
Rancho
Cordova

Responsible
Denartment
Sacramento

County
City of
Rancho
Cordova

When
Reouired

SCTDF

B
Pay

SCTDF

B
Pay

Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulcvard and Jackson Highway

To improve operation on Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway, this

roadway segment could be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento

Courty and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP.
Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by Sacramento County and the City
ofRancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offrrnding ofimprovements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the

impacts to Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom
South ofll.S. 50 nroiect on this roadwav sesment.

Grant Line Road beween White Rock Road and Kiefer Boukvard

To improve operation on Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this

roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento

County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP.

Improvements to this roadway segrnent must be implemented by Sacramento County and the City
ofRancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the

impacts to Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom

South of U.S. 50 oroiect on this roadway segment.

Condition ofApproval

3A.15-4k

Mitigation
Measure

3A.15-4j178.

179.

i::l:.'-.'r.:,

Page 302

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The condition is safisfied with the
payrnent of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Sacramento
County

Responsible
Department
Sacramento

County
City of
Rancho
Cordova

Sacramento
County

SCTDF

B
Pay

B
Pay

SCTDF

When
Required

B
Pay

SCTDF

llhite Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road

To improve operation on White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing
Road, this roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes. Improvements to this roadway
segment shall be implemented by Sacramento County.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
imoacts to White Rock Road between Emoire Ranch Road and Carson Crossins Road.

Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 lYestbound Ramps

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements on Hazel Avenue, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound
Ramps.

White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Roail

To improve operation on White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road, this
roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included in the 2035 MTP
but is not included in the Sacramento County General Plan. Improvements to this roadway
segment must be implemented by Sacramento County.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom
South of U.S. 50 project on this roadway segnent. However, because of other development in the

region that would substantially increase traffic levels, this roadway segment would continue to
operate at an unacceptable LOS F even with the capacity improvements identified to mitigate
Folsom Plan Area impacts.

The applicant shali pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
imDacts to White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road.

Condition ofApproval

3A.15-4n

Mitigation
Measure

3A.15-41

3A.15-4m

t82.

I 80.

181.

Page 303

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition is satisfied with the
paynnent of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), Pw

Responsible
DeDartment
cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PwB
Pay

SCTDF

SCTDF

B
Pay

When
Recuired

B
Pay

SCTDF

Easthound US 50 baween Zinfandel Drive and Sanrise Boulevard

To enswe that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and

Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound lane could be constructed. This improvement is not
consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor System Management

Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Calhans by 2030.

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and

Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic from U.S- 50 and
partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offrrnding
ofimprovements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise
Boulevard.

lhhite Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road fntersection

To ensure that the White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road intersection operates at an acceptable

LOS, the eastbound right tum lane shall be converted into a separate free right turn lane, or
double right. Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by El Dorado County. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible

for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the

White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection
Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50 lVestbound Ramps Intersection

To ensure that the Hazel Avenue,{J.S. 50 westbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable

LOS, the westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist ofone dedicated left hrn lane, one

shared left- through lane and three dedicated right-hrm lanes. Improvements to this intersection
shall be implemented by Caltrans and Sacramento Cormty. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements,
based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel AvenueAJ.S. 50

Westbound Ramos Intersection.

Condition ofApproval

3A.15-4q

Mitigation
Measure

3A.15-4o

3A.15-4p

185

I 83.

184.

'.l:-, ..,._- - ',.::'',,:t.,' ,:.,,.,- ,' '.,::. l'l r i ..-...i- _'I ! i"'i:.-'i-,-:l

Page 304

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Comments

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition is satisfied with the
payment of the Sacramento
County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

Responsible
DeDartment
cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

SCTDF

B
Pay

When
Reouired

SCTDF

B
Pay

Eastbound US 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkwqt and Hazel Avenue

To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Rancho Cordova
Parkway and Hazel Avenue, an additional eastbound lane could be constructed. This
improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor
System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030.

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and

Grant Line Road to six lanes witl limited access, could divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and
partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
ofimprovements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and
Hazel Avenue.
Eastboand US 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road

To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and
Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary lane should be converted to a mixed flow lane that
extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4t).
Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Calffans. This improvement is
not consistent with the Concept Facility in Calhans State Route 50 Corridor System Management
Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030.

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and
Grant Line Roadto six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and
partially rnitigate the project's impact.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined
by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the
imoacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie Citv Road

Condition ofApproval
Measure

Mitigation

3A.15-4r

3A.15-4s

I 86.

187

Page 305

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Condition
Satisfied?
Condition

will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
oermit

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

Comments

This condition will be reviewed
and approvedby the Community
Development Departrnent prior to
the issuance of a building permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the landscape plans for
this subdivision. The approved
landscape plans include all ofthe
required measures in this
condition.

Responsible
Department
cD (B) (P)

cD (P) (E)

When
Required

B

B

M e c hanic al Ve ntilati o n
Prior to the issuance ofBuilding Permits, the owner/applicant shall show on the plans that
mechanical ventilation shall be insta"lled in all residential uses to allow residents to keep doors
and windows closed, as desired, for acoustical isolation. The building plans shall be subject to
review and approval by the City Community Development Deparftnent.

Landscaping Plan
Owner/applicant shall submit a landscape plan for all areas (by phase or subdivision) ofthe
project where owner/applicant proposes to install landscaping on residential lots. The landscape
plan shall take into account the then existing state or local rules and regulations related to
landscape water usage and water wise landscape principles. The landscape plans shall be
submitted and approved by the Community Development Director prior to the issuance of a
building permit in the phase or subdivision.

Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape
water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

1 88.

I 89.

Page 306

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



CONDITIONS
See attached tables of conditions for which the

Prior to approval of Improvement Plans
Prior to approval of Final Map
Prior to issuance of first Buildine Permit
Prior to approval of Occupancy Permit
Prior to issuance of Grading Permit
Durine construction
On-eoine requirement

I
M
B
o
G
DC
OG

Community Development DeparLment
Planning Division
Engineering Division
Building Division
Fire Division
Public Works Departrnent
Park and Recreation Department
Police Department

PW
PR
PD

CD
(P)
(E)
(B)
(F)

Page 307

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 308

10/25/2022 Item No.13.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council:

l. Move to approve Resolution No. 10936 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager
to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Opticos for Development of
Objective Design and Development Standards and Appropriation of Funds

2. Move to approve ResolutionNo. 10937- A Resolution Authorizing Applications for the
SACOG 2022 Ctreen Means Go Funding Program

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The 2035 General Plan and the recently adopted 2021-2029 Housing Element focus Folsom's
future growth in three key areas of the city: along the East Bidwell Corridor, areas around the
Glenn and Iron Point light rail stations, and the Folsom Plan Area. To identifr strategies to
increase development capacity in these key areas to meet the City's Regional Housing Needs
Analysis (RHNA), while at the same time, to foster attractive, well-designed development, the
City hired Opticos Design. Opticos is an architecture and urban planning firm with extensive

1

MEETING DATE: r012s12022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Objective Design and Development Standards and Green Means
Go Grant Funding

l. Resolution No. 10936- A Resolution Authorizingthe
City Manager to Execute a Professional Services
Agreement with Opticos for Development of Objective
Design and Development Standards and Appropriation of
Funds

2. ResolutionNo. 10937 - A Resolution Authorizing
Applications for the SACOG 2022 GreenMeans Go
Fundine Program

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 309

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



experience advising cities on housing design and development standards. Opticos evaluated

the City's current standards including density, height, setbacks, parking standards, and design

guidelines. They also evaluated the economic feasibility of projects using these standards.

What they found is that the City's current development standards do not foster attractive and

well-designed development in these areas. Furthermore, current standards also make it very

challenging for multi-family housing developers to develop affordable housing.

Based on Opticos' analysis, as well as stafPs evaluation of other community solutions to similar
challenges, staff developed recommendations that focus on form, size, scale, height, and design
rather than on density and setbacks. These recommendations, which were supported by City
Council at the July 26,2022 meeting, included the following:

l. A modest increase in density to 35 or 40 du/ac in these target areas.

2. An alternative approach using floor area ratio (FAR) that focuses on form, design, and

activation of ground floors for projects that wish to exceed the allocated density.

3. Moderate increases in heights in these areas consistent with community input from the

prior workshops and survey.
4. Parking reductions down to one space per unit if viable alternative transportation or

pirting options are provided.
5. Using build-to lines instead of setbacks to ensure that development goes in the right

location, activates the street, and supports pedestrian activity.
6. Development of objective design standards that promote quality design, appropriate

scale, and building form.
7 . Increasing the number of allowed housing units in the Folsom Plan Area and rezoning

additional sites for multi-family housing development subject to the availability of
adequate infrastructure and water supplies.

Based on previous direction from the City Council, staff proposes to move forward in
partnership with the Opticos team to develop objective design and development standards

consistent with the recommendations above for the targeted areas. Targeted areas include:

along the East Bidwell Corridor, areas around the Glenn and Iron Point light rail stations,

and the Folsom Plan Area Town Center. These objective design and development standards

would be incorporated into the Zoning Code update that is currently underway. It is

anticipated that these detailed guidelines would take approximately eight months to
complete at which time staff would retum to the Planning Commission and Council for
action.

Based on Opticos' draft contract proposal, the estimated cost to develop a toolkit of
standards and high-quality visual graphics would range between $170,000 to $245,000
depending on final scope and selection of optional tasks. At the time of this staff report,

final scope and selection of optional tasks are still being determined.

Note: Form-based objective design and development standards that accelerate and increase

housing in the City's Green Zones are eligible uses for current grant funding through
SACOG's Green Means Go Funding Program. As such, specific costs associated with

2
Page 310

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



development of standards along the East Bidwell Corridor and the areas around the Glenn

and Iron Point light rail stations could potentially be covered by the SACOG grant and thus

reduce the City's out of pocket costs from the City's Housing Fund.

SACOG Green Means Go Grant Opportunities

The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 2022 Green Means Go grant
program is designed to fund non-transportation infrastructure and planning that accelerates
infill housing within locally adopted Green Zones and supports housing affordability.
Eligible project sponsors (i.e., lead applicants) are the 22.cities and six counties within the
SACOG region; however, partnerships between lead agencies and other public agencies,
nonprofits, or community groups are highly encouraged. There are currently three
competitive grant categories associated with this funding: Early Activation, Planning, and
Capital. In September of this year, City Council approved Resolution No. 10916
authorizing an application for the Early Activation grant funding for infrastructure and
planning activities associated with the development of the affordable housing site at 300
Persifer. Awards of the Early Activation grant will be announced in November.

Staff has also identified additional Green Means Go grant opportunities under the Planning
and Capital categories. As previously noted, the development of objective design and
development standards as part of the city's Zoning Code Update for the areas along the East
Bidwell Corridor and the light rail stations is an eligible use of the Green Means Go
Planning grant. In addition, staff has identified the replacement of the existing storm drain
system along Bidwell Street between Wool Street and Decatur Street as an eligible project
under the Green Means Go Capital grant category.

The grant applications have a due date of October 27, 2022, and all grant funds must be
obligated by June 2024 and fully expended by June2026.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, professional services
contracts of $66,141 or greater shall be approved by the City Council. Furthermore,
pursuant to Folsom Municipal Code 2.36.120 professional service contracts are not subject
to competitive bidding.

ANALYSIS

Objective Design and Development Standards Analysis

Increasingly State laws are aimed at reducing the extent of discretionary review of multi-
family and mixed-use housing projects. Recently adopted Senate Bill 330 (2019) and
Senate Bill 8 (202I) require that jurisdictions conduct design review for all residential
projects, including single family development, using objective design standards. This
housing legislation defines an "objective" standard as one that involves no personal or
subjective judgement by a public official and uniformly verifiable by reference to an

J
Page 311

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



external and uniform benchmark or criterion available and knowable by both the
development applicant and the public official prior to submittal.

Since design is so critical to whether a project enhances an area or detracts from it,
developing quality objective design and development standards is important to ensuring the
appropriate and attractive design of new projects. Thus, as part of the City of Folsom's
current Zoning Code Update and efforts to increase maximum densities in key areas of the
city, the city plans to develop form-based objective design standards that will insure high
level design in four Green Zone areas of the city (Central Business District, Creekside,

College- Broadstone and Glenn-Iron Point) and the Folsom Plan Area Town Center. To
this end, the city proposes to utilize a combination of FAR standards, build-to lines, and
parking reductions in order to develop location specific objective design and development
standards that will result in attractive and appropriate development in these areas.

The Opticos Design team of urban designers, architects, and strategists have extensive
experience with form-based codes and developing objective design and development
standards. Not only does Opticos bring a wealth of experience and creativity to the table,
but because of their recent work on our Targeted Multi-family and Mixed-use Housing
Study, they already have a core understanding of these areas of the city. Thus, based on
their expertise, understanding ofthe project, and overall project proposal, staffis requesting
that City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement
with Opticos for the development of objective design and development standard toolkit for
the following areas: along the East Bidwell Corridor, areas around the Glenn and Iron Point
light rail stations, and the Folsom Plan Area.

Grant Analysis

Go Grant - - The Planning category is
designed to fund planning activities that accelerate infill residential development. Some of
the eligible uses include rezoning and updating planning documents and zoning ordinances
that accelerate infill development in Green Zones. As previously indicated in the
background section of this report, staff has identified this second category, Planning, as a

great opportunity to apply for funding that will offset the city's costs associated with
developing objective design and development standards within areas designated as the
crty's Green Zones.

SACOG Green Means Go Grant - Cepilal(eafqgaryl)
The largest category, Capital, of the Green Means Go funding program will fund non-
transportation infrastructure that accelerates infill residential development that improves
housing affordability. Non-transportation infrastructure can consist ofi Water - Sewer -

Stormwater - Electricity - Broadband. The Capital category aims to fund corridor-level
infrastructure investments that help unlock an area for increasing residential development.

City staff has determined that replacement of the existing storm drain system along Bidwell
Street between Wool Street and Decatur Street is an eligible Capital grant project. The
existing storm drain system along Bidwell Street is failing and is no longer able to

4
Page 312

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



adequately convey runoff. The proposed project would replace approximately 500 linear
feet ofthe 18" storm drain line, regrade the roadside ditch, and add asphalt or rip rap to
minimize any future potential erosion. The estimated cost of the proposed project is
$325,000. There are several vacant and residentially zoned sites along this part of the
Bidwell Street corridor. Given future plans for residential development along this section
of the Bidwell Street corridor, replacing the existing drainage system is key to the future
residential projects within this designated Green Zone.

At this time, staff is requesting that City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a

professional services agreement with Opticos for an amount not to exceed $250,000 for the
development of objective design and development standards. In addition, staff is
recommending that the City Council authorize applications for both Green Means Go grant
opportunities, presented in Resolution No. 10937.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Funds are currently available in the General Plan Fund (Fund 225) in an amount of $250,000
for the Opticos professional services agreement, however an appropriation will be
required. Staff is thus requesting an additional appropriation to the General Plan Fund
(Fund 225) inthe amount of up to $250,000 for this agreement.

Neither of the grant applications require a financial match.

If the city is able to secure Green Means Go Planning grant funding for a portion of the
Opticos project (as previously referenced in this staff report), the project would still receive
funding initially through the General Plan Fund (Fund 225); however, the city would be
reimbursed for the eligible costs associated with the Green Means Go Grants Program funds
in accordance with the reimbursement schedule.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The execution of a contract to is not considered a project under the California Environment

Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3). As a

result, this action is exempt from environmental review.

The Zoning Code Update, and associated design and development standards will be
required to include environmental review and thus prior to Zoning Code adoption
environmental review will be conducted, and the appropriate environmental document
prepared. This will be presented to the City Council at the time of adoption.

5
Page 313

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10936 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Opticos for Development of Objective Design
and Development Standards and Appropriation of Funds

2. Resolution No. 10937 - A Resolution Authorizing Applications for the SACOG 2022
Green Means Go Funding Program

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

6
Page 314

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 10936 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Opticos for Development

of objective Design and Development Standards and Appropriation of
Funds

Page 315

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10936

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PROF'ESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH OPTICOS FOR THE

DEVELOPMENT OF'OBJECTIVE DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND
APPROPRIATION OF F'T]NDS

WHEREAS' increasingly State laws are aimed at reducing the extent of discretionary
review of multi-family and mixed-use housing projects; and

WHEREAS, recently adopted Senate Bill 330 (2019) and Senate Bill 8 (2021) require
that jurisdictions conduct design review for all residential projects, including single family
development, using objective design standards; and

WHEREAS, as part of the City of Folsom's current Zoning Code Update and efforts to
increase maximum densities in key areas of the city (along the East Bidwell Corridor, areas
around the Glenn and Iron Point light rail stations, and the Folsom Plan Area) the city plans to
develop form-based objective design and development standards that will result in attractive and
appropriate development in these areas; and

WHEREAS, Opticos, by reasons of their experience for developing these types of
standards, is qualified to perform the required consulting services; and

WHEREAS, an appropriation of up to $250,000 will be required for the development of
objective design and development standards; and

WHEREAS, adequate funds are available in the General Plan Fund (Fund 225) for the
development of these objective design and development standards; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Opticos for the
development of objective design and development standards.

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chief Financial Officer is
directed to appropriate up to $250,000 in the General Plan Fund (Fund 225) for development of
objective design and development standards for areas along the East Bidwell Corridor, areas
around the Glenn and Iron Point light rail stations, and the Folsom Plan Area. The appropriation
will be from the Community Housing Fund current fund balance.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Resolution No. 10936
Page I of2

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 316

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

ATTEST

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10936
Page2 of2

Page 317

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 2

Resolution No. 10937 - A Resolution Authorizing Applications for the
SACOG 2022 Green Means Go Funding Program

Page 318

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. T0937

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATIONS F'OR THE SACOG 2022 GREEN
MEANS GO FUNDING PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 2022 Green
Means Go grant program is designed to fund non-transportation infrastructure and planning that
accelerates infill housing within locally adopted Green Zones and supports housing affordability;
and

WHEREAS, the City (as a lead agency) is eligible to apply for the Sacramento Area
Council of Government (SACOG) 2022 Green Means Go Early Activation grant for non-
transportation infrastructure and planning activities that accelerate infill housing within
locally adopted Green Zones and supports housing affordability: and

WHEREAS, staff has recently identified Green Means Go grant opportunities under
the Planning and Capital Green Means Go funding categories; and

WHEREAS, for the Planning category, staff has identified the development of objective
form-based design and development standards for areas along the East Bidwell Street Corridor
and Glenn and Iron Point light rail stations as an eligible activity to receive this grant funding;
and

WHEREAS, staff also identified the replacement of the existing storm drain system
along Bidwell Street between Wool Street and Decatur Street as an eligible project for the
Capital grant category; and

WHEREAS, neither of the grant applications require a financial match.

NOW' THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the applications to the Sacramento Area Council of Govemment for the 2022
Green Means Go Funding Grant for eligible Planning and Capital grant categories.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October 2022 by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Resolution No. 10937
Page I of2

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Page 319

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10937
Page2 of2

Page 320

10/25/2022 Item No.14.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No. 10938- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2

Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase

2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos
5 & 6 Subdivision was approved by the City Council on February 13,2018.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village No. 5 & 6

Subdivision. The Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision
will create a total of 153 single-family high density (SFHD) residential lots. With the approval

of the Final Map, the subdivision process for this project will be complete.

MEETING DATE: r0t2s12022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10938- A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and

Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2

Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map
for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision

FROM: Community Development Department

1

Page 321

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



j
tr#
b*-

i,l

I

I
-t

i
i

The Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision is located on the north side of
Alder Creek Parkway west of Placerville Road and east of Westwood Drive in the Folsom Plan
Area (FPA) (see above).

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of Califomia and the Crty's Subdivision Ordinance
require thatthe City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6
Subdivision have been reviewed by the Community Development Department and other City
departments. The Final Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the approved
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have been

satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2

Village Nos. 5 & 6 Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information
concerning when the condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit,
etc.), which City department is responsible to verifr that it has been satisfied, and comments

2

.l-

Page 322

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



or an explanation on how the condition was satisfied. This subdivision is consistent with the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) in regards to zoning and unit count.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

On February 13,2018 the City Council approved the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map and determined that the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision project is
entirely consistent with the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) and Westland Eagle
Specific Plan Amendment and therefore exempt from review under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provided by Government Code section 65457 and CEQA
Guidelines sections 15182. No additional environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Resolution No. 10938- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 2 Yillage Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the
Mangini Ranch Phase 2YillageNos. 5 & 6 Subdivision

2. Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision Final Map

4. Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions ofApproval for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

J Page 323

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 10938. A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT
AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OFFERS OF'DEDICATION FOR THE
MANGTNT RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS. 5 & 6 SUBDIVISION,

AND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL MAP FOR THE MANGINI
RANCH PHASE ?VILLAGE NOS.5 & 6 SUBDIVISION

Page 324

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. 10938

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OFFERS OF DEDICATION FOR THE

MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS.5 & 6 SUBDIVISION, AND APPROVAL OF
THE FINAL MAP FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS. 5 & 6

SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 subdivision
has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the approved or conditionally
approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; ard,

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2

VillageNos.5 & 6 subdivision;and,

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accept, subject to improvement, any and all offers
of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2Yillage Nos. 5 & 6
subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2Yillage Nos. 5 & 6 subdivision is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute

the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with KB Home Sacramento, Inc. in a form acceptable to the

City Attomey and accept the offers of dedication for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2YilIage Nos. 5 & 6
subdivision.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10938
Page I ofl

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 325

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 2

MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS. 5 & 6 SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

Page 326

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Gode Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY:

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAILTO:

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
Cify Clerk
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF FOLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of _,2022, by and

between the Cify of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "City", and KB Home Sacramentoo Inc., a

California Corporation hereinafter refened to as "Subdivider".

RECITALS

A, Subdivider has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land
located within the corporate limits of the City that has been prepared in accordance with the
Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the
Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council
of the City.

The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as Mangini Ranch Phase
2 Village. Nos. 5 & 6, and is herein referred to as the o'subdivision".

Subdivider has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of
the public improvements (as shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit
A), including, but not limited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,
bikeways, storm drainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public
utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational improvements and

appurtenances thereto, in or required by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances
of the City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by
the City. The foregoing improvements, more specifically listed on Exhibit A attached hereto,
are hereinafter refened to as "the required improvements".

B

C

Page 327

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



D. City Council has required as a condition precedent to the approval of the Final Map, the

Subdivider first enters into and executes ihis subdivision improvement agreement with the City.

NOW, THER-EFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. perfirrmanse o1'Work. Subdivider agrees to furnish, construct, and install at his own

"*p"rr* 
th*.qui."d i*p.ou.*.nts as shown on the approved plans and specifications

of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development

Department, and is incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or

modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions,

changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer- The

approved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be modified by lhe
Subdividei as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved

in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,

as shown-on p*niuiie, is THRNN MILLION NINE HUNDRED SEVENTEEN

THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETEEN AND OO/TOO DOLLARS
($3,917,319.00)'

Z. Work; Satisfaction of City Enginecr. All of the work on the required improvements is

to U" Oo*ot ttr. ptuces, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's

Improvelnent Standards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable

Ciiy ordinances or state and federal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

3. Workl f ime tbr Conrnrencenrent and P.erfarntmce. Work on the required

i*pt*"*ntr rttuff be completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months

from the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the

commencement of sucli work, the Subdivider shall notiff the City Engineer in writing

of the date fixed by Subdivider for commencement of the work.

'l'inte of Essencql [xtension'

a. Time is of the essence of this Agreement, The date for completion of the work

of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 16.36' 1 10 of
the Folsom MuniciPal Code.

lmproverugnt Securitv. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the

Subdivider shall furnish the CitY:

a. Improvement security in the sum of THREE MILLION NINE HUNDRED

SEVENTEEN THdUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETEEN AND OO/1OO

DOLLARS ($3,91?,319.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the

total estimated cost of constructing the required irnprovements and the cost of

aly other obligation to be performed by Subdivider under this Agreement,

conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and

4.

5

2

Page 328

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



b.

c.

Separate improvement security in the sum of THREE MILLION NINE
TTUNNRNN SEVENTEEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETEEN
AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,917,319.00), which sum is equal to one hundred

percent of the estimated cost of constructing the required improvements,

securing payment to the contractor, subcontractor and to persons furnishing

labor, materials, or equipment to them for the construction of the required

improvements.

The subdivider shall deposit with the city THREE THOUSAND AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to correct deficiencies and conditions caused by the

Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the

construction of the subdivision.

d. The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent (10%)

construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments

in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Government Code of the State of California,

and an estimated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.

In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may

submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification from the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

Plan Checkine arrcl Inspection Fees. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the
-tti"t ing, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for

inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the

times established by the CitY.

lnclernnification and I'lold Harrnless. The Subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend,

s* und hold the City harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or

injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts,

.rrorr, oiomissions of Subdivider or Subdivider's officers, employees, volunteers, and

agents during performance of this Agreement, or in connection with Subdivider's work,

oi fro* any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent

caused, in whole or in paft, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Subdivider or its employees, subcontractots, or agents, or by the quality or character of
Subdivider's work. It is understood that the duty of Subdivider to indemnifo and hold

harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil

Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under

this Agreemlnt does not relieve Subdivider from liability under this indemnification

and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to

any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have

beln determined to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this

Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, Subdivider acknowledges and agrees to

the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Sub-divider shall, at his own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal

proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

lmployees, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satisfu any judgement that may be

J

6

7

Page 329

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



8

rendered against the City in any such actions, suits or legal proceedings, or result

thereof.

Insurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdivider to perform any of the

Required Improvements shall, at their expense? maintain in effect for the duration of
this Agreement or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever

first occurs, not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisfactory to the City. The

maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of
insurance is a material element of this Agreement. The failure of Subdivider or ilny of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be

treated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement.

a. Minimum Limits of Insurance. Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than

I Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per

occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Worker's Compensation and Ernployers Liability: Worker's
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentiong. Any deductibles or self-insured

retentions shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the

City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured

retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related

investi gations, claim admini stration and defense expenses.

2

J

b.

c Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to

contain, the following provisions:

l. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

A. The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to

be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider; products

and completed operations of the Subdivider; premises owned,
leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,

hired or borowed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain

no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the

City, its officers, offtcials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance

4

B.

Page 330

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers. Any insurance of self-insulance maintained by the

City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the

Subdivider's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
officials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer

shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or
cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after

thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt

requested, has been given to the City.

Aqcel;tability ol-lnsurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's

rating of not less than A: VIi.

e. Veril'rcation of Covcrage. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,

the Subdivider shall furnish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its

behalf. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies at any time.

Title to Improvements. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements

constructed under this Agreement by Subdivider shall vest absolutely in the City upon

completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. The City
Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such

improvements have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specificatiot'ts,

approved rnodifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City Improvement Standards and

Standard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws

and after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion'

Slamanty Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City

Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defective

materials used in the performance of the required improvements (Wananty Security)

throughout the warranty security period which shall be the period of one year following

5

C

D

a
J

d

9

10.

Page 331

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



I l.

12

13

l4

completion and w'itten acceptance of the improvements (Waruanty Security Period). The

amount of the Warranty Security shall not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction

of the improvements, including the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agreement,

which shall be retained for the Waruanty Security Period.

Repair ol' lteconstrnction ol Del'cgtive Work or Materiah. If, within the Wananty Security

Period or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work
done under this Agreement fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications referred to herein as determined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise

unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to act
promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require

repairs or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City may, at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perfotm the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent (15%) within
thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City, The parties further understand and

agree that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph 10 of this Agreement shall
guarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of the provisions of this paragraph

during the Warranty Security Period.

Subdivider Not Agent of City. Neither Subdivider nor any of Subdivider's agents or
contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance

of Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement.

Nqtice of Brgach and Default. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any part

thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified, or any

extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruptcy, or Subdivlder should make a general assignment for the benefit of his

creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractots, agents or employees should

violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,

serve written notice upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this
Agreement, or of any portion thereof.

Ilreach of Agreement: Perlbrmance By-Eluety or City. In the event of any such notice,

Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and the

required improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after the

serving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written noticc of its intention to

take over the performance thereof within fifteen ( I 5) days afler notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by

contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incurred by the City; and in such event, the City, without liability for so

doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, applianoes,

plant or other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

therefbr.

6

Page 332

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



15

If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, after giving notice of
breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the

rnanner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument.

Ngtices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person

or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

ATTN: City Engineer

Notices required to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

KB Home Sacramento, Inc.
3005 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 250

Roseville, CA 9566f
ATTN; Leo Pantoja, Vice President of Planning

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Federal Insurance Company
633 W. 5th Street, Suite 1200

Los Angeles, CA 90071

Brenda Wong, Attorney-in-Fact

Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attorney's Fees. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,

the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, in addition to

any other relief to which he may be entitled.

17. Assiqnment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors in
interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City
may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's

Office.

7

Page 333

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

SUBDIVIDER

KB Home Sacram
A California

BY BY:

Print Name: Print Name:

Title: a Title:

DATE // DATE:

CITY OF FOLSOM, a Municipal Corporation

DATE
Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

DATE
Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Pam Johns
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

a

DATE
Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF "SUBDIVIDER'' MUST BE NOTARIZED
Certificate of Acknowledgement pursuant to Civil Code, Section I189, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6

8

Page 334

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Village 5 & 6

ExhibitA

FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Bond Estima'te Summary

for
Mangini Ranch PH2 Village 5 & 6

s

Total

Cost

3,9L7,3t9

sl27

Cost to

Complete

s 3,9L7,319

Subtotal

TOTAL Costs

$ 3,9L7,3L9

$ 3,917,319

$ 3,917,319

S 3,912,319

Page 335

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ItemNo quantlty Unit Descrlption

Site Preparatlon & Earthwork

FOLSOM PIAN AREA
Bond Estlmate for

Monglnl Ronch PH2 Vllloge 5 & 6

unlt Prlce

5 ..,20!,0!_
$ 1,ooo,oo

Subtotal Gradlng & Slte Prep

_5 50.00

I , zo.oo

s 4,s00,00

s 12,000,00

--$ *_$q!s_
s 1,000:00

subtotal Sewer

5 4s.00

$ - _ s!,oo

$ so,oo

$ -, , ss,oo 
,

Total

s s,600.00

$ ,_ 28,000.00

S 33,5oo.oo

81.000.00 016

Cost to
Complete

$,__**!qqq!9_
5 281000.00

I 140,s80.00

S 40,865.00

Complete

o%-
0%

1

2

28,0

28,0

AC Clearing& Grubbing

Ac Erosion Control

Sanltary Sewer System

1,688

3,091

18

3

Storm Drain System

Potable Water Dlstrlbutlon System

3,156

&375
36,029

276
15
14

tF 6" Sanitsry Sewer, PVc sDR 25

LF 8" Sanltary sewer, PVC SDR 26

EA 48" Standard Sanltary Sewer MH

F^ 60" Epoxy Lined standard sanltary Sewer Manhole w/ lnslde
-" Drop connectlon
EA Connectlon to Exlstlng Sewer Maln

EA 4" Sanitary Sewer Servlce

LF 12" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

LF 15" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

tF 18" Storm Drain, RCP CL lll

LF 24" Storm Orain, RCP Cllll
LF 30" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

EA 48" standard Storm Draln Manhole

EA 50" stahdard Storm Drain Manhole

EA 72" Standard Storm oraln Manhole

EA 84" Storm Draln Manhole

EA Type'F'Drdlnagelnlet
EA ModlfiedType'B'Drainagelnlet
EA Type GOt-7 (On Grade) Dralnage lnlet

EA Connectlon to ExlstlnB Storm Draln Maln

s 33,60040_

$ 84.400.0n q% s 84,400.00

$ 216,370,00 a% $" __4q3zqe!_
$ _81,000.00

1

2

3

5

6

4 _s_ *16,000,00 o% s 30000.00

$ soo.oo o9{' _,. -_l soo'oo

$ 153,000.00 a% s -Egpqq4q_

$ s71,270.00 s s7L,270,00

)

$ 60.00

- 5 os.oo

5 lo,oq.

L

153

3,r24
743

671

522

582
id

6

4
1

1

42

8

125

4,888

1

2t
2

20

153

3

2

Subtotal Storm Drain $ 661,375.00

s r4o,sqQ,00 .

s 40,86s.00
g 

-._*_-40,?60,00

5 42,000.00

s 36,000.00

$ 36,000.00
1,000.00

.-$.. _-. 6,?50.00

s 268,840.00

5 5,ooo.oo

$___ _.100,000.00
$ 459,000.00

s 10,500.00

s 40,260.00

s 33,930100 -
_$ __i9J39!9_
_ 5_ .,90,000.00

* qvt $ 42,ooo,oo

o% $ 36,000,00

_ 0% $ u,000.00

* o% -,.-- $ 2,000,00."

o% $ - .111!g!!g-
.__o% _ s 364900.00

0% . $ 1,000.00.

$ 661,37s,00

o% $ -.6.zso.oo
$ 268,840,0i_

*$_ , 1,500.00

$ 42,000.00

._i_ 5,ooo.oo

_$ ,,, loo,ooo.oo

. $ 459,000.00,_

o% $* , !0,500.00
__o-"/:_ _ $ ilqqqo_

s qg8,qg_0,q!_

0%
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

r7
I5

0%

$ 33,930.00
o%$ 40,740,00

$ s,ooo.oo $ *., eqlqqqq_ __o%

$ u,ooo.oo
s 2,000.00

s 147,000,00

s

1

2

4

5

7

I
9

10

7l

LF 5" Water Main. PVC C900 CL 235

LF 8" Water Main, PVC C900 CL 235

EA 6" Gate Valve

EA 8" Gate Valve

EA 4" Blow-Off Valve & gox

EA Fire Hydrant Assembly (6" Lead & Appurtenances)

EA 1" water servlce

EA 2"Alr&Vacuum ReleaseValve

EA Connectlon to Existing Water Disiribution System

LF Type 2 Vertlcal €urb & Gutter (w/ 6'' AB)

LF Modlfied Type 1 curb & Gutter {w/ 6" AB)

SF Sidewalk (5" PCCI 6" AB)

LF Modlfled Type 5 Medlan curb

EA Sldewalk Curb RamP

EA Concrete SurveY Monumeni

5 1,sog.og

$_ 2,ooo.oo

$ z,so,o,qg

$ s,ooo.oo

5_l,ooo.oo
s 3,500.00

$ 2,s00.00

Subtotal Water 5 898,q9q.0q

!L_
o%

o%

0%

*o%_
. 0y.- _.

I l,ryqSS-
S 42,ooo.oo

5,000.00

Concrete

$ 20,00

s 20.00

S 6,00

$ 3q.09*

--s _ 2,500.00

S , 3oo.oo

subtotal concrete

$ 63,120.00

s 167,s00.00

216,t74.OO

oo/. s .120.00
1

/

4
5

5

s

5 +,zoo.q-q.

o%

-, 9!-: .
a%

.._.-_szt,*.

_ S-_ 8,280.00

s 40.000.00

s 4,200.00

0% $ l9z,soo.oo
5 216,174.0L

S.--. B,28o.o_q-

$ 40,000.00

. $-,.-.-. 499,274,00 S 199.2-Z1.oL

Page 336

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Bond Estlmote for

Manglnl Ranch PH2 Villoge 5 & 6

Unlt Price Total

$ lgao
s 20.00

S s.oo

S soo.oo
300.00

$ 3oo.oo

S z.oo

15.00

subtotal streetwork S 897,590.00

S 3,s6rn1o9.oo

I 356,120.00

$ 3,917,319,00

Total Cost

$ 33,600.00

$ szr,zzo.oo

$ 661,375.00

$ gg8,ogo.oo.

I 499,274.00

$ 897,s90.00

$ 3s5,120.00

TOTATS s 3,912319.00

Cost to
Complete Complete

o% 5 306,800.00
p% 5 180,360.qq

o% $ . 99o.oo

o% S 4soo.ooo% l**---319949-
00/6 I 1 500.00-

0% $''..' 2ep.00

o% s s,610.00.
0% _ $ r,saO,00

oYo $ 38?,ruQ.0{-

$ lo,soo.oo

5 897,590.00_

$ 3.55r,199.00

S r,917319.00

cost to €omplete

$ ,_ 3Xqq94q_

$ 571,270.00

$ !q&!ZI{r
$ 89&090.00

S 499,274,0s

$ sgzsgo.oo

$ 356,12!:qL

$ 3,917,319.00

%

Item No quantlty Unlt Desctlptlon
Streetwork

700.00

S zo,oo

S x1,6oo,oo

S lo,soo,oo

1

7

3

4
5

5

7

8

9
10

11

3,83s

9,018

198

9

9

5

145

374

77

33

1

Ton Asphalt concrete (Type 'B'l
Ton Aggregate Base {Class 2)

sF Pavement Markings

EA Street Name Slgn on Post

EA Stop SlEn {R1-1} on Street Name Slgn Post (slBn Only}

EA Mlscellaneous Slgns

LF 12" White Strlpe Llmlt Une (Stop Une)

LF 4'' Landscape Sleeve, Schedule 40 PVC

LF 6" Landscape sleeve, Schedule 40 PVc

EA LED StreetllBht (includlng condult, wirinS, & appurtenances)

€A Streetllght Service Polnt

TOTAL Subdlvlslon lmprovomants
Contlngency

Total Cost Estlmate

Summsry

Slte Preparatlon & Earthwork
Sewer

Storm Draln

Potable Wate!
Concrete

Streetwork
Contlngency

356.120.00$

Page 337

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of California
PlaceerCounty of

On October ltth,2A22 before me, Tiffany Reder, notary Public
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally aPPeared Leo Pantoja

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the Person( s)whose name(s)isiare

subscribed to the with in instrument and acknowl edged to me that he/she/theY executed the same in

hislher/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the

person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument'

I certify under pENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the state of california that the foregoing

paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal'
zffi,r\ TTFFANV REOER

€ffi-}-."#i:;i:;,j.i-,i\QWr,ry comm, fxpiret oct 2], 2025

I
I

Signature (Seat)

A notary pu blic or other officer comp leti ng th ls

ce rtificate verifies on ly the identitY of the ind ivid ual

who signed the document to which this certificate ls

attached, nd not the truthfulness accuracy or

valid of that document.

Page 338

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 3

MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS.5 & 6 SUBDIVISION
FINAL MAP

Page 339

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



OWNER'S STATEMENT CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

ftE UNDERSIGNED OOES HEREBY STATE TNAT I AM THE ONLY Pffiry HAVING NY RECORD TITLE

INIERESI IN ftE RqL PR@ERTY INCIUDED WTHIN THE rcUNOARIES OF THIS FIML W OF 'MANGINI
UNCH PMS€ 2 - VILUGE 5 & 6'AND DO HEREBY DECURE GE CONSENT FROM NO OTHER PERSON IS
NECESWY. NO I CONSENT TO THE PREPAfuTION ANO RECORDATION 6 THIS FINA MP AND OFFER
FOR DEOICATION ND DO HERESY OEOICATE AS PIBUC RIGHT-OF,WAY AND AS UTILIfr SSEMENTS TO

THE CIry OF FOSM. ARBOR VIEW COURT, DEER POIM COURI. FALL$COURT, MOR VIEW DRIW,
FALLON DRIVE, F ELD VIEW ORIVE. WSru@D DRVE, ALDER CREEK PAR&AY AND BLACKTAIL WAY, AS
SHOWN HEREON.

HEREBY SATE THAT I ilVE EMMINED THIS
AND FIND IT IOBE SUBSTNTIILYTHE SME
OF THE Ory OF FOLSOM NO THAT NL

FINAL MAP OF "MNGINIMCH PUSE 2 -VILSGE 5 & O'

S THE TENTAIVE MPAPPROVED 8Y THE CIry COUNCIL
PROVISIONS OF THE SUSIVISON MAP ACT NO ALL

APPUCSIE CITY ORDINANCES MVE BEEN COMPL'ED WTH.

STEWN R. ffiN RCE 4291
I DOHEREBYDEDICATEFORSPECIFICruRPOSESTHEFOIOWING:

1. A PUSLIC 4SEMENT FOR THE INSTruUTION ANO WNTENNCE OF DMIN, GS, SEW€R NO
WATER PIPES, ND FOR UNOERGROUNO WRES ND CONDUITS FOR ELECTRICA, TELEVISION NO
CSMUNICAiIONS SERVICES, TOGETHER WTH NY ANO ALL APPURTENANCES PERTANING
THERETO ON, OVER, UNDER AND ACROSS LOTS A, B. C D 6 E ND THOSE STRIPS OF UNO SHOWN
HEREON ANO D€SIGNATED'ruBLC UTILLW EASEMill (PUE).

2- A PUSLIC SSEMENT FORPEDESTRIAN ACCESS ON; OVER ND ACROSS LOTS A, B. C, O, E 8 F ND
frOSE STRIPS OF LANO SHOM HEREONAND DES GMTED "PEOESTRIN ACCESS ilSEMEN]'(PE).

3, A PUBLIC ENEMENT ND RIGHT.OF"WAY FOR THE INSTAUTION, REPAR, REMOVAL OR

REPUCilENT OF WDSCAPING TOETHR WITH ANY ND AL APPUR]EMNCES PERTANING

CIilENGINEER
OryOF FOLSOM

DATE:

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

HEREBY STATE THAT IHAVE €UM]NED THIS FIML MAP S'MANGINIMCH PSSE 2- VILBGE 5 & 8'
ANDI M STISFIED THAT $ID W ISTECHNISLLYCORRECT,

THERflO ON,
NDSSFOWN

SOVE LOTS B, c, D, & AND THOSE STRIPS OF

4. AN ASEMilT FOR INGRESS ND EGRESS FOR SUPPORT ND USE BY UW ENFORCEW, FIRE
PROECIION, MFffiE ND OIHER PUBLIC AGENCIES THAR VEHICLES AND PERSONNEL OV€R A
SNF OF SO ACROSS IOT O SHOWN hEREON ND OESIGMEO 'EMERG€NCY VEHICLE ACCESS

ffiENT (EVA).

VICINITY MAP
N,T.S.

NAVD88 BENCHIV]ARK.CITY OF FOLSOI\4

BENCHW('TZ ELEVATION =502.07 NAVDES

BMSS USK STMPED "CIN OF FOLSOM BM 72" ON THE WST CONER OF A CONCRETE DMNAGE
STRUCTURE. LMATION OF SITE IS APPROXMATELY 350 FEET SOUTH OF &DER CREEK PffiKWAYND 80
FF sST OF flE SPTCJPA m[ROAo TRACKS. APPROXIMATE UTITUDEI
NSO3A 13.33' LONGITUOe:W12106'08.22"

THE USIS FOR ELryANONS WE RUN FRW COUNfi BENCHMM UOISOO9 STAMPED'K-8$'IN
FEERUARY rc14 BY MACSY ND SOMPS CIVIL ENGINEERS, INC,

GEruDA YOUNG 1.S.3852
CIrySURVEYOR
LICENSE #IRES: 6/30/2024

DATE: 

-

CITY CLERKS STATEMENT

5. A PUBLE ASEMEM FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MNTANING CENTruEO MAIL D+IVERY BOXES,
PEDESTALS ND SUBS, TOGEftER WTH NI AND AL PPURTSANCES PERTAININO TIERETO
INCLUDING POEfrRIAN ACCESS FOR DEUVERY AND RECEIPT OF MIL ON, OVER AND ACROSS
STRIPS OF UND FIVE (5) FEfl IN WION CONTGUOUS TOA[ R GHTS-OF'WAY,

KB HOI\,IE SACMMENTO, INC.

A CALIFORN IA CORPORAIION

I HEREBY STATETHAT ftE CIry COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM HS APPROVED TtsIS FIN{ MF OF

'MANGINI MNCH PHASE 2. VILUGE 5 &5", AND HN ACCEPTED, ON BEIIIF OF THE PUBLIC, SUEJECTTO
IMPROVEMENTS ru RIGHT€F-WAYS AND ASEMENTS OFFEREO HEREON FOR DEDISTION IN

ACCORDNE WTH NE ERMS OF ]HAT MER AND HAS APPROVED THE SANDONMENT OF THE

EASEMENTS LISTED HEREON.

BY
ffi
CIflCLERK

DATE: 

-

NNE:

Iru:

RECORDER'S STATEMENT

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT
FtLEo Bts .............._ DAy 0F _,202. AT _.M. lN BooK_oF ws,
AT PAGE ATTHE REOUESTOF MCSY& SOMPS C1VILENGINEERS, INC. TIILETO THE UND
IrcLUOD IN THIS FIN& UP BEINGVESTEO AS PER CERTIFIfiE NO, ON
FILEINTHIS OFFICE,

I\M 
DOCUMEMNO.:_

$CWENTO COUNry RECOROER
STATE OF C&IFORNIA

$AIE OF CAIFORNA

TNIS UP WN PREPARED BY G OR UNOER UY DIRECTION ND IS BNED UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN

CONFORMNCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF TNE SUBOIVISION MAP ACT NO L@L ORDIWCE AI
THE REAUEST OF KB HOME SACMMENIO, INC, A CAUFORNIA CORPOMTION N DECilBER 2021, I

HEREBY STATE THAT THIS FINAL MP SUBSTANTIAUY CONFORMS TO THE CONDITIOMLLY APPROVED
ENTAIVE MP: TmTTHE MONUMENTS WLL BE OF ftE CNAMCTER ANDWLLOCCUPY ftE POSITIONS

AS INDICATED ND WLL BE SET BY DECE6ER 31 2024i ND THAT SA0 MONUMENTS WLL 8E
SUFFICINTO ENSLETHE SURVEYTO BE ImCED.COUW OF

ON- BEFORE ME,-, A NOTARY PU&IC

ERMNU/fPWED 

-

WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE 8615 OFSANSFACTORY flIDENCE TO BE IHE PERSON(S) WHOSE MME(S)
IS/ARE SUBSCRBED TO frE WTHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEOGED TO ME TilT HtrHEtrIEY

MCMY & SOMPS CIVIL ENGINEEM, NC.

ffCUTED THE SNE IN HISEMHEIR AUTHORIZED AND ]HAT BY HI$HEMHEIR
UrcN EEULF OF WHICH lHE

FOR REVIEW ONLY
gGMTURE(S) ON

PER&N(S) ACTED, EXECUTEO THE INSIRUMENT.
PAUIFERGUSON.JR F|NAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2-VTLLAGE5&6

I CERTIFY UNDER PEN{NOf FERJURY UNDER THE UWS OF THE SIATE OF CAIFOfuIATHATTHE
FffiEGOING PAMGWH 6 NUE ND GORRECT. g2a-2022

WTNESS MY HND AND OFFICIISEI
A MERGER AND RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 ND 6 OF THAT CERTAN FIN& MP TITLED
"MNGINI NCH PHASE 2 4RGE LOT' FILED FOR RECORD JUIY 2. ?019 IN BOOK 412 OF
MPS, AT PAGE 7, SACWENTO COUNTY RECOROS. BEING A PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

ANO 16 TOWNSHIPS NORTH NGE A EAST. MOUNTDIABLO MEROIAN

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACMMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

$GNATUR! PRINTED NME

WPRINCIPIruCE OF BUSINESS IS COUffi

MYCWMISSId ilPIRES:_ MYCOMMISSION NUMEER| _ ocroBER 2022

SHEET 1 OF 9

OF ftE INOIVIDU& WHO SIGNED BE O@UMENT TO WHICH THIS CERIIFICATE IS ANrcHEO AND
A NOIARY PUBIIC OR ONER

SEE SHEET 2 FOR TRUSTEE'S STATEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

mACKIY&somPs
EilGIXEEB MIERA WW

Page 340

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



NOTES

1. ALL CURE DIMENSIONS ARE rcIUS, DELTA NO MC IENGTH. M DISTNCES SHOWN ARE
GROUND DISTNCES AND ff IN FEETAND OECIMLS TIEREOF. DUE TO ROUNDINGlHE SUM OF
INOIVIDUAL DIMENSIONS MAY NOT EOUAL THE OVElru OIMENSION,

THIS Ftw W coMAtNs 27.$6r AcREs GRoss coNslsTlNc oF 153 RESIDENTII LoTs
ANO 6 LEfrERED LOTS.

A PRELIMINMY GEOTECHNICA! ENGINEERING REPOR' FOR THE MNGINI NCH (PROJECI NO.

E07145.003) WAS PREoARED tsY YOUNGDAHL CONSUITI\G OROUP INC ON JUL/. 2016 lS
AVAUBLE FOR PUBUC INSPECNON AT THE CII OF FOLSOM COMMUNIry DffiLOfrENT
DEPffiTMENT,

EL FRONT LOI COilERS WILL BE SflWITHA 1" DINETERSMSS OISC STNPED "15 9265'ON
A 1.OO F@TOFFSflONTOTHE SIDilALKON TBE SIDE PRffiRN LINE ilENDED(SEE DETAIL

THIS SHEfl)-

15.

16.

PROPERN SUEJECT TO 'WATER SUPPLY AND FACIIIES FINANCING
PER 20130124 O R 1382 AND D@IMENTS DECURING MODIFICATIONS IHEREOF PER 2013036
o.R. 1519,2013621 0.R,@91,2014@30.R. 0S9.

2. PROPERry SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, CONOITIONS. PROUSIONS AS CONTAINED IN IHE
AGREEMENT €NTITLEO 'FIreT AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENI
SOUTH SPECIFIC PUN', BYAND BEru€EN CIflOFFOLSOM,AND SGLECOMMERCII PARTNERS
LLC RICORD€D JULY 15 2014, (rcOK) 20140715 (PAGE) 517, OFFTCIAL trCORDs, NO AS
AMENOED BY DrcIMENT RECORDED, JANUAil 29. 2016, IN rcOX 201@129, PAGE 3S. OFFICIS

3.

5 RAR LOT CONERS WLL BE SETN FOUOWS (UNLESS SrcWN OTHERWSE)
5.1. FOR LOTS 13, 6557 69, 70,75.91 117119. 148, nE COMMON LINES OF LOTS 943, SE6,

NO 1O1XO2 WLL 8E SET WITH A 5A' REEAR ND PUSNC CP STAMPED tS 9265',
5.2. FOR LOTS 946.48&.74 76€9. 93. 94. 97100, 10311€. 12i47, 150152 THE COMMON LINES

oF tors 4a147 , 47148, 71n2, 73n 4 10U103 AND 12111221* WILL BE SET WITH A 4.& FOOT
OFFSET ON THE SIDE LOT LINE WH A 56' REEM ND PNTIC ilP STNPEO 'S 92S'
(SEDETAILflSSHEET).

5.3. FOR LOT 49 & 68, ThE COMMON LINES OF 46/47, 4714,7n!117 90191n02 AND,nh11l14
ND 149I50N23I26 MICH FIL WTHIN A NONRY WAI WIU BE SET WTN A 3/4' BMSS
TAG STAMPEO "LS 9265'TO THE FACE OF W{L 2.OO FOOT rcOVE CROUND OR ON TOP OF

pRoffiw suEJEq To coMMlNtfl FActltTtEs orsTRcT 2013i (WATIR FACILIIIES ND
sLpplyl pER 20131230 OR. 0311. rN ACCORDANCE Wl-H THE'ME*O ROOS COMMUNITY
FACILT'ES ACT OF l9E2_. SAIO ASSESSMEN-S ARSOR wlLL 8E Co4ECIEO WTH THE
ANNUAL]ABII.

RECORoS.
. .ASSIGNMENT ND SUMPTION AGEEMENT REUIVE TO THE FOLSW SPECIFC PLAN

AMENDED SO ESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT' RECGDED OECEMEER 9,

2021 PER MCUMENT NUMBER !2112@1459-

17, PROPERTY SUilECT TO N ENEMENT OVER SAID UNO FOR AUGATION ND INCIDENTAL
PURPOSES AS GMMEO TO THE OF COUNfl OF SACMMENTO ND CITY OF rcLSOM PER
201407150.R. 518ANot3.

18. PROPERfl SUBJECI TO frE TEruS, CONDIIIONS ANO PROVISONS AS CONTAINEO IN NE
AGREEMENT ENTITLEO 'FIRSI NENDED ND RESTATED TIS 1 DryELOPMENT AG@ENT,
REhIVETOTHE FOLSOM $UTH SPECIFIC PSN', BYNDSEruEENTHE CIfrOF FOLSM. AND
CNPENTER #T, LLC RECMOED JULY 15 2014, AS EOOK 20140715 PAGE 52, OFFICII
RECORDS, AND 6 NENDED BY DOCUMENT RECORD€D, JNUARY A 2016 N BOOK 20160129,
PAGE 0386. OFFICAL RECffOS, ANO N AIIENDED BY OOCUMENT RECOROEO, S€PTEMSER 17.

2019. DN 201909171340. O.R.

19 PROPERW SUilECT TO THE TEruS, CONqTIONS ANO PROVISIONS AS CONTAINEO IN THE
DOCUMENT EMITLED '€OST SHARING AGREEMENT', BY AilD BWEEN ENCUVE AT FOLSOM
MNCH, [C A DEUWARE LIMITED LNIUW COMPNY AND SST MPENTER IMPROVEMEffi
COMPANY, INC. A CALIFORNIA CORPOMTION, DATED MAY 3 2019, RECORDEO MY 9, 419, AS

Nm!MENT) 20190509m96 OFFTCAL reCORDS.

6.

7.

L

10.

11.

12.

13.

PROPffiTY SUBJECT TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DSTruCT NO. 17 (WLLOW HILL PIPELINE) PER
41 50325 0.R. 0353.

20, PROPERfi SUEJECTTO THETERMS ND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE D@UMENTENTITLED
'AGREEMENT AFFECTING REAL PROPERd {INCLUSIONARY HOUSING AGREEMEI{D" PER
DN 201912170S9

21. PROPERfr SUBJECTTO TNE TERMS ND ffiOVISIONS CONTAINEO IN THE D@UMENT ENTITLEO
1NTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT" RECORDED SENEMBER ] 7 201 9 PER DN rc1 9091 71 Y5.

2. PAOPERfl SUilECT TO THE TERMS AND PROUSIONS CONTAINED IN THE DMUMENT
ENNTLEDEUIIDERS ACREEMENT(MANGINI MNCH PSSE 2, VILUGES 5 AND 6) RECORDED
oECEMAER 9,2021 PERON 2@112@160,

23- LOre A, g, C, D E ND F AS SHOWN PER frIS W ME TO BE DEEDD IN F€E TO THE CIry OF
FOLSOM,

24. PURSUNT TO SCTION 6434(G) OF THE SUBDIVIgON ACT ]H€ FILING OF THIS FINAL MS
Sru CONSTtrUTE SANOONMENT OF THE #EMENIS USTED BELOW NOT sHO!!N 8EGON,
WTHN THE BOUNDARYOFfrIS MP.

A, RIGHT.OF.WAY FOR IDER CREEK PARKWAY, WESru@D DRIVE AND EUCKTAIL WAY
DEDICA]€O WiIHIN LOT 5AND LOTS PER 412 AM.7 (REDEOICAED ON ]HIS Mf),

8. THE UNDSCPE EASEMENT, PEDESTRAN ACCESS SSEMENT AND PUELIC WlIry
SSEMEMWTHIN LOT 5 NO lOT 6 OF 412 8.M.7.

c. PUcERV|LIROAD RIGHTOF-WAY (g8O.R 188)WlfrlN LOT6.
D. OUNAGESEMENTPERDN2OITO5O2lg2WTHINLOT5NDLOT6
E DruNAGEffiEMENTPERDN20191113134WTHINLOT6.

PROPERfr SUSJECT TO THE SCHOOL FACIUNES IMPROVEMEM DISTRICT NO, 3, AS DISCLOSED
BY1HATCERTAIN SSESSMEMMAP, RECOrcEDJULY 07.4S,AS BOOK 103, PAGE9.

THE UNO LIES Wfr THE BOUNDARIES OF PROPOSED SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT
DrsrRrcrNo.2.

PROPERry SUBJECTTO COMMUNIry FACILIIES OISTRICT NO.19 (WGINI ilNCH) PER2O1@1 13

0.R.01s

PROPffiI SUBJECI TO THE CITY OF FASN COIIMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICI NO, 20141
(6PoWER PACE PRmN), A5 olscLOSED 8Y ruT CERTAN ASSESSMENT Mf, RECORDED
DECEMSER B, 413, AS BOOK 11€. PAGE 7. PER 20131223 0.R.0305.

PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THE CruIFORNIA HOME FINANCE AUTHORil COMMUNITIES FACILITIES
DISIRICT NQ. 2OI4I (CAN ilERGY) AS flSCLOSED BY THAT CERTAIN SSESSMENT W,
RECoRDE0 trTOSER05,rcl5, N (BOOK)20151005, (PAG) 0i63.

PROPERN SUilECT TO COMMUNift FAOLITIES DISTruCI NO, 18 (FOLSOM PUN MA - AEA
wDE tMPRoVEMENIS AND SERVTCES) PER 20151209 OR.0427AND 20181116 O.R 4S.

PROPERfr SUBJECT ]O COMMUNIfl FACIUTIES DJSIRCI NO. 23 (FOLSOM RNCH) PER BOOK
130 OF ASSESSMENT MAPS AT PreE 27 ANO DN 202006061609.

/ MONUMENT l DIA BMSS DISK(ryP)

l---l x

6

t

c/L ;\
I rru'ru. I PAVEMENT

LOT CORNER
TYPICAL 1'OFFSET

RW LOTIINE

6

REAR LOT CORNER
TYPICAL 4'OFFSET

F|NAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2.VTLI-AGE5&6

A MERGER AND RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 AND 6 OF TST CERTAN FIN{ MP TITLED
"MNGINI NCH PHASE 2 URGE LOI' FITEO FOR RECORD JULY 2, 2019 IN BOOK 412 OF

MAPS, AT PAGE 7, SACWENTO COUNW RECOROS, BEING A PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

AND 16 TOWNSHIP9 NORTH NGE A EAST. MOUNTDIABIO MERIDIAN

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACMMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

MAGilAY&SOMPS
OCTOBER 2022

SHEET 2 OF 9
SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

ErcNES PWiEM WRFW
b sso. p$ttra

Page 341

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



31

30

29

28

27

24

18

17

16

15

14

13

36

143

141

140

139

138

137

134

97

95

4

5

6

144

99

s4

3

7

93

2

129

128

92 9l

&o

=

---FIELo VIEW DRIVE---r

ELACKTAIL

Eo
t

do

53 54

o
[-

DR/yE

p{

s

ttON DRIVE

o

56

67

57

66

58

65

60 61

MCROSSING PER LEGEND
2017910 0R 0774
ELL0n 80!ts, tNc.

7RSl9
BASIS OF BEARINGS o

o
I
o
x
t

o
o
!I

o
BM

{8NDY)
ct
DE

DN

LE

loA)
OR

PN
PUE
(R)

RS

SF

SMUD

THE NORTHEA5T UN€ OF LOT 6 AS SHOM AND SO DESISATS ON
THAT CERTAN URGE LOT FINAL MP FILEO FM RECOro ON JULY 2.
2019 IN B@K 412 OF MfS, AT PAGE 7, SACWEMO COUNry
RECffiDSAND IAVINGA BEffiING OF NORTH 35'''$'WEST.

FOUND SECTION CORNER AS NOTED

FOUNDMONUMENT6 NOTED

STANDARD CrW OF FOISOM MONUMENT WELL STNPED "LS 576fl TO BE SET PER {1)

STANDARD Clfr F FOTSOM MONUMENT WELL STAMPEO "LS 9265'TO BE SET PER {3)
3/4' IRON PIE WTH PLASTIC CAP STAMPED 'LS 965' TO BE SET PER (3)

3/4 |RON PtE W|TH PUS1C Cp STAMPED LS 5760 TO AE SET PER 0)
5/8'REffi WTHPSSNCCf STAMPEDAS5TE"TOBESETFER(1)
5/8'REffi WTh PSSflC CAP STAMPED'!S 965' TO EE SET PER (3)E(5)

SET STANOARD CITY OF FOISOM MONUMEM WELL STNP@ "LS 926A

Sfl 3/4' IRON PIPE WTH PUSTIC PLIG STAMPED'LS 9265'

SET 5A'REN WtrH PUSNC CAP STAMPED IS 9265'

SET 3/4' BMS TAG STAMPED 'LS 9265'

DIMENSION POINT

RECOM OATAPERreFERENCE

ACreS
BOOK OF MAPS

BOUNOARY
CEilTERLINE
DMIMGE trSEMilT
DOCUMENTNUMBER, OR

EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS ASEMEM
NDSC€E ffiEMENT
OVE&L
OFFICIAL R€COMS OF $CWENTO COUNfr
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEilENT

UDI[BSRING
RECORD OF SURVEY

SQUNE FEfl
SACMMENTO MUNOIPAL UNUry USTRCT

18'PUE8 t.). 
".* FOUNO 3/4" IRON PIPE/Mff[ CAP

STAMPED'TS 9265'PER 24 PM ]3
R=3@.@ REFERENCES:

L=259.89'(31 DN 20211025mS (11

t2t
(3)

(4)

(5)

4128M7 (MANANI MNCH PHASE2UM)
€3SM1 (RUSSELLnNCHPMSE3S)
247 PM 9 PffiCEL 8il
421 8M 13 (WG|NIMNCH PHASE 2 V|LUGES)
422 8M 1 (MNGrNr MNCH PHASE 2 VILSGE 4)

I
6 PUEPffi t2t

r7s.0s(1x3)

zl-.----
'l

I
LoI C

I y'1s'DE PER (2)

\
RUSSETL RANCH

PHASE 38
433 BM 1

PARCEL J
PMCEL 8$
247 PV 9

I 30

I

cl 0)

Curue Table

1800.00' 2"244 71.11'

Le.gSI 28I

\ 
LOTF

27

26

?E
I

\.'
25

S.P.

t1(1

Line Table

Ng'ozg'E

B€dng

78.16'

LenEt

-J

oR 1665
EASEMENI AGREEMENT

\.'
N 201

S.P.T-C.J.P.A SACruENTO.PLACERVIUE TMNSPORTANON
CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUINORI

. \.t.
t. 

\.'

2l W.E. WATERLINE ENEMENT

itT
SHEEIINDEX

ag

-)
I

I

I

I

I

J

I

I

l

EOUNOARY

LOTLINE

CENTERLINE

LOT LINE / RIH.OF.WAY
EXISTING RIGHTOF-WAY LINE

EXISTING i.O.D. UNE

SECTION LINE

ADJACENT PROPERry U NE

c

18

t7 RUSSEI.L MNCH
PHASE 38
433 BM I

t6

I5

\:. l4 r---- MATCHLINE
1J

\i 12 \ 
LOTG

+

1

10

PARCEL 4 I
PARC€L 85A
247 PM I

7

18PUE I

rpm(3rl F
__ __)

o 60 t20 2N

--:l
SC[E: 1"=l2O'

FTNAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
HASE2-I.'ILLAGE5&6

LOT C

-- t---i--rlli

,.,#= " \

ill'rl 
-t

t-
fl

LOf 12
NdNI MCH

PMSE 2 WC! LOI
412 BM 7

loT 11

-P
MMINI MCH

PSST 2 URGE LOT

412 BM 7

A MERGER AND RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOIS 5 AND 6 OF THAT CERTAN FIN& MP TITLED
"MNGINI NCH PHASE 2 hRGE LOT' FIIED FOR RECORD JULY 2, 2019 IN BOOK 412 OF
MNS AT PAGE 7. SACWENTO COUNTY RECORN. AEING A PORNONS OF SECTIONS 9

AND 16 TOWNSHIP9 NORTH, WGE 8 EAST, MOUNT OIABLO MERIDIAN

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

mAS[tY&sonPS ocroBER2022
adEES UNES S@N CUEET 2 nE o.ss% p'qFr1a

J6J 362 334361
' 359 539 J38 Jl7

340 16

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES.

MANCINI RANCH
PUSE2-VTLUGE8

421 8M 13

ts i :sz 92 341

W6INI RANCH

PHASE2-VIUGE4
422 BN 1

536 t35

ROAD

Page 342

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



PERcRosstilc t,
I

FIELD VIEW DRIVE

DETAIL'4A
SCALE 1'= 10'

iv
-t

&6

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 4 OF 9

20181m90ffi

\

+
LOT D

/
1E PUE&PE(3) /

\ 125PUE}ER \
'vl0N201S230596

M5'1ro61(R)

./-32.00'

)
5.07'

JL
0,67

94
l---
12_5 PUE

20170410 0R 0774
ELLIOTT HOMES. INC,

7RS39

6d

2arc)

PARCEL 3
PARCEL 85A
247 PM I

+.n
l
I
I

II

II

II

A' J
i/

'rl
9t

I

I
l

I

I

I
I

I
18 PlE J
a PAE(3) i /-

I

l-*0,

=U

Eo
@E

I

o

tFq
U
B

26
37\3)

37T3) 26'

12.5'PUE--l

ls i
I

I

SEE SHEET 5

I

I

I

I

I

I

a

A MERGER ANO RE,SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 AND 6 OF TMT CERTAIN FINAL MF TITLED
"MANGINI MNCH PHASE 2 WGE LOT' FILED FOR RECORD JULY 2, 2OI9 IN BOOK 412 OF

MPS, AT PAGE 7, $CMMENTO CQUNry RECORDS. BEING A PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

AND 16, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, UNGE g AST. MOUNI DIABLO MERIOIN

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

()

2' 22'Eo
@v ;i>.

=E

92 91

nAG[1[Y&somPs
EXCNS 

'WXEB 
SMOS

05cE!E!!R4 oiw, tu rn Rildr,ar!73 0s)74r@
BLACKTAIL WAY

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

L- 1 2.s PUEr6
i 4,ooosF

A=87"23'52' d

3
5,49 SF

I
5.8gSF

12,5,P!E

-____1__

?,016SF

Page 343

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS. LEGEND AND REFERENCES

16

26'

SEE SHEET 4

I

I

i

I

I
l
I

I

I

I
i

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

2

R=20.m'

132

d

\ '\\
fr*0,

37'(3)

e
f
D

J
4 l . ,2., prlpen

\ 
v/ oN 201 802Ap598

\,PUE

FIELD VIEW DRIVE

\.
\,\.

\'
PARCEL 3

PARCEL E5A
247 PM 9

t
."i \

110

20'SMUDSSEMENT
oN 201709201428

15 DE PER (2)

81

6

t. \'
tz.: preln

/0N2018022S598\\

r.n.e.i:f F

37 (3)

286 S7'

".i,

a't

22

a
o
=Fq
Ut

I

\r. ..
s

_r 2

I

2

- Ne%s,EtR)

21.21' 23

\.MERCY DRVE

\

37\3)

PARCEL 4
PARCEL 85A
247 PM I

MAGIGY&SOMPS
ME$ PWXEU glffi@

.4s70 (er6)tr1rle

SEE SHEET 7

L1

Line Table

N41"S33'W

8eadn9

3_11'

LenSh

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 5 OF 9

&

r[q.& 
-- 

O-"O _

c15

c13

cl2

c]1

c10

c9

c7

c6

c5

q

c2

cl

Curue Table

30.00'

30 00

30.00

20.00

20.00

800.00

3200.00'

uz00'

$.00

20.00,

778.@

20.00'

750.00

34.00

750 00

221954"

13"1d9'

9"03 00'

18'27',41'

18 27',47

1'2424

0'04'39'

1'2520

22',19'g'

32'25'26'

1'2520

52',08'05'

2'2959'

2t221V

2"36,08'

Dek

11.59

I95

19.80

20.4q

1.9

1132

19 31

18 20,

v.72'

12S'

34 m'

Lffgs

0204080

--:SCALE:1'=4O'

ft

'] \ o1J4

2'

I

I

t..

37'

+

22 t-
12_5'PUE

133

131

&

FTNAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2.VILLAGE5&6

L:35.17

1.t
*od

Eo?-
A MERGER ANO RE-SIBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 AND 6 OF THAT CERTAIN FIN& MF TITTED
'MANGINI MNCH PHASE 2 LARGE LOT" FILED FOR RECORD JULY 2, 2019 IN BOOK 412 OF
MSS. AT PAGE 7. SACMMENTO COUNTY RECOROS. B€ING A PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

ANO 16, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, MGE 8 ilST, MOUNT DIABLO MERIOIAN

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACMMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

4
124

SHEET 5 OF 9

4.11'3213' I

30.02

1

19
4,480SF

I

11

{

98
5,479 3F

A=1"123d

97
4,5mSF

I 4.5oosF
r-12.s PUE

P!E

100
4m2SF

A=g'51'34'

101
4,S8 St

90 12.5'

5,706SF

12 S PrE

82
4,087 SF

Page 344

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



112
4,WSF

.s

12.5PlE-J

71
400sF

72
4.m sF

q

\"..&
<)

L1

Line Table

NS.03g.E

Beadng

13.S',

Longt

d

c3

a2

c1

CuNe Table

$ 00'

s.00

9.00

s.00

s'01'00'

22'1954'

6's54'

Dclla

2.63'

11.69

4.11

12.65'

Lenglh
82

r09

tr

124 \ \

1

SEE SHEET 7

1

ta

(u 121

'%s
e

-
gN

(.-4.- f,,,^, 118

FATTON 
DRIVE

+

)
I
I

6

FINAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2-VTLI-AGE5&6

A MERGER AND RE.SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 AND 6 OF THAT CERTAN FINI MP TITLED
'MNGINI NCH PHASE 2 6RGE LOT' flTED FOR RECORD JUIY 2, 2019 IN BOOK 412 OF

MAPS, AT PAGE 7, SACMMENTO COUNry RECORDS. BEING A PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

AND 16, TOWNSHIP9 NORTH, NGE 8 ffiT. MOUNTOIABLO MERDIAN

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

mAo[iil&sllmPs ocToBER 2022

SHEET 6 OF 9R4ES UTEre SMW
I qsil PrOTnrE

65
64

SEE SHEET 9

0204040

-!==-t
SC&E: l"=40'

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

Page 345

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



N69"33'01W 104 98'

30 1.4.77
4,1gsF

12.5
PUE

101.79
12.21'(te)

28
4,172SF

26
4,06E SF A=0.26,21'

PARCEL 3
PARCEL 85A
247 PM I

3rT3)I I SEE SHEET 5
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

0204080E==l:
SCaE: 1"=4O'

2226' r
I

..- 4**,1
--__J

-o- - -__95 rgy]]gg3l_ 
_

MERCY DRIVE

22

+
22 98

100

145

L3

L2

L1

Line Table

N85'S!2'W

N8s"3602',W

Nq"23g'E

B€il4

6.00

6.00

2!97'

Lensfr

99
LOT A

-l7e.oo--.-

101

R BTACKTAIL

d. \.

147

102

\.''

*
oo' 

R ---ios----

L_

-_-_---- \\
,r'rraJ

& P€(3) 
I

PARCEL 4
PARCEL 654
241 PM I

FTNAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE 2 -VTLI-AGE 5 & 6

A MERGER AND RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 AND 6 OF THAT CERTAIN FINT MP TITLED
'MANGINI MNCH PHAS€ 2 ffGE LOT' FILEO FOR RECORD JUIY 2. 419 IN AOOK 412 OF
UPS, AT PAGE 7 SACMMENTO COUNTY RECORDS. BEING A rcRTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

AND 16, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTB. NGE E EAST. MOUNTDI€LO MERIOIAN

CIry OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

nACI(AY&$0nPS ocroBER2022
ffilES tWxS SRBm CUEET 7 nE n

*
103

148

D'LL
2' \ 104

qh

oqu
05.'

'I

\1
37(3)

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

_,1
EIot
<rul
>;
r.loll
@@vl<l

5lil
i!-i

FI
Tr

-t

rl

Y

hl
SL

e
o
BFou
i

at'
\ 107

,*

\LoT
F

i

I

I

i

I

I

I

I

I

I

\. t08

I

I

F
I.
,E

l;

I

I

I

I

I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

ra pue I
a prer3f

I

I

I
I

I

37'(3j

i-*0,

B'20 00',

150

\J0e

152

\rl1o

\\111

12

a
s
F

6\113

a
31

t{1

.t

\

4

oy
k

142 144
22'

FAttoN DRrvE SEE SHEET I

&

Q

c1

Curue Table

774,@'

?0_00'

2S5.m'

3200.m

m0.@

I',?5'20',

78'27'47'

0%9'23',

0'04 39

1'25'20'

19.31

27.39

42.30'

4.33

19.&'

Lemrh

146

o
149

151

153
121

SHEET 7 OF 9

SEF SH€EIS

110,00'

140
4.640SF

122 \
9727SF \

Page 346

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



33
5,357SF

a

21.97'

u
6,8SSF

27.E9

35
5.567SF

36
4,16SF

37
4,089 SF

100.00,

143
5,&0 sF

142
4,0@sF

F 12,5'PUE

141

I
125'PUE

38
4,055 SF

1M
5,135SF

17.05'

A:0'02 5y

4,177 *

145
4713 SF

ATDER CREEK PARKWA

oo

=F@u
=

48

€'

3.16'

40
4,2245F

q
ni
.al
:l

146
4,66SF

41
4,117 SF

147
4,514SF

24.20.

42
4,060 sF

148
4,tr SF

43
4,052 SF

149
4,403SF

1D 02'

44
4e0sF

12.5'PUE

-J__

150

45
4,q0sF

151
4,000 sF

46
4,040sF

152
4,000sF

47
3,664Sr_

153
4,@ sF

48
3.961 SF

PUE

49
4,139 SF

120
5 29s SF

--__i

),
I2 5'PUE

121
7 120SF

)
I

I
I

o

I
U'
u.l
tua

50

J119

{l
I

I

i
I

I

I
I

I

>lcl

tl

rt
Pr

I

PI
dl

I

I

I

I

--1
I

I

I

)

I

l- 18 ruEI I PAE(3)

22'

T

I

in
t-

tg

i

I

22'

u
Eo

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES. SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

30 \
I

l
I
I

I

f*"*1,1

12.5 PUE-J 128

127 SFF SHFFT 
Z

114
B4
to
@
E

6,
126 .tL

{L
1 5

123

22' 122 : 116

22

E
s

= N
_ _ _ .-{€3:7'2jry1s14'-

---o.!:1ooo.oo

{
I oa,r

I

, 18'PUE

-6 pEt3)

I

| 
4z\3'|

DRU€

-fe-.:!.--

B

*
'"'r&

20,

I

=<a 20

N1

"l
t

5.00'

s
20'

il
5r

i

(

_r t{_v4l€s

I

I

I

--\r
ki= *
u;c >

trf-
13' J I tr

LOT 12
MANCINI RANCH

PHASE 2 LAR6E LOT
412 BM 7

--r---
1E PUSPAAE(1)LOT ]1

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE 2 LARGE LOT

412 BM 7

l
l<
l

FINAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2-VILLAGE5&6 +

c6

c3

c2

c1

Curue Table

1246.00

50.@'

1m000

s0.m

30_00

3000

11617',

1"m 00'

1"m'00"

22'19y',

22'19V'.

35.30'

1.1 I'

17 45'

17.10'

11.69

11.69

)

I
I
l

!*
Br
9l>
Erg

a__ LAt AI :--'-
[-^ /
torJbJl-t

A MERGER AND RE-SUBDIVISION OF IOTS 5 AND 6 OF THAT CERTAIN FIW W TITLED
^WGINI MCH HASE 2 ffGE LOT' FILED FOR RECORD IULY 2, 2019 IN BOOK 412 OF
MPS, AT PAGE 7, SACWENTO COUNil RECOROS. EEING A rcRTPNS QF SECTIONS 9

AND 16, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, MNGEA ffiT, MOUNTOI€LO MERIDIA

CIry OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2-MLLAGES

421 BM 1J

OCTOBER 2022
mAC[tY&s0mPS
ffitERa PWIES SUWIS

d$.70 €r0)tlrre SHEET 8 OF 9

0201080--
SCALE: l'=4O'

SHEET 8 OF 9

Page 347

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



{

119
5,5S SF

L-11.10, 118
4,147SF

I

I

I

)

69
5,125 SF

53
4,130SF

56
4,131 SF

I

ruE

t__

i 
5,5il sF

13.S

a+.s31'*un
9 6,963SF

62
4,801 5F

63
8,64 SF

LOT D
1.74ilC

LWAE/PUE

: 116

\ rrz

)
121

20

_)
1

I

I

--.{
I

71

12.5 PUE

22

!

!

iF

u'

SEE SHEET 6
)&

L

@
F
w
UJ

o
uj
UJq)

I

22I
4

*
A

"G33,14'qzgo

l;

t

3
nl

359

4'

=<20'

=..G-

cL(1)

N

20' DR/YF A=10 :5'43" L=305 12'@

o

R

j
"l

20'

da
ro

I
Ij

=i-
.?g

)rtlrl
f

FALLON COURT

Jy'_

LER CREEK PARKWA
B\1!''- au

\

B
k haz

s
&

362

a
c3

e
c1

Curue Table

9.00

30 00

1020,00'

1000_00,

11"q!4'

22'19'g'

1'00'@'

1'00'00"

Ddb

10.43'

11.69

17.80'

17.45',

Lenglh

"r1
363

339

LOT A

360 i --i - ------i- --'-t -- il-__J58 i 357 i t+z i :+r i Slo 
i

J35

336

338
337

MANGINI RANCH

PHASE2_VILLAGE4
422 BM 1

FTNAL MAP (PN 17-307.05)

MANGINI RANCH
PHASE2-VILI-AGE5&6

A MERGER AND RE.SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 5 ND 6 OF THAT CERTAN FINI MAP TITLED
.MANGINi NCH PHNE 2 4RGE LOT' FILED FOR RECORD JULY 2, 2019 IN BOOK 412 OF

MNS, AT PreE 7, SACWENTO COUNTY RECOROS. BEING A PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 9

ANO 16, TOWNStsIP 9 NORTH, NGE A NT, MOUNT DIABLO MERDIAN

clTY oF FOLSOM. SACMMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

ocToBER 2022

SHEET 9 OF 9

LO.I D

361

MANCINI RANCH

PHASE2-VILLAGES
421 BM t3

L1

Line Table

N78'0f12V

8€ing

7.60 +
0204&:-:

SC[E: 1"=40' MACKAY&SONPS
ddEffi uxtEB guffi@

,hs?! protlne

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

Page 348

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 4

MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS.5 & 6 SUBDIVISION
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Page 349

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



."+:+ ::*
-- i+

li- r l't I

L:l

i;., 'r: i'." i:

II I

t-t

o-+:++-

'_t-

SEE RIGHT FOR VILLAGES 5 & 6
:.. . l, ,-,.: ."-

Lr.lp-.-lJ,u] --l-ii-:-n]f
="L : ]-- -iajl-"
6-:;+i:r..

-'J
!u.!,iJ,tl!

-'r+

,1-,.]",- :-: . ,1, , +

i :. !
,:.. ..-"
t ;.*l: .J.l IU-+-lJ+:={}-:q* il

'i!

villagc 3

!r
rq

., .i-,.-r

VILLAGES 5 & 6

#

e- lpi

SMALL LOT
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Mansini Ranch Phase 2
-ffi.^, 

-

mffi(AY&sn?s 
a''*! D'*'i"ritr'

villJlL l

Village 3

Page 350

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 5

TABLE OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL F'OR THE MANGINI
RANCH PHASE 2VTLLAGE NOS. 5 & 6 SUBDIVISION

Page 351

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN L7-307)

WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AI\D SOUTII OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved
the improvement plans and the final map
for the project. The approved
improvement plans are in substantial
compliance with the grading and drainage
plans, the site and utility plans, offsite
infrastructure exhibit, the preliminary
landscape plans and the design guidelines

The final map for Village 5 & 6 is in
substantial compliance with the approved
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
(PNl7-307) was approved by the City
Council on February 13,2018.
(Resolution No. 10069)

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition of Approval

Final Development Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community Development Department
that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced below:

2. Vicinity Map
3. Illustrative Master Plan Exhibit, dated December 15,2017
4. Large-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated December 15,2017
5. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated December 15,2017
6. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated December 15, 2017

7. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated December 15,2017
8. Conceptual Phasing Plan, dated December 15,2017
9. On-Site Infrastructure Phasing Exhibit, dated December 15,2017
I 0. On-Site Infrastructure Phasing Narrative, dated Decembet 14,2017
1 I . Preliminary Phased Off-Site Utility Plan, dated September, 201 7

1 2. Off-Site Infrastructure Triggers, dated December, 20 I 7

13. Interim Off-Site Intersection Design, dated December 15,2017
1 4. Trail System Modification Exhibit, dated December 15, 2017

15. Noise Mitigation Exhibit and Conceptual Wall and Fencing Exhibit, dated December 15,2017
I 6. Inclusionary Housing Plan, dated September 26,2017
17. Parks and Open Space Ownership/Maintenance Summary, dated December 14,2017
I 8. Minor Administrative Modihcation Exhibits
19. Folsom Ranch Central District Guidelines Addendum, dated December, 2017

The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map is approved for the development of a 545-unit residential
subdivision (Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision). Implementation of the project shall be consistent with the

above referenced items and these conditions ofapproval.

Condition
No.

Resolution No. 10069
Page I of6l

Page 352

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THN, MANGTNI RANCII PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTEOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD,AIID SOUTH OF USHIGIIWAY50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

Improvement plans for the Village 5 & 6
subdivision have been reviewed and
approved by the Community
Development Department. Grading and
construction commenced in this
subdivision in the Fall of 2022.

Landscape and Irrigation plans for this
subdivision reviewed and approved prior
to the first building permit issuance in the
subdivision.
The City Council approved the Small Lot
Vesting Tentative Map on February 13,

2018. (ResolutionNo. 10069)

The Owner/applicant has complied with
all applicable mitigation measures from
the FEIR/EIS prior to the issuance of a

grading permit. Additionally,
construction inspection and monitoring is
being conducted throughout construction
bv the Citv and/or its Consultants.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXEXB)

cD (P)

cD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,

OG

M

Condition of Approval

Plan Submittal
All civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be submitted to the Community
Development Department for review and approval to ensure conformance with this approval and with
relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements ofthe City ofFolsom.

Validity
This approval of the Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a period of twenty-four
months pursuant to Section 16.16.110A of the Folsom Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map Act. The
term of the approved Inclusionary Housing Plan shall track the term ofthe Vesting Small Lot Tentative
Subdivision Map, as may be extended from time to time pursuant to Section 16.16.1 10.A and 16. 16.120 of
the Folsom Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map Act. The term of the Project Design Guidelines shall
track the term of the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Asreement.
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Approval
The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision project shall be subject
to review and approval by the City Council.

Condition
No.
2.

J

4.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 2 of 61

Page 353

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJOCT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AIID SOUTII OF US HIGHWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant is in compliance
with all plan area wide obligations. These

conditions of approval require certain
improvements during buildout of this
Tentative Map. The owner/applicant has

been required to construct these

improvements as needed and in
conjunction with the other subdivisions
under development. Grading and
construction in this subdivision
commenced in the Fall of 2020.

The Final Map for Village 5 & 6 includes
street names chosen from the approved
list in this condition.

Responsible
Department
cD(EXPXB),

PW, FD,
EWR, PR

cD (E)(P)

When
Required

M

M

Condition ofApproval

Improvements in the PFFP
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all thresholds, timelines and deadlines for the construction and final
completion of various improvements for the entire Folsom Plan Area. The various improvements are outlined
and detailed in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP) dated January 28,

2014 and adopted by City ofFolsom Resolution No. 9298. These improvements in the PFFP include, but are

not limited to, the backbone infrastructure water (water reservoirs, water transmission mains, booster pump
stations, pressure reducing valve stations, etc.), sanitary sewer (lift stations and forced mains) systems,
recycled water mains and associated infrastrucfure, roadway and transportation (future interchanges, major
arterial roadways, etc.) improvements, aquatic center (community pool), parks, fire stations, municipal
sewices center, community library, etc The thresholds and timelines included'in the PFFP require faci'lities to
be constructed and completed based on number of building permits issued and in some cases, number of
residential units that are occupied. The owner/applicant shall be required to address these thresholds and

timelines as the project moves forward through the various developments stages and shall be subject to the

various fair share requirements, subject to the provisions of the PFFP, the ARDA and any amendment
thereto.
Street Names
The street names ident'ified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Map:
Savannah Parkway, Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, Dandelion Lane, Golden Wave Drive, Gardner

Street, Persimmon Way, Sassafras Trail, Hackberry Lane, Arbor View Drive, Emerald Knoll Lane, Copper

Ridge Drive, Field View Trail, Eagle Ridge Lane, Spice Wood Court, Willow Grove Street, Cimarron Trail,
Vista Grande Drive, Sienna Bluff Trail, Lilac Circle, Butterfly Ridge, Spring Harvest Trail, Barnwood Drive,
Barn Owl Drive, Triple Creek Way, Crooked Bed Trail, Deer Point Court, Blacktail Way, Willowick Lane,

Shadow Creek Circle, Dragonfly Way, Old Ranch Road, Wlispering Brook Way, Shakers Ridge Way,

Quakie Glen Drivc, Shale Rock Court, Wind River Range Lane, Owl Crcek Drivc, Drowsy Water Way,
Cackleberry Court, Quail Meadow Way, Tall Oaks Bend, Stone View Trail, Snapdragon Lane, Timberline
Meadow Wav, Trails End. Broken Oak Lane, Bitterroot Lane.

Condition
No.
5.

6.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 3 of61

Page 354

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WESTOFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTE OFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD,AND SOUTH OFUS HIGTIWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATI\ SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The City standard subdivision
improvement agreement includes
language that satisfies this condition. The
subdivision improvement agreement will
be executed by the City Manager upon
approval by the City Council.

The Owner/applicant has complied with
all applicable mitigation measures from
the FEIR/EIS prior to the issuance of a

grading permit for this subdivision in the
F all of 2022. Additionally, construction
inspection and monitoring is conducted
throughout construction by the City
and/or its Consultants to veriff
compliance.

Responsible
Department

cD (PXE)(B)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

CD

When
Required

OG

OG

Condition ofApproval

Indemnity for City
The owneriapplicant shall protect, defend, indemnif', and hold harmless the City and its agents, officers and
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the City or any ofits agencies, departments, commissions,
agents, officers, employees, or legislative body conceming the project, which claim, action or proceeding is
brought within the time period provided therefore in Govemment Code Section 66499.3'l or other applicable
statutes of limitation. The City will promptly notifu the owner/applicant of any such claim, action or
proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the defense. If the City should fail to cooperate firlly in the defense,
the owner owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnifu and hold harmless the City
or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition. The City may, within its unlimited
discretion, participate in the defense ofany such claim, action or proceeding ifboth ofthe following occur:

a

a

The City bears its own attomey's fees and costs; and

The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement ofsuch claim, action or
proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant. The owner/applicant's obligations
under this condition shall apply regardless of whether a Final Map is ultimately recorded with respect to this
project.

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon compliance with all
environmental mitigation measures in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FEIR/EIS) as amended by the
Westland./Eagle Specific Plan Amendment CEQA Addendum, and the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50
Specific Plan Revised Proposed Off-Site Water Facility Alternative CEQA Addendum as well as compliance
with the mitigation measures in the South of U.S. Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Project Mitigated
Negative Declaration for those portions ofMangini Ranch Phase 2 that are included as part ofthe South of
U.S. Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Project.

Condition
No.
7

8.

Resolution No. i0069
Page 4 of6l

Page 355

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PIIASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTTROAD,AIID SOUTH OF US HIGI{WAY 50

SMALL.LOT WSTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISTON MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

POLICE/SECURITY REQUIREMENT
Yes

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE REOUIREMENTS
Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has complied with
all applicable provisions ofthe respective
Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement.

The owner has funded and participated in
a MMRP reporting program performed by
the City's consultant (Helix) and/or staff
throughout the course of grading and
construction.

The owner provided onsite security
during construction and has incorporated
line of sight guidelines into landscaping
plans at intersections

The owner has paid al1 current taxes and
fees associated with this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

CD (P)

PD

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

OG

G, I,B

OG

Condition ofApproval

ARDA and Amendments
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. 1 and 2 to the First Amended and

Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement and any approved amendments thereafter by and between the City
and the owner/applicant ofthe project.

Mitigation Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program pursuant to City
Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Resources Code 21081.6. The mitigation monitoring and reporting
measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan FEIR/EIS, the South of 50 Backbone
Infrastructure Project MND, the Westland/Eagle Specific Plan Amendment to the FPASP and Addendum to
the FPASP EIR/EIS, and the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project Revised Proposed Off-
Site Water Facility Alternative Amendment to the FPASP and Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS have been
incorporated into these conditions ofapproval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the
environment. These mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the mitigation measure
column. Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation monitoring (e.g., staff and

consultant time).

The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all reasonable crime
prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be considered:

a A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be constructed around
the perimeter of construction areas.

Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.a

a Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block linc-of-sight at intersections or screen
overhead liehtins.

Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at the rate and amount
required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Tier I
Develooment Asreement.

Condition
No.
9

10.

ll

12.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 5 of6l

Page 356

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGTNI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTtr OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVTSION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner has paid all taxes and fees

associated with this subdivision and filed
a tax segregation request for applicable
taxes.
The Owner/Applicant shall pay all
required City fees and Plan Area wide
fees prior to issuance of building permits.

The City has not yet utilized any outside
services for any type oflegal issues for
this subdivision. If at any time during the
development of this subdivision. any
outside legal services were necessary, the
owner/applicant would be required to
conform to this condition.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (P), PW,
PK

cD (PXE)

When
Required

OG

B

OG

Condition ofApproval

Assessments
Ifapplicable, the owner/applicant shall pay offany existing assessments against the property, or file
necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.

FPASP Development Impact Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to a'll Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area development impact fees in
place at the time ofapproval or subsequently adopted consistent with the Public Facilities Financing Plan
(PFFP), Development Agreement and amendments thereto, unless exempt by previous agreement. The
owner/applicant shall be subject to all applicable Folsom Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees in
effect at such time that a building permit is issued. These fees may include, but are not limited to, the Folsom
Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee,

Transportation Management Fee, Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equiprnent Fee,

Housing Trust Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on this project will begin

on the date offinal approval ( February 13, 2018), or otherwise shall be governed by the terms of
Amendments No. 1 and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at the fee rate set fofth in the PFFP and the

ARDA,
Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services ofoutside legal counsel to assist in the
implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing and,/or revising agreements

and/or other documentation for the project. Ifthe City utilizes the services of such outside legal counsel, the

City shall provide notice to the owner/applicant ofthe outside counsel selected, the scope ofwork and hourly
rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incurred and
documented by the City for such services. The owner/applicant may be required, at the sole discretion of the

City Attorney, to submit a deposit to the City for these services prior to initiation of the services. The
owner/applicant shall be responsible for reimbursement to the City for the services regardless ofwhether a

deoosit is reouired.

Condition
No.
l3

14.

15.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 6 of61

Page 357

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERYILLE ROAD, NORIH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Condition
will be
satisfied prior
to building
permit
issuance in
the
subdivision.

Comments

The City has provided notice to the
owner/applicant for various Consultants
performing services for the development
ofthis subdivision. The City has

collected deposits from the
owner/applicant in advance of such work
for these services.
The owner/applicant will submit
landscape and streetscape plans to the
Community Development Department.
The Community Development
Department will verifr that the landscape
and streetscape plans include the required
wall, fences and gates and that these

improvements are in compliance with the
Folsom Ranch Central Dishict Design
Guidelines.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

cD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

B

Condition ofApproval

Consultant Services
If the City utilizes the services of consultants to prepare special studies or provide specialized design review
or inspection services for the project, the City shall provide notice to the owner/applicant of the outside
consultant selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for
actual costs incurred and documented in utiiizing these services, including administrative costs for City
personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to initiating review ofthe Grading Plan, Final
Mao. imorovement olans. or besinnins insoection. whichever is aoplicable.
ll/alls/Fences/Gates
The final location, design, height, materials, and colors ofthe walls, fences, and gates shall be subject to
review and approval by the Community Development Department to ensure consistency with the Folsom
Ranch Central District Design Guidelines.

Condition
No.

16.

1'7

Resolution No. 10069
Page 7 of61

Page 358

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCII PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD,AIID SOUTH OF US HIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVTSION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner has submitted and obtained
approval by the City ofa phasing plan for
Development Phase I of the Mangini
Ranch Phase 2 Vesting Tenlative
Subdivision Map, which includes Village
5 & 6. The following addresses the
improvements necessary to serve Village
5 &6:

Alder Creek Parkway is required to
provide access to the Village 5 & 6

subdivision. Alder Creek Parkway has

been completed and accepted by the City
and is currently in operation

Roadway improvements to provide access

to the Village 5 & 6 subdivision are being
constructed with the approved Parcel 85A
improvement plans and the approved
Enciave at Folsom Ranch Off-site
Improvement Plans. These roadway
improvements include Alder Creek
Parkway and Westwood Drive. These

improvements have been under
construction since the Spring of20l9.
These improvements have been
completed and accepted by the City and
are currently in operation.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition of Approval

Development Phase 1 (Villages 1, 2, 7) Plan
The owner/applicant shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map with each applicable phase. Roadways shall be to the ultimate horizontal and vertical
alignment unless otherwise noted.

o Roads
. Alder Creek Parkway (East Bidwell Sheet to Placerville Road)

. One lane of travel in each direction (These roadway improvements are existing improvements
being constructed with FPA Phase I Backbone Improvements)

r Intersection and median pocket improvements are described in following three phases

East Bidwell Street (Alder Creek Parkway to the interface of Mangini Ranch
Phase I Subdivision Project)
. One lane of travel in each direction (These roadway improvements are existing-improvements

constructed with FPA Phase 1 Backbone Improvements)
. Intersection ofSavannah Parkway and East Bidwell Street includingturn lanes (as shown on

Attachment 1l/Off-Site lnfrastructure Triggers, December-2017/Required Prior to First Building
Permit)
o Control: Stop-Sign control at the westbound approach to East Bidwell Street from Savarmah

Parkway with full access.

o Southbound Approach to Savannah Parlnvay from East Bidwell Street: One thruJane, and

one left-turn lane with a 200-foot long transition, 60-foot-long taper, and 100 feet ofvehicle
storage.

o Northbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One shared
thn-r/right-tum lane.

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Street from Savannah Parkway: One shared left/right-
tum lane, and a striped out left-tum pocket with a 125-foollong taper and 60 feet ofvehicle
storage.

Condition
No.

l8

Resolution No- 10069
Page 8 of6l

Page 359

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCII PHASE 2 SUBDIYISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTTI OT WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTH OF US HIGIIWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MA.P

Condition
Satisfied?

Comments
Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition ofApproval

Between Old Ranch Way and the southem bowrdary of the project site, East Bidwell Street
shall be constructed as a two-lane arterial on the eastern "half segment" of its ultimate
configuration. This twolane segment shall have a striped 2-foot-wide median south of Old
Ranch Way, consistent with the California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices
(MUTCD) Figure 3A-107 (CA), or similar standard. The southbound lefrtum pocket shall
be developed in accordance with the Highway Design Manual (HDM) Figure 405-2A, or
similar standard. Savannah Parkway shall have a raised median curb.

o

a

a

a

Intersection of Old Ranch Way and East Bidwell Sheet including turn lanes
o Control: All-Way Stop-Sign control at the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Old Ranch

Way with ful'l access.

o Southbound Approach to Old Ranch Way from East Bidwell Street: One thru-lane and one
left-tum lane.

o Northbound Approach to Old Ranch Way from East Bidwell Street: One shared thru/right-
tum lane.

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Street from Old Ranch Way: One shared leff/right-turn
lane.
Village 7 Entrance/Exit on East Bidwell Street

o Control: Stop-Sign control at the Village 7 exit to East Bidwell Street.
o Access to Village 7 from East Bidwell Street limited to right-turns in and righttums out

only. Measures to enforce the right-turn in and right-turn out restriction at this location shall
be implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

Frontage Improvements on East Bidwell Street
o Frontage Improvements including curb, gutter, sidewalk, and landscaping along the east side

ofEast Bidwell Street from Savannah Parkway to the southern project boundary with the
Mangini Ranch Phase I Subdivision project.

Condition
No.

18.

Cont.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 9 of6l

Page 360

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PIIASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVTSION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Comments

lmprovements to Savannah Parkway have
been completed and accepted and were
included as part of the Ylllage 1,2 &7
subdivision improvement plans.

Additional Improvements to Savannah
Parkway east ofthe easterly boundary of
Village 2 to White Rock Road are under
construction and should be completed in
the Fall of 2022.

The improvements to Savannah Parkway
are not required to provide access to
Village 5 & 6.

Responsible
Department

CD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition of Approval

Savannah Parkway (East Bidwell Street East Bidwell Street to the eastem edge

ofOpen Space Lots I and L)
r One lane of travel in each direction and a landscaped median of varying widths.
o lntersection of Savannah Parkway and Westwood Drive including turn lanes

o Westbound approach to Westwood Drive from Savannah Parkway:
One through lane, one right-turn lane, and one left-turn 1ane. The rightturn pocket will have
a125'foot-longtaperand2l0feetofvehiclestorage. Theleft-tumlanewillhaveal25-foot-
long taper with 60 feet ofvehicle storage.

o Eastbound approach to Westwood Drive from Savannah Parkway:
One shared through/right-turn lane and one left-turn lane. The left-tum lane will have a 125-

foot-long taper with 60 feet of vehicle storage.
o Northbound approach to Savannah Parkway from Westwood Drive:

One shared through lane/righrtum lane and one left-tum lane. The left-tum lane wi'll have a

I 25-foot-long taper with 60 feet of vehicle storage. A 60-foot-long taper will be provided for
the right-turn movement.

. Village I Entrance/Exit and Turn Pockets
o Control: Stop-Sign control at the Village I exit to Savannah Parkway.
o Westbound left-turn pocket into Village 1 entrance from Savannah Parkway with a 125-foot-

long taper and 60 feet of vehicle storage.
o Eastbound left-tum pocket at Savannah Parkway/Village I intersection with l25-foot-long

taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage.
o Frontage Improvements on Savannal Parlcway

o Frontage Improvements along the southern side ofSavannah Parkway including curb, gutter,

sidewalk, medians, and landscaping along with the remainder of paving required to complete
the roadway sections K and Kl to the eastern edge ofopen Space Lots I and J as shown on
the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

Westwood Drive (Savannah Parkway to the interface of Mangini Ranch Phase l, including the Alder
Creek Tributary creek crossing)
o One lane oftravel in each direction
o Frontage improvements on Westwood Drive includrng curb, gutter, sidewalk, landscaping,

medians along with remainder of paving required to complete the roadway Sections U, Vl and
V-2 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

olution No. 10069

Condition
No.
18.

Cont.

Re

Page 361

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCII PIIASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE RON),NORTH OFWHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTTROAD,AIID SOUTH OFUSHIGHWAY 50

SM^ALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE ST]BDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Comments

Additional Improvements to Savarurah

Parkway east of the easterly Village 2

boundary to White Rock Road are not
required for the Village 5 & 6

subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G,I, M

Condition of Approval

Westwood Drive (Alder Creek Parkway to Old Ranch Way)
o One lane oftravel in each direction (The Enclave at Folsom Ranch Subdivision project (PN 16-

025) is cunently conditioned to complete these improvements)
o Intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive including turn lanes

o Control: All-Way Stop-Sign control at the intersection of Westwood Drive and Alder Creek

Parkway with fuli access.

o Westbound Approach to Westwood Drive from Alder Creek Parkway: One shared
through/right-tum lane, and one left-turn lane with a I 25-foot long taper and 60 feet of
vehicle storage.

o Northbound Approach to Alder Creek Parkway from Westwood Drive: One shared
throughiright-tum lane, and one left-turn lane with a 125-foot long taper and 210 feet of
vehicle storage. A 60-foot-long taper will be provided for the right-turn movement.

o Eastbound Approach to Westwood Drive from Alder Creek Parkway: One through lane, one
righrtum lane and one left-tum lane.

r Intersection of Old Ranch Way and Westwood Drive including tum lanes
o Eastbound Approach to Wcstwood Drive from Old Ranch Way: One shared through/right-

turn lane, and one left-turn lane with a 125-foot long taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage.
o Southbound Approach to Old Ranch Way from Westwood Drive: One shared through./right-

turn lane, and one left-turn lane with a 125-foot long taper and 60 feet of vehicle storage.
o Frontage Improvements on Westwood Drive

o Frontage Improvements including curb, gutter, sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with
the remainder of paving required to complete the roadway section K2 as shown on the Small-
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

Old Ranch Way (East Bidwell Street to Westwood Drive)
. One lane oftravel in each direction (The Enclave at Folsom Ranch Subdivision project (PN 16-

025) is cunently conditioned to complete these improvements)
r Frontage improvements along the southem side including curb, gutter and sidewalk and

landscaping along with remainder ofpaving required to complete the roadway Section S and S I

as shown on the Small-Lot Vestins Tentative Subdivision Mao.

T

Condition
No.
t8.

Cont.

Resolution No. 10069
Page I I of61

Page 362

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE RON),NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD,AND SOUTH OF USIIIGHWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfred?

Yes

Comments

Underground water, sanitary s€wer, storm
drainage and public utility'infrastructure
will be constructed as a part ofthe
roadway construction to serve Village 5 &
6, the Hydro-modification Basin 19 has

been included in the Enclave Offsite
improvements plans. The roadway
improvements to serve Village 5 & 6 are

included in the Parcel 85A improvements
plans are currently under construction.
The Hydro-modification Basin 19 has

been completed and accepted and in
curently in operation

There are no trails being constructed in
the open space adjoining the Village 5 &
6 subdivision.

The owner/applicant commenced with
grading the entire Mangini Ranch Phase 2

subdivision in the Spring of 2019.
Throughout the grading in the future
years, excess spoils will be placed in the
future Communiw Park East.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition of Approval

o Utility Infrastructure
. The utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed appropriate

and necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer.
. A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the roadway and

utility phasing may change. If sub-phasing is proposed, the City Engineer shall determine what
roadway and utility improvements are appropriate and necessary to serve the sub-phase.

' Hydromodification Basins No. 19 and No. 23 shall be constructed with Phase 1, unless already

constructed by Others,

o Trails in Open Space
. No trails within Phase I

o Park Grading
. Community Park East will serve as a spoils site during Phase I grading. Grading of the park will

be completed in subsequent phases.

Condition
No.
l8

Cont.

Resolution No. 10059

Page 12 of 61

Page 363

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TI{f,, MANGINI RANCII PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WBST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTTI OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AIID SOUTH OF US ITIGI{WAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVTSION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

not required to provide access and utilities
to the Village 5 & 6 subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition ofApproval

Development Phase 2 (Villages 3,4,8, and Lots C & D)PIan
Developer shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map & Conceptual Development Phasing Diagram unless otherwise noted; Roadways

shall be constructed to the ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment unless otherwise noted.

o Roads
. Savannah Parkway (Eastem edge ofOpen Space Lots I and L to SMUD Substation)

. One lane oftravel in each direction and median
r Village 3 Enhance/Exit on Savannah Parkway

o Control: Stop-Sign control at the Village 3 exit to Savannah Parkway.
o Eastbound left-turn lane from Savannah Parkway into Village 3 entrance with 125-foot-long

taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage.
o Frontage improvements along the northern side of Savannah Parkway includ'ing curb, gutter

and sidewaik, median, and landscaping along with remainder of paving required to complete
the roadway Section K as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

o Park Frontage improvements are the responsibility of the City.

. Westwood Drive (Savannah Parkway to Old Ranch Way)
. One lane oftravel in each direction
o Intersection of Old Ranch Way and Westwood Drive including tum lanes

o Northbound Approach to Old Ranch Way from Westwood Drive: One shared through/right-
tum lane, and one left-tum lane with a 125-foot long taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage. A
60-foot-long taper will be provided for the right-tum movement.

o Westbound Approach to Westwood Drive from Old Ranch Way: One shared through/right-
turn lane, and one lefttum lane with a 125-foot long taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage.

r Intersection of Savannah Parkway and Westwood Drive including tum lanes
o Southbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from Westwood Drive: One shared

through/right-turn lane, and one left-tum lane with a 125-foot long taper and 90 feet of
vehicle storage. A 60-footJong taper will be provided for the righttum movement.

Condition
No.

t9.

Resolution No. 10069

Page l3 of61

Page 364

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT GN T7.307)
WNST OF PLACERVILLE RON), NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTH OF US ITIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATII'n, SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

not required to provide access and utilities
to the Village 5 7 6 subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition ofApproval

. Frontage Improvements on Westwood Drive
o Frontage improvements along the western side of Westwood Drive including curb, gutter and

sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with remainder of paving required to complete the

roadway Section K as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

Old Ranch Way (Wesfwood Drive to Village 4)
o One lane oftravel in each direction
r Frontage improvements including curb, gutter, sidewalk, median and landscaping along with

remainder of paving required to complete the roadway Section V-4 as shown on the Sma'll-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

. Park & School frontage including curb, gutter, and 10-foot-wide sidewalk with remainder of
paving required to complete the roadway Section V-4 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map. Park frontage improvements are the responsibility of the City.

Alder Creek Parkway (Westwood Drive to Placerville Road)
. One lane oftravel in each direction and median (Existing travel lanes on Aider Creek Parkway

constructed with FPA Phase 1 Backbone Improvements)
o Village 8 Entrance/Exit on Savannah Parkway

o Westbound left-turn lane from Alder Creek Parkway into Village 8 entrance with 125-foot-
long taper and 60 feet of vehicle storage.

e Intersection of East Bidwell Street and Alder Creek Parkway (as shown on Attachment 1l/Off-
Site Infrastructure Triggers, December-2017/Required Prior to 236'h Building Permit)
o Control: Signalize with a protected southbound East Bidwell Street left-tum, westbound

Alder Creek Parkway split phasing, and westbound Alder Creek Parkway right-turn overlap.
U-Tums prohibited.

o Southbound Approach to Alder Creek Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One thruJane, and
two left-turn lanes, with a 30O-foot-long single lane left-turn pocket excluding tapers for the
most easterly of the left tuming lanes.

o Northbound Approach to Alder Creek Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One thru lane and
one shared thni/right-turn lane with a striped 500-foot long right-tum pocket excluding tapers
for the shared thm,/risht-turn lane.

Condition
No.
l9

Cont.

Resolution No. 10069
Page l4 of61

Page 365

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTHOFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD,AND SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDWISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

not required to provide access and utilities
to the Village 5 & 6 subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition ofApproval

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Stoeet fiom Alder Creek Parkway: One right-tum lane
and one left-tum lane, with a 200-foot left-turn pocket excluding tapers for the left-turn lane.

o Eastbound Alder Creek Parkway Departwe: Two receiving lanes shall be provided, the
second receiving lane shall be dropped after 300 feet excluding tapers.

o East Bidwell Street shall be constructed as a fourlane divided arterial between Alder Creek
Parkway and the U.S. Highway 50 Interchange, with a 38-foot-wide median at Alder Creek
Parkway that tapers back to match the existing fourlane arterial segment at the eastbound

U.S. Highway 50 slip onramp. East Bidwell Street shall be constructed as a two-lane divided
arterial between Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way, with a 38-foot-wide raised
median at Alder Creek Parkway that tapers back to match the twolane half segment. Alder
Creek Parkway between East Bidweil Street and Westwood Drive shall be constructed as a

two-lane divided roadway with a 38-foot-wide raised median.

Frontage Improvements on Alder Creek Parkway
o Frontage improvements along the southem side of Alder Creek Parkway including curb,

gutter, sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with remainder of paving required to
complete the roadway Section Cl as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map.

a

Intersection of East Bidwell Street and White Rock Road
o Prior to issuance ofthe 28lst building permit, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for either

Option A or Option B below as follows:
o Option A:

The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project proposes to relocate
and signalize the East Bidwell StreeVWhite Rock Road intersection: If the proposed JPA
project at this location is fully funded and construction is underway by the time the 28 l st

building permit is issued, the project shall pay the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fccs, toward thc JPA project.

Condition
No.

l9

Cont.

Resolution No. 10059
Page 15 of6l

Page 366

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJOCT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERVTLLE ROAD, NORTH OF WTIITE ROCK ROAD, NAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AI\D SOUTH OF US IIIGITWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

not required to provide access and utilities
to the Village 5 & 6 subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition of Approval

o Option B:
Signalize the existing East Bidweli Street/White Rock Road intersection with Mangini Ranch
Phase 1 improvements: Ifthe JPA project to relocate and signalize the East Bidwell
Street/White Rock Road intersection is not fully funded and under construction prior to
issuances of the 28 1 st building permit, the owner/applicant shall be responsibie to signalize
the existing intersection with improvements described in Condition No. 127 of the Mangini
Ranch Phase I conditions of approval. Mangini Ranch Phase 1 improvements at this location
consist of "Southbound on East Bidwell Street construct a free southbound right tum lane
consisting of 3 1 5 feet of deceleration length plus 50 feet storage length, excluding
appropriate tapers and a 300 foot receiving /acceleration lane, excluding tapers along
westbound White Rock Road. Westbound on White Rock Road, construct a free right-tum
lane consisting of 3 1 5 feet of deceleration length plus 50 feet of storage length, excluding
appropriate tapers, and a 300-foot receiving lane excluding appropriate tapers along
northbound East Bidwell Street.

o The JPA cunently has more than seven million dollars programed toward relocation and
signalization of the East Bidwell StreeVWhite Rock Road intersection, and is planning to
begin acquiring right-of-way during the winter of 20 1 8, and begin construction during the
summer of 2019. The projected absorption Schedule for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 project
estimates that the 281 dwelling units will not be constructed until sometime in the second
quarter of 2020. Option A above is the prefened improvement, Option B would be a
throwaway improvement.

o Utilitylnfrastructure
. The utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed appropriate

and necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer

' A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the roadway and
utility phasing may change. If sub-phasing is proposed, the City Engineer shall determine what
roadway and utility improvements are appropriate and necessary to serve the sub-phase

o Trails in Open Space
. The proposed trail within Lot I open space will be graded with Village 3

' The proposed trail within Lot H open space adjacent to the school will be graded with Village 4

o Park Grading

olution No.. lg$dnmunity Park East will serve as a spoils site during Phase 2 grading. Grading of the park will
e l6 of61 be completed in subsequentphases.

Condition
No.
l9

Cont.

Re
Pul

Page 367

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCH PHASf, 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WESTOF PLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTT RON),AND SOUTH OFUSHIGHWAY 50

SMALL-LOT !'ESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

currently under construction. The required
improvements in this condition have been
included in portions ofthe following
approved improvement plans;

l) Parcel 85A improvement
plans

2) Mangini Ranch Phase 2
Yillage 1,2 & 7

subdivision improvement
plans

3) Enclave at Folsom Ranch
Off-site Improvement
plans

4) Mangini Ranch Phase

1CN Improvement Plans
(Savannah Parkway)
extension)

All of the required improvement have
either been completed and accepted by the
City or are expected to be completed and
accepted by the City in the Fall of 2022.

Responsible
Department

CD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition of Approval

Development Phase 3 (Villages 5 and 6, and Lots B, F, and G)
Developer shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map & Conceptual Development Phasing Diagram unless otherwise noted; Roadways
shall be constructed to the ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment unless otherwise noted.

o Roads
I East Bidwell Street (Savannah Parkway to the Alder Creek Parkway)

o Intersection ofSavannah Parkway and East Bidwell Street including tum lanes (as shown on
Attachment I l/Off-Site Infrastructure Triggers, December-2017/Required Prior to 496th
Building Permit)
o Control: Signal control with split phasing.

o Southbound Approach to Savannah Parkrryay from East Bidwell Street: One thruJane, and
one left-turn lane with a 10O-foot-long lefftum pocket excluding tapers for the left-turn lane.

o Northbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One shared thm/right-
turn lane.

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Street fiom Savannah Parkway: One right-tum lane,

and one left-tum lane with a 60-foot left-turn pocket excluding tapers for the left-turn lane.

o Between Old Ranch Way and the southem boundary of the project site, East Bidwell Street

shall be constructed as a two-lane arterial on the eastem "half-segment" ofits ultimate
configuration. This two-lane segment shall have a striped 2-foot-wide median south of Old
Ranch Way, consistent with the California Manual on Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)
Figure 3A,-107 (CA), or similar standard. The southbound left-tum pocket shall be

developed in accordance with the Highway Design Manual (HDM) Figure 405.2A, or similar
standard. Savannah Parkway shall have a 4-foot-wide raised median.

. Frontage improvements including curb, gutter, sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with
remainder of paving required to complete the roadway Section I as shown on the Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

Condition
No.

20.

Resolution No. 10069
Page l7 of6l

Page 368

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDMSION PROJECT (pN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTH OF US HIGITWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTTNG TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

currently under construction. The required
improvements in this condition have been
included in portions of the following
approved improvement plans;

5) Parcel 85A improvement
plans

6) Mangini Ranch Phase 2

Ylllagel,2&7
subdivision improvement
plans

7) Enclave at Folsom Ranch
Off-site Improvement
plans

8) Mangini Ranch Phase

1CN Improvement Plans
(Savannah Parkway)
extension)

All of the required improvement have
either been completed and accepted by the
City or are expected to be completed and
accepted by the City in the Fall of 2022.

Responsible
Department

CD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition ofApproval

o Savannah Parkway (SMUD Substation to Grand Prairie Road)
o One lane of travel in each direction and a landscaped median of varying widths.
o Intersection of Savannah Parkway and Grand Prairie Road including turn lanes

o Northbound approach to Grand Prairie Road fiom Savannah Parkway: One shared
through/right-tum/left-turn lane.

o Southbound approach to Grand Prairie Road from Savannah Parkway: One shared
through/righrturn lane and one left-turn lane. The left-tum lane will have a 125-
footlong taper with 60 feet ofvehicle storage.

. Westbound approach to Savannah Parkway from Grand Prairie Road: One
shared right-nrrn lane and one left-turn lane.

o Frontage improvements along the northem side of Savannah Parkway including
curb, gutter, sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with remainder of paving
required to complete the roadway Section K as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map.

o Park frontage improvements are the responsibility of the City.

o Westwood Drive (Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road)
o One lane of travel in each direction with median
o Intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive including tum lanes
o Southbound Approach to Alder Creek Parkway from Placerville Road: One shared

through/right-tum lane, and one lefttum lane with a 125-foot long taper and 60 feet
ofvehicle storage.

o Intersection ofAlder Creek Parkway and Placerville Road including tum lanes
o Southbound Approach to Placerville Road from Alder Creek Parkway: One right-

turn lane.
. Eastbound Approach to Placerville Road from Alder Creek Parkway: One

shared through/left-turn lane.
o Village 6 Entrance/Exit on Westwood Drive

o Control: Stop-Sign control at the Village 6 exit to Westwood Drive. Northbound
Approach to Village 6 entrance from Westwood Drive:

o One shared through.irighrtum lane. Southbound Approach to Village 6 entrance from
Westwood Drive: One shared through./1eft-tum lane

o Frontage improvements including curb, gutter, sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with
olution No. 10069 rcmainder of paving rcquircd to complete the roadway Scctions U, U-2, and V1 as shown on
e l8 of 61 the Small-Lot Vestins Tentative Subdivision Map.

Condition
No.
20.

Cont.

Re
Pal

Page 369

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTITE MANGINI RANCHPHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT GN T7-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OT SCOTT ROAD,AND SOUTH OF USHIGHWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Comments

These improvements in this condition are

currently under construction. The required
improvements in this condition have been
included in portions of the following
approved improvement plans;

9) Parcel 85A improvement
plans

10) Mangini Ranch Phase 2

Yillage 1,2 & 7

subdivision improvement
plans

1 1) Enclave at Folsom Ranch
Off-site Improvement
plans

12) Mangini Ranch Phase

ICN hnprovement Plans
(Savannah Parkway)
extension)

All of the required improvement have
either been completed and accepted by the
City or are expected to be completed and
accepted by the City in the Fall of 2022.

Responsible
Department

cD (E),
EWR, PW,

FD

When
Required

G, I,M

Condition of Approval

Alder Creek Parkway (Westwood Drive to Placerville Road)
o Village 5 Entrance,lExit on Alder Creek Parkway

o Control: Stop-Sign control at the Village 5 exit to Alder Creek Parkway.
o Eastbound Approach to Village 5 entrance from Alder Creek Parkway: Left-tum lane with

125-foot-long taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage.
o Frontage improvements along the northern side ofAlder Creek Parkway including curb,

gutter, sidewalk, median, and landscaping along with remainder ofpaving required to
complete the roadway Section C1 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map.

Intersection of Placerville Road and White Rock Road
o Prior to the 496th building permit, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for prohibiting

southbound left-turns from Placerville Road to eastbound White Rock Road by construction of a

raised median on Placerville Road to channelize all southbound traffic onto westbound White
Rock Road.

Utility Infrastructure
. The utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed appropriate and

necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer
. A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the roadway and utility

phasing may change. If sub-phasing is proposed, the City Engineer shall determine what roadway
and utility improvements are appropriate and necessary to serve the sub-phase

Trails in Open Space
. The proposed trail within Community Park East, including the connection with Mangini Ranch Phase

l, will be graded with Phase 3

o Park Grading
. Community Park East grading will be completed.

o

o

Condition
No.
20.

Cont.

Resolution No. 10069
Page l9 of6l

Page 370

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AIID SOUTH OF US HIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVTSION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant obtained all Rights
of Entry, construction easements and
grant deeds for all off-site improvements
prior to commencement of grading. All
rights-of-entry are on file with the
Community Development Department.

During the course ofgradhg and
construction for this subdivision no mine
shafts or tunnels were located or
discovered.

The owner/applicant has jointly
participated with the adjacent property
owner (Parcel 85A) for the traffic control,
planning and construction of roadway
improvements to Alder Creek Parkway
and Westwood Drive. The improvements
to Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood
Drive are expected to be completed in
November of2022.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (E)

CD (E)

When
Required

G

G

G

Condition of Approval

Off-site improvements / Rights of Entry
For any improvements constructed on private property that are not under the ownership or control of the

owner/applicant, all rights-of-entry, and ifnecessary, a permanent easement shall be obtained and provided to
the City. Al1 rights of entry, construction easements, either permanent or temporary and other easements

shall be obtained as set forth in Amendments No. I and 2 to ARDA, which shall be fully executed by all
affected parties and shall be recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder, where applicable, prior to
aooroval of sradins and/or imorovement olans.
Mine Shafi Remediution
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate a1l antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open cuts, tunnels, and
water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project site, with specific recommendations for
the sealing, filling, or removal ofeach that meet all applicable health, safety and engineering standards.
Recommendations shall be prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans

shall be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of grading plans.

Prepare Traffic Control Plan.
Prior to construction, a Traffic Control Plan for roadways and intersections affected by construction shall be
prepared. The Traffic Control Plan shall designate haul routes and comply with requirements in the

encroachment permits issued by the City ofRancho Cordova, Sacramento County, and Caltrans and any

other local agencies, including but not limited to the City, if applicable. The Traffic Control Plan to be
prepared by the project construction contractor(s) shall, at minimum, include the following measures:

. Maintaining the maximum amount of havel lane capacity during non-construction periods, possible, and
advanced notice to drivers through the provision of construction signage.

r Maintaining alternate one-way traffic flow past the lay down area and site access when feasible.
. HearT trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest commute hours (7 a.m. to 8

a.m. and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).
. A minimum 72-hour advance notice ofaccess restrictions for residents, businesses, and local emergency

response agencies. This shall include the identification ofalternative routes and detours to enable for the
avoidance ofthe immediate construction zone.

. A phone number and community contact for inquiries about the schedule ofthe construction throughout
the construction period. This information will be posted in a local newspaper, via the City's web site, or
at Citv Hall and will be updated on a monthlv basis.

Condition
No.

21

22.

23.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 20 of 61

Page 371

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, A}ID SOUTH OF US HIGITWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

IMPROVEMENT PLAN REOUIREMENTS
Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits and
copies are available from the Community
Develonment Denartment
The City and/or the Owner obtained a

Section 401 Water Quality certification
for the backbone and project specific
improvements. All required measures
were implemented prior to grading and
construction in the Sorins of 2019.
The owner/applicant retained a

geotechnical engineer and implemented
recommendations for this mitigation
measure. A geotechnical report outlining
these recommendations is on file with
Communitv Develonment Denartment.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved
the improvement plans for this
subdivision.
The Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved
the improvement plans lor this
subdivision. The improvement plans and
the required improvements are being
constructed in accordance with the current
City Standards and Specifications.

Responsible
Department

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

cD (E) PW

CD (E)

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I

G

G

M

I

Condition ofApproval

State and Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide evidence that said
permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject to staffreview prior to approval of any
gradins or imorovement plan.

Water Quality CertiJication
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required before issuance of
the record of decision and before issuance ofthe Section 404 permi| Before construction in any areas

containing wetland features, the owneriapplicant shall obtain water quality certifrcation for the project. Ary
measures required as part of the issuance of water quality certification shall be implemented pursuant to the
nermit conditions.
Landslide /Slope Failure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the grading activities to identiff
existing landslides and potential slope failure hazards. The said engineer shall be notified a minimum of two
days prior to any site clearing or grading to facilitate meetings with the grading contractor in the field.

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans for the required public and private subdivision improvements necessary to serve any
and all phases of development shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department
prior to approval of a Final Map,
Standard Construction SpeciJications and Details
Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle lanes and trails,
streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other improvements sha1l be provided in accordance with the
latest edition of the City of Folsom Standard Construction Specilications and Details and the Desisn and
Procedures Manual and Improvement Standards.

Condition
No

24.

25

26.

2'7

28.

Resolution No. '10069

Page 2l of6l

Page 372

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCII PHASE 2 SIJBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WESTOFPLACERVILLERON),NORTIIOFWIilTE R(rcKROAD, EASTOF SCOTTROAD,AND SOUTIIOFUS I{IGIIWAY 50

SMALI-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has installed all
sewer and water infrastructure within the
street right ofway for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

When
Required

I

Condition ofApproval

Water and Sewer Infrastructure
All City-owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be piaced within the street right of way. In the event that
a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed in an area other than the public right of way,
such as through an open space corridor, landscaped area, etc., the following criteria must be met;

The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements

An access road shall be designcd and constructed to allow for thc operations, maintenance and
replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along the entire water and/or sewer line
alignment.
In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on private residential
property.
The domestic water and irrigation system owned and maintained by the City shall be separately metered
per City ofFolsom Standard Construction Specifications and Details.

a

a

a

Condition
No.

29.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 22 of 6l

Page 373

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THf, MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLT ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, A]\ID SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TBNTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a Lighting
Plan for all backbone roadways and
subdivisions in accordance with the
Design Guidelines and City Standards for
Street Lighting. A copy ofthe lighting
plans are available from the Community
Development Department.

The owner/applicant has coordinated with
all public utilities that will provide service
to the subdivision. Bonding for the
construction of the joint hench facilities
to serve this subdivision are provided in
the subdivision improvement agreement
for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

CD (P)

CD (PXE)

When
Required

I

M

Condition of Approval

Lighting Plan
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to the Community
Development Department. The lighting plan shall be consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District
Design Guidelines:

a

a

a

a

Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on adjacent
properties;

Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nighttime sporting
activities, and.ior security so as not to disturb adjacent residential areas and passing motorists;
For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures that are of unusually
high intensity or that blink or flash;
Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or finish, neutral,
earthtoned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened lighting, and appropnate signage in
the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby
roadways; and

Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscaping design in the Specific
Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent with the overall site design. Lights used
on signage should be directed to light onlv the sign face with no off site glare.

UtiliU Coordinaion
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion ofthis project with the
various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant shall provide the City with \rritten
confirmation ofpublic utility service prior to approvai ofall hnal maps.

Condition
No,
30.

3t

Resolution No. 10069
Page 23 of6l

Page 374

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTH OFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTTRON),AND SOUTH OFUS HIGITWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDT1IISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has reconstructed a

portion of East Bidwell Street (formerly
Scott Rd) to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Dept. No
existing improvements were existing as

part of this subdivision.

All utility lines below 69 kV have been
designed to be placed underground and
Public Utility Easements have been
dedicated on the final map for this
subdivision.
The Owner/applicant has completed the
infrastructure allowing for the water
meter fixed network system. Meters will
be fumished and installed durirg home
construction for each individual metered
connection.
The improvement plans for the
subdivision improvements and backbone
roadways provide vertical curbing as

required.
A1l Class II bike lanes have been
constructed in accordance with the
Specific Plan, Design Guidelines and City
Standards and Snecifications.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E),
EWR

cD (PXB)

CD (EXP)

When
Required

I, OG

B

T

I

I

Condition of Approval

Rep lacing H aTar do us F aci lities
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or hazardous public sidewalk,
curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site frontage and,/or boundaries, including pre-existing
conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

Future Utility Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project, shall be placed underground
within and along the perimeter ofthe project at the developer's cost. The owneriapplicant shall dedicate to
SMUD all necessary underground easements for the electrical facilities that will be necessary to service
development of the proiect.

Waler Meter Fixed Network System
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, fumish and install all infrastructure associated with the water meter
fixed network system for any City-owned and maintained water meter within the project.

Vertical Curb
All curbs located adjacent to landscaping, whether natural or manicured, and where parking is allowed shall
be vertical.

Class II Bike Lanes
All Class II bike lanes shall be striped and the legends painted green. No parking shall be permitted within
the Class II bike lanes.

Condition
No.

32.

33

34.

35

36.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 24 of 6l

Page 375

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCII PIIASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PI,ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AI\D SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has designed the
subdivision and sound walls along East
Bidwell and Savannah Parkway in
accordance with these conditions. The
sound walls in the required location and
height will be constructed as part ofthe
improvements for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)(P)

When
Required

I

Condition ofApproval

Noise Barriers
Based on the Environmental Noise Assessment prepared by Bollard Acoustical Consultants on August 23,

2017 , the following measures shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Colnmunity Development
Department:

r Solid noise barriers or similar natural features (earthen berm, etc.) shall be required to reduce future
traffic noise levels to below the City ofFolsom exterior criteria of60 dB Ldn at the proposed residential
backyards. Barrier heights are specified relative to backyard elevations. The following barrier heights
and locations are required to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department (see Figure 2 in
the August 23, 2017 Assessment):

o 6-foot noise barrier at residences adjacent to Highway 50
o 1 O-foot noise barrier at residences adjacent to East Bidwell Street
o 7-foot noise barrier at residences adjacent to Alder Creek Parkway
o 6-foot noise barrier at residences adjacent to Savannah Parkway

o Suitable materials for the traffic noise barriers shall include masoffy and precast concrete panels. Other
materials may be acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical consultant prior to use. The fina1

design, materials, and colors of the barriers shall be to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

. Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences within the Mangini Ranch
Phase 2 Subdivision to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve compliance
with the applicable interior noise level criteria.

. All second-floor windows of residences located adjacent to East Bidwell Street from which the roadway
is visible shall have a minimum STC rating of 32. Figure 2 of the Noise Assessment shows the specific
lots where upgrades are required.

. All second-floor windows of residences located adjacent to Alder Creek Parkway from which the
roadway is visible shall have a minimum STC rating of 30. Figure 2 of the Noise Assessment shows the
specific lots where upgrades are required.

Condition
No,
37

Resolution No. 10069
Page 25 of 61

Page 376

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAI), AI\ID SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SM,A.LL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has provided
updated Master Plans for approval prior to
the issuance of a grading permit. Copies
of the Master Plans are available from the
Community Development Department.

Responsible
Department

cD(E),
EWR, PW

When
Required

G, I

Condition ofApproval

Master Plan Updates
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, Wastewater Master Plan, and
Water Master Plan. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to the approved master plans, if
applicable, for the proposed changes to the master plans as a result ofthe proposed project. The updates to the

master plans for the proposed project shall be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of grading
and/or improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location, and timing ofthe
proposed facilities. Improvements shall be constructed in phases as the project develops in accordance with
the approved master plans, including any necessary off-site improvements to support development ofa
particular phase or phases, subject to prior approval by the City. Off-site improvements may include
roadways to provide secondary access, water transmission lines or distribution facilities to provide a looped
water system, sewer trunk mains and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-potable water pipelines and
infrastructure, and drainage facilities including on or off-site detention. No changes in infrastructure from
that shown on the approved master plan shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master plan has

been revised and approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be modified to accommodate the
improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage improvements with
corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these studies and the latest edition ofthe City of
Folsom Standard Construction Specilications and Details. andthe Design and Procedures Manual and
Improvement Standards.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-development conditions.

Condition
No.
38

Resolution No. 10069
Page 26 of 6l

Page 377

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTII OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AI\D SOUTII OF US HIG1IWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/Applicant is in compliance
with the Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the
subdivision. General notes have been
included on the approved grading and
public infrastructure plans to address this
condition. Compliance has been
monitored through consmrction
inspection.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

When
Required

G, I

Condition ofApproval

B es t M an ag eme nt Practice s
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that meet the
requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality Control Board.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General
Construction Stormwater Permit from the Central Valley RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during
construction. Detailed information about the SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology
and Water Quality."

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek and
associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek. The owner/applicant shall
establish a baseline of conditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for 2-

, 5-, and 100-year storm events. These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards for
the stormwater system on the Specific Plan Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a
monitoring program shal'l be submitted to USACE and the City for their approval- Water quality and
detention basins shall be designed and constructed to ensure that the perlormance standards, which are

described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be designed as off-stream
detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek, Coyote
Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-project conditions are being met. Corrective
measures shall be implemented as necessary. The mitigation measures will be satished when the monitoring
standards are met for 5 consecutive years without undertaking corrective measures to meet the performance
standard.

Condition
No,

39.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 27 of 61

Page 378

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCII PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTHOFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTTROAD,AIID SOUTH OF US IIIGI{WAY 50

SMALL.LOT WSTING TENTATIVE SUBDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

FIRE DEPT REOUIREMENTS
Yes

Comments

The owneriapplicant has complied with
this provision and completed periodic on-
site cleaning and sweeping ofthe project
site. Compliance has been monitored
through construction inspection

The owner/applicant has submitted a Fuel
Modification Plan (FMP) and the City
Fire Department and the Community
Development Department has reviewed
and approved the plan. The FMP is for all
open space areas adjacent to residential
'land 

uses adjoining the subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (P), FD

When
Required

OG

G,I, M, B

Condition of Approval

Litter Control
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible fbr litter control and sweeping ofall paved

surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm drains shall be cleaned immediatelybefore the
commencement ofthe rainy season (October 15).

Prepare fuel modification plan (FMP).
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan consistent with the FPA Open Space

Management Plan to the City for review and preliminary approval from the Fire Code Official prior to any
Final and,/or Parcel Map. Final approval of the plan by the Fire Code Official shall occur prior to the issuance
of a permit for any new construction. A Fuel Modification Plan shall consist of a set of scaied plans showing
fuel modification zones indicated with applicable assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan and an
irrigation plan. A fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall be prepared by one of the following: a

Califomia state licensed landscape architect, or state licensed landscape contractor, or a landscape designed,
or an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Official. The owner/applicant shall obtain off-site
easements for the required for the fuel modification buffer.

The owner/applicant agree to be responsible for the long-term maintenance ofthe Fuel Modification Plan.
Notification of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon sale to new properly owners. Proposed
changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan shall be submitted to the Fire Code Official for approval
prior to implementation.

Condition
No.

40.

4l

Resolution No. i0069
Page 28 of6l

Page 379

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTH OFWHITE ROCK ROAD,EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AIID SOUTH OFUS HIG}TWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has designed and
received approval for all weather access

improvements and fire hydrants for the
entire subdivision. Building permits will
not be issued prior to these improvements
being completed to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department
and the Fire Department.

Responsible
Department

cD (P), FD

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition ofApproval

All-llealher Access and Fire Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before combustible materials are

allowed on any project site or other approved alternative method as approved by the Fire Code Official/Fire
Chief. All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided before
combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on any project site or other approved altemative
method as approved by the Fire Code Official/Fire Chief. (All-weather access is defined as six inches of
compacted aggregate base from May 1 to September 30 and two inch asphalt concrete over six inch aggregate

base from October to April 30). The building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive
fronting the property. Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire
Marshal.
. Commercial Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow for the general

commercial portion of the project is determined to be 750 GPM for three hours. The reduced fire-flow
shall not be less than 1,000 GPM for commercial buildings with automatic sprinkler systems per Section

903.1.1 of the CFC, and shall not be less than 1,500 GPM for commercial buildings with automatic

sprinkler systems per Section 903.3.1.2 of the CFC.
. Residentiai Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow for the proposed

residential portion ofthe project is determined to be 875 GPM for one hour.
. All public streets shall meet City of Folsom Street Standards unless an altemative is specifically included

within this approval.
. The maximum length ofany dead end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance with the Folsom Fire

Code (unless approved by the Fire Department). Several streets indicated on the plans are dead ends

greater than 500 feet. In such cases, a second emergency access will be required.
. All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided before

combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-weather access is defined as 6" of
compacted AB from May 1 to September 30 and 2"AC over 6" AB from October I to April 30

. The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area shall be completed and operational at the time
that the threshold of 1.500 occupied homes within the Folsom Plan Area is met.

Condition
No.
42.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 29 of 6l

Page 380

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL TOR TIIE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OFPLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTHOTWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTTRON),AND SOUTH OFUS HIGTIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVtr SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit in the
subdivision.

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant will submit the
landscape and irrigation plans for this
subdivision and the Community
Development Department will review and
approve the landscape and irrigation plans
prior to issuance ofthe first building
permit in the subdivision. The landscape
and irrigation improvements are bonded
for in the subdivision improvement
agreement. In accordance with'long
established City policy, the landscape and
irrigation improvements for the
subdivision are required to be complete
prior to the first certificate of occupancy
in the subdivision. The long established
Ciry policy related to building permits
and landscape and irrigation issuance and
timing is contrary to this condition.
However, the Community Development
Department will verifu compliance with
the lons established City policy.

Landscaping and irrigation plans for the
Village 5 & 6 subdivision frontage on
Westwood Drive and Alder Creek
Parkway and the Hydro-Modification
Basin i9 are being constructed with the
subdivision improvements for Village 5

& 6 and are bonded for the subdivision
improvement agreement for Village 5 &
6.

Responsible
Department

cD(P), Pw

cD (P), PW

When
Required

B,M

I, OG

Condition ofApproval

Landscaping Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect and approved
by the City prior to the approval of the first building permit or the Small Lot Final Map, whichever occurs
first. Said plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details, and shall comply with all State

and local rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water conservation and
outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan where
applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implernent water efficient requirements as adopted by the
State of Califomia (Assembly Bill 1 88 I ) (State Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time
the City of Folsom adopts its own Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant
shall comply with any new ordinance. Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to the most
current American National Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI 4.-300) by qualified tree care
professionals. Tree topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall
not be allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved landscape
plans and shall be implemented during a S-year establishment and training period. Landscaping installed in
open spaces located between tiers of lots shall be chosen for resistance to fire and limited fuel product'ion.

Furthermore, the owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on water usage.

Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape water usage

and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the
Mansini Ranch Phase 2 oroiect.
Right of Way Landscaping
Landscaping along all road rights ofway and in public open space lots shall be installed when the adjoining
road or Iots arc constructed.

Condition
No.
43.

44.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 30 of6l

Page 381

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

YesThe owner/applicant has executed an

Inclusionary Housing Agreement with the

City. The agreement allows the
owneriapplicant to provide an in-lieu fee
assigned to each building permit in the

subdivision. The inlieu housing fee will
be paid at the time of building permit
issuance.

Comments

The required subdivision improvement
agreement is included as part of the City
staffreport accompanying the final map
for City Council approval. The resolution
approving the final map for this
subdivision includes a statement
authorizing the City Manager to execute
the subdivision improvement agreement
for the subdivision along witb approval of
the final

cD (PXE)

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

When
Required

M

MThe Final Inclusionary Housing PIan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be approved by the City Council, and the Inclusionary Housing
Agreement approved by the City Attorney shall be executed prior to recordation of the first Small-Lot Final
Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision.

Condition ofApproval

S uhdivisio n Improvement Agreement
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision improvement
agreement with the City, identifying all required improvements, if any, to be constructed with each proposed

phase of development. The owner/applicant shall provide security acceptable to the City, guaranteeing

construction of the improvoments.

45

46.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD,NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF SCOTTROAD,A]\D SOUTH OF US HIGI{WAY 50

MAP

No.
Condition

Resolution No. 10069
Page 3l of6l

Page 382

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TEE MANGINI RANCIT PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WBST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AIID SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMAI,I,.I,OT VESTING TE,NTATTVE SI'BDTVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owneriapplicant has provided copies
of their proposed CC&R's, which contain
provisions in accordance with Items #l-5
listed in this condition ofapproval. The
Community Development Department has

reviewed and approved the C.C. & R.'s
and verified that they include the required
disclosures.

Responsible
Department

cD (P) PK

When
Required

M

Condition ofApproval

Department of Real Estate Public Report
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Department of Real Estate Public Report

1 ) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity to the proposed

subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities (basketball courts, a baseball field,
softball fields, soccer fields, and playground equipment) that may generate noise impacts during
various times, including but not limited to evening and nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall
also disclose that the existing public parks include nighttime sports lighting that may generate
lighting impacts during evening and nighttime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occurring asbestos and naturally occurring arsenic.

3) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or historic object
located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance ofany archaeological site or historic
property, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight path and that overflight
noise may be present at various times.

5) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or used for agriculfural use
(including livestock grazing) sha1l be accompanied by written disclosure from the transferor, in a

form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising any transferee ofthe potential adverse odor impacts
from surrounding agricultural operations which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact the
County of Sacramento concerning any such property within the County zoned for agricultural uses
within one mile ofthe subject property being transferred.

Condition
No.
47

Resolution No. 10069
Page 32 of6l

Page 383

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF A}PROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTH OF US IIIGIIWAY 50

SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTA .TIVtr' SINTNTI/ISINN MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has dedicated a 12.5'
PUE along backbone roadway utility
corridors as well as internal streets within
the subdivision.

There is no phasing proposed for the
Village5&6final map.

The owner/applicant (or its prevrous

owner) provided all necessary public
utility easements, grant deeds, offers of
dedication or temporary construction
easements required to build all ofthe
required Backbone Infrastructure needed
to serve the subdivision. These were
recorded with Sacramento County
Recorder within the Large Lot Final Map
or bv seoarate instrument.
The owner/applicant has installed new
benchmarks per the direction of the City
Engineer. The required benchmarks are in
place and currently in use.

The Final Map includes an easement that
allows for the construction and
maintenance of centralized mail delivery
boxes.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

M

M

M

M

M

Condition of Approval

P u b lic Utility E as em ents
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on properties adjacent

to the streets. A minimum of twelve and one-half-foot ( I 2.5') wide Public Utility Easements for
underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific Gas and Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated

adjacent to all public street rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to

accommodate extraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width of the public utility easements

adiacent to public right ofway may be reduced with prior approval from public utility companies.

Final Map Phasing
Should multiple Final Maps be frled by the owner/applicant, the phasing of maps shall be to the satisfaction
of the Communitv DeveloDment Department.

B ac kb on e I nfra stru ctu re
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. I thereto, the owner/applicant shall provide fully
executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary Backbone lnfrastructure to serve the
project, including but not limited to lands, public rights of way, public utility easements, public water main
easements, public sewer easements, irrevocable offers of dedication and temporary construction easements.

All required easements as listed necessary for the Backbone Infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by
the City and recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to the timing requirements set forth in
Section 3.8 of the ARDA, and any amendments thereto.

New Permanent Benchmqrks
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the (NAVD 88) datum in
various locations within the subdivision or at any other locations in the vicinity ofthe off-site Backbone

lnfrastructure as directed by the City Engineer. The type and specifications for the permanent benchmarks

shall be provided by the City. The new benchmarks shall be placed by the owner/applicant within 6 months

from the date ofapproval ofthe vestine tentative subdivision map.

Centralized Mail Delivery Units
A1l Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of centralized mail
delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for the placement of any centralized mail
delivery unit. Specifications and location of such base shall be determined pursuant to the applicable
requirements of the U. S. Postal Service and the City of Folsom Community Development Department, with
due consideration for street lieht location. traffic safetv. securitv, and consumer convenience.

Condition
No.
48

49.

50.

5l

52.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 33 of 61

Page 384

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT GN T7-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AND SOUTII OF US HIGI{WAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department will require the copies of the
recorded final map to be submitted prior
to approval of the first building permit in
the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department will require the copies of the
recorded final map to be submitted to the
Folsom-Cordova Unified School District
prior to approval ofthe first building
permit in the subdivision.
This will be satisfied at the issuance of
the first buildinp nermit.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (P),
FCUSD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Recorded Final Mup
Prior to the issuance ofbuilding permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital copy ofthe recorded
Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development Department. The exception to this
requirement are model homes; subject to approval of the Community Development Department, building
oermits for model homes onlv mav be issued orior to recordins of the Final Mao.
Recorded Final Map
Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-Cordova Unified School
District with a copy of the recorded Final Map.

Condition
No.

53

54.

Resolution No. 10069

Page 34 of61

Page 385

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAI, FOR TEE MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17.307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AI\[D SOUTII OF US HIGIIWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

Comments

The owner/applicant has not submitted a
Design Review application at this time.
The Planning Commission will evaluate a

future application for conformance with
the Folsom Ranch Central District
Guidelines. The Community
Development Department will present the
Design Review approval for residential
units in this subdivision to the Planning
Commission prior to issuance of a

building permit.

Responsible
Department

cD (P)

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building permit for any residential units within the subdivision, the owner/applicant
shall obtain Design Review and/or Planned Development approval from the Planning Commission for all
residences to be built within the subdivision. If the architecture is not consistent with the Folsom Ranch
Central District Design Guidelines, the owner applicant may modiff the plans or apply for a modification to
the Design Guidelines to be reviewed by the Planning Commission.

Condition
No.
55.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 35 of6l

Page 386

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE MANGINI RANCH PIIASE 2 SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 17-307)
WEST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF SCOTT ROAD, AIID SOUTH OF US I{IGIIWAY 50

SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE STJBDIVISION MAP
Condition
Satisfied?

TRAFFIC. ACCESS. CIRCULATION. AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS
Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit.

Comments

The required intersection improvements
have been completed and accepted by the
City and are currently in operation. The
required improvements were included on
either the approved Enclave at Folsom
Ranch Off-Site Improvement Plans or the
approved Village 1,2 & T Improvements.
These improvements were bonded for in
the subdivision improvement agreements
for each ofthese subdivisions.

Responsible
Department

CD (E)

When
Required

B

Condition ofApproval

East Bidwell StreeVSavannah Parkwav
Prior to issuance ofthe first building permit, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for configuring the East

Bidwell StreeVSavannah Parkway Intersection as follows:

o Southbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One thrulane, and one left-turn
lane with a 200-foot long transition, 60-foot-long taper, and I 00 feet of vehicle storage.

o Northbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from East Bidwell Sheet: One shared thnr/right-tum lane.

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Street from Savannah Parkway: One shared left/right-turn lane,

and a striped out left-tum pocket with a 125-fooGlong taper and 60 feet ofvehicle storage.

o Control: Stop-Sign control at the westbound approach to East Bidwell Street from Savannah Parkway
with ful1 access.

o Between Old Ranch Way and the southem boundary of the project site, East Bidwell Street shall be
constructed as a two-lane arterial on the eastem "half segment" of its ultimate configuration. This two-
lane segment shall have a striped 2-foot-wide median south of Old Ranch Way, consistent with the

California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) Figure 3A-107 (CA), or similar
standard. The southbound left-tum pocket shall be developed in accordance with the Highway Design

Manual (HDM) Fieure 405-2A, or similar standard. Savannah Parkway shall have a raised median curb.

Condition
No.

56.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 36 of 61

Page 387

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Condition
was satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 2361h
building
permit in the
Mangini
Ranch Phase
a

subdivision.

This condition has previously been
satisfied with the completion and
acceptance of the signal improvements
ate the intersection of East Bidwell Street
and Alder Creek Parkway by the City in
the Summer of 2021.

cD (E)B

East Bidwell StreeVAlder Creek Parkway
Prior to issuance ofthe 236ft building permit, the owneriapplicant shall be responsible for expanding and

signalizing the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway Intersection as follows:

o Southbound Approach to Alder Creek Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One thru-lane, and two left-
tum lanes, with a 300-footJong single lane left-tum pocket excluding tapers for the most easterly ofthe
left turning lanes.

o Northbound Approach to Alder Creek Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One thru lane and one shared
thru/right-tum lane with a striped 500-foot long right-tum pocket excluding tapers for the shared

thnr/right-tum lane.

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Street from Alder Creek Parkway: One right-tum lane and one
left-tum lane, with a 200-foot ieft-tum pocket excluding tapers for the left-tum lane.

Eastbound Alder Creek Parkway Departure: Two receiving lanes shall be provided, the second receiving
lane shall be dropped after 300 feet excluding tapers.

Control: Signalize with a protected southbound East Bidwell Street left-tum, westbound Alder Creek

Parkway split phasing, and westbound Alder Creek Parkway right-tum overlap. U-Tums prohibited.

o East Bidwell Street shall be constructed as a fourlane divided arterial between Alder Creek Parkway and
the U.S. Highway 50 Interchange, with a 38-foot-wide median at Alder Creek Parkway that tapers back
to match the existing fourlane arterial segment at the eastbound U.S. Highway 50 slip onramp. East

Bidwell Sheet shall be constructed as a two-lane divided arterial between Alder Creek Parkway and Old
Ranch Way, with a 38-foot-wide raised median at Alder Creek Parkway that tapers back to match the
two-lane half segment described in the East Bidwell Sneet/Savannah Parkway Condition No. 57 above.

Alder Creek Parkway between East Bidwell Street and Westwood Ddve shall be constructed as a two-
lane divided roadway with a 38-foot-wide raised median.

57

Resolution No. 10069
Page 37 of6l

Page 388

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Condition
was satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 28lst
building
permit in the
Mangini
Ranch Phase
2

subdivision.

This condition has been satisfied with the
completion and acceptance ofthe Capital
Southeast Connector project in the
Summer of2022.

cD (E)B

East Bidwell StreeVWhite Rock Road
Prior to issuance ofthe 281st building permit, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for either Option A or
Option B below as follows:

o Option A:
The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (iPA) project proposes to relocate and signalize
the East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road intersection: If the proposed JPA project at this location is frrlly
funded and construction is underway by the time the 28lst building permit is issued, the project shall pay
the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fees, toward the JPA project.

Option B:
Signalize the existing East Bidwell StreeVWhite Rock Road intersection with Mangini Ranch Phase I
improvements: If the JPA project to relocate and signalize the East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road
intersection is not fully funded and under construction prior to issuances of the 28lst building permit, the

owner/applicant shall be responsible to signalize the existing intersection with improvements described
in Condition No . 127 of the Mangini Ranch Phase I conditions of approval. Mangini Ranch Phase 1

improvements at this location consist of"Southbound on East Bidwell Street construct a free southbound

right tum lane consisting of 3 I 5 feet of deceleration length plus 50 feet storage length, excluding
appropriate tapers and a 300 foot receiving /acceleration lane, excluding tapers along westbound White
Rock Road. Westbound on White Rock Road, construct a free right-hrm lane consisting of 3 15 feet of
deceleration length plus 50 feet of storage length, excluding appropriate tapers, and a 300 foot receiving
lane excluding appropriate tapers along northbound East Bidwell Street.

o

o The JPA currentiy has more than seven million dollars programed toward relocation and signalization of
the East Bidwell StreeVWhite Rock Road intersection, and is planning to begin acquiring right-of-way
duringthewinterof20l8,andbeginconstructionduringthesummerof2019. Theprojectedabsorption
Schedule for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 project estimates that the 281 dwelling units will not be
constructed until sometime in the second quarter of 2020. Option A above is the preferred improvement,
Option B would be a throwaway improvement.

58.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 38 of61

Page 389

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
lhe 4966
building
permit in the
Mangini
Ranch Phase
t

subdivision.
Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 496h
building
permit in the
Mangini
Ranch Phase

2
subdivision.

This condition is a condition ofthe
Village 5 & 6 subdivision since the total
number of lots in the Mangini Ranch
Phase 2 development will exceed 496
residential lots with the recordation ofthis
Village5&6finalmap.

This condition is a condition of the
Village 5 & 6 subdivision since the total
number of lots in the Mangini Ranch
Phase 2 development will exceed 496
residential lots with the recordation ofthis
Village5&6finalmap.

cD (E)

cD (E)

B

B

White Rock Road/Placerville Road

Prior to the 496th building permit, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for prohibiting southbound left-
tums from Placerville Road to eastbound White Rock Road by construction of a raised median on Placerville
Road to channelize all southbound traffic onto westbound White Rock Road.

East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway

Prior to issuance ofthe 4966 building permit and concurrent with implementation ofCondition 64 above, the
owner/applicant shall signalize the East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway intersection as follows:

o Southbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One thruJane, and one left-tum
lane with a l00-foot-long left-tum pocket excluding tapers for the left-tum lane.

o Northbound Approach to Savannah Parkway from East Bidwell Street: One shared thru/right-turn lane.

o Westbound Approach to East Bidwell Street from Savannah Parkway: One right-turn lane, and one left-
turn lane with a 60-foot left-tum pocket excluding tapers for the left-tum lane.

o Control: Signal control with split phasing.

o Between Old Ranch Way and the southem boundary of the project site, East Bidwell Street shall be
constructed as a twolane arterial on the eastem "half-segment" of its ultimate configuration. This Mo-
iane segment shall have a striped 2-foot-wide median south of Old Ranch Way, consistent with the
Califomia Manual on Trafiic Control Devices (MUTCD) Figure 3A-107 (CA), or similar standard. The
southbound left-turn pocket shall be developed in accordance with the Highway Design Manual (HDM)
Figwe 405.2A, or similar standard. Savannah Parkway shall have a 4-foot-wide raised median.

59.

60:

Resolution No. 10069
Page 39 of61

Page 390

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



61

62.

Cr edit Reimburs ement Agr e e ment
Prior to the recordation ofthe first Small-Lot Final Map, the owner/applicant and City shall enter into a credit
and reimbursement agreement for constnrcted improvements that are included in the Folsom Plan Area's
Public Facilities Financing Plan.

DESIGN
Landscaping Plan
Owner/applicant shall submit a landscape plan for all areas (by phase or subdivision) ofthe project where

owner/applicant proposes to install landscaping on residential lots. The landscape plan shall take into account

the then existing state or local rules and regulations related to landscape water usage and water wise
landscape principles. The landscape plans shall be submitted and approved by the Community Development
Director prior to the issuance of a building permit in the phase or subdivision. The owner/applicant shall

comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping
requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions.

M cD (E)

B cD (P) (E)

The owner/applicant has entered into a
SPIF CrediVReimbursement Agreements
with the City for eligible improvements
constructed by the owner/applicant.

The Community Development
Department will review all future
residential site plans in the subdivision to
veriff compliance with this condition.

Yes

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

The Community Development
Department will review all future
residential site plans in the subdivision to
verifu compliance with this condition.

cD (P) (E)BM e c hanical E q uipment S cree ning
All mechanical equipment shall be concealed from view ofpublic streets, neighboring properties and nearby

higher buildings where practicable to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

63

Resolution No. 10069
Page 40 of61

Page 391

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



YesThe Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Grading
Plans approved by the City reflect the
modifications to the trail system as shown
in trail system modification exhibit dated
December 15,2017. The trail system
modifications have been graded in the
Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision.

cD (P)IBicycle Trail System ModiJications
The owner/applicant shall incorporate the design and grading for the proposed Class I bike trails located
within Lot H into the improvement plans consistent with the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Proposed Trail System
Modification Exhibit dated December 15,2017.

64.

Resolution No. 10069

Page 41 of61

Page 392

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



CITY CORPORATION YARI)

YesThe City has completed the annexation
process with LAFCO to add the future
corporation site to the City ofFolsom
Limits. The grant deed for the transfer of
the Corporation Yard to the City has

recorded in the Official Records of
Sacramento County and LAFCO has

recorded the Certificate of Completion in
Book 20181207 at Page 0779 in the
Official Records of Sacramento County
completing the annexation process.

CD (P)M,B

The location tentatively identihed for acquisition by the City for the City's new Corporation Yard in Section
2.2.3.4 of the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement (ARDA) between the City and the
project developer may not be feasible for use as a Corporation Yard due to challenges in obtaining County
entitlements and utility services. Subject to the application ofthis condition to other Participating
Landowners (as defined in the ARDA) as provided herein, the following condition is added with respect to
resolution ofthe location ofthe corporation yard:

Prior to approval of the First Final Small Lot Map in the FPA (or first building permit if development may
occur without any subdivision), a site consistent with the requirements of Section 2.2.3.4 of the ARDA, as

may be amended or as otherwise agreed to between the City and the Participating Landowners, shall be
identified as acceptable to the City as suitable and feasible for use as the new Corporation Yard, with access
to sewer, water and all required utility services. The City's determination of feasibility may include the
identification of an altemative site consistent with the forgoing, as a back-up for the primary site, as well as

an evaluation of the time, cost and likelihood of obtaining any necessary entitlements or other govemmental
approvals for use ofthe land as a corporation yard, with the final determination of feasibility subject to the
sole and reasonable discretion of the City Council.

The City intends to impose this condition equitably throughout the Plan Area as and to each and every
Participating Landowner who seeks any future specific plan amendment, tentative subdivision map or ARDA
amendment in connection with its proposed development. If the City fails to impose such a condition, when
required, with at least substantially similar terms, although precise language may differ (whether through a

tentative subdivision map condition of approval, amendment to the specific plan or to a development
agreement, or other agreement between the City and a Participating Landowner), this condition of approval
shall be null and void as to Owner/Applicant's Project, and shall not be used as a reason to prevent approval
of any final small lot map for Owner/Applicant's Project. If the City approves any other final small lot map
for a project within the Plan Area and the Corporation Yard site has not been approved as provided for
herein, Ovi'ner/Applicant may seek relief from the terms of this condition by appeal to the City Manager, with
the right to review by the City Council.

65.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 42 of 61

Page 393

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



SCHOOL SITES

Yes
The City, the Folsom Cordova Unified
School District (FCUSD) and the
Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area
successfu lly negotiated the proposed

locations of the combined middle
school/high school site. The City
Manager informed the Landowners that
this condition ofapproval has been
satisfied with a letter dated June 12,2018.
The letter is on file with the City.

cD (P)
Folsom
Cordova
Unified
School
District

M,B

The locations of the elementary school sites and the combined middle school/high school were initially
established during the City's processing and approval ofthe Folsom Specific Plan, at which time all Plan

Areaparticipantswereengagedinthereviewoflandplanningandlanduses. In2015,theFolsomCordova
Unified School District raised concerns that the planned location of the future combined middle school/high
school site may not be prefened.

Prior to approval of First Final Small Lot Map in the FPA (or first building permit if development may occur
without any subdivision), the site(s) for the future high school and middle school in the Folsom Plan Area
wiil be identified and approved by the City, in consultation with the Folsom Cordova Unified School District.

The City intends to impose this condition equitably throughout the Plan Area as and to each and every
Participating Landowner who seeks any future specific plan amendment, tentative subdivision map or ARDA
amendment in connection with its proposed development. If the City fails to impose such a condition, when
required, with at least substantially similar terms, although precise language may differ (whether through a

tentative subdivision map condition of approval, amendment to the specific pian or to a development
agreement, or other agreement between the City and a Participating Landowner), this condition ofapproval
shall be null and void as to Owner/Applicant's Project, and shall not be used as a reason to prevent approval

of any final small lot map for Owner/Applicant's Project. If the City approves any other final small lot map

for a project within the Plan Area and the high school and middle school site(s) has not been approved as

provided for herein, Owner/Applicant may seek relief from the terms of this condition by appeal to the City
Manager, with the right to review by the City Council.

If Owner/Applicant proposes final maps in phases, Owner/Applicant may apply to the City Manager to
permit individual phases to move forward to final map if substantial progress is being made to identi!' an

acceptable site(s) as described above. The City Manager's determination of substantial progress shall be in

his/her sole discretion.

66.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 43 of61

Page 394

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Mitieation Measures

20ls).
Table 1.

FPASP EIR/EIS, as amended by the WE SPA Addendum, Mitigation Measures Applicable to the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Tentative Subdivision Map Project.*

+The MMRP for the WiE SPA Addendum to the FPASP EIPJEIS is included as Attachment 20.

Condition
Satisfied?

Aesthetics
Yes

Yes

Yes

Air Qualitv
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

This subdivision does not have frontage on
US HWY 50
The construction staging area does not
require screening due to distance from
existinE residences (>1000 feet)
CDD has approved lighting plan for
subdivision

(2) The City and its Environmental
Compiiance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior to
commencement of grading and

construction in Spring of2019.
Comnliance table is on file with the Citv.

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above. No off-site elements outside
the Citv limits reouired for this subdivision

See (2) above. No off-site elements outside
the City limits required for this subdivision

Responsible
Asencv

CD

CD (PXEXB)

cD (P)

CD

CD (PXE)
SMAOMD

CD (EXP)

SMAQMD

Sacramento
County

El Dorado
County

of
Cal Trans

Timing

G,O

G

B

G,C

G,C

G

G

G

Mitigation Measures Applicable to the Project

3.A..1-l: Construct and Maintain a Landscape Corridor Adjacent to U.S. 50.

3.A.1-4: Screen Construction Staging Areas.

3A.1-5: Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and Implement a Lighting Plan.

3A.2-1a: Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by Construction of On-Site Elements.

3A.2-1b: Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOX Emissions Generated by Construction of On-Site

3A.2-lc: Analyze and Disclose Projected PMIO Emission Concentrations at Nearby Sensitive Receptors Resulting
from Construction of On-Site Elements.
3A.2-1d: Implement SMAQMD's Basic Construction Emission Control Practices during Construction of all Off-site
Elements located in Sacramento County

3A.2-1f: Implement SI4r{QMD's Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices during Construction of all Off-site Elements.

67

Condition

67 -l

67-2

67-3

67-4

67-5

67-6

67-7

67-8

Resolution No. 10069
Page 44 of 6l

Page 395

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

67 -15
3A.2-6: Implement Measures to Contrcl Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Odorous Emissions B,C CD See (2) above

Yes

Resources

3A.3-1a (as amended by WE SPA): Mitigation for erosion impacts. I, OG
PW

See (2) above
Yes

67 -16

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) ahove

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

SMAQMD

CD

CD

CD
SMAQMD

CD

CD
USACE

CD
CDFW

cD (PXE)
CDFW

CD
CD (PXE)

CDFW
CD

CDFW

CD (PXE)
CDFW

CD (PXE)
CDFW

CD
USFWS

CD
USFWS

G

G

M, I

G,C

G,C

G,C

G, I, OG

G, I,C

G

G. I.C

G

G

G

G

G, I, OG

G. I. OG

3A.2-1g: Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOX Emissions Generated by Construction of Off-site
Elements.

3A.2-1h: Analyze and Disclose Projected PM10 Emission Concentrations at Nearby Sensitive Receptors Resuiting
from Construction of Off-site Elements
3A.2-2: Implement All Measures Prescribed by the Air Quality Mitigation Plan to Reduce Operational Air Pollutant
F.missions-

3A.2-4a: Develop and Implement a Plan to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Construction-Generated Toxic
Air Contaminant Emissions.

3A.2-4b: Implement Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air
Contaminants.
3A.2-5: Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of NOA and, if necessary, Prepare and Implement

an Asbestos Dust Control Plan.

3A.3-lb (as amended by WiE SPA): Implement Clean Water Act Section 404 Permits and Section 401 Water Quality
Certifications.

3A.3-2a (as amended by WE SPA): Avoid Direct Loss of Swainson's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests.

w/E SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-4: Conduct preconsfuction Swainson's Hawk and other raptor surveys

3A.3-2b: Preoare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk Mitigation Plan.

W/E SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-5: Prepare and Implement Swainson's hawk mitigation plan.

3A.3-2c (as amended by WE SPA): Conduct preconstruction Tricolored Blackbird Nesting surveys.

WE SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-6: Conducting preconstruction burrowing owl survey.

WE SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-7: Preconstruction nesting bird survey

3A.3-2dhs amended bv WE SPA): Conduct preconstmction bat roostins survey.
3A.3-2e: Obtain an Incidental Take Permit under Section 10(a) of ESA; Develop and Implement a Habitat
Conseruation Plan to Comoensate for the Loss ofVernal Pool Habitat.
3A.3-2f: Obtain an Incidental Take Permit under Section 10(a) of ESA; Deveiop and Inplement a Habitat Conservation

67-9

67-10

67 -11

67-12

67-t3

67 -14

67-17

67-18

67-t9

67-20

67-21

67-22

67-23

67 -24

67-25

67-26

67-27

Resolution No. 10069

Page 45 of 61

Page 396

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Climaie Chanoe
Yes

Yes

Yes

Cultural Resources
Yes

Yes

Yes

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

Sce (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

No trees rue present in the subdivision.

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

USACE
CD

USACE
CD

USACE
USFWS

CD

USFWS
CDFW

CD
CDFW

CD
CDFW

CD
CD. PW

CD

cD (E) (P)
CDFW

cD (E)(P)
CDFW

CD
SMAOMD

CD
SMAOMD

CD

CD
IISACF,

CD
USACE

CD
USACE

G, I,C

G, I, OG

G, I,B

G, I,C

G, I,B

G, I.C

G,C

G

G

M,B,C

M,B

M,B

G

G

G,C

Plan to Compensate for the Loss of VELB Habitat.

3A.3-2g: Secure Take Authorization for Federally Listed Vemal Pool Invertebrates and Implement All Permit
Conditions.

3A.3-2h (as amended by W/E SPA): Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle avoidance and minimization measures.

3A.3-3: Conduct Special-Status Plant Surveys; Implement Avoidance and Mitigation Measures or Compensatory
Mitigation.

3A.3-4a (as amended by WE SPA): Implement Section 1602 Master Streambed Alteration Agreement.

3A.3-4b (as amended by WE SPA): Valley Needlegrass Grassland Avoidance and Minimization Measures.

3,4.3-5 (as amended bv WE SPA): Oak woodlands mitisation.
WE SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-1: Conduct environmental awareness training for construction employees

WE SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-2: Conduct preconstruction westem spadefoot survey

WE SPA Mitigation Measure 4.4-3: Conduct preconstruction westem pond turtle survey

3A.4-l: Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG Emissions.

3A.4-2a: Implement Additional Measures to Reduce Operational GHG Emissions.

3A-4-2b: Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program and./or Off-Site Tree Program to
Off-Set Loss ofOn-Site Trees.

3A.5-la (as amended by WE SPA): Comply with the Programmatic Agreement.

3A.5-lb (as amended by WE SPA): Perform an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for the Califomia
Register of Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or
Destruction Cannot be Avoided.
3A.5-2 (as amended by WE SPA): Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if
Required, Stop Work ifCultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform Treatment
or Avoidance as Required.

67-28

67-29

67 -30

67 -31

67-32

67-33

67-34

67-35

67-36

67 -37

67-3&

67-39

6740

67 -41

67-42

Resolution No. 10069
Page 46 of61

Page 397

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Geolopv. Soils. Minerals. And Paleontolosical Resources
Yes

Yes

Yes

Condition
will be

satisfied prior
to building

permit
issuance-

Yes

Hazards and Hazardous Materials
Yes

Yes

See (2) above. No human remains have
been encountered in the subdivision during
grading and construction.

Owner/applicant has provided
Geotechnical Report to the City. The
Geotechnical repof for the subdivision is
on file with the Citv.
Compliance monitored through
construchon rnsDectlon.

Compliance monitored through
construction inspection.

CDD will review all firhre building
permits in the subdivision to veri$
compliance with mitigation measure

See (2) above. No human remains or
paleontoiogical resources have been

encountered in the subdivision during
radinp and construction.

See (2) above. No hazardous and/or
contaminated soil or groundwater has been
discovered in the subdivision.
The owner/applicant has retained a

blasting contractor, BTI, Inc., to conduct
all blasting in the subdivision. A Blasting
Safety Plan was provided to the City and
the contractor has been issued a blasting
permit for the subdivision. BTI, Inc.
notifies the City prior to all blasts in
accordance with the Blasting Permit
requirements.

cD (PXE)
Sacramento

County
Coroner
Native

American
Heritage

Commission

cD (E)

CD (PXEXB)

cD (E)

CD (BXP)

CD

CD

CD

OG

B

G

B

C

G,C

M

3A.5-3 (as amended by WE SPA): Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and

Comply with Califomia Health and Safety Code Procedures.

3A.7 -1a: Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC Requirements and Implement Appropriate
Recommendations.

3A.7-1b: Monitor Ea(hwork during Earthmoving Activities

3A.7-3: Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan.

3A.7-5: Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building Foundations.

3A.7-10: Conduct Conskuction Personnel Education, Stop Work ifPaleontological Resources are Discovered, Assess

the Significance ofthe Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as Required.

34'.8-2: Complete Investigations Related to the Extent to Which Soil and/or Groundwater May Have Been
Contaminated in Areas Not Covered by the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments and Implement Required
Measures

3A.8-5: Prepare and Implement a Blasting Safety Plan in Consultation with a Qualified Blaster

67-43

6744

6745

67-46

6747

67-48

67-49

67 -50

Resolution No. 10069
Page 47 of 6l

Page 398

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Hvdrolow and Water Oualitv
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

There are no existing overhead power lines
within or adjoining the subdivision

A Vector Control Plan was prepared and
submitted to the City for review and
approval. The plan incorporated various
Best Management Practices in consultation
with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Control District. A copy of the
Vector Control Plan is available from the
Communitv DeveloDment DeDartment.

Owner/applicant has been issued a WDID
# and has submitted a SW?PP approved by
the RWOCB- SWPPP is on file at the Citv.
The City has reviewed and approved the
storm drain plans for this subdivision. The
storm drain improvements are in
compliance with the approved Folsom Plan
Storm Drain Master Plan approved by the
Citv
Owner/applicant has been issued a WDID

# and has submitted a SWPPP approved by
the RWOCB. SWPPP is on file at the Citv.
There are no existing dams upstream from
tlis srrtrdivision

CD
Folsom
Cordova

Unified School
District

CD
Sacramento-

Yolo Mosquito
and Vector

Control
District

cD (E)
CVRWQB

CD (E)

cD (E), Pw

PW

M

G

G,C

G,B

G,C

M, I

Mitigation Measure 3A.8-6: Prudent Avoidance and Notification of EMF Exposure.

3A.8-7: Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector
Control District.

3A.9-1: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

3A.9-2: Preparc and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements Contained in Those Plans.

3A.9-3: Develop aod Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance Plan.

3A.9-4: Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site and Make Improvements if
Necessary

67-s1

67 -52

67-53

67-54

67-55

67 -56

Resolution No. 10069
Page 48 of 61

Page 399

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Noise
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has implemented
noise reducing construction practices
included as part ofthe required Noise
Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored through
construction insnection-

The owner/applicant has been working
closely with their contracto$ during the
course ofgrading and construction to
minimize ground bome aoise and
vibration. The owner/applicant has been

challenged due to the extent ofthe blasting
needed for the grading ofthe subdivision.
The owner/applicant and their contractors
are working very hard to minimize the
vibration and disturbance to existing
residents in the vicinity ofthe blasting.
The owner/applicant as provided
monitoring reports to the City verifying
that all ground borne noise and vibration is
within allowable thresholds and
eliminating any possibility of structural
damase to existins residential units-

The owner/applicant continues to make
efforts to reduce noise from grading and

construction in the vicinity ofexisting
residents. Night work is necessary due to
impacts to the travelling public during the
normal workday. The night work has been

disruptive to some existing residences. The
CDD is working closely to monitor the
noise impacts in the night time hours to
minimize imoacts to existinE residents.
All stationary construction equipment, if
present, is muffled to reduce noise in
accordance with noise reouirements.
The owner/applicant continues to make
efforts to reduce noise from eradins and

CD

cD (EXP)

CD (EXP)

CD (E)

CD

G,C

c

C

I, OG

M

3A.l l -l : Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement a Noise Control Plan, and
Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitive Receptors.

3A. i 1-3: Implement Measures to Prevent Exposwe of Sensitive Receptorc to Groundbome Noise or Vibration from
Project Generated Conskuction Activities.

3A.1 l-4: Implemant Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Increases in Noise from Project-
Generated Operational Traffic on Off-site and On-Site Roadways.

3A. I l-5: Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary Sources.

WE SPA Mitigation Measure 4.12-l : Implement measures to prevent exposure of sensitive receptors to increases in
noise fiom nroiect-qenerated onerational traffic on offsite and onsite roadwavs-

67 -57

67-s8

6'7-59

67-60

67-61

Resolution No. 10069
Page 49 of 61

Page 400

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Public Services
Yes

Yes

Yes

Traffic and Transportation

Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP):

Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee lSCTDF) contribution:

Cal Trans/Citv Memorandum of Understandins (Cai Trans MOID:

construction in the vicinity ofexisting
residents. Night work is necessary due to
impacts to the travelling public during the
normal workday. The night work has been
disruptive to some existing residences. The

CDD is working closely to monitor the
noise impacts in the night time hours to
minimize imnacts to existinp residents.

The CDD has reviewed and approved all
traffic control plans for the subdivision to
verifr compliance with City ordinances
and to minimize delays to the travelling
oublic.
The City Fire Department has reviewed
and approved all proposed improvements
for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifu adequate fire flow prior to building
permit issuance in the subdivision.
The City Fire Department has reviewed
and approved all proposed improvements
for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifu adequate fire flow prior to building
permit issuance in the subdivision.

PW

CD, FD

CD, FD

G, I,B,C

B,O

B,O

3A.i4-l (as amended by WE SPA): Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control Plan.

3A.14-2: Incorporate California Fire Code; City of Folsom Fire Code Requirements; and EDHFD Requirements, if
Necessary, into Project Design and Submit Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire Department for Review and

Approval.

3,{.14-3: Incorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project Designs.

67-62

67-63

67-64

Resolution No. 10069

Page 50 of61

Page 401

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

(1) This subdivision will pay its fair share
of the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees and
Sacramento County Wide Transportation
fees collected prior to building permit
issuance in this subdivision.

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

B

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(pav SCTDF)

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(oav PFFP fee)

B
(nav SCTDF)

B
(nav SCTDF)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU/pay
SCTDF)

B
(Caltrans MOl,l'l

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

3A. 15-1 : Project Participation in Fuuding Transportation Improvements

3A.15-1a: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the Folsom
Roulevard/Rhre Ravine Road Intersection Ilntersecfion I)
3A.1 5-1b: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements at the Sibley Street/ Blue
Ravine Road Intersection fntersection 2).
3.A..15-1c: The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Scott Road (West)AVhite Rock Road
Intersection (Intersection 28).
3A.15-1e: Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Val'ley Parkway Intersection (Intersection
4r ).

3A. I 5-li Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/Middle Road Intersection (Intersection 44).

3A. I 5-1h: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom
Boulevard Tntersection (Sacramento Countw Intersecf:ion 2)
3A..15-1j: Participate in Fat Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between Madison
Avenue and Cunaph Doms Drive (Roadwav Sesment 10).

3.A.15-1o: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 as an
altemative to improvements at the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramos Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4).

3.A.15-lp: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road/ State Route
l6 Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12).

3A.15-1q: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 between
Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freewav Sesment l).
3.{.15-lr: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel
Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freewav Segment 3).
3,A..15-ls: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 between
Folsom Boulevard and Prairie Citv Road (Freewav Sesment 4).
3A.15-lu: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound U.S. 50 between
Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Sesment 16).

67 -65

67-66

67-67

67-68

67-69

67-70

67-'7r

67-72

67-73

67-74

67-7s

67-76

67-77

67-78

Resolution No. 10069
Page 5l of6l

Page 402

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (l) abovc

See (i) above

See (1) above

See (l ) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

All properties in the FPASP pay m annual
Transportation Mmagement Fee via CFD 18

All properties in the FPASP pay an annual

Transportation Management Fee via CFD l8
All properties in the FPASP pay m annual

TransDortation Management Fee via CFD 18

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

PW

cD (E), Pw

PW

cD (E). Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOIII

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Calrrans MOI Il

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOU)

B
(Caltrans MOI I)

I
(pay PFFP fee

and Transit fee)

B
(nav Citv fee)

B
(oav Citv fee)

B
(Caltrans MOU,

PFFP fee,
SCTDF)

B
(oav PFFP feel

B
(pav PFFP fee)

3A.15-1v: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound U.S. 50 between
Hazel Avenrre and Sunrise Boulevard lFreewav Sement l8)-
3A.15-1w: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom
Boulevard Ramo Merse (Freewav Merse 4).

3A.15-1x: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City
Road Diveree (Freewav Diverge 5).

3A.15-1y: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound,/Prairie City
Road Direct Merse (Freewav Merse 6).

3A.15-lz Participate in Fair Share Funding of improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City
Road Flvover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkwav Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8).

3A.i5-iaa: Padicipate in Pair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce lmpacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound,/Oak Avenue
Parkway Loop Merse (Freewav Merse 9)
34.15-ldd: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire
Ranch Road Loon Ramn Merse (Freewav Merse 23)
3A.15-lee: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound,/Oak Avenue
Parkwav Looo Ramo Merse (Freewav Merse 29).
3A.15-1ff: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City
Road Loon Ramn Merse (Freewav Merse 32).
3.{.15-1gg: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City
Road Direct RamD Morse (Freewav Merse 33).
3A,.15-1hh: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom
Borrlevard l)iverse (Freetrav f)iverse 34).

3,{.15-1ii: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound,/Hazel Avenue
Direct Ramn Merge (Freewav Merse 38).

3A.15-2a: Develop Commercial Support Services and Mixed-use Development Concurrent with Housing
Development, and Develop and Provide Options for Altemative Transportation Modes.

3A.15-2b: Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program.

3A.15-2c: Participate with the 50 Corridor Transpodation Management Association

3A.15-3: Pay Full Cost of Identified Improvements that Are Not Funded by the City's Fee Program.

3A.15-4a: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the Sibley Street/Blue
Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2)-

3A.15-4b: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Oak Avenue
Parkwav/East Bidwell Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 6).

67-',79

67-80

67-81

67-82

67 -83

67-84

67-8s

67-86

67-87

67-88

67-59

67-90

67-91

67-92

67-93

67-94

67-9s

67-96

Resolution No. 10069
Page 52 of 6l

Page 403

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

See (l) above

See (i) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (1) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

See (l) above

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

Capitol
Southeast

Connector JPA
Capitol

Southeast
ConnectorJPA

Capitol
Southeast

Connector JPA

cD (E), Pw

B
(nav PFFP feel

B
(oav PFFP fee)

B
(oav PFFP fee)

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(oav SCTDF)

B
(nav SCTDF)

B
(pav SCTDF)

B
(pay SCTDF)

B
(nav SCTDFI

B
(nav SCTDF)

B
(nav SCTDF)

B
(oav SCTDF)

B
(nav SCTDF)

B
(pay SCTDF)

B
(pay SCTDF)

B
(pay SCTDF)

B
(pay

PFFP/Interchange
fee\

3,{.l54c: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the East Bidwell
Street/Col lese Street Tntersecti on (Fol som Intersection 7).

3A.i5-4d: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the East Bidwell
Street/iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2l).
3A. I 5-4e: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the Serpa Way/ Iron
Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23)

34. I 5-4f The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Empire Ranch
Road/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 24).

34.15-4g: The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway,/Easton Valley Parkway
Intersection (Folsom Intersection 33).
3A.1 5-4i: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road Vhite Rock
Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3).

34.15-4j: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between White
Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard (Sacrmento Countv Roadwav Sesments 5-7).

3,{. l5-4k: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between Kiefer
Boulevard and Jackson Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8).

3,{.15-41: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between Curragh
I)owns l)rive and II.S. 50 Westbound RamDS (Sacramento Countv Roadwav Sesment s 12-13).

3A. l5-4m: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improv€ments to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between Grant
Line Road md Prairie Citv Road (Sacramento Countv Roadwav Seement 22).

34.l5-4n: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between

Emoire Ranch Road and Carson Crossins Road (Sacramento Counw Roadwav Sesment 28).

3A.15-4o: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White Rock Rohd/Carson

Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County l).
3A.t5-4p: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Hazel Avenue/U.S, 50
Westbound Ramns Intersection (Caltrans Intersection l).

3A. I 5-4q: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Zinfandel Drive and Surnise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1).

3A.15-4r: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between Rancho
Cordova Parkway andHazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3).

3A. I 5-4s: Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between Folsom
Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5).

3.{. I 5-4t: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between Prairie

City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway Segrnent 6).

67 -97

67-98

67-99

67-rO0

67-101

67,102

67-103

67-tO4

67-105

67-106

67-10'7

67-108

67 -109

67-l 10

67-111

67-112

67-tt3

Resolution No. 10069
Page 53 of61

Page 404

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Utilities end Service Svstems

Yes

Yes

Water Supolv
Yes

See (l) above

See (1) above

Sec (1) above

See (l) above

See (l ) above

See (l) above

See (1) above

The Phase I Sanitary Sewer infrastructure
including the off-site sewer trunk main, the
Alder Creek Parkway sewer lift station and
forced main to serve this subdivision have
been constructed by the FPA landou'ners
and have been completed and accepted by
the Citv and are crrnentlv in onerafion

The City obtained a letter from Regional
San which provides verification that there
is adequate capacity in the existing
Regional San conveyance and treatment
system to accommodate the entire Folsom
Plan Area at buildout. Confirmation from
Regional San was required because the
Folsom Plan Area is served by the existing
Regional San Lift Station on Iron Point
Road. The City Sewer Lift Station and
Forced Main which connects to tlre
Regional San Lift Station has been
accepted by the City and is currently in
oneration

The owner/applicant has constructed the
necessary infrastructure to provide potable

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), Pw

cD (E), PW

CD, PW

CD, PW

CD,PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(oav PFFP fee)

B
(oav PFFP feel

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(nav PFFP fee)

B
(oav PFFP fee)

M,B

M,B

M,B

3A. I 5-4u: Par-ticipate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie
City Road Slip Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 6).

3A. I 5-4v: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie
Citv Road Flvover On Ramn to Oak Avenue Parkwav C)ffRamn Weave (Freewav Weave 7).
3A.15-4w: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue
Parkwav Looo Ramo Merse (Freewav Merse 8).

3A.15-4x: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire
Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merse (Freewav Merse 27).
3,4.15-4y: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City
Road Loon Ramo Merse (Freewav Merge 35).
WESPAMitigationMeasure4.16-1: ParticipateinFairShareFundingofmodificationofthelronPointRoad,/East
Bidwell Street Intersection.
W7E SPA Mitigation Measure 4.16-2: Participate in Fair Share Funding of improvements to the Scott Road/Easton
Valley Parkwav Intersection.

3A. l6-1: Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyarce Facilities and Implement On- and Off-
Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured

3A.16-3: Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity

3A.18-1: Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability

67-1t4

67-tt5

67 -tt6

67-117

67-1 1 8

67 -119

67-120

67-121

67-122

67-r23

Resolution No. 10069
Page 54 of61

Page 405

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

YesThe owner/applicant is a participant in the
Truck Management Plan at such time there
is traffic generated from the future quarries

south ofthe Folsom Plan Area.

Comments

There are no above ground facilities
required to be constmcted in Mangini
Ranch Phase 2

There are no above ground facilities
required to be constructed in Mangini
Ranch Phase 2

water to the subdivision. The potable

Phase 1 water infrastructure for the
Folsom Plan Area has been reviewed,
approved and accepted by the City and is
crrnentlv in oneration.

CD, EWR

CD, EWR

CD

Asencv
Responsible

Timing

I

I

M

Mitigation Measures Applicable to the Project

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-1: Design above ground pump station and storage tank facilities to reduce visual
impacts.

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-2: Develop and implement a landscaping plan for pump station and storage tank
facilities to reduce visual impacts.

AIR-l -Land: Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures to

Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants from Quarry Truck
Traffic.

Yes

CD, PWM,B

67-l2s

67-124

Yes
CDM

The off-site potable water infrastructure to
serve the subdMsion has been reviewed,
approved and accepted by the City and is
currently in operation. In addition, the City
has verified that the off-site potable water
infrastructure is adequate to serve the

The owner/applicant is a participant in the
Truck Management Plan at such time there
is traFfic generated from the firture quarries
south ofthe Folsom Plan Area.

3A.18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off-Site Infrastructure
Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured.

NOISE-I -Land: Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures

to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Noise from Quarry Truck Traffic.

Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Mfuated Negative Declaration (Bdckbone MND) Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan (FPASP). Table 2 Below describes the mitigation measures from the Backbone MND (December 2014) MMRP

67-126

68.

Table2.
Backbone MND Mitigation Measures Applicable to the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Tentative Subdivision Map Project.*

Infrrsinrchrre Proiecf is inclrrded as Attachment 20-50 Backbone Infrastructure Proiect. The MMRP for the Backbone

Condition

Aesthetics

68-1

68-2

Air

Resolution No. 10069
Page 55 of61

Page 406

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Bioloqical Resources
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

(2) The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior to
commencement of grading and

consauction in Spring of2019.
Compliance table is on file with the Citv.
See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See 12) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above
See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

CD
SMAQMD

CD
SMAOMD

CD
SMAOMD

CD

CD
USFWS

CD
USFWS

CD
CDFW

CD
CDFW

CD

CD
CD

CDFW
CD

CDFW
CD

CDFW
CD

CDFW
CD

CDFW
CD

CDFW

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

GIC
G. I.C

G,C

G, I

G,C

G,C

G,C

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-1: Prepare and Implement NOX Reduction Plan

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-2:Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to off-set NOX Emissions
Generated hv Constnrction

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-4: Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of NOA and, if
necessarv. Preoare and Imolement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan.

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-1: Conduct Special-Status Plant Suweys; Implement Avoidance and
Mitipation Measures or Comnensatorv Mitisation
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-2: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion (BO) for Federally Listed
Vemal Pool Invertebrates.
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-3: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion for Impacts on Valley
F-lderbe.m Lonshom Beetle.

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-4: Westem Spadefoot Toad

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-5: Westem Pond Turtle

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(a): Swainson's Hawk Ncstine Habitat
Backbone MND Mitieation Measure IV-6(b): Swainson's Hawk Foraging Habitat

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-7: Tricolored Blackbird

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-8: Nesting Raptors

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-9: Nesting Special Status Birds and Migratory Birds

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-10: Special-Status Bats

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-12: Implement Section 1602 Master Streambed Alteration Agreemcnt

Backbone MND Mitigation Measwe IV-13: Conduct Surveys to Identifu and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland;
Imolement Avoidance and Minimization Measures or ComDensatorv Mitisation. if necessarv

68-3

68-4

68-s

68-6

68-7

68-8

68-9

68-10

68-1 1

68-rZ

68-13

68- l4

68-15

68-16

68-17

68-1 8

Resolution No. 10069

Page 56 of61

Page 407

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

68-21 Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV- l 1 : American Badger
G,C CD

CDFW
See (2) above Yes

Cultural

68-22
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-l: Comply with the applicable procedures in the FAPA and implemeutation

G,C
CD See (2) above Yes

of
Yes

CD
Sacramento

County
Coroner
Native

American
Heritage

Commission

See (2) above Yes

68-24
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are
Encountered ald Comply with Califomia Health and Safety Code Procedures.

OG

and
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI'l: Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Repo( per CBC Requirements aad
Implement Appropriate Recommendations. CD

See (2) above Yes
68-25 G,C

EWR

Yes
Backbone MND Mitigation Measr.re VI-5(a): Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control See (2) above Yes

68-27 Plan. G PW

and Water

68-28
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-5(b): Prepare and Implement the appropriate Grading and Erosion Control

G PW
See (2) above Yes

Plan Road.

Yes

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

CD
USACE

CD, PW

CD
USACE

CD

CD (E)
Cenkai Valley

Reg. Water

Quality
Control

G, I,C

G, I,C

c,c

G.C

G

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-14: Secure Amended Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and Section 401
Permit and Implement Ail Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions of Wetlands, Other Waters of the
U.S., and Waters of the State
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-15: Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak Woodland
Mitigation Plan, Replace Native Oak Trees Removed, and Implement Measures to Avoid and Minimize lndirect
Impacts on Oak Tiees and Oak Woodland Habitat Retained On-Site.

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring
ifRequired, Stop Work ifCulhrral Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform
Treatrnent or Avoidance as Required.

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-3: Monitor Earthwork during Earthmovine Activities.

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IX-l: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement
SWPPP and BMPs.

68-19

68-20

68-23

58-25

68-29

Resolution No. 10069
Page 57 of6l

Page 408

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Climate
Prior to

releasing RFB to
contractors

See (2) above
68-30 Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VII- I : Greenhouse Gas Emissions SMAQMD

Public Services
68-3 I Backbone MND Measure XVI-l and a Construction Tmffic Control Plan. G C PW See above

68-32
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-3: North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements G, I SMAQMD See (2) above

Water Alternative (November 2012) MMRP
Table 3.

Facility Altemative is included as Attachment 21.

Condition Mitigation Measures Applicable to the Project Timing Responsible
Comments Condition

(3) The Folsom Plan Area (FPA) landowners did not construct the
previously contemplated off-site water system to serve the FPA. Instead,
the FPA landowners contributed funding to conserve 20% ofthe existing
potable water being utiiized in the City. This conservation effort has been
completed and validated in the Sacramento County court system and will
serve the FPA throughout buildout. The following mitigation measures
were related to the previously contemplated off-site water system to be
constructed to serve the FPA and therefore do not apply to this
subdivision.

Yes

69-1 38.1-2a: Enhance Exterior Appearance of Structural Facilities. G,B CD

Yes
Yes

69-4 38. r -3b: and Submit a B CD Yes

69-s 38.2-1a: Develop and Implement a Construction NOX Reduction Plan. G,C CD
See (3) above Yes

Yes

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (2) above

See (3) above
See above

See (3) above

cD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E)

PW

G, I
G, I
G, I

G, I,B

CD
CD

CD

Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-2 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V1-4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements
Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XII-I North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

G.B
G.B

GC

38.l -2b: Prepare Landscaping Plan.
38. I -3a: Conformance to Construction Lishtine Standards.

3B.2-1c: Implement Fugitive Dust Control Measures and a Particulate Matter

68-33

68-34

68-3s

68-36

69.

69-2
69-3

69-5

Resolution No. 100t59

Page 58 of61

Page 409

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

Sec (3) above

See (3) above
aboveSee

See (3) above
aboveSee

SMAOMI-)
CD

SMAOMD

CD
SMAOMD

CD (E)
USACE

CD

CD
USACE

CD
USACE

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD
CD
CD
CD

G,B

G,B

G

B,C

G,C

c

nlans
engineering

englneerrng
olans

engineering
plans

C

G,C

G.C
GC
G.C
GC

Monitorins Prosram durins Construction.

38.2-3a: Cite Pump Siting Buffers Away from Sensitive Receptors

3B.4-lb Prepare and Implemenl an Off-site Water Facilities Climate Action Plan.

3A.5-1a: Comply with the Progmmmatic Agreement.

3A.5-lb: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation ofCultural Resources for the California
Register of Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform
Treatment Where Damage or Destruction Cannot be Avoided.
34.5-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if
Required, Stop Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of
the Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required.
3A.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and
Comolv with California Health and Safetv Code Procedures.

3B.7-l a: Prepare Geotechnical Report(s) for the Revised Proposed Off-site Water
Facilities and Imnlement Reouired Measures.
3B.7-1b: Incorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures lnto Final Pipeline

3B.7-4: Implement Corrosion Protection Measures.

3B.7-5: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work ifPaleontological
Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Prepare and
Implement a Recovery Plan as Required.

3B.8-1a: Transport, Store, and Handle Construction-Related Hazardous Materials in
Comoliance with Relevant Reeulations and Guidelines.
3B.8-1b: Prepare and Implement a Hazardous Materials Manasement Plan.
38.8-5a: Conduct Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment for Selected Alimment
3B.8-5b: Develop and Implement a Remediation Plan.
3B.8-7a: Keep Construction Area Clear of Combustible Materials.

69-7

Yes

Yes

See (3) above

See (3) aboveG,B

38.2-3b: Conduct Project-Level DPM Screening and Implement Measures to Reduce

3B.4-la: Implement GHG Reduction Measures during Construction.

Annual DPM to
CD

CD

69-8

69-9

G,B

Climate

69-t0

Cultural Resources

69-11

69-12

69-14

69-r3

Geology, Soils, Minerals, and Paleontological Resources

69-1s

69-16

69-'17

69-t 8

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

69-19

69-20
69-71

69-22
69-).1

Resolution No. 10069
Page 59 of 6 I

Page 410

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Hydrology and Water Quality
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Noise
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Parks and Recreation
Yes

Traffic and Transoortation
Yes

Yes

Iitilities end Service Svstems
Yes

Yes

Groundwater
Yes

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

CD

CD
CVRWOB

CD
CVRWOB

CD
C\T.WOB

CD
CVRWOB

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD
CDFW or
CVRWOR

G-C

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

c

c
G,C

G,C

G,C

englneenng
nlans

c,c

G,C

G,C

G,C

G,C

3B.8-7b: Provide Accessible Fire Suppression Equipment.

3B.9-1a: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP
and BMPs
3B.9-1b: Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction Dewatering in
Accordance with the Central Vallev Resional Water Oualitv Control Board.

3B.9-3a: Prepare and Implement Drainage Plan(s) for Structural Facilities.

3B.9-3b: Ensure the Provision of Sufficient Outlet Protection and On-site Containment.

38.1 l-la: Limit Construction Hours.

39.1l-lb: Minimize Noise from Construction Equipment and Staging.

38.l l-lc: Maximize the Use of Noise Baniers.

38. I l-ld: Prohibit Non-Essential Noise Sources During Construction.

38.11-1e: Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for Filing Noise
Complaints.

38. 1 I -3 : Implement Operational Noise Minimization Measures.

3B.12-l: Provide for Continued Recreational Access as Identified in Mitigalion
Measure 3.14-la.

3B.15-1a: Prepare Traffic Control Plan.

3B.15-lb: Assess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Conditions.

3B.16-3a: Minimize Utility Conflicts by Implementing an Underground Sewices Alert.

38. l6-3b: Coordinate with Utility Providers and Implement Appropriate Installation
Methods to Minimize Potential Utility Service Disruptions.

38. l7- I a: Implement Construction Dewatering Best Management Practices.

69-24

69-25

69-26

69-27

69-28

69-29

69-30

69-31

69-32

69-33

69-34

69-3s

69-36

69-37

69-38

69-39

69-40

Resolution No. 10069
Page 60 of6l

Page 411

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Yes

Water Supplv
Yes

Yes

MISCELLANEOUS
Yes

See (3) above

See (3) above

See (3) above

The owner/applicant has acknowledged that they are currently subject to
the inciusionary housing requirements in residential rental units and
further acknowledged that they will be subject to any amendments to tlte
FMC-Housing Element at such time amendments are made after January
1,2020.

CD
CDFW or
CVRWOB

CD,PW

CD, PW

CD

G,C

M,B

M,B

OG

38.17-lb: Implement a Dewatering Discharge Monitoring Program.

3A..18-l: Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability.

3A.18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and
Implement Off-Site Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing
Is Secured.

The Owner/Applicant acknowledges that the State adopted amendments to Section
65850 ofthe California Government Code (specifically Section 65850(g)), effective
January l, 201 8, to allow for the implementation ofinclusionary housing requirements
in residential rental units, upon adoption of an ordinance by the City. Under the First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreemant, the City vested the
Owner/Applicant's rights in the affordable housing provisions contained in the City's
then-existing Housing Element and Municipal Code until January 1, 2020. In the event
the City amends its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance after January 1, 2020 with respect
to rental housing pursuant to Section 65850(9), the Project shall be subject to such

amendments should anv residential rental proiect be proposed within the Proiect.

69-41

6942

69-43

70.

Resolution No. 10069
Page 61 of61

Page 412

10/25/2022 Item No.15.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: t0125/2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10940 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between
the City of Folsom and the International Union of Operating
Engineers, Local39

FROM: Human Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
The Human Resources Director recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10940 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the International Union of Operating
Engineers, Local 39.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Folsom and the
International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39 expired on June 30,2022. The parties
began negotiations on a new MOU on March 24,2022, and reached a tentative agreement on
August 11,2022. Local 39 ratified the tentative agreement on September 22,2022. The new
proposed successor MOU is being presented to the City Council on October 25,2022,for
consideration and approval.

POLICY / RULE
Govemment Code Title 1, Division 4, Chapter 10 commonly known as the Meyers-Milias-
Brown Act requires that representatives of the Governing Body of a public agency shall meet
and confer in good faith regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of
employment with representatives of recognized employee organizations. Both parties shall
endeavor to reach a tentative agreement within the scope of representation, and, if a tentative
agreement is reached and ratified by the respective parties, they shall prepare a written
memorandum of understanding.

I

Page 413

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



ANALYSIS and ANCIAI,IMPACT
A tentative agreement was reached by the parties and the proposed successor Memorandum
of Understanding, which will be effective July l, 2022, contains the following changes that
have some economic impact, as outlined below. The changed provisions are as follows:

1. The MOU term will be for three (3) years: July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025.

2. All job classifications shall have one salary range. This new range will consist of nine
steps, with approximately 3Yobetween steps.

o Employee step assignment in the new range shall be equal to the salary the
employee is assigned as of June 30,2022. The cost for the adjustment to the
salary ranges will be approximately $384,827 in the first year in salary and
benefit costs.

3. A cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) is provided for each year of the agreement:
o Year 1:Effective July 1,2022

| 3Yo for all classifications
. The cost for the first year of the COLA will increase salary and

benefits approximately $663,240.
o Year2: Effective JuJy 1,2023

. 3Yo for all classifications

. The cost for the second year of the COLA will increase salary and
benefits approximately $685,908.

o Year 3: Effective July 1,2024
. 3oA for all classifications
. The cost for the third year of the COLA will increased salary and

benefits approximately $706,485.

4. Effective July 1, 2022, the following classifications shall be increased by 5%o:

o Mechanic I/II/Senior
o Lead Plant Mechanic
o Refuse Driver
o Maintenance Worker I/IllSenior
o MaintenanceSpecialist
o Traffic Control & Lighting Technician I/II
o Senior Traffic Signal Technician
o Lead Senior Mechanic (Combined Shifts)
o Electrical Instrument Technician

The cost of the special salary increase will be approximately $370,768 in the first
year in salary and benefits.

5. Recruitment and Retention Pay
o Employees with ten (10) or more years of continuous City service shall be

eligible to receive 2%% of base salary.

2 Page 414

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



6. Uniform Allowance
o The City will increase uniform allowance per employee to $350.00 per year

(currently at $300.00 per year) for purchase of work uniforms.
o The City will increase work boot allowance per employee to $325.00 per year

(cunently at $300.00 per year) for purchase of work boots.

7. Deferred Compensation
o The City will match up to a maximum of $100.00 per month for employees

participating in the City's deferred compensation program (currently no City
match).

8. Life Insurance
o The City will increase Life Insurance and Accidental Death and

Dismemberment coverage for employees to $60,000 per year (cunently at
$40,000 per year).

9. A variety of non-economic and clarification language changes were also agreed upon.

ATTACHMENTS
I . Resolution No.10940 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Intemational
Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39.

2. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the
International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39 for the term of July 1,2022,
through June 30, 2025.

Submitted,

Allison Garcia
Human Resources Director

a
J Page 415

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



Attachment 1

RESOLUTION NO. 10940

A RTSOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF T]NDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF X'OLSOM
AND THE INTERNATIONAL L^IION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39

Page 416

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. 10940

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND
THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39
have met and conferred in good faith since March 24,2022; and

WHEREAS, the parties reached a tentative agreement on August llth,2022; and

WHEREAS, the members of the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39 ratified
the tentative agreement on September 22nd,2022; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the City's negotiation team recommend the City Council
adopt the tentative agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCTL OF THE CITY OF
FOLSOM, that the City Council adopts the tentative agreement between the City of Folsom and
the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39 for the period of July 1,2022, to June
30,2025; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED' that the City Council of the City of Folsom authorizes the
City Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the
International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 25th day of October 2022, by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10940
Page 1 ofl Page 417

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



Attachment 2

PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OX'UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OT'

FOLSOM AND THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF'OPERATING ENGINEERS,
LOCAL 39, X'OR THE TERM Of,'JULY 1,2022, THROUGH JUNE 30,2025.

Page 418

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



FOr-SONA
CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

CITY OF FOLSOM

AND

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF
OPERATING ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39

ulv 1.2022-Ju ne 30. 2025

Page 419

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
&tQ41sU!91!22 to 96 t 30 t225

Table of Contents

Article l. RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

1. Recognition
2. TotalAgreement...........
3. Severability of Provisions.................

Article ll. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

1. Equal Employment
2. Discriminatory Prohibitions.........

Article lll. MANAGEMENT RlGHTS....

Article lV. NO STRIKE OR LOGKOUT.......

1. No Strike
2. Lockout..

Article V. UNION R|GHTS....

Payroll Deductions.
Bulletin Boards......
List of Employees..
Notice

Article Vl. COMPENSATION

1. Salary lncreases...
2. Salary Ranges
3. Salary Range Adjustments
4. LongevityPay.............
5. Recruitment and Retention Pay
6. StandbyDuty...........
7. MonitoringPay.............
B. GIS Stipend
L Special Skill Certification/License Pay and Education lncentive Pay
10. Callback.....
11. Overtime and Holiday Work..........
12. Payment for Scheduled Hours
13. Compensation During Work Disability..............
14. Compensation Upon Service Separation
15, Salary on Status Changes.....
16. UniformAllowance...
17. Mechanics Tool Allowance.............
18. Reimbursement for Use of PersonalVehicle
19. CellPhone
20. Night Shift Differential..
21. Bi-Lingual Pay ............
22. ClassificationSurvey
23. Market Survey
24. Deferred Compensation..............

Page 2

6
6

7

...............8

1

2
3
4

8
8

9

9
I
9
o

9

I
....10
....10
11++
1fi+
....11

12e
12Q
124
15{5
....15
10{6
101€
....16
....16
19{e
1e18
20?3
20?s
....20
....20
....20
2J2+
....21

Page 420

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0#A1A O7 | 0 I I 22 lo 06 I 30 1225

Page 3

1.

2.
3.
4.
5,
6.
7.
B.

9.
10

Article Vll. RETIREM ENT

1. Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
2. Retirement Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit (Survivors)
3. Use of Accrued Leave Time Pending Retirement....................
4. Retiree Health lnsurance...
5. Retiree Dental and Vision lnsurance...
6. Out of Area Health Premium P|an............

Article VIII.INSURANCE

Health lnsurance
High Deductible Health P|ans..........
Health lnsurance - Cash Back...........
Dental lnsurance
Vision lnsurance
Life 1nsurance...............
Short Term Disability lnsurance
Long Term Disability lnsurance...
Domestic Partner.......
Health Benefits Labor-Management Committee

Article lX. HOURS, HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES

1. General Hours of Work.......
2. Accrued Furlough Leave
3. Flexible Schedules
4. 9/80 Work Schedule
5. Report to Duty Station
6. Unauthorized Absence from Work
7. MealPeriods.................
8. RestPeriods.................
9. Emergency Work Hours and Duty Assignments............
10. Annual Leave Program.....
11. Sick Leave
12. lllness/lnjury During Vacation Leave.........
13. Holidays During Annual Leave, Sick Leave or Disability
14. Annual Leave for lmmediate Family Care...........
15. FuneralLeave.........
16. Bereavement Leave
17. Disability Leave
18. Fitness for Duty
19. Maternity Leave
20. Jury Duty 1eave..........
21. Leaves ofAbsence
22. Catastrophic Time Donation..............
23. Holidays.....
24. Federal and State Family and Medical Leave Acts........
25. Personal Leave Time...........

Article X. TRANSFER AND PROMOT|ON....................,

1. Transfer
2. Worksite and Shift Transfer.....
3. Voluntary Position Transfer
4. Promotion

.....21

......21

......22
.......22
'.,,...22
.2324
.......24

.....25

......25
.Tz7

.......27
..2323
..88
..8n
.......28
.......28
..nn
..8n
.....29

...........29

...........29
383s
.3830

...........30
313+
313+

...........31

......,..,.31

.......Qez
3333.. 3333

...........33

......,....33

...........33

...........33

.......3434

...........34

...........35

.. ... ilea

...........37
3938
393e

.. . ..4044

.......t94Q

.........40

....40

....40
474+
....41

Page 421

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
NMAsVlQl! 22 to 96 t 30 t 225

Page 4

Article Xl. POSITION CLASSIFICATION

1. Employee Classification Study Requests......

Article Xl!.TRAINING AND SAFETY

1. Training......
2. safety. ........ ... .:..:........ ..:.. ....... ......... ....

3. TuitionReimbursementPolicy...

Article XIII.SEPARATION FROM SERVICE

1. Layoff .........
2. Check Out Upon Separation

Article XlV.MlSCELLANEOUS ..............

1. Permanent Part-Time Employees
2. Replacement of Damaged Personal Property.............
3. Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule/Alternate Work Schedules..
4. Repetitive Motion Study .........

Article XV.PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

1. Performance Evaluation..............
2. Authority to Prepare Reports......
3. Frequency and Distribution of Reports......
4. Review with the Employee
5. Purging of Personnel Fi|es.........

41

42

.........4444

...........4444
.....47+7

47

...41

42
42
42

...48

....48

....48

....47

....47
4348
4348

.4949

.....49

.....49

5050

5950
5q50
.....50
.....50
515+
.5252
.....52
.....53

,...54

Article XVI.EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

1. Policy
2. Definition.... ........:.:.:.:.. . ... . . ..::.... .

3. Persons Authorized to lnitiate Disciplinary Action
4. Application
5. Cause for Disciplinary Action
6. Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action.....
7. Skelly Meeting
8. Appeal of Disciplinary Action.....

Article XVII.GRIEVANC E PROC EDURE............

Article XVIII.TERM OF AGREEMENT

1. Appendix A - List of Classes in Bargaining Unit
2. Appendix B - Recognized Certifications/Licenses.............
3. Appendix C - Special Salary Adjustments
4. Appendix D - New Combined (A/B) 13-Step Salary Range

5656

595e

.Qe

58

60

Page 422

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
w0+"Aggz.!gl n b 96 t 30 t 229

Page 5

PREAMBLE

This Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as "the agreement," entered into by the
City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "the City," or "the employer," pursuant to Section 3500 et,

seq. of the Government Code of the State of California and the lnternational Union of Operating
Engineers - Stationary Engineers Local 39, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as "Local 39," has as
its purpose the promotion of harmonious labor relations between the City and Local 39;

establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and the
establishment of rates of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment.

It is understood and agreed that this agreement supersedes and replaces all prior agreements
between the City and Local 39 covering the matters contained herein. Where ordinances and
policies conflict with this Memorandum of Understanding, the Memorandum of Understanding shall
prevail.

The term "Agreement" or "Memorandum of Understanding" as used herein means the written
agreement provided under Section 3505.1 of the Government Code.

Article l. RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

1. Recognition

The lnternational Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 39 is recognized as the
exclusive representative, as provided in the City's Employer-Employee Relations Rules for
all employees in the Miscellaneous Bargaining Unit (unit). Appendix "A" is a list of alljob
classifications in this bargaining unit.

2. Total Aq reement

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) constitutes a full and complete agreement by

the parties and contains all of the matters upon which the parties reached agreement.
Therefore, except as provided herein, the City and Local 39, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that the
other should not be obligated to meet and confer with respect to any subject or matter
whether or not referred to or covered in this agreement.

3. Severabili of Frovisi

Should any section, clause or provision of this Agreement be declared illegal by final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such section, clause or
provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof, and such remaining portions
shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement. ln the event of such
invalidation, the parties agree to meet and confer concerning substitute provisions for
provisions rendered or declared illegal.

Page 423

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
09/Au1A07 I 0 I I 22 to 961 30 I 225

Page 6

Article ll. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

1" Equal Emplovment

It is the policy of the City of Folsom to create an environment, in which all people, regardless
of race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex, handicap, or political or religious affiliation,
may live, work, enjoy leisure, learn and prosper in harmony with all other persons of the
community.

The City recognizes the need to ensure the achievement of equal employment opportunity
as a means of reinforcing the principles of a merit system of employment, whereby
employment decisions are made equally of all persons on the basis of open competition and

advancement according to relative ability.

The City agrees as follows:

ln establishing qualifications for employment in the classified service, no provision or
requirement shall be adopted which would be discriminatory on the basis of race,

creed, color, national origin, age, sex, handicap or political or religious affiliation
(Protected Characteristics), except where a bona fide occupational qualification
exists.

No questions in any examination, application form, or other personnel proceeding,
shall be so framed as to elicit information concerning protected characteristics from
an applicant, eligible candidates, or employee.

No appointment to, or removal from, a position in the classified service shall be
affected in any manner by the person's protected characteristics; and further that it
shall be the responsibility of all employees to abide by and carry out these
provisions.

2. Discrirninato Prohibitions

It is prohibited for the City to refuse to hire, train or promote any employee or applicant, or to

discipline or dismiss an employee without just cause on the basis of such person's race,

color, creed, national origin, age, sex, marital status, religious beliefs, or disability; except
where the doctrine of business necessity or a bona fide occupational qualification can
reasonably be established.

It shall further be prohibited for any employee, contractor, or other agent of the City to
engage in all forms of discriminatory conduct, including the following:

A. Race. Color. Greed and Reliqion

Making statements, jokes or acts regarding a particular race, color, ancestry, or
religion that are regarded as offensive, prejudicial or harassing.

a

a

a

Page 424

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wM4ewlglnb 96t30t225

Page 7

B. Sex/Sexual Harassment/Marital Status

lntimidating or interfering with an employee's work or work environment through
unwelcome, offensive or harassing sexual comments, questions or acts (implicitly or
explicitly), including prejudicial statements or acts regarding pregnancy or marital
status.

Article lll. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

To ensure that the City is able to carry out its statutory functions and responsibilities, nothing
contained in this article shall be construed to require the City to negotiate on matters, which are

solely a function of management, or not otherwise assigned as an employee right, including the
following:

1. To manage the City generally and to determine issues of policy

To determine the existence of facts, which are the basis of management decisions.

To determine the necessity for, and organization of, any service or activity
conducted by the City, and to expand or diminish services.

To determine the nature, manner, means, technology, and extent of services to be
provided to the public.

To determine methods of financing.

To determine types of equipment or technology to be used.

To determine and/or change the facilities, methods, technology, means,
organizational structure, and size and composition of the work force, and to allocate
and assign the work by which the City operations are to be conducted.

To determine and change the number of locations, relocations, and types of
operations, processes, and materials to be used in carrying out all City functions,
including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or sub-contract any work or
operation of the City, except where such contracts for service would be for the
purpose of workforce reductions.

To assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with requirements as

determined by the City, and to establish and change work schedules and

assignments upon reasonable notice and good faith meet and confer.

10. To lay off employees from duties because of lack of work or funds or under
conditions where continued work would be ineffective or non-productive.

2.

3.

4

5

6

7

8.

I

11. To establish and modify productivity and performance programs and standards.

Page 425

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
ggnil1 }7 | 0 1 122 to 06 I 30 12?.5

15

16

Page 8

12. To dismiss, suspend without pay, demote, reprimand, withhold salary step
increases, or otherwise discipline employees for cause.

13. To determine minimum qualifications, skills, abilities, knowledge, selection
procedures and standards, and job classifications, and to reclassify employees.

14. To hire, transfer, promote, and demote employees for non-disciplinary reasons

To determine policies, procedures, and standards for selection, training, and
promotion of employees.

To establish reasonable employee performance standards including, but not limited

to, quality and quantity standards; and to require compliance therewith.

17. To maintain order and efficiency in City facilities and operations.

18. To establish, publish, and/or modify rules and regulations to maintain order and
safety and health in the City. The City agrees to meet and confer on any items that
fall within the scope of Government Code Section 3500 et, seq.

19. To restrict the activity of an employee organization on the municipal property and on
municipal time except as set forth in the City's Personnel Rules and Regulations.

20. To take any and all necessary action to carry out the mission of the City in
emergencies.

Article lV. NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

1. No Strike

IUOE agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither it nor its officers, employees,
representatives, or members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any
strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slow downs, mass resignations, mass absenteeism,
picketing or any other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or interference
with, the normal work of the City of Folsom. ln the event that IUOE, Local 39 members
participate in such activities in violation of this provision, IUOE, Local 39 shall notify those
members so engaged to cease and desist from such activities and shall instruct the
members to return to their normal duties.

2. l-ockot"tt

No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the City during the term of this MOU

Page 426

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
gg AA}T | 0 1 I 22 to 06 I 30 1225

Page 9

Article V. UNION RIGHTS

1. Pavroll Deductions

ln addition to continuing existing payrolldeductions for group insurance plans to which the
City is or shall hereafter be a contracting party, the City agrees to establish payroll
deductions for. (1) the normal and regular monthly Union membership dues and

assessments; and (2) the insurance premiums for City and Union plans.

2. Bulletin Boards

The Union shall be entitled to reasonable use of bulletin boards at all offices and work
locations where they are established. Local 39 may request permission from the City to
install "Local 39 exclusive" bulletin boards. lf such a request is granted, the Union shall pay

for the cost of the bulletin board and its installation.

3" List of Emplovees

On a monthly basis the City shall provide IUOE with a list of city employees except safety,
management, confidential, and middle management employees by class, name, hourly
wage, step placement, anniversary date, employment status (permanent, full-time, part-

time, or temporary), and IUOE membership status. The City agrees to notify IUOE
whenever a class is created, deleted, or modified.

4" Notice

The City agrees to give reasonable notice to IUOE of any change directly relating to wages,
hours, and working conditions and to provide the IUOE the opportunity to meet and confer
over the impact of such changes prior to their implementation.

Article Vl. COMPENSATION

1. Salary Increases

A. Effective @e
M€U, all employees shall receive a salary increase of *s,!o/o.

B. Effectivethefirstfull payperiodinJuly2O2gS,all employeesshall receivea
salary increase of !25o/o.

C. Effective the first full pay period in July 2024l., all employees shall receive a

salary increase of !2#o/o.

Page 427

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wMtlsvlwlnb W30t225

2. Salarv Lanqes

B

Page 10

A. Effective July 1. 2022, all iob classifications shall have one salarv ranqe. Salarv
Ranqe A and B shall no longer exist.

@

Effective Julv 1. 2022, Appendix D. shows the new nine-step salarv ranqes foreach
iob classification. Salary ranqe steps shall be approximatelv 3% between steps. The
ranoe and steos incl de anv salarv increase received pursu to Article Vl. Section

1

C. Emplovees will be moved to the new salary range step that is closest to their current
calonr lcalant a<r nf lttna 30 tn')r\ rrrifhnr rf hainn lnrrrar

thirteen (13) step salary range is the same as step I ef the eld Salary Range B; and step 2
ef the new-salary range is the same as step 6 ef the eld Salary Range B' ln additien; the

en the eld Salary Range A (plus the 2,5% salary inerease eentained in Artiele Vl; Seetien

Empleyees will be meved te the newsalary range step that is elesest te their salary witheut
being lewer as ef the first full pay peried after Gity Geuneil appreval ef the MOU (ineluding

Procedures for step advancement, promotion, demotion, transfer, and layoff as set forth in

City of Folsom Personnel Rules and Regulations, and the MOU shall apply. Anniversary
dates shall remain the same.

3. Salarv Ra oe Adiustments
A. Effective Julv 1, 2022, the salarv ranses for the following classifications shall be

increased bv 5%:
a. Mechanic l/ll/Senior
b. Lead P lant Mechanic
c. Refuse Driver
d. Maintenan Worker l/ll/Senior
e. Maintenance Specialist

Traffic Control Liohtino Technician l/ll
q. Senior Traffic Siqnal Technician
h. Lead Senior Mechanic (Combined Shifts)
a,i. Electrical & lnstrument Technician

f

Page 428

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
&MA8O7 I 0 1 I 22 lo 06 I 30 1225

Page 1 1

+.4. l-oetrevilv Pey

Subject to subsection B below, employees in the IUOE bargaining unit shall be

eligible to receive Longevity Pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City
service.

e\#a{u€+i€'r+The Longevity Pay formula is based on 2 T.o/o increments and is as
follows:

. 2/ro/o after ten (10) years of City service;

. an additional 2Tro/o for a total of 5o/o after fifteen (15) years of City service;

. an additional 2Tro/o for a total ol TTzo/o after twenty (20) years of City service

B. Employees hired after July 1 ,2010, shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay

+5. Recruitment Retention Pav

Subiect to subsection B. below, emplovees in the IUOE barqaininq unit shall be

eliqible to receive Recruitment and Retention Pay beqinninq with ten (10) or more
vears of continuous Citv service.

B. Recruitment and Retention Pav shall be 2 lro/o of the emplovee's base salary.

C. Emplovees receivinq Lonqevitv Pay (Article Vl, Section 4) shall not be eliqible to
receive Recruitment and Retention Pav.

All soecial oav in this Section (Article Vl. Section 5) shall be deemed Lonoevitv Pav and

A.

A.

rannrfad fn CalP trR Q oc cnaaial nnrnnancafi on hr rrcl t4 nt to /. P Qontinn 674

+.6. Standbv Dutv

When the City places an employee on Standby Duty, the City agrees to assign twelve (12)

hours of Standby Duty per week; except that when one of the following holidays occur
during the period of Standby Duty the City will assign fifteen (15) hours of standby:
Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Thanksgiving, and July 4th. Standby Duty shall be

assigned on a rotating basis. Compensation for Standby Duty shall be at one and one-half
times the employee's hourly rate of pay.

A. Standby duty requires the employee so assigned

i. To be ready to respond immediately to calls for service;
ii. To be reachable by telephone/pager;
iii. To remain within a reasonable distance of the work location; and;
iv. To refrain from activities which might impair their ability to perform assigned

duties.

Page 429

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
WolAsqlW! 22 to 96 t 3o t 229

Page 12

e.7. Mgnitg''inq Pav

When a department head or designee requires an employee to monitor a City operation
from the employee's residence during non-work hours, the employee will receive 1.5 hours
of overtime for each 8 hour assignment period, or portion thereof.

7-8. GIS Stioend

An employee receiving the $150 per month GIS Stipend as of June 30, 2019, shall continue
to receive the stipend until the employee leaves his/her current job classification. No
additional employees shall be paid the GIS Stipend.

&9. Special Skill Certificationllicense Fav and Educa tion lncentive Pav

A. Special Skill Certification/License Pav

Additional salary may be paid to miscellaneous employees for special skill
certification(s)/l icenses. To qualify for add itional salary, such certification (s)
shall meet the following criteria:

a. Certification/license is for duties required by the City and
approved by the employee's department head and the City
Human Resources Department.

b. Certification/license is for duties not specified in the employee's
job classification.

c. Certification/license must be renewable.
d. Certification/license duties that are not already identified for

additional compensation in the current Memorandum of
Understanding between IUOE and the City.

Recognized certifications/licenses and assigned salary differentials are listed
on Appendix "B".

Maximum Special Skill Certification/License Pay shall not exceed $3,600 per
year ($300 per month) in combination with Educational lncentive Pay.

Employees with Special Skill Certification/License Pay, except for select
classifications in Environmental and Water Resources (EWR), as outlined in

subparagraph v. below, will have their percent incentive converted to the dollar
amount value as of June 30,2019. This dollar amountwill be frozen as of June
30,2019, and will not increase with future increases to base pay. New
certifications may be added with an associated pay increase perAppendix "B"

only if the total incentive amount falls below the $3,600 annual cap ($300 per
month). Any additional pay is subject to the $300 per month total cap for the
combination of SpecialSkill/Certification License Pay and Education lncentive
Pay.

IV

Page 430

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
ostsl/4sUlgJ n to Q6/30/225

Page '13

V EWR employees in the following classifications are limited to
certification/license pay as outlined in Appendix "B." Classification descriptions
will be revised to reflect the requirements of a Class B drivers' license and

Herbicide & Pesticide Applicator's Certificate per the list below. Select salary
range adjustments will be made as indicated. These adjustments are designed

to address market pay inequities and additional certification requirements.
Employees will move to the step in the new range closest to but not lower than

their existing pay as outlined in Article Vl, Section-42E{+)15. The effective date
of change will be the first pay period following City Council approval of the
MOU.

EWR Classifications:

Current
Range

New
Range

Range

lncrease
(Max Step)

Advanced

State
Cert

Required

Class B

License

Required

Pesticide

Applicator
Cert

Required

Water Ma na gement Coordi nator

Senior Water Uti lity Worker

Water Treatment Plant Chief Operator

Water Distribution Chief Operator

Sr. Wastewater Col lecti on Techni ci a n

Water Treatment Plant Operator lll

Water Uti lity Worker lll
Water Distribution OPerator lll

Wasterwater Col lection Technici a n I I I

Water Qua I ity Techni cia n

Water Utility Worker ll

Water Treatment Plant OPerator ll

Water Distribution OPerator ll

Wastewater Col lection Technician ll

Water Ma na gement SPeci a I i st

Water Uti lity Worker I

Water Treatment Plant OPerator I

Water Distribution OPerator I

Wasterwater Col I ecti on Technici a n I

M58

M55

M55

M55

M55

M51

M51

M51

M51

M51

M47

M47

M47

M47

M43

M45

M45

M45

M45

M60

M58

M58

M58

M58

M55

M55

M55

M55

M55

M51

M51

M51

M51

M49

M45

M45

M45

M45

5.0%

7.6%

7.6%

7.6%

7.6%

to.2%

L0.2o/o

10.2%

to.2%

L0.2o/o

to.3%

tO.3o/o

L03%

to.3%

L5.8o/o

0.o%

0.0%

0.0o/o

0.0%

D4

T4

D4

G3

T3

D3

D3

G3

D3

D2

T2

D2

G2

D1 & CLIA

D1

T1

D1

G1

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

VI ln addition to EWR classifications listed in Section 79A(v) above, the following

classifications will have the requirements of Class B drivers' license and

Herbicide & Pesticide Applicator's Certificate added to their classification
descriptions. Employees' existing certification pay will be frozen as outlined in

Section 79A(iv).

. Maintenance Specialist
r Sr. Maintenance Specialist
. Maintenance Worker l/ll

Page 431

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
Ntglllsvlgl n b 96 t 30 t229

Page 14

r Sr. Maintenance Worker

B. Education lncentive Pav

For employees hired before July 1 ,2019, except for select classifications listed in
Section 7A9A(v) above, educational incentive pay is frozen at the dollar amount
paid effective June 30,2019. No increase in this dollar amount occurs unless this
amount is less than the amount listed in subparagraph ii. below, at which point the
amount is adjusted to the higher level.

ii. For employees hired on July 1,2019, or later, education incentive pay is limited to
job related degrees not required in their classification description and approved by
the employee's department head and the City's Human Resources Director. The
incentives listed below are non-cumulative and paid at the highest rate.

r Associate's degree: $150.00/month
. Bachelor's degree: $250.00/month
. Master's degree. $250.00/month
. Bachelor's/Master's (in unrelated fietQ: $150.00/month

iii. Payment of education incentive will begin effective the first pay period after the
employee provides the Human Resources Department with the appropriate
documentation, which includes a copy of transcripts or diploma. lt is the
responsibility of each employee to notify the Human Resources Department of
his/her eligibility for education incentive and to provide the appropriate
documentation.

Employees who qualify for the education incentive and who received City paid
tuition reimbursement will not receive education incentive pay until they have
reimbursed the City for the cost of the tuition reimbursement. Once payment is
made in full for tuition reimbursement, the education incentive will start and be paid

directly to the employee. Reimbursing the City will consist of delaying the incentive
pay until an amount equivalent to the tuition reimbursement has been withheld. For
example, if any employee qualified for $100 per month in educational incentive
payment, but had received $1,000 in tuition reimbursement, the employee's
educational incentive payment would be delayed 10 months from the educational
incentive effective date.

C. Compensation

With the exception of employees with incentive pay frozen at a set dollar amount as of
June 30, 2019, no employee who qualifies for both Special Skill Certification/License Pay
and/or Education lncentive Pay shall receive additional salary of more than $300 per
month.

D. Dispute Resolution

Disagreements over the application of this section shall be submitted to the City Human
Resources Department for resolution. This section shall not be subject to the

Page 432

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
Nto1118v1gl n b 96 t 30 t229

Page 15

Grievance/Arbitration provisions of this Agreement

+10. Callback

A. When an employee is called back to work after he/she has completed an assigned
shift and left the work site, the employee shall receive a minimum of three (3) hours
of call-back pay at one and one-half times employee's base hourly rate of pay.

B. Time worked, for which the employee is entitled to compensation, shall include
reasonable travelto and from the employee's residence via the shortest commonly
traveled route.

1-q-{ 1. Overtime and Ho lidav Work

A. Employees may be required to work overtime when a department head or designee
determines it to be in the best interest of the City. Employees will be compensated
only for overtime ordered or authorized by designated supervisory personnel.

B. Overtime will be paid in excess of an employee's normally scheduled work shift.

C. The overtime rate of pay shall be either one and one-half (1%) times the base hourly

rate of salary with respect to cash payment; or one and one-half (1%) hours for each
hour worked with respect to compensatory time off (CTO). Overtime shall be

compensable in increments of fifteen (15) minutes. Subject to subparagraph D

below, overtime shall be paid in cash, unless payment in the form of CTO is
requested by the employee. Such requests are subject to the approval of the
employee's department head or designee.

evertime shall be paid qt ene and ene half the empleyee's base heurly rale' An
empleyee may selee

+q-CTO may be accrued in lieu of overtime pay in accordance with the schedule
below. Employees may request to take GTO off at the convenience of the City and

upon approval of the employee's department head or designee.

Zero to five years of City employment 80 hours

Five years to ten years of City employment 120 hours

After ten years of City employment 160 hours

E-Any permanent fulltime or permanent parttime employee who is required to work
on any City observed holiday shall be entitled to equivalent time off, or pay in lieu of
equivalent time off at their rate of pay plus time and one-half the employee's base

Page 433

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wl€A+lsVlP1l 22 to Q6 t 3o t 22Q

Page 16

hourly rate (for the actual number of hours worked on the holiday). The choice of
which shall be made by the employee with the department head's approval in

advance of such work. Employees who opt to take the equivalent time off shall be
entitled to take such equivalent time off in conjunction with regular days off.

cheduled Hou
Scheduled hours of bv dutv and scheduled hours of overtime ll be comoensated in

the pav period it is worked. Anv overpayment of standbv dutv and/or scheduled overtime will

be immediately corrected the followinq pav period. or as soon as possible, bv pavroll

deduction. lt will be the resoonsibilitv of the department and emp to track and audit
hours aoorooriatelv. nscheduled overtime mav be paid in the llowino oav oeriod to
facilitate the o no of oavroll.

1+13. Compensation Durino Work Disabi!itv

A. Employees may be eligible for compensation for work related injuries pursuant to
the circumstances, terms, and conditions prescribed under State Workers'
Compensation Law.

B. The City, or its insurance carrier, may not be liable for the payment of workers'
compensation benefits for any injury which arises out of an employee's voluntary
participation in any off-duty recreational, social or athletic activity which is not a part
of the employee's work-related duties.

&14. Compensation U n Service Seoaration

Probationary employees in the classified service who separate from city service shall be
entitled to payment for accrued annual leave and holiday hours earned on a pro-rata basis
up to the date of separation.

Regular full-time employees in the classified service, regardless of service length, shall be
entitled to payment for annual leave, holiday and compensatory time up to their date of
separation. Payment shall be made on an hour-for-hour basis at the employee's regular
straight-time hourly rate of pay.

4s15. Salarv on 5tatus Chanoes

A. Promotion: An employee who is promoted to a position in a classification with a
higher salary range shall be placed in the step in the new higher range which is at

no less than S%4ull+tep over the step held in the
former range in the basic salary schedule. An employee thus promoted is therefore
assigned a new salary anniversary date effective of the date of promotion.

An employee who is promoted to a higher class effective within thirty (30) calendar
days of a step increase within the lower class range shall be eligible first to receive
the within range increase and then the higher step as provided in this section,
providing that the employee's performance was satisfactory for salary advancement

Page 434

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€104+t907/0 1 I 22 lo 06 I 30 1225

Page 17

in the lower class and that the higher class is reasonably within the career path of
the lower class which shall be determined by the City Manager.

B. Demotion: Employees may only be demoted for purposes of employee discipline or
layoff. An employee who is demoted to a position in a class with a lower salary
range shall be reduced in salary to the step in the lower-class salary range as
follows:

Disciplinary demotions may be assigned to any salary step in the lower-class
range which is at least one (1) step less than that received in the class from
which demoted. A new anniversary date shall be established on the effective
date of the demotion.

C. Transfer: An employee who is transferred from one position to another position in

the same class, or to another position in a class having the same salary range and
substantially similar duties, shall be compensated at the same step in the salary
range as previously received without a change in the anniversary date.

D. Reinstatement/Reemplovment: An employee who is reinstated or reemployed in a
position previously occupied pursuantto the City's Personnel Rules and Regulations
shall receive not more than the step in the salary range received prior to separation,
and a new anniversary date shall be assigned based on the reinstatement or
reemployment date.

E. Ranqe Assiqnment Chanqe

Whenever a class is reassigned to either a higher or lower salary range by
the City Council, the salary of each incumbent in such class on the effective
date of the reassignment shall be adjusted accordingly. lf the position is

reassigned or reclassified to a higher range, and the incumbent is appointed
to the position, the incumbent's salary shall be the step in the new range that
is closest to their current salary without being lower and the same
anniversary date shall be retained. lf the position is reassigned to a class
having a lower salary range, the salary and anniversary date of the
employee shall not change, and the salary of the employee shall be
designated as a "Y" rate and shall not change during continuous regular
service until the salary of the new position exceeds the employee's present
salary.

When a salary range reassignment becomes effective within thirty (30)
calendar days of an employee's salary anniversary date, the employee shall
first receive the within range step increase and then receive the
corresponding step adjustment, provided that the employee's performance
was satisfactory for salary advancement upon eligibility for step increases.

Compensation Upon Reclassification: The salary of an employee in a position that
is reclassified shall be determined as follows:

il

F

Page 435

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
os/01l1807 | 0 1 I 22 lo 06 I 30 I 225

ill

Page 18

lf the position is reclassified to a class with the same salary range as the
previous class, and if the incumbent is appointed to the reclassified position,

the salary rate shall apply to a change of class title.

ii. lf the position is reclassified to a class with a higher salary range, and the
incumbent is appointed to the position, the incumbent's salary shall be the
step in the new range that is closest to their current salary without being
lower as of the date upon which the reclassification becomes effective. The
employee shall receive a new anniversary date upon reclassification in this
manner.

lf the position is reclassified to a class with a lower salary range than the
previous class, and if the incumbent is appointed to the reclassified position,

the employee's salary shall not change. lf the employee's salary is greater
than the maximum step of the lower salary range, the employee's salary
shall be "Y" rated until such time as any general cost-of-living increase,
inequity adjustment, or other salary increase results in a monthly salary
appropriate for the class. The employee's salary anniversary date shall not
change and shall not require a new probationary period.

G. Compensation for Workino in A Hisher Classification (Actinq Pav)

On occasion an employee may be required to perform duties of another
classification with a higher salary range because of a temporary vacancy in

that position. ln such cases, the employee's salary will be adjusted to
compensate for the higher level of duties.

ln order to receive adjusted compensation for working in a higher
classification the employee must be assigned in writing by the department
head, assume and perform substantially allthe duties and responsibilities of
the position, and perform them for at least one week (five consecutive
working days).

Compensation for working in a higher classification shall consist of a flat five
percent (5%) increase above the employee's current salary or the lowest
salary within the higher salary range, whichever is greater, but not to exceed
the maximum of the range established for the higher classification.

Work periods in higher-class assignments shall not apply toward seniority or
time-in-class consideration for promotionalor layoff purposes as regard the
higher class.

lf an employee and his/her department head agree that the employee be
assigned on a temporary basis for training purposes, no compensation will
be due the temporarily assigned employee. ln no case shall such training be
for more than thirty (30) calendar days. After two (2) weeks a progress report
will be given to the employee in order to evaluate the employee's success in

the training program.

t.

Page 436

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
09/A#1807 | 0 1 I 22 to 96 I 30 1225

+416. Uniform Allowa

Page 19

Effective the ment of the annual
and boot allowance shall be made on or about Julv 20.

AE-_\ /hen the City requires employees to wear uniforms, the City agrees to
provide employees with an annual uniform allowance of $3050.00.

B-C. When the City requires employees to wear work boots, the City will provide
employees with an annual boot allowance of $30925.00.

gD._Nothing in this section shall prohibit the City from providing uniforms and/or
work boots for employees at City expense.

D-E.__Ihis section shall be administered pursuantto procedures established by the
City Human Resources Department.

1+17. Mechanics Tool A!lowance

Permanent City employees in the class of Mechanic shall receive an annual tool allowance
of $1,000. The purpose of this tool allowance is to reimburse Mechanics for expenses
incurred in the purchase, upgrade and maintenance of personal hand tools.

A. Each Mechanic shall maintain a set of adequate and appropriate hand tools to be
used in the performance of his/her duties as a Mechanic with the City. Such tools
are and shall remain the property of each Mechanic.

At least once each year, each Mechanic shall submit an inventory of
personal hand tools (Tool List) to the City. The Tool List shall identify all
hand tools used by the employee in the performance of his/her duties as a
Mechanic with the City.

When a Mechanic purchases new hand tools, it is the responsibility of the
Mechanic to update his/her Tool List and submit it to the City.

iii. The parties agree to form a joint labor-management committee to advise the
City on tools to be purchased and maintained by mechanics and tools to be
purchased and maintained by the City.

B. Damaged individual tools not covered by manufacturer's warranty will be reimbursed
by the City up to $300 per fiscal year per Mechanic; provided, however, that the Tool
List for the Mechanic requesting reimbursement describes in sufficient detail each
tool for which reimbursement is claimed.

C. Mechanics may submit claims forthe replacement of tools lost due to a catastrophic
event such as fire or flood, or for the theft of their entire toolbox, pursuant to Article
XlV, Section 3!.

Page 437

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wa#Wlgln to Q6/30/225

Page20

D. The annual tool allowance shall be paid at the same time that Uniform Allowance is

paid.

rsement for Us nal Vehicle

When the City requires an employee to use his/her personal vehicle on City business, the
employee shall be reimbursed at the lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) rate.

Cell Phone

A department head, with Gity Manager approval, may approve the issuance of a city cell
phone or may authorize the use of the employee's personal cell phone for work purposes. lf
an employee opts to use his/her personal phone for work purposes the City will provide

employee with a monthly cell phone stipend of $50.00. The monthly stipend shall cover
expenses, charges, maintenance and replacement of the employee's phone including
damage, loss, theft or other operational issues affecting the phone during private use or
during the course and scope of employment. lf an employee opts to use his/her personal

cell phone, employee will provide the cellular phone record of business calls during work
hours upon request of the City.

+e.20. N lq ht Sh ift .Djffer

The City agrees to meet and conferwith the Union at such time that a second shift is added
to the Sewer, Water, Fleet, or Streets Divisions. The goal is to implement a night shift
differentialwith terms acceptable to both IUOE and the City.

+$Z1.Bi-l-lnqual Pav

The parties agree during the term of this Agreement to set up a process whereby
employees may track the use of bilingual skills, and to meet and confer if the use of bilingual

skills become a regular (defined as daily use) part of the employee's duties and

responsibilities.

22. CI tion Suruev

A The Citv aq rees to conduct a cl survev of bench rk classes

represented bv IUOE. The classification su rvev shall be concluded not later than
180 days prior to the expiration of this MOU. The parties agree to meet to determine
benchmark classes to be surveved.

Maintenance Worker classification series and the correspondinq iob descriptions as

oart of this classification studv.

Page 438

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wtsl+19,U191! 22 to Q6 t 30 t 225

*23. Market Survey

A.

Page 21

The citv aqrees to conduct a market survev of benchmark classes as determined bv

IUOE. Local 39. and the Citv of Folsom in Article Vl. Section 22, ltem A above. The
market survev shall concluded not later than 120 davs fo the exoiration of

B.

this MOU.

The ouroose of the market survev is determine the relationshio of the total
compensation for emplovees in the iob classifications identified in ArticleVl, Section
22, ltem A above when compared to comparable iob classifications in the followinq
aqencies: Citv of Vacaville. Citv of Fairfield, City of Rocklin. Citv of Roseville, Citv of
Sacramento, Citv of West Sacramento. and Countv of Sacramento.

C. Compensation, for purposes of this survev, shall constitute the following elements:

a. Monthlv base salary (top step in the salarv ranqe)
b. Maximum monthlv contribution to health insurance (medical, dental,

and vision)
c. Uniform Allowance, into monthlv eouivalents.
d. Emplover monthlv pavment of emplovee share of retirement.
e Maximum Education lncentive Pav. broken into monthlv eouivalents.
a-.f. Anv siqnifican

Items e above are for
sed in th results will i

the mean (averaoe) and relative rankinq of the base salarv and total compensation,
bv classification, comoarino the Citv of Folsom to those aqenci es identified in Afticle
Vl. Section 23, ltem B above. The parties aoree to meet and confer over survev
results.

24. Deferred Comoensation
For emplovees participating in the Citv's deferred compensation proqram, the Citv aqrees to
make a matchinq contribution up to a maximum of $100.00 per month.

Article Vll. RETIREMENT

1" Public Emplovees Reti ent Svstem (PERS)

A. Retirement Formula

All miscellaneous employees hired prior to June 30, 2010, shall
receive the retirement benefit of 2.7@55. All miscellaneous
employees desiqnated bv CaIPERS as Classic members hired on or
after July 1,2010, but prior to January 1,2013, shall receive the

Page 439

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€'l€411s9[l91! 22 to 96t 30 t 225

Page22

retirement benefit of 2o/o@55. Allemployees brouqht into CaIPERS
membership the first timehired on or after Janua ry 1,2013, shall
receive the retirement benefit 2Yo@62 or as specified in the
California Public Employee's Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).

All employees hired prior to June 30, 2010, shall receive the
retirement benefit based on the single highest twelve (12) months of
compensation. All employees hired on or after July 1, 2010, shall
receive the retirement benefit based on the employee's highest
average monthly compensation during thirty-six (36) consecutive
months of employment as provided in state law pertaining to PERS.

B. Retirement Contributions

All miscellaneous employees shall pay 8% of the employee share of
retirement.

ll. Employees hired underthe20/o@62 formula shall pay the employee
share of retirement as specified and adjusted by PEPRA.

C. EPMC

Pursuant to Government Code section 20691 , the City agrees to include the amount
of the City's payment of the employee's final year of compensation for PERS
retirement computation purposes.

2 Retirement O nal Settlement 2W Death B t (Survivors)

The City agrees to continue to provide the Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit pursuant to Government Code Section 21548.

3" Use ofAcc Leave Time Pendin Retirement

With prior approval of the City Manager or designee, employees who have declared

their intention to retire from employment with the City of Folsom may use accrued
Annual Leave or GTO to extend their retirement date beyond the last day worked.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Memorandum of Understanding, accrued

Annual Leave or CTO used to extend a retirement date shall not result in the accrual

of additional leave time.

Requests to extend a retirement date pursuant to this section shall be submitted to
the City Human Resources Department. This provision shall be administered
pursuant to procedures established by the City Human Resources Department.

A.

B.

c.

4. Retiree Hea lnsurance

Page 440

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€l0rl+1907/0 1 I 22 lo 06 I 30 I 225

Page 23

A Employees hired on or prior to May 8, 2007, who retire' from City service may
participate in City health insurance plans made available by the City for active
employees until age 65. At aqe 65, retirees are required to-when+hey move to a
Medicare Advantage Plan per Article Vll. sSection 4.A.ii.b. to continue participation

in the retiree health insurance Drooram. The amount of the City's monthly
contribution shall be determined as set forth below. Any costs that exceed the
maximum paid by the City towards retiree health insurance costs shall be borne by
the retiree.

Employees who retire with less than 5 years of service shall not be eligible to
receive any City contribution toward the cost of retiree health insurance.

ii. Employees who retire with more than 5 years of service'shall qualify for a monthly
City retiree health insurance contribution.

a. Subject to the maximum set forth in ltem A(iii) below, the City retiree
health insurance contribution shall be as follows:

o Retiree only - an amount equal to the City's contribution
towards active employee health insurance forthe category of
"employee only."

o Retiree and one dependent- an amount equal to the City's
contribution towards active employee health insurance forthe
category of "employee plus one."

o Retiree and two or more dependents - an amount equal to
the City's contribution towards active employee health
insurance for the category of "employee plus two or more"
until the retiree reaches age 55. Thereafter, the City's
contribution towards a retiree with two or more dependents
shall be an amount equal to the City's contribution towards
active employee health insurance for the category of
"employee plus one" plus $100.

b. Retirees and their covered family members who are Medicare
eligible must move to an offered Medicare Advantage Plan option
when they reach Medicare eligibility. These plans require that they
enroll and pay for Medicare parts A and B. Retirees are responsible
for showing proof of Medicare enrollment as required by the carrier.
Medicare eligible retirees will be dropped from the City's non-
Medicare plan upon Medicare eligibility and/or charged any
additional costs associated for noncompliance by the plan carrier.

t "Existing employees" are exclusively permanent and/or probationary employees of the City of
Folsom hired on or before May 8, 2007. "Retire" or "retiree" is defined as any classified City employee
who (1) applies for retirement with the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) within ninety
(90) days after terminating employment with the City; and (2) receives a PERS retirement benefit.
2 "Service" is defined as full time (or equivalent) continuous permanent and/or probationary
employment status with the City of Folsom.

Page 441

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wMtlswJgJnb Q6t3Ot22Q

B.

Page24

iii. Effective January 1,2012, the City's monthly contribution toward the cost of retiree
health insurance shall not exceed the maximum monthly contribution paid by the
City to active employee health insurance for the categories of employee only (for
retiree only), employee plus one (for retiree plus one dependent), and employee
plus two or more until age 55 and employee plus one plus $100 after age 55 (for
retiree plus two or more dependents).

a. The January 1,2012, cap for each category shall be adjusted each January
thereafter by an amount not to exceed 3%, depending on the percent
increase in the Consumer Price lndex (CPl), U.S. Department of Labor, for
November - November of the previous year, lndex CPI-W, Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers, Series #CWUR0400SA0, United States.
(Example, if the cost of living for the specified period increases by 2o/o, the
cap shall be increased by 2o/o. lf the cost of living for the specified period
increases by 4o/o,the cap shall be increased by 3o/o ftcost of living increases
in the cap shall be rounded to the nearest tenthl).

The City shall contribute $25 per pay period into the HRA for each
probationary/permanent employee hired after May 8,2007 .

5. Retiree Dental and Vis ion lnsurance

Effective September 1 ,2019, employees who retire from City service must have at least 120

months of continuous service as a City employee to qualify for dental and vision insurance
benefits provided to active employees. The City shallcontribute 5% of the premium peryear
of City service, up to an 80% City contribution.

of Area Health ium Plan6

OAHPP n with H
provided bv the Citv to active emplovees Each OAHPP retiree will obtain a

oarticipa account.

Onl ide h

nt to Article Vll, Section 4: and (c) aqree to di I from the
current qroup medical benefit plan for retiree health coveraoe mav oarticioate in
OAHPP.

C. Once a retiree oots to oarticioate in HPP the retiree shall hen rohi hitecl

from retu inq to retiree health coveraoe

ribute account on
amount equal to the amount of the Citv's contribution for emplovee onlv or emolovee
plus 1 coveraqe. based on the retiree's marital status at the time of OAHPP election.
Soouses mav not added later. The Citv's contribution would be used for

lt

premiums Under no circumstances shall
her than th

n health coveraqe
r slm S

contribution

Page 442

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
asffitl9;9Zl9Ll 22 to Q6 t 3o I 22P

Page25

E

retiree shall be responsible for administrative costs established by the HRA plan

administrator.

e death of, or martial dissolutj on from. the retiree's spouse record at the
me of el OAHPP the

emplovee onlv. Subsequent spouse(s) from anv subsequent marriaqe(s) (i.e. post

initial OAHPP election) shall not be eliqible to participate and fundinq will remain at
employee onlv. ln the event of the retiree's death. survivinq spousal benefits will
conform to Citv ora aoolicable to emolovees particioati in Citv olans. Should

the retiree obtain coveraqe from another source (e.9. coveraqe bv spouse), the
fundinq will cease and will not be reinstated.

F. Rules and orocedures oovernino PP shall be determined and mtn iste red bv

the Citv Human rces Deoartment. Disoutes reoardino the OAHPP shall be

appealed to the Citv Manaqer or desiqnee and shall not be subiect to arbitration.

+.C. ns an option to t
pu Vll, Section 4, the Aetna PPO plan durino annual
enroll prior to movinq out of state. The retiree must then Aetna as
their provider until such time as thev move back into the reqions covered by

whoever are the Citv health providers at the time, and mav elect another provider

durinq the next open enrollment. lt is understood by both parties that this optlon is
available onlv in nce with the rules and procedures Aetna and onlv as
lono as chooses to be a orovider for the Citv

Article Vlll. INSURANCE

The City's obligation for health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance coverage is

limited to plan contribution. Plan content, including eligibility criteria, is determined by the
respective carriers.

1. Health lnsurance

A, Effective March 1, 2011, as demonstrated in the example below, the City's
maximum monthly contribution for active employee health insurance coverage shall
be adjusted annually to an amount equal to 50% of the increase, if any, above the
prior year's Kaiser monthly premium rate combined with the City's prior year
contribution amount for employee only, employee plus 1, and employee plus 2 or
more (rounded to the next whole number). The employee is responsible for the
difference between the applicable premium and the City's contribution.

Example:

Employee only category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser employee only is
$507.89 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is $486.00. lf this premium
increases by 1Oo/o for 2Q11, or to $558.68, the City's contribution for 2011 for the

Page 443

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding Page26
as€].AsqJwnb 96t30t229

employee only category would be computed as follows: $558.68 - $507.89 = $50.79,

$50.79 x 50% = $23.40, $486.00 + $23.40 = $509.40. After rounding to the next
whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for the
employee only category would be $509 per month. lf the premium increases by

1Oo/o for 2012, or to $614.55, the City's contribution for 2012 for the employee only
category would be computed as follows: $614.55 - $558.68 = $55'87, $55.87 x 50%

= $27.93, $509.00 + $27.93 = $536.93. After rounding to the next whole number,

the City's maximum contribution for health insuranceforthe employee only category

would be $537 Per month.

Employee plus 1 category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser employee plus 1 is
gl ,015.78 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is $972.00. lf this premium

increases by 10o/o for 2011 , or to $1 ,1 17.36, the City's contribution for 2011 for the
employee plus 1 category would be computed as follows: $1 ,1 17.36 - $1 ,015.78 =
$101 .58, $101 .58 x 50% = $50.79, $972.00 + $50.79. = $1 ,022.79. After rounding
to the next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for
the employee plus 1 category would be $1,023 per month. lf the premium increases
by 10o/o for 2012, or to $1,229.10, the City's contribution for 2012 for the employee
plus 1 category would be computed as follows: $1 ,229.10 - $1 ,117.36 = $111.74,
$111.74 x 50% = $55.87, $1,023.00 + $55.87. = $1,078.87. After rounding to the
next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for the
employee plus 1 category would be $1,079 per month.

Employee plus 2 or more category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser employee
plus 2 or more is $1,320.52 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is
gl ,263.00. lf this premium increases by 1Oo/o for 2011, or to $1 ,452.57 , the City's
contribution for 2011 for the employee plus 2 or more category would be computed
as follows: $1,452.57 - $1,320.00 = $132.57, $132.57 x 50% = $66.29, $1,263 +

$66.29 = $1,329.29. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's maximum
contribution for health insurance for the employee plus 2 or more category would be
g1 ,329 per month. lf the premium increases by 1 0o/o for 2012, or to $1 ,597.83, the
City's contribution for 2012 for the employee plus 2 or more category would be

computed as follows: $1,597.83 - $1,452.57 = $145.26, $145.26 x 50% = $72.63,
$1,329 + 972.63 = $1,401.63. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's
maximum contribution for health insurance forthe employee plus 2 or more category
would be $1,402 per month.

B. Employees who select a health plan with higher monthly premiums than the
maximum monthly premium paid by the Gity (Section A above) shall pay the
difference through payroll deduction. Should employees select a health plan with
lower monthly premiums than the maximum monthly premium paid the City, the
City's contribution shall be limited to the cost of the monthly premium.

C. Notwithstanding Section 1, ltem A, the City's maximum monthly contribution for
active employee health insurance coverage shall not be reduced more than eighty
percent (80%) of the Kaiser premium cost for the employee only category, employee
plus 1 category, or employee plus 2 or more category.

Page 444

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
9€/eil1907 I 0 1 | 22 to 961 30 1225

E

Page 27

The City will maintain an IRS 125 Dependent & Medical Reimbursement Account.
Employees may participate in the account pursuant to administrative procedures
established by the City.

Employees who retire from City service must have at least 120 months of
continuous service as a City employee to qualify for the dental and vision benefits
provided to active employees.

2. Hiqh Deductibl e Health Plans

The City agrees to offer two High Deductible Health Benefit Plans offered by the
health benefit plan carriers.

The City agrees to make available a Health Savings Account (HSA) to eligible active
employees who select either of the High Deductible Health Benefit Plans.

Fifty percent (50%) of the difference between the City's monthly contribution towards
the cost of the Kaiser HMO Health plan premiums as set forth in Article Vlll, Section
1 of the MOU and the monthly premium for a High Deductible Health Plan shall be
contributed into the employee's HSA. The City shall make this contribution through
June 30, 2022, after which this Section shall sunset.

D Tax status of contributions, contribution amounts, and use of HSA funds shall be in
accordance with federal and state law.

3. Health lnsuran ce - Cash Back

A Probationary or permanent employees, who certify to the Human Resources
Department that they have group health insurance coverage with comparable
benefits to health plans offered by City, may decline to participate in City health
insurance coverage.

Employees who decline to participate in City health insurance coverage shall
receive a cash back payment from the City of $250 per month for each month the
employee does not participate in City health insurance coverage.

Employees who have declined to participate in City health plan coverage pursuant
to this section may enroll in City health plan coverage only during the annual open
enrollment period.

This section shall be administered pursuant to procedures established by the City
Human Resources Department.

Employees who decline health insurance coverage shall continue to be eligible to
participate in the City's vision and dental plans.

An employee whose spouse is employed by the City and receives health insurance
is also eligible to receive the cash back payment.

D

A.

B.

c

B

c

D

E.

F

Page 445

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding Page 28

4. Dental lnsurance

Dental insurance will be provided by Delta Dental. The City will contribute 80% of the
monthly premium for an employee, employee and dependent, or employee and family as set
forth in the plan document. Employees will contribule 20o/o of the monthly premium. The
Plan will provide maximum coverage of $1,750 per year for employees/dependents who
patronize Preferred Provider Program participating dentists. Employees/ dependents that
choose non-participating dentists shall have a coverage maximum of $1,500 per year.

5. Vision lnsurance

Vision coverage will be provided by Vision Services Plan (VSP). The City will contribute
80% of the monthly premium for an employee, employee and dependent, or employee and
family as set forth in the plan document. Employees will contribule 20o/o of the monthly
premium. The following elements shall provide the basis of VSP coverage:

One eye exam every 12 months;
One set of lenses every 12 months;
$150 allowance/wholesale basis for frames; and
A co-pay of $5.00 per visit.

6, Life lnsurance

The City agrees to piek-upproviglg 10Oo/o of the monthly premium rate for $4OpOOS60'0AQ
Life lnsurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (A D & D) coverage for
employees represented by the Local 39, and $2,000 for each eliqible dependent as
provided in the plan document.

7" Short Term Disabilitv lnsurance

The City agrees to provide a Short-Term Disability lnsurance Program as provided in the
plan document, with the City paying lQoo/o of the monthly premium rate for the weekly
indemnity insurance program (short term disability) of up to 60% of salary for 26 weeks.
The maximum payment is subject to plan agreement. The waiting period for initiation of
benefits under the plan shall be 12 calendar days. Any change in the Short-Term Disability
lnsurance plan that results in changes to the disability benefit is subject to meeting and
conferring with IUOE.

8. Lonq Term Disab ilitv lnsurance

The City agrees to provide a long-term disability program for employees in the
Miscellaneous Unit as provided in the plan document. The plan shall provide for a maximum
benefit of 60% of salary, up to age 65. The maximum payment on this plan is subject to plan

agreement. Any change in the Long Term Disability lnsurance plan that results in changes
to the disability benefit is subject to meeting and conferring with IUOE.

A.
B.
c
D

Page 446

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
09/A1Ag07 | O 1 t22 to 96 I 30 t 2?9

Page 29

9. Domesti Partner

For purposes of insurance coverage, "dependent" shall include a domestic partnerwho has

been certified by the Secretary of State's Office pursuant to Family Code sections 297 et
seq.

10" Health Be ts Labor-Manaqeme Committee

A. The parties agree to participate in a joint Health Benefits Labor-Management
Committee to review existing health benefit programs, including, but not limited to,

cost containment, direct contracting for health benefit plans, creation of a health
benefits cafeteria plan (Section 125), and creation of an out of area health premium
plan. The Health Benefits Labor-Management Committee shall be open to all

employee organizations representing City employees. IUOE may select up to two
City employees to participate in Committee meetings. Employees who participate in

Committee meetings shall do so without loss of compensation.

AB. The parties aqree to convene the Citv-Wide Health Benefits Committee no laterthan
March 31, 2023. to discuss modifvinq the current healthcare formula.

Article lX. HOURS, HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES

1" General Hou rs of Work

The City Manager, upon consultation with affected department heads, shall be responsible
for assigning or modifying the work schedules. Unless otherwise prescribed in writing by the
City Manager, the workday, work shift, workweek, and work schedule for each position shall

be as follows:

Workday for fulltime positions shall be eight (8) hours except as othenryise

approved by the City Manager.

Work week for full{ime positions shall be forty (40) hours except those employees
working under an approved flexible schedule (subparagraph 3 and 4 below).

Work schedules for each position shall be as established by the department head

that may change such schedules from time to time based on the needs of
departmental operations and approval of the City Manager. A department head, with
seven (7) days prior notice, may require an employee to work an unscheduled
day/shift and receive an othenruise scheduled workday/shift off in which case the
day/shift worked shall not be considered compensable at the overtime rate of pay.

2. Ac-gfued Fullouqh Lea-ve

A

B

c

Any furlough time earned by employees and still remaining on the books may be used by

Page 447

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wMAsqlgl 22 to 96 t 30 t2?9

Page 30

employees for time off on an hour for hour basis until the employee has exhausted the bank.
Furlough time shall have no cash value and may not be cashed out. lf an employee
separates from employment with the City, any furlough time remaining in the bank shall be
surrendered with no value to the employee.

3. Flexible Schedules

Employees may request to adjust their work schedule up to eight (8) hours within a
workweek. For purposes of this section, "workweek" is defined as Sunday through Saturday
for forty hours. Schedule adjustments are subject to prior notice and approval of the
employee's supervisor and must not adversely impact department operations. Time worked
in excess of normally scheduled department hours in a day that is for the express purpose
of making up time shall not count towards daily overtime calculation. lt is understood that if
an employee works less than forty hours in the workweek, their leave balances may be
reduced accordingly.

4. 9180 Work Schedule

A 9/80 work schedule is a schedule where an employee is scheduled to work four
nine-hour work shifts for a total of thirty-six hours during one work week, and four
nine-hour work shifts and one eight-hour work shift during the following work week.

lmplementation of a 9/80 work schedule shall be at the sole discretion of the City
Manager. A 9/80 work schedule must not adversely impact the operations of City
government, to and including impairment of City services to the public, incurring
additional overtime or other costs to City government, proper supervision and
training of employees, and the efficient use of City facilities.

Local 39 employees may request in writing to work a 9/80 work schedule on a form
provided by the City. The City will respond in writing to the request with an approval
or disapproval and explanation within 30 calendar days of the request.

D This section may not be grieved beyond the City Manager or designee and is not
subject to arbitration.

5. Report to Putv Station

Employees are expected and required to report to their prescribed work location at the
designated timework activities are scheduled to commence. Tardiness, unexcused absence
and failure to report as described in the City's Personnel Rules and Regulations may be
grounds for disciplinary action. ln the event an employee cannot report to work at his/her
scheduled start time, the employee shall notify the immediate supervisor at least forty-five
(45) minutes prior to the start of a shift or not later than fifteen minutes after the start of the
day's/shift's work at which time the employee shall give reason for the absence and return
date.

A.

B.

c

Page 448

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wl€AAslZ! 0 U 22 to 96 t 30 t 225

Page 31

6. Unauthorized Absence frorn Work

Employees who are absent from assigned workstations and schedules for three (3)

consecutive workdays, without official leave approval, shall be considered absent without
leave. ln such cases the department head shall give notice in person or by mail to the

absent employee by first class mail to the employee's last known address, notifying the
employee to report to work or give good reason why work cannot be resumed by the next
workday/shift after receipt of such notice. Should the employee fail to respond by the next

workday/shift after notice, or should such notice be returned to the City as undeliverable,
such employee shall be deemed to have abandoned his/her position. Conversely, should
such employee return to work following an unauthorized absence, the employee may be

subject to disciplinary action.

7. Meal Periods

A. Employees who work an (8) hour workday or more may be allowed an unpaid meal
period of not less than 30 minutes nor more than 60 minutes which shall be

scheduled by the City as near as possible to the middle of the work shift. Meal
periods may be cancelled if there is an emergency or other operating need. \l/hen
an employee's mealperiod is cancelled, the cancelled employee's mealperiod shall
be added to the employee's normal workday and the employee shall be paid

overtime pursuant to the overtime provisions contained in this Memorandum of
Understanding for the cancelled meal period.

B. lt shall be the responsibility of each employee to be at the work site and prepared to
begin work at the conclusion of the meal period.

C. All permanent employees required to work a minimum of two hours prior to or after
their normal work shift shall be provided an additional overtime meal period or, at
the City's discretion, the City shall provide a meal for the employee at the
employee's assigned work site. Consistent with this section, additional overtime
meal periods or meals shall be provided every four hours thereafter as needed.

L Rest Periods

Employees shall be allowed rest periods not to exceed fifteen minutes generally in

the middle of each four consecutive hours of work. Rest periods may be cancelled
by the City if there is an emergency or other operating need.

The City shall determine when the rest period is to be taken. Except with the
consent of the City, an employee shall not leave his or her assigned work location.

Rest periods shall be considered hours worked. Rest periods not taken shall not be

accumulated or used for overtime purposes.

A.

B.

c.

Emerqencvq Work Hours and Dutv Assionments

Page 449

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
A A#1 O7 lO1 122 lo 06130 1225

A.

B.

0 - 5 years
5 -10 years
10-15 years
15+ years

hours per month
hours per month
hours per month
hours per month

Page32

Many classes of e'rnployment in City service are subject to routine or periodic
emergency callback work as an inherent and integral part of their assigned job
responsibilities in order to provide continuous public services deemed to be
necessary and appropriate by the City Manager. Classes and positions in City
service subject to emergency work hours shall be designated by the City Manager.

Employees who occupy positions designated for emergency work hours, including
call-back, shall be required to keep the City apprised of a current telephone number
where they can be normally reached during off-duty hours, and such employees
shall be required to respond to such emergency work calls by the City within a

reasonable amount of time, unless the employee is incapacitated or can give other
just cause for not responding. Standby requirements shall be consistent with the
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

10. Annual Leave Proqram

A. Employees shall receive the following Annual Leave credits

Lenqth of Service Annual Leave Allowance

16
18.68
21.34
24

B

c

Except as specified in Article lX, Section D below, employees shall not accrue sick
leave. However, employees who have accumulated sick leave hours shall retain
such hours and may use such leave credits pursuant to Article lX, Section 11, Sick
Leave, of this MOU.

Annual leave credits may be used for any approved absence, including vacation and
illness or injury. When annual leave is used for vacation, it will be scheduled
pursuant to City Personnel Rules; however, total class seniority shall be considered
as one (1) of the factors by supervisors in resolving conflicts in scheduling of
vacation requests. When annual leave is used for illness or injury leave (e.9., sick
leave) purposes, it will be taken pursuant to Article lX, Section 1 1, Sick Leave, of the
MOU.

D. There shall be an annual leave cap of 320 hours

ln the event the City does not approve annual leave for an employee in an
amount sufficient to reduce accumulated annual leave to 320 hours, the
number of hours that exceed 320 hours shall be rolled over into sick leave
until the annual leave balance is reduced to the 320-hour cap.

E. Employees may cash out up to 40 hours of annual leave per fiscal year

t. Annual leave shall be cashed out pursuant to procedures established by the

Page 450

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wMtlsglgl n to QG t 30 t 22P

F

Page 33

City's Human Resources Department.

Accrued annual leave shall be cashed out upon separation of employment with the
City on an hour for hour basis.

11. Sick Leave

Sick leave may be used by employees for purposes enumerated in City Personnel
Rules.

Consistent with PERS law, the City agrees to request that CaIPERS amend the
City's contract with GaIPERS to permit sick leave to be converted to service credit
for purposes of retirement (Government Code section 20965).

Accrued sick leave shall not be cashed out.

There shall be no maximum on the number of hours of sick leave an employee may
accrue (bank).

Vacation Leave

An employee who becomes ill or injured while on vacation may have such period of
illness/injury charged to the employee's accumulated sick leave rather than annual leave
provided that, immediately upon return to duty, the employee submits to the department
head a written request for sick leave accompanied by a signed statement from the
employee's attending physician describing the types and dates of such illness/injury.

13. Durin Annual ve o!'Disabili

Observed holidays occurring during sick leave shall not be counted as a day of annual
leave, sick leave, or disability, but shall be regarded as the taking of a holiday.

14. Annual Leave for lm ediate Familv Care

Classified employees may use their annual leave for the required care of immediate family
members who are ill, injured, or have a pregnancy related medical need. The City may
predicate the approval of such leave time on physician verification.

15. Funeral Leave

Classified fulltime or promotional probationary employees may be granted use of a

maximum of 24 hours from their annual leave bank for each such instance to attend the
funeral of the employee's brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, or daughter-in-law.

A.

B.

c

D

12 lllness/lniurv Duri

16. Bereavement Leave

Page 451

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
as€Ell€'w.D1lz2 to Q6/30/225

B,

Page 34

Classified regularfull-time or promotional probationary employees may be granted use of a
maximum of 40 hours from their leave time banks to dealwith matters related to the death,
or critical illness where death appears imminent, of any member of the employee's
immediate family for each such instance.

17. Disabilitv Leave

Employee may be granted paid disability leave based on the following circumstances,
terms, and conditions. The purpose of providing these programs of paid disability leave is to
ensure that regular full{ime employees have reasonable and equitable provisions
concerning their job and economic security.

A. lf a regular full{ime employee is temporarily disabled by injury or illness arising out
of and in the course of performing assigned job duties, the employee shall become
entitled to a leave of absence while so disabled without loss of salary, less workers'
compensation disability payments, for up to ninety (90) calendar days, commencing
upon the third (3'd) calendar day after the injured employee leaves work as a result
of the injury. However, if the disability necessitates hospitalization or the disability
continues more than three (3) days, the aforesaid ninety (90) day leave of absence
shall commence from the first (1st) day the injured employee leaves work or is
hospitalized as a result of the injury.

Employees injured on the job who are absent from work due to such disability for
less than three (3) days may utilize accrued annual leave or sick leave during such
absence.

Following the initial ninety (90) day period of temporary disabilitV, an eligible
employee may electto receive eitherworkers'compensation disability payments or
full salary by supplementing their workers' compensation disability payment by use
of accrued leave time on an hour-for-hour basis. Upon utilization of all accrued leave
credits, the employee injured in the performance of assigned duties and who is
entitled to compensation under the Workers' Compensation lnsurance Act shall be
continued on the rolls of the City without pay until workers' compensation is

discontinued, or the employee reached permanent and stationary status, provided
that the disability was not the result of the employee's willful violation of safety rules
or negligent behavior.

Employees who are found to abuse or fraudulently use the privilege and benefits of
the temporary disability program as prescribed shall be subjectto disciplinary action,
including termination from City service. The employee exercising these temporary
disability provisions shall be required to provide the department head with a copy of
the attending physician's report, which shall contain a description of the nature and
anticipated duration of the disability and the employee shall keep the department
head apprised of the medical condition at intervals prescribed.

18. Fitnesg fqr Dutv

c

A. The City may require an employee to submit to a medical examination by a

Page 452

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
war'l1sVl91!4 to 96 t 30 t 229

19. Matern Leave

A.

Page 35

B

c

physician designated by the City to evaluate the capacity of the employee to perform

the work of the employee's position. The cost of such an examination shall be paid

by the City.

The physician shall make a written report to the City. lnformation provided by the
City's physician shall be kept confidential. A copy of the physician's report.shall be
given to the employee.

After consideration of the report and other pertinent information, the City will take
steps in accordance with State and Federal law regarding disabilities. lf the City
concludes the employee is unable to perform the work of his/her present position,

the City may demote or transfer the employee to an appropriate position, including
one of less than full time. lf it is concluded that the employee is unable to perform
the duties of his/her position and the employee cannot be demoted or transferred to
another position, the employee's employment with the City may be terminated. Any
such action shall be considered non-disciplinary. An employee who is terminated
because he/she is unable to perform the duties of his/her position shall be placed on
paid administrative leave until the date of separation.

An employee terminated pursuant to this section may elect, at the employee's cost,
an examination by a physician of the employee's choice. lf the employee's physician

finds the employee fit to perform his/her job duties, the employee shall havethe right

to submit the matter to binding arbitration, pursuant to Article XVll, 4D of this MOU.

After weighing the evidence submitted by both parties, the employee may be
reinstated if the arbitrator determines that the employee is fit to perform the duties of
his/her former position. Reinstatement shall not require current eligibility on any city

employment list. The arbitrator may elect to pay the employee for some or all of the
time between the termination date and the date of the arbitrator's award.

This section shall not supersede any rights and/or remedies the parties may have
pursuant to the California Workers Compensation system and Labor Code.

The parties agree to meet during the term of this agreement to review policies and

statutes that govern Fitness for Duty and ensure compliance with state law.

Employees are entitled to the following three types of leave during their pregnancy
provided they meet the eligibility requirements for each leave. All of the following
leaves may be taken incrementally. Leaves are taken consistentwith state orfederal
law and this section is not intended to expand or reduce benefits provided in those
statutes.

Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL)
Duration: Up to four months (pro rata for parttime employees).
Eligibility: Requires that an employee be disabled due to pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical conditions. A physician must verify any

Page 453

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
wa#sVJUl 22 to Q6 t 30 t 22P

Page 36

pregnancy-related disabilitY.

ii. Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
Duration: Up to twelve weeks in a twelve-month period.
Eligibility: Requires 12 months of employment and 1250 hours of service
during the 12-month period immediately preceding the commencement of
the leave.

iii. California Family Rights Act (CFRA)
Duration: Up to twelve weeks in a twelve-month period.
Eligibility: As provided in state law. CFRA leave can be taken all at once or
incrementally for up to one year after the birth of a child in two-week
increments

B. Reasonable Accommodation

An employee is entitled to a reasonable accommodation for pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions if she requests such an accommodation and provides the
City with medical certification from her health care provider. ln addition to other
forms of reasonable accommodation, a pregnant employee may request to transfer
temporarily to a less strenuous or hazardous position or to less hazardous or
strenuous duties. Such a request shall also be supported by proper medical
certification and is contingent on the transfer being reasonably accommodated.

C. Substitution of Paid Leave for Pregnancy-Related Disability Leave

An employee taking pregnancy-related disability leave may supplement her disability
payments by integrating her leave balances. lntegration of leave balances does not
extend the total duration of the leave to which an employee is entitled.

D. Leaves Effect on Benefits

lf an employee taking a pregnancy-related disability leave also is eligible for Family
and Medical Leave, the employee is entitled to the City's continuation of benefits up

to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks in a 12-month period.

E. Other Terms and Conditions of Pregnancy-Related Disability Leaves.

The provisions of the City's "Family Care and Medical Leave" policy regarding the
leave's effect on pay, notice requirements and medical certification requirements
also apply to all pregnancy-related disability leaves.

F. Return to Work

As a condition of an employee's return to work from pregnancy disability leave, the
City may require the employee to obtain a release to return to work from the
employee's health care provider. Employees who return to work from pregnancy-
related disability leaves shall be reinstated to their former positions.

Page 454

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
osnr'#gv.lul n b Q6 t 30 t 225

2A. Jurv Dutv Leave

A.

Page 37

Employees who have been summoned or subsequently selected to serve on a jury
shall receive their regular rate of compensation by the City for normal work hours
and days or shifts during such absence from work, provided the employee endorses
to the City that compensation received by the employee for jury duty service.

Employees will be allowed to retain any mileage compensation granted to them by
the respective court jurisdiction to which they were summoned or selected for jury
duty.

Employees summoned to jury duty must provide evidence of such summons and
subsequent jury duty days away from work through their respective department
heads to the City Manager.

Employees compensated by the summoning court jurisdiction for jury duty shall
endorse such payments to the City in the same pay period the payment is received
by the employee, in order to receive full City compensation as prescribed in "A" of
this section. This payment endorsement is to be fonararded directly to the Finance
Director by the employee.

21. Leaves ofAbsence

Department heads may grant a regular fulltime employee a leave of absence
without pay or benefits related to employment for a period not to exceed one (1)
calendar week. Such leaves shall be reported in writing to the City Manager.

Leaves of absence without pay or benefits related to employment for a period not to
exceed three (3) consecutive months may be granted to regularfull-time employees
upon recommendation of the department head and approval of the City Manager.
Following the initial three (3) months, the leave of absence may be extended for a
maximum of an additional six (6) months if recommended by the department head
with approvalby the City Manager. However, no such leave shall be granted except
upon written request of the employee, setting forth the reason(s), circumstances and
length of the requested leave.

Upon expiration of an approved leave of absence, the employee may be reinstated
in the position held at the time leave was granted. Failure on the part of the
employee on leave of absence to report for work promptly at the expiration of leave,
or within a reasonable time after notice to return to duty, shall be cause for dismissal
and the employee shall automatically waive all rights under these rules. The
depositing of a first-class letter of notification to return to duty in the U.S. Postal
Service addressed to the employee's last known address shall constitute reasonable
notice.

The granting of any leave of absence without pay or benefits related to
employment for any period exceeding one (1) full pay period shall result in

B.

c

D

A

B

c

Page 455

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
a9€Atls9Z!g1/ 22 to Q6/30/225

Page 38

setting of a new salary anniversary date for the employee. Such date shall
be based on the employee's originalsalary date advanced by the number of
calendar days leave in excess of one (1) full pay period.

D. Temporary Leave Pendinq Discipli narv Action: Notwithstanding the provisions of the
aforementioned sections, upon the recommendation of the department head, the
City Manager may approve the temporary assignment of an employee to a status of
leave with pay, pending conduct or completion of such investigations or hearing as

may be required to determine if disciplinary action is to be taken.

22. Catastrophic Time Donation

The purpose of the catastrophic time bank is to enable employees to receive and donate
accrued annual leave, and compensating time off (CTO) credits, to assist employees who
have no leave and who will suffer a financial hardship due to a prolonged illness or injury to

themselves or a member of the immediate family as defined in Article Vlll. The following
conditions shall apply:

A. lndividuals who request donated leave must do so in writing and have proper

certification of need on file with Human Resources.

Catastrophic Leave will be available only to employees who are unable to work due
to a prolonged catastrophic non-industrial illness or injury which is estimated to last

for at least thirty (30) calendar days and have exhausted all of their own paid leave
through a bona fide serious illness or injury.

The time bank shall be administered by the City.

An employee may be on disability insurance and use the time bank credits in the
same manner that annual leave is used to supplement disability insurance benefits.

All donations are to be confidential between the donating employee and the City.

Donations are limited to annual leave and compensatory time. Sick leave may not
be donated under this plan. Employees donating to the time bank must have eighty
(80) hours of annual leave available after making a donation. Donations are capped
at no more than 320 hours total per calendar year to the individual requesting
donations. Distribution will be on a payrollto-payroll basis.

Donations should be a minimum of four (4) hours per each donation form submitted

Donating employees must sign an authorization form (prepared by the City) and

specify the number of hours and type of leave donated to the catastrophic leave
bank. These hours are allocated to employees as needed, subject to the cap.
Employees who donate leave cannot designate which co-worker should receive the
donated hours. Employees relinquish all rights and claims to hours donated.

B

c

D

E

F

G

H

l. Hours of donated leave shall be valued at the recipient's regular base wage

Page 456

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€#04J1907/0 1 I 22 lo 06 I 30 I 225

Page 39

Donations shall be subject to applicable tax laws. An employee donating accrued
leave or an employee receiving donated leave shall waive all tax liability of the City
through the establishment of the catastrophic time donation program.

Availability of catastrophic leave time shall not delay or prevent the City from taking
action to medically separate or disability retire an employee.

The City may require a physician's statement stating that the presence of the
employee who is requesting catastrophic leave time to care for an ill or injured
immediate family member is necessary.

23. Holidavs

A. The following holidays shall be observed by the City with respect to all employees,
except shift employees. City offices shall be closed on these days except as
othenrvise provided by the Department Head.

, New Year's Day (January 1)
. Martin Luther King Day
. President's Day (Washington's Birthday)
. Memorial Day
. lndependence Day
. Labor Day
. Veterans Day. Thanksgiving Day

' Friday following Thanksgiving Day
. December 24
. Christmas Day

' December 31. One personal holiday

lf any holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the
holiday; and if any such holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be
observed as the holiday.

lf a holiday occurs on the employee's first normal day off, the employee shall take
the preceding day as the holiday; however, if the holiday occurs on the employee's
second consecutive normal day off, the employee shall take the following day as the
holiday. This policy shall be adhered to where practical and may be modified only by

written consent to other conditions by the department head with approval of the City
Manager.

Notwithstanding the above, eligible employees who are not able to take a
designated holiday day off shall be credited with one (1) additional day of annual
leave (8 hours) for each holiday not taken.

J

K.

L.

B

c.

D

E. Employees shall be entitled to one (1) personal holiday (8 hours) per calendar year

Page 457

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
8Mt1sW91! 22 to 96 t 3o t 225

Page 40

The personal holiday shall be taken in the same manner and under the same rules
as compensating time, except that employees who have not completed their initial
probationary period may not take their personal holiday until they have completed
the probationary period.

Maintenance workers in the Solid Waste Division shall accrue 4 hours of
compensating time off (CTO) on April 1 of each year.

No holiday pay shall be accrued when an employee has been off work for an unpaid

status more than 90 days.

24. Federal and State Familv and Medi Leave Acts

The City agrees to comply with the Federal and State Family and Medical Leave Acts

25. Personal Leave Time

Any Personal Leave Time (PLT) earned by employees and still remaining on the
books may be used by employees for time off on an hour-for-hour basis until the
employee has exhausted the bank. Use of PLT time shall be subject to the following:

i. Use of PLT shall be subject to the operating needs of the City.
ii. Use of PLT shall not cause the City to backfill behind an employee using

PLT.
iii. PLT shall have no cash value and may not be cashed out. lf an employee

terminates employment with the City or retires, any PLT remaining in the
bank shall be surrendered with no value to the employee.

Article X. TRANSFER AND PROMOTION

Transfer

A. The City reserves the right to transfer employees in accordance with the needs of
the City.

B. No bargaining unit employee shall be transferred as a punitive measure.

Worksite and Shift Transfer

No bargaining unit employee shall be permanently transferred between work sites
without ten (10) days prior written notice.

No bargaining unit employee shall be temporarily transferred without notice at least
one day prior to said transfer, except in case of emergency.

F.

G

A.

1

2

A.

B.

C. Temporary work site transfers shall be for a period not to exceed thirty (30) working

Page 458

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
w0ltl9Ulpl! 22 to Q6/30i225

Page 41

3

days.

Voluntarv Position lfansfer

"Voluntary position transfer" for this section shall mean a change of employment from one
position to another in the same classification in the same or a different department.

Employees may apply to transfer into vacant positions that occur in the City.
Employees desiring voluntary transfer may notify the Human Resources Director,
which will keep a file of employees requesting transfers. \l/hen vacancies occur for
which employees on the transfer request list qualify, the Human Resources Director
will notify the employees of such vacancy and the employee may apply.

Qualified applicants from within the bargaining unit shall be interviewed before other
applicants. The appointing authority shall consider transfer applicants and decide
whether or not to fillthe vacant position from among the transfer applicants prior to
proceeding to interview the other applicants.

The City agrees that it is desirable to offer transfer opportunities to qualified
applicants from within the bargaining unit.

The City shall provide the Union with recruitment notices.

4. Promotion

Employees in the bargaining unit shall be considered for job vacancies within the
bargaining unit, which can be considered a promotion, providing they stand within
the group included on the certification list for final consideration and are qualified by

virtue of successful examination.

Employees must file a city employment application form for such vacancy within the
specified filing period.

i. A notice of job vacancy will be provided to the Union

The City agrees that it is desirable to offer promotional opportunities to
qualified applicants from within the bargaining unit.

Article Xl. POSITION CLASSIFICATION

1. Emplovee Classifica tion Studv Reouests

IUOE may request that a position classification study of a position in the IUOE
bargaining unit be conducted by the City Human Resources Department. IUOE may
make up to three requests for fiscal year 2020-2021, and three requests for fiscal
year 2021-2022.

A

B

c

D

A

A

Page 459

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0918#1 07 | 01 122 lo 061 30 1225

B,

Page 42

t- Classification study requests shall be submitted in writing to the Human
Resources Department.
The Human Resources Department will conduct a classification review of the
position identified for study by IUOE to determine if the position is properly
classified and/or if the class specification is in need of revision.
The City agrees to notify IUOE of classification study results and to meet
with IUOE upon request to share and discuss study findings.
Disputes regarding the findings of the Human Resources Department on
IUOE position classification study requests may be appealed to the City
Manager or designee. The City Manager or designee's decision shall be
final.

The positions in Attachment C had special salary adjustments effective September
1,2019.

iii

iv

Article Xll. TRAINING AND SAFETY

1. T.Bining

The City encourages and provides vocational and safety training for allemployees in order
to maintain efficient, effective, and safe working conditions. Such training programs may
include lecture courses, demonstrations, assignment of reading materials, or such other
devices as may be advisable for improving the effectiveness and broadening the knowledge
of City employees in the performance of their respective duties.

Responsibility for vocational training and observance of safe work practices shall be shared
equally by each employee. ln this regard, employees shall be responsible for attending,
learning, and applying the information provided by in-service training, and shall be

responsible for self-initiation of that training outside the work environment that could
reasonably lead to, or be required by, the standards for promotional employment
opportunities.

2" S*afetv

It is the policy of the City to provide for the continuous development, implementation and

maintenance of a safety program that will enhance a safe and healthy work environment for
all employees. Likewise, employees are expected to observe the highest possible standards
of safety in the performance of service and execution of all assigned duties.

3. lultion nelmnursen

With the advance written approval of an employee's department director and the Human
Resources Director, and upon satisfactory completion with a grade "C" or better, the City
shall reimburse an eligible, permanent unit member for the cost of tuition from a recognized
college or university (on a course-by-course basis) for courses having a strong nexus to the

Page 460

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
NMt1sVl9L14 to 96 t 30 t 225

Page 43

employee's job classification and will benefit the City. All classes will be taken on the
employee's own time.

A. Eligibility

ln order to qualify for tuition reimbursement, an employee shall have attained
permanent status (successfully completed entry-level probation).No
reimbursement will be made for classes taken during the eligibility period or
prior to attaining permanent status. Classes successfully challenged will not
be eligible for reimbursement.

Recognized colleges or universities are those institutions of higher learning
accredited by one or more of the following accrediting organizations: Middle
States Association of Colleges and Schools, New England Association of
Schools and Colleges, Higher Learning Commission, North Central
Association of Colleges and Schools, Northwest Commission on Colleges
and Universities, Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, and
Western Association of Schools and Colleges.

B. Tuition shall be reimbursed as follows

i. Fifty percent (50%) of the cost of tuition, up to a maximum of $1,000 per
calendar year for employees attending community college.

ii. Fifty percent (50%) of the cost of tuition, up to a maximum of $2,000 per
calendar year for employees working towards a Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of
Science, Masters of Arts, or Masters of Science degree at an accredited
college or university.

C. Approval of a claim for tuition reimbursement shall be as follows:

Claims for tuition reimbursement will be denied for any course or class that
has not received prior written approval by the employee's department
director and City.

il. Tuition reimbursement shall be on a course-by-course basis by the
employee's Department Head and Human Resources Director and should
have a strong nexus to the employee's job classification.

iii All requests for tuition reimbursement are subject to available funds as
determined by the City. Approval for any program does not guarantee
approval or available funds for any subsequent class.

Reimbursement requests and grade reports must be turned in to the
Department and the Human Resources Department within ninety (90) days
of course completion.

IV

V Any employee voluntarily terminating their employment within twenty-four

Page 461

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Uhderstanding
wts1t49!//91l 22 to Q6 t 30 t 229

VI

1' l-avqff

Page 44

(24) months of receiving reimbursement under this section will be
responsible for repaying the City of Folsom the full amount of the
reimbu rsement received. An employee i nvol untarily separated (termination,
lay-off or industrial disability retirement) will not be required to reimburse the
City.

Part{ime permanent employees working twenty (20) or more hours a week
shall be eligible to receive reimbursement pursuant to the above policy on a
50% basis.

Article Xlll. SEPARATION FROM SERVICE

A.

B

c

Non-Discrimination in Work Force Reduction: Layoffs and demotions which result
from a reduction in force shall be made without regard to an employee's race, color,
creed, national origin, religion, sex, age, or physical handicap.

Lavoff Plan: ln the interest of employees who may be adversely affected by a
general layoff arising from the need to reduce the work force, the City may first
solicit volunteers for alternative measures, such as early retirement, demotion, job
sharing, reduced work hours and the like, in order to reduce the impact upon
employees, so long as it is in the City's best interest to take such measures.

Abolition of Positions: The City Council may abolish any position in City service
when, in Council's judgment, such action becomes necessary. Employees
transferred, demoted or laid off because of abolition of positions shall receive written
notice of such fact but shall not have the right of appeal in such cases. When a
position is abolished, every effort will be made to transfer the affected employee to a
comparable class and to follow the layoff procedures.

D. Lavoff Area and Prioritv The City Manager, in consultation with the City Council,
shall determine the area(s) and positions in which layoffs may occur, including the
identification of the department, division, work unit, class, and specific position.
When a list of the affected areas and/or positions has been prepared, the City will
give notice to IUOE prior to implementation of the layoff, and upon request, shall
consult with IUOE in good faith regarding the impact of the layoff. Unless agreed
othenrvise, the following layoff procedures shall be followed.

Employees holding temporary, seasonal, parttime, probationaU, or
provisional appointments and any other non-permanent positions that
conduct a majority of the duties as those in the identified classes, shall be
released or laid off first. Employees serving in a regular parttime position
shall be laid off second. Employees in classified service who have
completed probation (i.e. regular classified employees) shall be laid off
last.

Page 462

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
O€,/€AAsVlQl! 22 to 96t 30 t 22Q

Page 45

E

Should it become necessary to lay off regular classified employees, the
person(s) laid off shall be those with the least service credit within an

identified position in the affected department. lf two (2) or more

employees in this circumstance possess essentially the same amount of
service credit, the City Manager shall determine which person shall be

laid off on the basis of efficiency and effectiveness.

Service Credit: Service credit shall be determined and defined as follows.

i. Continuous Service in the Classification, including successfulcompletion of
the probationary period, shall be the basis for receiving one (1) point for
each year of service in the current classification, or fraction thereof for each
full month of service in the current classification.

Continuous City Service, including successfully completed probationary
periods, shall be the basis for receiving additional service credit as follows:

1. One (1) point for each service, or fraction thereof, for each full
month of service, in lower classes of work within the same
department; or

2. One-half (%) poinlfor each year of service, or fraction thereof,
for each full month of service, in another class of work in a
different department than the one in which currently
emPloyed.

Exam Placement: The lowest score in the exam taken for the position

iOentitieO shall be released first. Thereafter, if there are identical scores, thd
release shall be based on the best interests of the City.

Performance Evaluation: Based upon the employee's last two (2) ratings
shall be the basis of receiving additional service credits; each rating shall be

valued as follows:

iv

Superior
Satisfactory
Below Satisfactory

+ 2 points
+ 1 point
- 2 points

F Lavoff Notification: The City Manager shall give notice personally or in writing to the

last known address to each employee affected by a layoff at least fifteen (15)

calendar days prior to the effective date of such action. The notice shall include:

i. The reason(s) for layoff;
ii. Classes or positions to which the employees may transfer or demote within

the department, if anY;
iii. Effective date of the action;
iv. Service credit of the employee based on the formula rating specified herein;

v. Rules regarding waiver of reinstatement and voluntary withdrawal from the

Page 463

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
w€A#99Zl!4l4 to 96 t 30 t 225

vt.

Page 46

reinstatement list; and
Appeal right of the employee; excluding layoff resulting from abolition of the
position.

G Bumpins: An employee designated to be laid off may bump into any vacant position
in the same class elsewhere in the City, or into any position of the same class held
by an employee with lesser service credit elsewhere in the City. lf no such position
exists, the employee may bump into the next lower classification within the same
department, provided that the employee has previously held regular full{ime status
in such classification with the City and possesses greater service credit than another
employee in the lower class. Thereafter, an employee may bump into any previously
held regularfull-time position in the City, provided thatthe occupant of such position
has lesser credit than the employee being laid off. An employee who bumped shall
be laid off in the same manner as an employee whose position is abolished.

Lavoff of Bumped Emplovee: The employee laid off as a result of a displaced
employee's reversion to a lower classification shall receive written notice of layoff
not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff.

The names of regular fulltime classified employees who have been laid off due to
reduction in force shall be placed on an appropriate reinstatement list according to
the date of separation on the following basis: last employee laid off is the first
employee on the list with other employees eligible in sequential order thereafter.
Such list shall be used by the appointing authority when a vacancy for that class is
to be filled before certification of any other employment list.

Reinstatement Lists: The eligibility of individuals on Reinstatement Lists shall extend
for a period of two (2) years from the date of layoff. Eligible employees not
responding to written notification of an opening within ten (10) working days shall
have their names removed from the Reinstatement Lists.

J. Notice of ll from Lavoff: Notice shall be given by Return Receipt Requested
Mail and shall specify the date for reporting to work, which shall be not more than
two (2) weeks from the date the notice is received. Notice shall be deemed to have
been received when sent to the last known a.ddress on file with the City, and
attempted delivery or actual delivery is certified by the Postal Service. Upon
receiving notice, the person on layoff shall have five (5) days to accept or decline
the recall opportunity.

An employee who fails to respond in writing within the five (5) days, refuses recall,
or fails to report on the prescribed date within the two (2) week maximum, thereby
waives all further right to recall and reinstatement as an employee. When recall is
declined, the City will proceed to the next person on the reinstatement list and follow
the same notice and response procedure. This process will continue through the list
until recall needs are met or until the list exhausted. Reinstated persons shall
receive the following upon return to service:

H

Retention of regular full-time service length accrued as of date of layoff

Page 464

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
091A{l1€07 I 0 I t22 to QO t 30 I 22Q

ilr

tv

Page 47

The salary for the classification in effect as of the date of return, at the same
step level as the date of layoff, not to exceed the top step.
The accrual rate of vacation and sick leave in effect for the employee's
service length and class at the time of rehire, but insurance contributions
shall be at the level of a new employee serving the obligatory probation
period of at least six (6) months if on layoff for more than one (1) year.

All other benefits or programs in effect at the time of layoff shall be forfeited
unless they are still applied to the classification or salary range at the time of
rehire, or provided to new hires as of that date.

4

K Resionation in Lieu of Recall: An employee who elects to resign in lieu of layoff or
while laid off shall forfeit all rights to reinstatement and shall be entitled only to those
rights under normal separation from service.

2. ChecE Out Upon SeParation

Any employee who is laid off, terminated, retired, or who separates from City service for any

reason shall not receive a final paycheck untilallCity-owned equipment has been turned in

to the Supervisor, including the City identification card and any clothing, tools, or other

working materials that have been provided by the City, and until the employee has

competed all exit interviews and forms which may be required by the City Manager or

department head.

Article XlV. MISCELLANEOUS

Pernna nenJ Part-Ji !8.9 Em plovees

Permanent parttime employees are employees hired off an eligible list and who
work at least 20 hours per week and not more than 39 hours per week.

The City agrees to provide the same health, dental, and vision insurance
contributions for the employee-only category for permanent part{ime employees
that it provides permanent full{ime employees. Permanent parttime employees
shall have the option to purchase employee plus 1 or employee plus 2 or more

coverage through the City at rates established by the City's health, dental, and

vision insurance carriers. When a permanent parttime employee purchases

dependent coverage, the employee shall pay the difference between the amount
paid by the City for employee-only coverage and the cost of the dependent
coverage.

C. Other benefits provided in the MOU between the City and IUOE shallbe allocated to

permanent part-time employees on a pro-rata basis.

2" Replaceme nt of Damaqed Person al Pronertv

A.

B.

When an employee damages his/her personal property during the normal performance of

Page 465

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
w$+A-sVlgl n to Q6/30/22!

Page 48

his/her duties, the employee may submit a claim for reimbursement with the City. The City
shall investigate such claims and may reimburse the employee for all or part of the
damaged personal property. The City shall respond to the employee within thirty (30) days
after submission of the claim. The final decision to reimburse an employee for damaged
personal property shall rest with the City.

3. Bi-Weeklv v SchedulelAlternate Work Sched u les

Should the City decide to implement a bi-weekly pay schedule (26 pay periods per year) in
lieu of the current bi-monthly pay schedule (24 pay periods per year), the City agrees to
notify IUOE and meet and confer with IUOE on the impact on employees in the
Miscellaneous Bargaining Unit. Alternate Werk Sche

4" Repetitivq lUotjpn.9lgglv

Employees who work in office locations may request that the City conduct a Repetitive
Motion Study. Such requests shall be submitted in writing to the Human Resources
Department.

Article XV. PERFORMANC E EVALUATIONS

1" PerformanceEvaluation

A. Employees will be evaluated in accordance with City Personnel Rules. lt is agreed
that regular reports be made as to the efficiency, competence, conduct, and merit of
City employees. The preparation and use of employee performance evaluations are
for the mutual benefit of the City and the effective development of the employee to
achieve desired job or career goals. Performance evaluation reports should not be
used for disciplinary purposes but rather to identify specific strengths and
weaknesses in the employee's job-related performance; to acknowledge the merit of
above-standard performance; and to prescribe the means and methods of
upgrading deficiencies to a required or desired level of performance. However,
performance evaluations may be cited as evidence in support of conduct that is the
subject of a disciplinary action.

Employees shall receive their scheduled step increase unless Human Resources
and the employee are notified that the employee will receive an unsatisfactory
performance evaluation within 30 calendar days of the employee's scheduled step
increase date. When an employee's scheduled step increase is withheld due to
unsatisfactory performance, the employee shall retain his/her salary anniversary
date. Denial of a step increase may be appealed to the City Human Resources
Department. This section shall not be subject to the Grievance and Arbitration
provisions of this MOU.

B

2. Authoritv to Prepare Reports

Page 466

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
09/0#+s07 | 0 1 | 22 to 96 t 3O t225

Page 49

The department head shall prepare or delegate the preparation of performance evaluation
reports to subordinate supervisors who are most familiar with the work of the employee to

be evaluated. The department head shall review and approve all performance evaluations of
departmental personnel prior to review with the affected employee.

4.) Frecluencv and Distribu tion of Flenorts

A. Employee performance evaluation reports shall be prepared for probationary
employees as prescribed in City Personnel Rules. For regular full-time employees, a
report shall be submitted within ten (10) calendar days prior to the salary
anniversary date each year. ln addition, an evaluation report may be prepared at
any time by the reasonable request of the employee or at the discretion of the
employee's supervisor, when it is deemed to be necessary and appropriate.

B. Reports shall be prepared with a copy to the employee and the department's
working file. The original shall be fonruarded to the Human Resources Director for
review and retention in the employee's official personnel file.

4. Review with e Emnlovee

Each performance evaluation shall be thoroughly discussed with the employee to point out
areas of successful performance and areas that need improvement or are unacceptable.
Employees shall also be encouraged to comment about theirwork performance, either in a

written statement attached to the report or verbally. The employee shall sign the
performance report to acknowledge awareness of its contents and discussion of the report
with the evaluator. The employee's signature does not necessarily mean that the employee
fully agrees with the contents of the report and may so state on the report before signing.

5. Purqinq of Personnel Files

Counseling memorandums are not disciplinary and shall not be placed in the employee's
personnel file. Employees shall be otfered the opportunity to sign and be provided with a
copy of any disciplinary written material before it is placed in the employee's personnel file.
The employee shall be given an opportunity during regularly scheduled working hours to
prepare a written response to such materials. The written response must be submitted
within fifteen (15) days of the notice to place the disciplinary documents in the personnel file.

lf the employee was not allowed the opportunity to sign the documents prior to placement
within the personnel file, the employee shall have the right at any time to attach a written
response to the material. Any person who places any written material in an employee's file
shall sign and date the material, signifying when it was placed in the employee's file and by

whom.

Disciplinary actions shall be purged (at the request of the employees) from the employee's
personnel file following the schedule below in accordance with the City's records retention
policy:

Page 467

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
09t41A 07 | O 1 122 to 06 I 30 I 225

Page 50

. Written reprimands: 24 months

. Otherdisciplinary actions (i.e., suspension, reductions in pay, and demotions): five
(5) years (sixty months).

Article XVl. EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

L Policv

It is the policy of the City that discipline of City employees be imposed on an appropriate
and consistent basis. When an employee engages in misconduct or when job performance
is unsatisfactory in the judgment of the City, disciplinary action may be initiated. This article
modifies disciplinary procedures identified in the City Personnel Rules.

2. Definition

As used herein, "disciplinary action" means written reprimand, suspension without pay,

reduction in pay, demotion, or dismissal (reference City Personnel Rules).

3" Persons Au orized to lnitiate Disci lna rV Action

4.

Discipline may be initiated by those authorized in the Personnel Rules

Application

A.

B.

c

D

Permanent Status: This article shall only apply to employees with permanent status
with the City.

Probationary Status: An employee in probationary status shall have no right to
grieve or arbitrate release from probationary appointment.

Temporary Employee: An employee in a temporary position shall have no right to
grieve or arbitrate release from temporary appointment.

Temporary Upgrade (Out of Class): An employee in a temporary upgrade status
shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary upgrade status.

A written reprimand shall be appealable only to the City Manager or his/her
designee with the right to present the employee's position and supporting evidence,
but no right to present evidence or confront or cross examine witnesses. The
decision of the City Manager of designee shall be final.

Upon the request of an employee, a written reprimand shall be removed from an
employee's personnel file after two (2) years from the original date of issuance;
provided, however, that the employee has not been subject to formal disciplinary
action during the two (2) year period.

E

F

Page 468

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
ss/0449,07 | 0 1 t 22 to Q6/30/22!

G

Page 51

A counseling memo or letter of instruction shall not be considered disciplinary action
and shall not be appealable.

5. Cause for Disc iolinarv Action

A Discipline shall be for cause. Examples of conduct or performance deficiencies that
may warrant discipline include, but are not limited to (more examples can be found
in the City Personnel Rules):

i. Misstatement of facts during the hiring process

ii. Falsification of an entry on a City document (e.9., timecard, expense report)

iii. Disclosure of confidential information

iv. lnsubordination or willful disobedience

v. lncompetence, inefficiency or unsatisfactory job performance

vi. Discriminatory, discourteous, or unbecoming behavior

vii. Theft, misuse or unauthorized use or possession of City property

viii. Dishonesty

ix. Misconduct, i.e., any behavior that brings harm or discredit to the City

Being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol or possessing illegal
drugs while on City property or on official business

Possession of a firearm, weapon, or hazardous or dangerous device while
on City property or on official business

Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor that involves moral turpitude, or any
other conviction or pleas of nolo contendere (no contest) or diversion for
such offense, which adversely affects, or brings discredit to, the City

Excessive absence or tardiness

Absence without approved leave

Violation of a City rule, policy, or procedure

Soliciting outside work for personal gain during the conduct of City business;
engaging in outside employment for any business under contract by the City;
participating in any outside employment that adversely atfects the
employee's City work performance; and engaging in unauthorized outside

x.

xi.

xii.

XI

XIV.

XV,

xvi.

Page 469

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
A#€4AA07 | 0 I 122 to Q6 t 30 t22P

xvll

xviii

Page 52

employment

Loss or failure to maintain any license, certification, and/or clearance which
is required as a minimum qualification or condition of employment for the
employee's position

Abusive conduct or "bullying" that a reasonable person would find hostile,

offensive, and unrelated to an employer's legitimate business interests. This
may include repeated infliction of verbal abuse such as the use of
derogatory remarks, insults, and epithets, verbal or physical conduct that a
reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating or humiliating, or the
gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person's work performance'

6. Prelimina otice of Disciplina rV ActionN

A. Prior to taking disciplinary action with a regular employee to suspend without pay,

reduce pay, demote (except for demotion in lieu of layoff), or dismiss, the
Department Head will provide the employee with a written preliminary notice of
disciplinary action which shall contain the charges, the specific factual basis for the
charges, and the nature of the proposed disciplinary action. A copy of the
preliminary notice of disciplinary action shall be served upon the employee either
personally, or by first class mail and certified mail, return receipt requested, to the
last known address of the employee. The last known address shall be deemed to be

the address that is within the employee's official personnelfile. lf notice is provided

by mail, the employee should be deemed to have received notice ten (10) workdays
after the date of mailing.

B. The Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action shall include:

i. A statement of the nature of the disciplinary action;

ii. The effective date of the disciplinary action;

A statement of the reasons for the disciplinary action citing the item(s) under
Section 5a, the Personnel Rules, City policies, or State or federal law which
have been violated;

Any supporting material or documentation;

A statement advising the employee of the right to request a Skelly Meeting,
the manner and time in which,the request for a Skelly Meeting must be

made, and the required content of the request for a Skelly Meeting; and

The name and address of the person to whom all written communication
regarding this Skelly Meeting shall be sent.

IV

V

VI

7. Skellv Meetinq

Page 470

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
€€104+t907/0 I I 22 lo 06 I 30 I 225

A.

D.

Page 53

An employee who is subject to disciplinary action of suspension without pay,

reduction in pay, demotion, or dismissal, as outlined in Section 6.,4., shall have the
right, within five (5) workdays after receiving a Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary
Action to request a Skelly Meeting by filing a written request for a meeting signed by
the employee or the employee's representative with the employee's consent with the
City Human Resources Director.

The right to request a Skelly Meeting does not apply to a Written Reprimand.
An employee who is subject to disciplinary action of a Written Reprimand
and disagrees with the discipline is encouraged to discuss with their
Department Manager. The employee may also, within five (5) days after
receiving a Written Reprimand, request a meeting with the City Manager or
designee by filing a written request with the Human Resources Director.

The City Manager or designee shall have final authority to sustain, modify, or
dismiss the Written Reprimand. This decision may be communicated orally
or in writing. As stated in Section 4.E., a Written Reprimand is not
appealable beyond the City Manager or designee whose decision is final. ln
addition, a Written Reprimand may be removed from the employee's
personnel file after two (2) years per Section 4.F. if subsequent disciplinary
action has not occurred within that timeframe.

Failure to respond or inaction within the specified time will result in the waiver of the
right to a Skelly meeting, or, in the case of a Written Reprimand, a meeting with the
City Manager or designee, and the proposed discipline becoming final.

Upon a written request for a Skelly meeting, the City shall appoint a "Skelly Officer".
The Skelly Officer will meet with the employee, listen to arguments, and receive
documents presented by the employee. Within a reasonable time and in writing, the
Skelly Otficer shall respond to the City, with a copy to the employee and the
employee's representative, if applicable. The Skelly Officer may recommend that the
City dismiss, modify, or sustain the proposed discipline.

lf the proposed discipline is sustained or modified by the City after the Skelly
Meeting, the disciplinary action shall be implemented. A Final Notice of Disciplinary
Action shall be served in the same manner as the Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary
Action, except that the Final Notice of Disciplinary Action shall include a statement
advising the employee of the right to appeal the action, the manner and time in
which the appeal must be made, the required content of the appeal, and name and
address of the person to whom all communication regarding the appeal shall be
sent.

Aoneal of Disci n linarv Action

Within ten (10) workdays after receipt of the Final Notice of Disciplinary Action,
disciplinary actions may be appealed to arbitration. Notice of the appeal must be
filed with the Huqran Resources Director. lf the employee fails to file a notice of
appeal within this time period, the disciplinary action shall become final and there

B.

c

I

A.

Page 471

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
ss$il19,07 19114 to QG t 30 t 225

Page 54

c

shall be no fufther appeal

B The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties. No appeal or
review of the arbitrator's decision by Writ or other mechanism before any court,

administrative tribunal or any other forum on any legal theory or basis shall be
possible.

Appeals of disciplinary actions to arbitration shall be pursuant to Article XVll
(Grievance Procedure) of this Agreement, except that on disciplinary appeals:

An appeal of a disciplinary action is a complaint of a permanent employee of
whether there was cause for the disciplinary action taken against the
employee.

The parties to the discipline hearing and to the selection of the arbitrator
shall be the employee, who may be represented by Local 39, self-
represented, or independent counsel, and the City who may be represented
by the Human Resources Department or counsel.

The employee shall be entitled to appear personally at the hearing and
produce evidence.

The fees and expenses of the arbitrator, a court reporter and transcript if
required by the arbitrator, shall be shared equally by the parties.

Article XVll. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Pgfinitig-n: A grievance is a complaint of an affected employee, a group of
employees, or Local 39 resulting from interpretation or application of this
Agreement, or the City rules or regulations governing personnel practices orworking
conditions.

Time L-ilnits: Grievances not presented within the time limits established for each
step of this procedure shall not be considered. Should the City fail to answer within
the established time limits, the grievance may be appealed to the next step of the
grievance procedure.

When days are used in this article for the purpose of establishing time limits, those
limits will be presumed to have been met when the appropriate forms are either
personally delivered to the affected party or deposited in the U.S. mail, as evidenced
by the appropriate postmark.

Time limits may be waived or extended by mutual agreement between the parties.
As referred to in this article, all "days" are "workdays."

3. Presentation:An employee and/or IUOE representative may present a grievance

IV

1

2

during work time provided such presentations and discussions do not disrupt City

Page 472

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
w+1t1sWJ91l 22 to 96 I 30 t 225

Page 55

operations and are kept to a reasonable minimum

4. Procedure: All grievances as defined herein shall be processed in accordance with
this procedure. All grievances, beginning at Step 1 shall be filed on a form provided
by the City for that purpose. IUOE may refuse to represent a grievant and the City
may refuse to consider a grievance where the aggrieved party has not followed this
procedure.

A. INFORMAL STEP. Within fifteen (15) days of the event or circumstance
giving rise to the grievance or within fifteen (1 5) days of the time the affected
employee or IUOE should reasonably have been aware of the event or
circumstance, the grievance shall be discussed informally with the person or
persons most directly responsible for the event or circumstances which gave
rise to the grievance. lf the grievance is not resolved within five (5) days of
the date on which it is first presented at the lnformal Step, the grievant may
proceed to Step 1 and file a formal grievance.

STEP 1. A formal grievance shall be presented in writing to the grievant's
department head. The department head shall conduct such investigation as
is deemed appropriate and shall issue a written determination within ten (10)
days of the date on which the grievance was appealed to the department
head.

STEP 2. Within five (5) days of the Step 1 response or, if no Step 1

response is received, within twenty (20) days of the date of the Step 1

appeal, the grievance may be appealed to the City Manager or designee.
The City Manager or designee shall conduct such investigation as is
deemed appropriate and shall issue a written determination within ten (10)
days of the date on which the grievance is first presented at Step 2. lf the
City Manager or designee fails to issue a written determination within the
prescribed period of time or if the determination is not satisfactory to the
grievant, only IUOE may request that the matter be submitted to binding
arbitration. lndividual employees may not submit grievances to binding
arbitration.

STEP 3. A request for binding arbitration shall be made in writing to the City
Manager within fifteen (15) days of the date which the grievant received a
copy of the written determination of Step 2, or in the event that no Step 2
answer is received, within twenty (20) days of the date of the Step 2 appeal.

An arbitrator may be selected by mutual agreement between the parties.
However, should the parties fail to voluntarily agree upon an arbitrator, the
parties shall make a joint request to the California State Mediation and
Conciliation Service. The parties shall request a list of five (5) qualified
arbitrators. Each party shall alternately strike one name from the list and the
last remaining name shall serve as arbitrator. The first party to strike a name
shall be determined by the toss of a coin.

B

c

D

Page 473

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€,€4+ts91.lg.l n to Q6/3 0/229

Page 56

The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the City, IUOE, and the
grievant(s). The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to or delete from the
terms of this Agreement, or City Personnel Rules. All fees and costs of the
arbitrator and court reporter, if any, shall be borne equally by the parties.

Article Xvlll. TERM OF AGREEMENT

Term

This agreement shall remain in full force and effect from the beginning ef the first full pay

l #Julv t. ZOZZ, through June 30, 20252.
The parties agree to begin negotiations on a successor Memorandum of Understanding no
later than 120 calendar days prior to expiration of this Memorandum of Understanding.

Existinq Benefits and Practices

The parties recognize that there are existing ordinances, resolutions, and policies regarding
benefits and other terms and conditions of employment and the same remain in full force
and effect except as modified by this Agreement.

Page 474

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
O8/All1€07 | o 1 | 22 to 96 I 30 1225

Page 57

Slgnatures

ThisMemorandumofUnderstandingisherebyexecutedthiS@
day of October, 2022, by the employer/employee representatives whose signatures
appear below on behalf of their respective organizations.

For the City For Local 39

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Bart Florence
Business Manager

@
nss*-gity-nngrJH u man Reso u rces
Direete+Advissp

@
President

Dennis Batchelder
City Representative Director of Public Employees

Allison Garcia
Human Resources Director

Chuck Thiel
Busi ness Representative

Don Brown
Bargaining Team Member

Aaron Armstrong
Bargaining Team Member

Tony Servin
Bargaining Team Member

Michelle Walker
Bargaining Team Member

Lee Cordawav
Barqaininq Team Member

Page 475

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€10#1907/0 1 122 lo 06 I 30 1225

1. Anpendix A * List of Cl sses in Baroainino Unit

Account Clerk
Accounting Technician l/ll
Admin istrative Assistant
Admin istrative Techn ician
Animal Cen+relOffieer
Arborist
Assistant City Clerk
Assistant Civil Engineer
Assistant Zookeeper lZookeeper I

Building lnspector l/ll
Building Plans Checker l/ll
Building Plans Coordinator
Building Technician l/ll
Building Tradesworker l/l I

Circulation Coordi nator
City Clerk Technician l/ll
Code Enforcement Officer l/ll
Code Enforcement Technician
Communications & Marketing Specialist
Construction lnspector l/ll
Digital Communications & Marketing

Specialist
Disbu rsements Specialist
Disbursements Tech nician
Electrical & lnstrument Technician
Engineering Technician l/ll
Environmental Specialist
Fire Prevention Officer
GIS Specialist
Hazmat Coordinator
I nformation Systems Analyst
lnformation Systems Technician l/ll
lnventory Clerk
Lead Plant Mechanic
Lead Senior Mechanic (Combined

Shifts)
Lead Senior Zookeeper
Librarian
Library Assistant
Library Technician
Maintenance Specialist
Maintenance Worker l/ll
Marketing and Graphics Coordinator
Mechanic I

Mechanic ll
Office Assistant I/ll
Park Planner l/ll
Planner l/ll
Planning Technician l/ll
Process lmprovement Specialist
Recreation Coordinator I

Recreation Coordinator ll
Refuse Driver
Revenue Technician l/l I

Senior Building lnspector
Senior Building Tradesworker
Senior Construction lnspector
Senior Environmental Specialist
Senior Equipment Mechanic
Senior Librarian
Senior Maintenance Worker
Senior Maintenance Specialist
Sen ior Office Assistant
Senior Recreation Coordinator
Senior Revenue Technrcian
Senior Traffic Signal Technician
Sen ior Wastewater Col lection

Technician
Senior Water Treatment Plant Operator
Senior Water Utility Worker
Senior Zookeeper
Traffic Control Device Technician
Traffic Control & Lighting Technician l/ll
Wastewater Collection Technician l/ll
Wastewater Collection Technician I ll
Water Distribution Chief Operator
Water Distribution Operator l/ll
Water Distribution Operator lll
Water Management Coordinator
Water Management Specialist
Water Quality Technician
Water Treatment Plant Chief Operator
Water Treatment Plant Operator l/ll
Water Treatment Plant Operator lll
Water Utility Worker l/ll
Water Utility Worker lll
Zookeeper ll

Page 58

Page 476

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
090q4907/0 1 I 22 lo 061 30 I 225

Page 59

2. Appendix B * Recoqnized Certifications/Licenses

PerArticle Vl, Section 12Q, when management requires a special skill certification, and it is not listed in the
classification description as a necessary qualification, the employee in the listed job classification should
be paid special skill certification/license pay as listed in the table below. ln no instance shall this pay, in
combination with educational incentive exceed 00.00 month

Classification LicenselCertif ication lncentive

Building lnspector

Clerical
Code Enforcement Technician
Construction lnspector
Engineering Technician

lnformation Systems Technician or Analyst

Lead Plant Mechanic

Lead Senior Me,chanic (Combine4.9hifts)
Maintenance l, ll, Lead
Mechanic
Mechanic l/ll/Senior

Mechanic/Welder

Park Maintenance Worker l/ll

Park Planner/Assoc. Planner

Plan Checker

Traffic Control/Lighting Tech l/ll

Water Utility Worker l/ll/lll/Sr., Water Treatment
Plant Operator l/ll/lll/Sr., Water Distribution
Operator l/ll/l ll/Chief. Wastewater Collection

- Certilied Combination lnspector

- Certified Electrical lnspector

- Certified Mechanical lnspector

- Certified Plumbing lnspector

- Uniform Fire Code Certificate

- ADA Specialist Certificate

- Notary Public Commission

- Certified Code Enforcement Officer

- Registered Public Works lnspector

- Llqensed Land Surveyor

- Microsoft
- Cisco

- Class "A" License

- ASE Certificates

- ASE Master
- Automatic Transmission

- Brakes (Air & Hydraulic)

- Class "A" License

- Class "A" License

- ASE Certificates

- Class "A" License

- ASE Master
- Automatic Transmission

- Brakes (Air & Hydraulic)

- Electrical Systems

- Engine Performance

- Heating & Air Conditioning

- Manual Transmission

- Refrigerant License

- Smog Certificate License

- Suspension & Steering

- Certified Playground Safety lnspector

- Certified Pool Operator

- Certified Landscape lrrigation Auditor

- Certified Landscape Technician

- Certified lrrigation Contractor

- Certified lrrigation Designer

- Certified Building lnspector

- Certified Electrical lnspector

- Certified Plumbing lnspector

- Certified Mechanical lnspector

- Uniform Fire Code Certificate

- ADA Specialist Certificate

- lnternational Municipal Signal (IMSA) Traffic Signal
Technician l/ll/lll (level above job)

- lnternational Municipal Signal Association (IMSA)
Roadway Lighting Certification

- Fiber Optics lnstallation Certification

- Advanced State Certification for D5, T5 or G4 only
(in field, not required in classification, and approved
bv Director and HR)

$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00

$so.oo
$1oojoo
$200.00
$200.00
$75.00
$75 00

$150.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
qgo 09

sEq-aq
$150.00
$50.00

$150.00

$200.00
$50.00
$50,00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00

$100.00
$100.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00

$50.00

$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00

-$50.00

$50.00

$50.00
$300.00

Page 477

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
W 1A 07 I O 1 I 22 lo 061 30 1225

Technician l/ll/ll/Sr., Water Management
Specialist, Water Quality Technician, Water
Management Goordinator

- Advanced State Certification for D4,T4 or G3 only
(in field, not required in classification, and approved
by Director and HR)

- Class "A" License

Page 60

$200.00

$150.00

3. Anpendix C - Special Salarv Adiustntents

Assistant Zookeeper
Current
Proposed

Maintenance Specialist
Cu rre nt
Proposed

Environmental Specialist
Cu rre nt
Proposed

Senior Environmental Specialist
Current
Proposed

Hazmat Coordinator
Current
Proposed

Water Management Specialist
Current
Proposed

Water Management Coordinator
Cu rre nt
Proposed

Communications & Marketing Specialist
(former title: Digital Communications & Mrkg. Specialist)

Current M-50

Proposed M-58

Water Distribution Operator ll, Wastewater Collection Technician ll
Water Utility Worker ll, Water Treatment Plant Operator ll

Current M-47
Proposed M-51

Senior Water Utility Worker, Water Treatment Plant Chief Operator
Water Distribution Chief Operator, Sr. Wastewater Collection Technician

Current M-55
Proposed M-58

M-27
M-31

M-45
M-49

M-47
M-49

M-51
M-55

M-51
M-55

M-43
M-49

M-58
M-60

Water Treatment Plant Operator lll, Water Utility Worker lll
Water Distribution Operator lll, wastewater Collection Technician lll
Water Cluality Technician

Current M-5L
Proposed M-55

Page 478

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
0€,l€4tJ€'Ulgll 22 to 96 t 3o t 229

Page 61

Page 479

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
sA.1.1.907t01t22 06t30t225

4. Aooendix D - New Combined (A/B) 13-Steo Salarv Ranoe

Page 62

50.810.50

63_BSt_03

6? n60 70

70_416-25

73.925.50

t3

5S"039_32

61.991.29

65 1fi7 dA

68.365,2S

/1.77?.33

1

57.319,73

60.185.72

63?11 t4

66.374-n7

63"681.8S

56.850.22

58.43?.74

61 3?0 fl4

64_440.84

67.852.3t

57

54"029.34

56.730.81

5g 58? 56

62.563.S3

65.661"45

'12

63.76E_79

52.tt55"67

55.078.46

5-t 847 15

60.741.67

7-I8.75

Et_gt'[.45

50-s27.84

53"474.23

56 t6? ?A

58"373.50

126

{i/0..108-20

49.{44.50

51.916.73

54 586 49

5?,54,85

117.5S

5A-35ri.4S

48"O04.37

50"404.58,

s2 s38 34

55"5fr7.24

9J

Eff ?I1/u3

Eif T,fxr23

Fff 7/'x,|?3.

Etr il'1,f23

Efr 7fi.43

Etr iril,'?3

Efr ?T1,,83.

Etr 7/1.?3

Eff r11,83

Etr 7r'11,'23

Eff IJI,'?3

tss77_30

43.977.30

Ffi 7/tr??

7519{
41

I
40-?45.,15n3t

rJ0
75

l€triln,,?4

letzn,,zz

| 42"6s.41 | 43.S77"30 | 45"236.82 | 46"655.52 |

| +e"ens.ro I qs.ml.:l | +s"aaa i* I sa,ear.Ba I

48,065.13 |

rz,*s"er I

4s.4s6.84 |

s+.ozg.r+ |

50.e61,75 
|

ss.oso-ra I

i2.51r"zo I

sz,srs"zs I

54"086"54

59,03S_32n!T

Etr 7I1I?4

Eff l1hzt

5fi.927.84

50.40rt.5s

52"455.57

5r_sr6.73

Ft.tIzS.34

53,474.23

55.&50.22

55.078.46

5-t.319_73

56.730.81

59.03S_32

58.432"74

60.810.50

60.185-72

62.634"81

61 ,SSr.2S- tainbnuce Wortcr I

48-444.50

lEtr ilnir4

ler rrrrez

| 5r_s16.73 | 53.474.23 | 55.07S.,16 | 56,730.81 
|

I sr":s6,44 I sas6d.ra I sq"sue.sg I se.ru-za I

58,432-74 
|

rz,e+r.tr I

60.185-72 |

ss.bsz"s6 I

61.ss1.2s 
I

er.rzo"n+ I

63,851.03 
|

n:.rtt"l+ I

65.766.56

65.107"48Lt

ler riu:e

leR l,rtzz

I F4"Fa6,4e I s6.16z.z8 | s/.Mr.1s I ss,b€2-b6 |

I sr.e6s.rs I ns.ser-z+ I sr-ps+.as I En,gre-ro I

6i.3ro.o4 |

en.rcr"er I

63t211.14 |

ea.sor-sr I

6f.107"4s 
I

64.440-84 I

67,060"70 I

en.er+-or I

6S.072.52

68.36$_29n{I

lEfr rirrz4

ler nrr':a

| 57:54.85 | 58.972-F0 | 60"741.67 | 6A,563.93 |

I se.err.z*I so.rsl.+a I so"rosmI sr.srr-+r I

54",140.84 
|

ol.mn-rs I

66.374.07 
|

ffi-ser.as I

68.365:9 |

or.ssr.sr I

70.416,!5 |

es"ear,ss I

72.5!fi"74

71-Tf2.33nas

Etr 7i112.{

Etr 711/2! r'17.5stril*slrlnEet|Iorftrr ll.Refrree 776777fi.75 12 783 5571921,1261

6S.581,88 76.143-27

Eff TJ1I.I24

Eff l/i,'?l

76.155-r7

15

12

61TI -s271

6e,6S2.rI

m0.61

61.$21.15D- I 17.5€, 73.S37.06

t58-76

71.783.55

63.r07.39

63.

Etr 7/ir?4

EF 7ltl22

158.76

60"971.7$

75.3S3.52.s2

,25EI74

79.942.5577.614"13

Eff 7i1r24

Efr ?flJz!

70,fr83"02

5&,261"35

72.803_51

7$.30S"23

74.387.82

72.418.51

77.23735

7,+.591.07

7S.554.36

76.828.80

61.940.9S

7S.133.66

64.68,t.96 68.624.2966.645.53

Eff li1rJ24

Eff rtlr?2

70.309,23

67"8S7.?1

74" 5€ 1.07

M_0fi1.11 8111

83.S52.S06&261.33 I 1.507.67

?12-06

79.133 66

s_48

76.828_80

1S3.67

72.418,51

904.65

Etr Tiirz.l

Etr il1]2!

1S3.67

7J6S"584.766765-590.31 14

78.712.06 85.010_73

-84

83.505.63

.8t

81,073.42

8-?6

Efi ll1r2,l

Page 480

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



IUOE Memorandum of Understanding
sAAsWlg! 22 to 96 t 30 t 225

Page 63

101_5t 3.t E

94,351.14

s6.67r.E7

101_505_47

106.584.S7

s3"856.r9

9€_556_46

10E_554.5S I 111_St4-23

s8.549"U0

103.480.56

111 S14 ?3 I 115 27't 65

87.24U-93

14

91.603.05

95,565-ES

s5"6?8"64

88.935.00

s 1,'t 22_5t

100,466.56

105.489.8S
108 654 59

84.6SS.9S

EE,46E_46

s2.8S1_88

92,898.92

85.344.66

97_540_35

1$2.417.37
jfl5 dtng 8C

9t1.1f6.30

.87

79.8fi9.01

trl.8as_77

85.ff91./1

gt}.1S3.1 3

94.6,SS.37

st).4ii4.34
102.417.37

a1.JAE.12

E:I,380.01

87,563.51

87.566.14

9"1.941 .14

s6.538-20
9€.43t.34

rl,513.60

73-017.60

85-009.13

B5-015.67

8S-263.?4

s3.726.,O
96.538.20

75:55.92

sfl"s61.17

76.716.11

7E.6tr3_08

sah33.z4

fla53S.49

86 fi63 34

90.s6.51
srL?26.4n

73,064.00

7lt_481.66

76"313.67

78"r97.fi}

8fi.123.36

fi0_135.4?

&['!3S.16

88.3la.12
90"996.51

7n"s35.92

Etr 7/{123

lIlr?3

Fff il{,'23

Eff 7llr23

Efi

Effltii23

I

lEfr ?rrlr4

v1.674"47Etr 7fiI22ncthrl*cll-Xrintenerc
I

78,320-6276.03S.44?3.flZ4.7069"586.d6E5"5S.Eg

Eff r/1,€4

Eff 7r'trzl

73"824.70

73"062.36

7&.3a0.62

r7,512.4S

80.670.?4

7S.837.87

83.0S0,35

82.233.00 8?

E576.03S.!146S"585.ff6 71.574.47

s4.91

Eff T1{,'?4

Efi 7/1/22

73"nSA.95

68-869.83 73.064.t)0-Led Ptfit 701"20t83.6075.tr5-S270.905.s2 87tk" Heinhnence

92.553.S7

Eff ilT]z4

Eff t/ift2

r/"513.60

76"707.82

82234.18

61.37S.32

84.701.20

83.820"70

87.24?-21

88,335.3!

8S.859"5r

88.S25-38 s1 t472.30t.47 .05

79,ffts.01

Eft4'.1.'24

Etr 111/22

76-7m.82

72.,312.2S

81.379.:I2

76.716.1 1

88.325.38

fiit.829.ri

s1.5S3.t4

86.344"66

s4.340_94

88.935"00Technlcien ll-Trrffic Conlrol & 12 o81

s7.17't_1786 335.3283.840.70

"60

7S,00s.05

.bb

ler rn,rr*

lrr;.rr,*r

| ?6.716.11 I 7e"017.60 | 8r"388.12 | 83,82s.r 
I

I rq.aso.sa I ze.:rs-ez I re.60s.os I oo,s6r"rr I

86.144.66 
|

el.:uo.or I

68.335,00 
|

eo,asr.rr I

91.603.05 
|

ss.45s,46 |

94.351,r4 |

sr.rz"sr I

s7.1 81.68

s3.8S6"19Ht6

rIT/?4

7/f,r2l

78.683.08

75.S19.70

83.39fr.$1

80"543.21

91.122-5'N

8A.01 1,14 96,172.81s3.371-65

88"46d.46

-S6ddTl8ffic Tcchnicirn 90.652_r0

85.8S1.71

s6s"51

80.s61.17

19?"3t|

lItfi4

l/n,r22

9S.057.9S

95.6?8_64

102.02S"73

98.54S.00- Lced Scnior lcdrenic

85.44S.3'0

n
9{i,652-108fr"54:1.21 96.172.8r

-EE

ffi.371"66

186.3000s.23

1.748as6s-51

123_36

lEff 7,r1,r23

lEfralir4

ler rir,,zr

| 82.5ffi.2{ | 85.ms"23 | e?,S5S.51 | $0,186_s0 
|

I rr"eor.3s I ao.r:s.qz I ea"nss.+g I .Bi,ars.sr I

s2.8s1.88 
|

s7.566.14 |

s.678.64 
|

s.1e3.13 |

98,549_00 | 101.sO5.47 | 104.550_63

9?.89f.921 SS.685.8Sl SA"556.+ef,tE
lEtr 7i1,83

lEff i/!,r24

len rirpr

| 82"5S1.4e | 8:r.015_67 | 87.566.14 | $r1,153.13 |

I ar"em,El I al.rrs.rs I ne"ene.al I as,:6r.a4 I

ee8sE,s2 |

fi,gat.t+ |

96"685_8S 
I

s4.6ss.37 |

38.s56.46 | 101.513.161 104"558.55

37,540.3s I tOC,qm-SS I lOl.+A0.56H60
lprrrlrz:

7IlXZ4

TIXJ?I

8S"6S3.34

85"fi2.94

89.263.t4

84.346.12

91-gl+1.1i|

90_996.51

$4.6,SS.37

93,726.40 737- Electrtrrl A hsbumeniTcchnicaen

109

lEtr rir,"g

Page 481

10/25/2022 Item No.16.



This page is intentionally lefr blank.

Page 482

10/25/2022 Item No.16.


	Top
	10/25/2022 Item No.1.	Resolution of Commendation Honoring Kaiser Permanente on their 20th Anniversary in Folsom
	10-25 STAFF REPORT COMMENDATION KAISER PERMANENTE

	10/25/2022 Item No.2.	Resolution of Commendation Honoring Folsom Residents Aimee Johns and Paul Bandy for their Efforts Rescuing a Shark Attack Victim
	10-25 STAFF REPORT COMMENDATION RESCUING A SHARK ATTACK VICTIM

	10/25/2022 Item No.3.	City of Folsom ALERT Rain and Stream Gauges for Enhanced Storm Response
	10-25 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION ALERT RAIN AND STREAM GAUGES

	10/25/2022 Item No.4.	Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report
	10-25 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION FOLSOM PLAN AREA SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT

	10/25/2022 Item No.5.	Approval of October 11, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	10-25 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF OCTOBER 11, 2022

	10/25/2022 Item No.6.	Ordinance No. 1334 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 5.20.070(A)(2) and Repealing Section 5.20.070(A)(13)(d) of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase the Number of Card Tables and Allow Backline Betting  (PN 22-157) (Second Reading and Adoption)
	10-25 STAFF REPORT ORD 1334 CARDROOM ORDINANCE SECOND READING AND ADOPTION

	10/25/2022 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10929 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Illinois Tool Works Inc, dba EH Wachs for the Purchase of a Valve Truck Bed and Associated Equipment
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10929 PURCHASE OF A VALVE TRUCK BED

	10/25/2022 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10930 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of an eTransit Van
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10930 eTRANSIT VAN PURCHASE

	10/25/2022 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 10931 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Dobbs Heavy Duty Holdings LLC, dba Dobbs Peterbilt for the Purchase of a Dump Truck and Appropriation of Funds
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10931 PURCHASE OF A DUMP TRUCK

	10/25/2022 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10932 - A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation of Funds for the Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Re-landscaping Project
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10932 MANGINI RANCH PHASE 1 RE-LANDSCAPING PROJECT

	10/25/2022 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10933 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with Mintier Harnish to Increase the Not-to-Exceed Amount for the Zoning Code Update Project
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10933 AMENDMENT NO. 2 MINTIER HARNISH ZONING CODE UPDATE PROJECT

	10/25/2022 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10934 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus Inc. for One Type 3 Fire Engine
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10934 ONE TYPE 3 FIRE ENGINE

	10/25/2022 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10935 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10935 BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

	10/25/2022 Item No.14.	Objective Design and Development Standards and Green Means Go Grant Funding
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10936 AND 10937 GREEN MEANS GO GRANT FUNDING

	10/25/2022 Item No.15.	Resolution No. 10938 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Village Nos. 5 & 6 Subdivision
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10938 MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2 VILLAGE NOS. 5 AND 6

	10/25/2022 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 10940 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39
	10-25 STAFF REPORT RES 10940 MOU LOCAL 39

	Bottom

